



OCCASION

This publication has been made available to the public on the occasion of the 50th anniversary of the United Nations Industrial Development Organisation.

TOGETHER

for a sustainable future

DISCLAIMER

This document has been produced without formal United Nations editing. The designations employed and the presentation of the material in this document do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the Secretariat of the United Nations Industrial Development Organization (UNIDO) concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries, or its economic system or degree of development. Designations such as "developed", "industrialized" and "developing" are intended for statistical convenience and do not necessarily express a judgment about the stage reached by a particular country or area in the development process. Mention of firm names or commercial products does not constitute an endorsement by UNIDO.

FAIR USE POLICY

Any part of this publication may be quoted and referenced for educational and research purposes without additional permission from UNIDO. However, those who make use of quoting and referencing this publication are requested to follow the Fair Use Policy of giving due credit to UNIDO.

CONTACT

Please contact <u>publications@unido.org</u> for further information concerning UNIDO publications.

For more information about UNIDO, please visit us at <u>www.unido.org</u>





æ



2 0















Wit Process United Nations Industrial Development Organisation



Elaboration of Integrated Cassava Processing Factory Concept (Project US/INT/80/006) Volume 1: Elaboration of the Concept

Final Report

(1 of 2)



Minster Agriculture

Limited



P-E International Operations Limited

11.1

· G · ·

P-E International Operations Ltd

A member of The P-E Consulting Group

Park House Egham Surrey UK TW20 OHW Telephone Egham (0784) 34411 Telex 933783 Telegrams Prodeng Egham



July 1982

UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ORGANISATION

ELABORATION OF INTEGRATED CASSAVA PROCESSING CONCEPT

(PROJECT US/INT/80/006)

FINAL REPORT

VOLUME 1

ELABORATION OF THE CONCEPT

Holding Cimpany P. Elintenational Ltd¹, Registered Office Park House Epham Sorrey UK TW20 JHW. Registered in England No. 1228758, Englisyment Agencies Act 1973 Disease No., SE(R) 1061

11

1

111

1

I.

T

Т

1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1

1

1

1

Т

PE

ни т

Contents			
1.	INTRODUCTION	1	
2.	SUMMARY	3	
2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5	Versatility of Cassava Markets for Cassava and Derived Products Agronomic Considerations Procurement of Cassava Considerations of Process Design	3 3 4 5	
2.6 2.7	Outline of Factory Financial Evaluation	5	
3.	PROJECT BACKGROUND AND HISTORY	7	
4.	MARKET CONSIDERATIONS	8	
4.1 4.2 4.3	The Range of Markets Uses of Cassava The Market in Zambia	8 8 11	
5.	AGRONOMIC REQUIREMENTS OF THE CASSAVA CROP	14	
5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6	Background Information on Cassava Globa. Distribution of Cassava Growth Requirements Varieties Fertilisers Rotation Crops for Cassava	14 17 19 23 23 24	
6.	PROCUREMENT OF CASSAVA	26	
6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7	Source of Production Costs of Production Choice of Raw Material Prices of Roots and Chips Quality Standards Training of Buyers Transport Scheduling	2€ 27 28 28 29 29	
7.	THE FACTORY CONCEPT: CONSIDERATIONS OF PROCESS DESIGN	30	
7 1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5	Chip Quality and Root Availability Water Quality and Quantity Effluent Disposal Standards Level of Technology Required in the Process Leaf Processing	33 34 35 35 35	

11

1



Contents Page 8. OUTLINE OF INTEGRATED CASSAVA PROCESSING FACTORY 39 39 8.1 Procurement Supply The Starch Process 41 8.2 8.3 Effluent Disposal 57 58 9. FINANCIAL EVALUATION 58 9.1 **Financial Statements** 9.2 Factory for Cassava Starch Only 63

APPENDICES

	1.	TERMS OF	REFERENCE	FOR CONSUL	TING SERVICES
--	----	----------	-----------	------------	---------------

- 2. THE EFFECT OF RAINFALL DISTRIBUTION ON CASSAVA PRODUCTION
- 3. COSTS OF PRODUCING CASSAVA
- 4. MECHANISED CASSAVA PRODUCTION
- 5. CHIP DESIGN AND QUALITY

I.

i I

L I

- 6. PROPERTIES AND USES OF GLUCOSE SYRUPS
- 7. PESTS AND DISEASES OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA
- 8. FACTORY PLAN
- 9. FACTORY PLAN
- 10. LIST OF MACHINERY REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED FACTORY
- 11. DETAILS OF MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS ABLE TO PROVIDE TURNKEY FACTORIES
- 12. FINANCIAL REPORTS MULTIPRODUCT FACTORY
- 13. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR CASSAVA STARCH FACTORY ONLY

1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1



FINAL REPORT

VOLUME 1: ELABORATION OF THE CONCEPT

1. INTRODUCTION

This final report on UNIDO Project US/INT/80/006 is submitted in accordance with Contract No. T81/73. UNIDO commissioned P-E International Operations Limited (P-EIO) in association with Minster Agriculture Limited (MAL) to execute the contract (Telex of Authorisation, 16 October 1981). The views expressed in this report are those of our two organisations, and do not necessarily reflect those of any member of UNIDO.

The aim of the project is to elaborate and evaluate the concept of setting up a factory or factories to make the range of products which can be derived from cassava in any country whose climate will support its growth.

This necessitates study of the agronomy of the cassava crop and of the procurement system needed to ensure an adequate supply of raw material; research into the markets for products derivable from cassava; the definition of appropriate technology and the outline design of a typical factory; and the evaluation of the concept, both financially and economically.

UNIDO chose Zambia as the country in which the concept was to be tested, and from this study there has emerged a specific project for Zambia, which is described in Volume 2 of this report.

The present Volume 1, however, is intended to stand as a document on its own, and where the findings of the Zambian study are needed to illustrate the elaboration of the global concept, they are repeated in this volume.

The full terms of reference for the project are set out in Appendix 1.

The first stage of the study, a fact-finding tour of Zambia, was carried out in November and December by a team including:

- D R Atkinson (P-EIO), Team Leader and Economist
- D J Wholey (MAL), Cassava Specialist

1 I I

- T R W Jarman (MAL), Cassava Processing Specialist
- J Turnbull (MAL), Farm Management Specialist.

The team was enlarged during the preparation of the interim and draft final reports in January - May 1982 by four P-EIO consultants: K B Freeman and R W Waghorn, project engineers; and C J S Baker and A H Catterall, financial analysts. Support was also provided by P-EIO's Marketing Research Department.

1

т т.

н т

1.1.1

1 111

i I

1.1

Ti T

11-1

The interim report was sent to UNIDO, Vienna on 27 January 1982 and discussed with Mr H Koenig, Senior Industrial Advisory Officer, Agro-Industries Branch, on 22 March 1982.

The draft final report was sent to UNIDO, Vienna on 5 July and accepted on 13 July 1982.

The team wishes to thank the UNIDO staff in Vienna, the UNDP staff in Lusaka and the many organisations and persons who have helped in this project, for their outstanding co-operation.

The theme of the conceptual study (volume 1) may be described as "If cassava processing is to succeed, the following conditions are necessary", and individual countries' conditions can then be checked against these requirements. In the case of Zambia, (volume 2) the facts on agronomy, markets and locations are precisely established, and a project is positively recommended.

2. SUMMARY OF VOLUME 1

		Refer to
2.1	Versatility of Cassava	Citapter 4
	All parts of the cassava plant have uses: tubers, as raw and cooked food (after de-toxification), and as a source of starch and derived glucose and dextrins; the leaf, as a source of protein; the stem, as a source of planting material, stockfeed and particle board.	
2.2	Markets for Cassava and Derived Products	Chapter 4
	These vary very widely: Thailand, for example, exports millions of tonnes of cassava pellets to the EEC and produces 400,000 tonnes of starch; at the other extreme, the proposed factory in Zambia will produce 3-4000 tonnes of clarch.	
	In Zambia, where cassava is a subsistence crop, there is a latent demand for cassava flour, based on marketed chips, and a potential industrial demand for nationally produced starch, glucose and dextrins in place of imports. We foresee no export potential.	
2.3	Agronomic Considerations	Chapter 5
	Of world output of carsava, 38% is grown in Africa, 36% in Asia and 25% in S. America.	Table 4
	Provisional FAO figures of yields per hectare show that these are substantially higher in Asia and S America than in most African countilies. Zambia has a particularly low yield.	Table 5
	The main influences on growth are temperature (growth ceases at 10°C) and rainfall (1000 - 1500 mm are needed for an annual crop). Soil type must not be saline or sodic; otherwise caseava is tolerant of soil as long as it is not badly drained.	5.3

1 I I

1

I.

L

PE

1.1

.

1..

1

Ш



,

		Refer to
	African cassava production is particularly affected by virus and bacterial diseases, and pests are encouraged in those countries with long dry seasons.	Appendix 7
	Improved varieties are increasingly available, with resistance to specific pests and diseases.	5.4
	Fertiliser recommendations vary with soil and climate; in general, potassium levels are critical to the starch content of cassava.	5.5
	It is essential to grow break crops to avoid build-ups of pests and diseases in cassava.	5.6
2.4	Procurement of Cassava	Chapter 6
	The processing factory must have a consistently available supply of raw material of the right quality, at a price enabling economic operation.	6.1
	The factory can achieve control over availability and quality by having its own plantation, but the capital costs of machinery and the costs of hired labour will make this uneconomic in many cases.	6.2
	Cassava roots deteriorate after 24 hours. To avoid the formidable problem of collecting roots over a significant distance it may be advisable to use chips, sun-dried by the farmer. These will not yield the same quality or quantity of starch as do fresh roots, but they do not deteriorate quickly and are adequate for some starches and for all glucose and dextrins. Roots, bought close to the factory, can be used for high quality starch.	6.3
	Farmers should be paid a higher price for roots, relative to chips, than a comparison of their starch content warrants.	6.4
	Chips must be thoroughly dried, using sun and wind to best advantage. They should be sliced 5 mm thick and 50-80mm long.	6.5 Appendix 5

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

 I
 I

1

Ì

٢,

|



		Refer to
2.5	Considerations of Process Design	Chapter 7
	Water used in a starch factory must be of potable quality. Modern processes re-use some water, but consumption is still high: typically, 4300 litres/tonne of starch produced. A dry process needs further research, but it may prove feasible to produce starch of limited use in this way in the future.	7.2
	Effluent from the wet starch process will contain some sugars, which must be treated by a ditch and weir system or a treatment plant.	7.3
	Factories should be as simple as possible and designed with location and operators' skills in mind.	7.4
	It may be possible to incorporate leaf protein processing into cassava plants in the future. This needs more study and perhaps a pilot production and marketing trial.	7.5
2.6	Outline of Factory	Chapter 8
	The processes of converting fresh roots to starch, chips to starch, chips to glucose, and starch to dextrin are described in detail, together with a note on the possibility of converting glucose to potable alcohol.	
	Layouts of the Zambia factory are shown in Appendice. C and 9, and list of plant required and of possible suppliers in Appendices 10 and 11.	Appendix 8 Appendix 9 Appendix 10 Appendix 11
	Recommendations are made on effluent disposal.	8.3
2.7	Financial Evaluation	Chapter 9
	The starch, glucose and dextrins factory proposed for Zambia will require a capital investment of K3,800 thousand, of which 52.6% will be loan capital and 47.4% equity. An overdraft equal to	Appendix 12
	approximately half the working capital will be needed initially.	Report 9

5

T

1

Т Т

1

1

T

I

I

I.

I I

Т Т.

I

۹.

I

١,

П

Ш

11

11

П

Ш

I.

I.



	Refer to
Profit after tax (payable only from Year 6 onwards) is calculated to rise from K129,000 in year 1 of production to K504,000 in year 6.	Report 8
The overdraft should be repaid after $2\frac{1}{2}$ years of production and all loan capital after $5\frac{1}{2}$ years. A small dividend can be paid to equity shareholders until year 5; thereafter a dividend of 15-20% should be payable.	Repurts 9&10
The IRR on the project is 13.64%.	Report 12
Sensitivity analysis shows that the project is more sensitive to price changes then to volume changes.	Report 13
An analysis of a starch-only factory shows an IRR of only 8.36%.	Appendix 13

6

Т

1

I.

I.

T ...

Т

1

I.

\sim	
ľD	۲ì

3. PROJECT BACKGROUND AND HISTORY

Before the study began Mr Koenig of UNIDO explained its background as follows:

- world interest in cassava is stagnant, if not declining. An imaginative, practical concept is needed to revive that interest.
- many tropical countries grow cassava, but the supply and markets are not organised. Processing plants have been set up in several parts of the world, but they have usually been single-product plants, subject to variations in demand for those single products. Supplies of cassava have been intermittent. Thus factories have shut from time to time because of lack of demand or lack of supply. Farmers, wanting to sell but finding the factory shut, abandon cassava as a cash crop and use it only for subsistence.
- a multi-product cassava processing factory may be able to overcome these difficulties, by altering the mix of derived products according to the state of market demand and thus offering a stable outlet for cassava roots or chips as a cash crop.
- a conceptual study is therefore needed, embracing the markets for products derived from cassava; the agronomic requirements of the crop; the procurement system needed to induce an adequate supply; processing technology; and the financial and economic feasibility of the scheme.

The conceptual study should be made on the basis of markets and supplies being free from artificial constraints or encouragements. The results would, of course, have to be adapted to take account of such constraints or encouragements in any particular country.

1.1

1.1

11 1

11

.....

1 1 1

1 I I I

MARKET CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The Range of Markets

Given that it is agronomically feasible to grow cassava in a country the starting point of an evaluation of an integrated cassava processing factory concept must be a study of the demand for the crop and the products which can be manufactured from it.

The study of demand in Zambia is briefly described below, and presented more fully in Volume 2, Chapter 8. In summary, Zambia has a small population; virtually no organised market for cassava at present; a potential national demand for marketed cassava in Nshima, bread and beer; a potential national demand for cassava-based starch, glucose and dextrins, based on import substitution; and no export potential, because of great transport distances and a small, high-cost scale of potential output.

At the other end of the scale, Thailand has developed a huge cassava industry, exporting millions of tonnes of cassava pellets to the EEC for animal feed, and processing cassava roots to produce about 400,000 tonnes of starch a year. (Compared to the 4,000 tonnes a year envisaged in Zambia after 5-6 years of the factory's operation).

Clearly, there is a wide range of circumstances in cassava-producing countries, each of which needs individual study. In this volume 1, outlining the integrated cassava processing factory concept, it seems useful to list the various uses to which cassava can be put and to describe the findings of the market study in Zambia.

4.2 Uses of Cassava

1

11 II 111 II

As shown in Table 1, cassave is one of the most versatile of plants. After de-toxification of its tubers by soaking and peeling, they can be eaten raw, if young enough; or as is more common, boiled or baked; or dried; or fermented; and mixed with protein relishes of fish, or meat, or leaf protein.

The cassava leaf is a valuable source of protein (see Chapter 7 below) and the stalk, apart from providing cuttings for plant propagation, can be ground into a constituent of animal feed or, if very woody, into a constituent of particle board.

Cassava meal or flour is the basic ingredient of the main staple dish in several parts of Africa, and a useful thickener for many products.

Starches, derivable from cassava, have a wide range of uses, from infant foods to oil well drilling, as illustrated in the table. Their use as a basic material for glucose and dextrins is particularly important.

In evaluating the feasibility of setting up a cassava processing factory it will be necessary to consider, in the content of the individual country studied:

 its present and potential consumption of cassava and each of the products derivable from the plant

1

1

11

8



- the quantity and cost of imports of the derivable products

the potential for export of the derivable products.

TABLE 1 - USES OF CASSAVA

Root

Raw (peeled young root or aipim) Cooked, boiled, or baked for table use (95% of production) Shredded and mixed with coconut, oil, peanets, greens, spices Dried (called kokonte, gaplek, etc., in Africa) Grated and fermented, added palm oil, fried (called gari in Africa) Fried slices (French frying, etc) Residue (fibre or bagasse) from starch extractives Chipped or sliced for livestock (dairy and beef cattle, goats, pigs, chickens) Root peel livestock feed Broken roots Pellets Juice (tucupay or cassaripo)

Leaf

Used as a vegetable Cooked Soup ingredient Fortified food supplement Livestock feed Ensilage Dried - Used in animal feed fortification Leaf meal (feed concentrates)

Stalk (stems)

1

L L L

II I I

111 1 1

Cuttings for plant propagation Grafting material for increased yields Mixes with leaves as ruminant feed Dried (used in animal feed concentrate) Particle board

1 I

I I

Chips (raspa or gaplek)

Ground into meal or flour Extracted for starch Fermented (fufu) - meat, oil, vegetables, spices and water added animal feeds Pellets

1

1.1

1.1

ЕП

ЕП

1 I

1 I I

1 II

11

9

.

.



Meal or Flour

Bakeries, pastries, alimentary pastas (macaroni) Boiled in soups, sauces, gravies, etc. Bread extender Porridge (gruel) Fortified flour (with wheat, soya, peanut, vitamins, etc) Improved bread flour (with added calcium stearyl lactate as a conditioner) Protein enriched flour (fish protein concentrate, soyabean isolate, caseim,etc) Selected amino acid enriched flour (lysine, tryptophane, methionine, etc) Fermented (Eba) Glues Adhesives

Starch

Baked goods Desserts - puddings, pie fillings (sago) infant foods Confections (moulding of cast sweets) Thickening agents (synthetic jellies) Bodying agents (caramels) Dusting agents (chewing gum) Fermented beverages (beer) Textile sizing and strengthening Laundry starch Paper sizing and bonding Gums (envelopes, postage stamps, gummed tapes) Dextrins (bonding pigment to paper; preventing glass checking) Adhesives (cardboard, plywood, and veneer) Glues and pastes Blended with peanut flour, nonfat milk solids, vitamins Enriched with LPC, soy, corn, rice (pasta) Alcohol Acetone Glucose Oil well drilling

Modified Starches

Pre-cooked soluble starches - "instant" puddings Thin - boiling starches (confectionery manufacture) Oxidised starches Improved starches (ex: added glyceryl monostearate as a binding agent).

Source: Minster Agriculture Limited

1 I I

1 1 1

1 I.

1

1

1

I.

1 I

1 1

1.1. 1.1

10

11 1

11 1

1.1

L L

1

1.1

1 1 1

1.1

1

1

4.3 The Market in Zambia

Cassava is almost entirely a subsistence crop in Zambia, grown in the remoter Provinces whose agronomic conditions do not favour the cultivation of maize, the main national staple crop. Cassava is not one of the crops bought by the state agricultural marketing system (Namboard) and has no producer price.

We found a significant latent demand among urban immigrants for cassava flour for use in Nshima, the staple dish in Zambia. Based on this consumer preference, cassava flour can be sold at a premium over maize.

There is a potential demand for cassava flour in bread-making and brewing, as a partial substitute for imported wheat and malted barley.

Starch, glucose and dextrins are all imported into Zambia, and users in the growing foodstuffs, textile and paper industries would welcome a national supplier, provided their quality requirements were met. They would be willing to pay a premium over current import prices to avoid delays and difficulties caused by having to apply for foreign exchange.

The results of the market survey are shown in Table 2, followed by the projection of the market and of estimated factory sales up to 1991 in Table 3.

1 11

1 11

1 1

1111

. . .



TABLE 2

Estimated potential for marketed cassava products in Zambia in 1981.

Product	Application	Present Potential (Tonnes/year)	Present Delivered Price + 10% (a) (K/ton	Reason for using cassava ne)
Starch	Textiles	300	900	Import Replacement
	Food - biscuits, Blancmanges, Puddings,etc.	, 500 +	850	Import Replacement
Glucose	Food - biscuits Puddings,etc.	, 1,400	1,050	Import Replacement
	Pharmaceutica	ls 30	1,200	Import Replacement
Dextrins	Glue for paper	150	1,800	Import Replacement
	Pharmaceutica	ls _5	1,800	Import Replacement
	TOTAL ABOVE	2,400 approx		
			Estimated Acceptable Pric	e
Cassava F lour	Ns hima	40 - 45,000	Breakiast Meal + 7% (= ^ + 35%	(i) Urban immigrant demand(ii) Quality improvement
	Blends with wheat flour	7-8,000(10%)	Roll price	 (i) Replace imported wheat (ii) Release maize for other uses
	Chibuku & mos beer	ⁱ 3,000 (10%)	Roller meal price	Release maize for other uses
	Stock feed	12,500 (10%)	Roller meal price less 10%	Release maize but added protein required
	Potable alcoho (liquor blending	l <u>litres</u> g) 750,000	55n/litre	Import Replacement

(a)

I.

I.

1

T

1.1.1.1.

1

1

1.1

1.1

) Users of starch and cerived products, now imported, would be willing to pay at least a 10% premium for local supplies.

11

11

1

1

т т

1.4

1

1 1 1

1

1

1 I.

I I



	Volume change	e change Annual demand (values at 1981 prices (a))						
Year	from previous	Starch		Glucose		Dext	Dextrins	
	Year (%)	Tonnes	K'000	Tonnes	K'000	Tonnes	K'000	K'000
1981	10	800	640	1430	1573	155	263	2475
1982	10	880	704	1575	1733	170	289	2725
1983	9	960	768	1700	1870	185	315	2950
1984	8	1035	828	1835	2020	200	340	3190
1985	7	1110	888	1960	2155	215	365	3215
1986	6	1175	940	2075	2283	230	390	3615
1987	5	1235	988	2180	2400	240	405	3795
1988	5	1300	1040	2290	2520	250	425	3985
1989	5	1365	1092	2400	2640	265	450	4180
1990	5	1435	1148	2520	2770	280	475	4395
1991	5	1510	1208	2650	2915	290	495	4620

Table 3 - Estimated demand in Zambia for starch, glucose, and dextrins

(a) 1981 import prices + 10% premium less K100/tonne for delivery. (Net price for starch, K800/tonne; glucose, K1100/tonne; dextrins, K1700/tonnes).

1

T.

1

1

1

1

1.1

1.1

1

Т

11 1

11 1

I.

1 1

5. AGRONOMIC REQUIREMENTS OF THE CASSAVA CROP

5.1 Background Information on Cassava

Cassava is the name used in the English speaking regions of Africa, the Caribbean and Australia to describe the plant refered to by botanists as Manihot esculenta (Crantz). The crop is also known as 'tapioca' in India and anglophone South East Asia, 'manioc' in French, 'yuca' in Spanish and 'mandioca' in Portuguese. Local names for the crop defy collation.

The plant is a member of the family 'Euphorbiaceae and is indigenous to tropical America, although it is currently grown in most tropical and many sub-tropical countries of the world. The plant is a short-lived perennial shrub with enlarged starch-rich roots. There are probably thousands of cultivars in existence which range in height from 1m to 5m, and vary from unbranched to heavily branched with stems green, brown, grey to light grey in colour. The leaves vary from small simple or three lobed in seedlings and young plants to large palmate leaves with nine to eleven lobes during the period of maximum growth rate. Fruit usually forms when the plant is in excess of one year old, especially in areas with short rainy season where the crop is usually grown as a biennial, over two rainy seasons. The fruit is a three-seeded capsule which opens explosively to disperse the seeds.

The roots of cassava develop from the stem cuttings during the second and third weeks after planting. Under good conditions nine or more fibrous roots become root-tubers during the second and third months of grewth by a process of secondary thickening and starch deposition. The diameter of roottubers increases with age until maturity which varies with variety but normally occurs after 5-15 months of growing conditions. Both the dry matter and starch content of root-tubers increase becoming fibrous and in some cases hollow. An advantage that the cassava crop offers the farmer is the lack of a fixed harvest date allowing great operational flexibility and enabling the farmer to store the crop in the ground.

The root-tubers form the primary product of the cassava crop. The usual size is 25-40cm in length and 5-15cm in diameter. The thickness of the peel and the ease with which it can be removed from the flesh of the root is a varietal characteristic. Peeling losses can vary between 10-20% of the fresh root.

At the core of the root-tuber there is a concentration of xylem vessels which become lignified with age. In over-mature roots these lignified vessels render the roots undesirably fibrous and are removed in some hand processes.

The cassava plant contains toxic principles which release hydrocyanic acid (HCN) under certain conditions. The cyanogenic glycocides linamarin and lotaustralin are distributed throughout the cassava plant, but the concentration varies greatly between varieties and also with climatic, edaphic and cultural conditions. Toxicity of cassava and its products is associated primarily with free HCN that is formed when the cyanogenic glycocides have been hydrolysed. This is effected by a hydrolytic enzyme Linamarase which is present in all the plant tissue together with the cyanogenic glycocides.

11



In active healthy tissue of the growing plant the enzyme and glycocide substrate do not come into contact, however on mechanical damage, eg after harvesting, contact occurs and hydrolysis takes place releasing HCN.

It is well established that HCN itself is one of the most powerful mammalian poisons known, large doses causing acute poisoning usually resulting in death. The lethal dose of HCN for an adult male is reported to be 50-60mg. A guide to acute toxicity is as follows:

Innocuous	:	Less than 50mg HCN per kg of fresh peeled tuber (FPT)
Moderately poisonous	:	50-100mg HCN per kg of FPT
Dangerously Poisonous	:	Over 100mg HCN per kg of FPT

The habitual ingestion of small quantities of HCN, too small to produce acute symptoms can result in chronic effects including malfunction of the thyrcid resulting in goitre in serious cases, and atoxic neuropathy causing lesions of the skin, mucous membranes, nerves and spinal cord. Both conditions are caused by indirect effects of HCN entering the bloodstream via the alimentary tract.

The peel fraction of cassava root-tubers contains substantially higher concentrations of cynaogenic glycocides than the flesh. The ratio of glycocide in peel to flesh varies between 5 to 10:1. Traditional users appear to be aware of the danger as peeling is practised as a preliminary to cooking.

Previously, cassava variations with root-tubers containing small amounts of HCN were classified botanically as Manihot dulcis (or M. palmata) and those with large amounts of HCN, Manihot esculenta (M.utilissima). Currently all cassavas, sweet or bitter, are referred to as Manihot esculenta.

15

1

1.1

1 1

LI I

I I I

11 1

1 I

1

T.

Т



1 1

L

1.1

1.1

I I

1 I.

Т

1 1

Ш

Ш

Ш

1 I

1 1

П



5.2 Global Distribution of Cassava

н.

Thought to have originated in the area of today's border between Brazil and Paraguay, cassava has been disseminated across the globe. In the western hemisphere the crop is grown from Northern Argentina to Florida State in the USA; from sea level to 4,000m in the Andes. Introduced into West Africa by the Portuguese, the crop has spread through the continent from the sub Sahel to South Africa. Today a high proportion of the continent's indigenous population depends on the crop for their diet, particularly in the coastal Western African countries. Although only reaching South East Asia some 150 years ago, the crop is a very important human food in Indonesia and South India and an important industrial crop in Thailand (its number one export crop in 1978). Recently the crop has been recognised as having potential in Northern Australia and Papua New Guinea - principally for ethanol production. To sum up, cassava is present in almost every tropical and subtropical country where the climate allows its growth. Table 4 shows the quantities of causava produced in the various parts of the world as presented by the Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations.

|| ||

.



	Production Tonnes (x 1000)
Africa	
Zaire	12,500
Nigeria	11,000
Tanzania	4,600
Mozambique	2,800
Ghana	2,250
Angola	1,850
Madagascar	1,450
Uganda Other African countries	1,300 9,023 (b)
TOTAL:	46,773
Asia	
Thailand	13,500
Indonesia	13,300
India	6,500
China	3,174
Vietnam	4,000
Philippines	1 ,90 0
Other countries	1,185
TOTAL:	43,559
South America	
Brazil	24,554
Colombia	2,640
Paraguay	1,950
Other countries	1,412
TOTAL:	30,556
Central American & Caribbean	
TOTAL:	1,024
Oceania	
TOTAL:	222
WORLD TOTAL:	122,134

Table 4: Production of Cassava by Selected Countries in 1980 (a)

Source: FAO Production Year Book 1980 (a) Figures mainly provisional (b) of which Zambia, 177.

1

Т

I

1

1 - 1

1 1

Т

Т

I II.

1

Ш

1

1

1 I I

I II

II I I

П Г

1

1

1

I.

1

L

5.3 Growth Requirements

1

1 1

1 1

1 I

I I I

1.1

Temperature. Cassava growth is favoured by a warm moist climate with temperatures in the range 25-29°C. Temperatures lower than 25°C will reduce growth which, in general, ceases at 10°C. Research suggests that the base temperature for cassava germination is 13°C, and that emergence is retarded below 18°C. As it is the temperature of the growth medium that is the critical factor, the soil temperature in the 5-10cm zone should be used to delineate conditions favourable for establishment. Once the crop has emerged, both the soil temperature and air temperature play an important role. Whereas growth ceases at 10° C, the crop will survive lower temperatures and light frost but will defoliate under these conditions. Short duration severe frosts (ie below -3° C) kill exposed green tissue but growth is supported from woody tissue when temperatures rise. Longer term exposure to severe frost will kill all above-ground growth. Based on a 13°C base temperature for germination, Austalian research workers recommend planting to be done in areas with daily mean temperatures in excess of this figure. However more recent reports recommend 18°C as the low-level temperature boundary for cassava cultivation due to reduced percentage emergence and retarded early growth rate at below this temperature. As indicated above cassava is commercially grown at high altitude in the Andes, therefore it is to be expected that there exists a large varietal effect and some varieties may be tolerant to temperatures much lower than the 18°C suggested by the Australian cassava workers. Research at CIAT has proved that varieties tolerant of low temperatures exist. Temperatures in excess of 29⁰C are reported to affect yields adversely but little reliable information is available to confirm this figure.

Rainfall. Cassava thrives in areas receiving 1,000 - 1,500mm of rainfall, distributed evenly throughout the growing season. Physiological experiments indicate that different varieties have varying maturity patterns with some reaching a production peak after nine months of growing conditions whereas other varieties require in excess of twelve months. Therefore the practicability of producing cassava depends upon the interaction between variety and rainfall pattern. In the situation where only eight rainy months occur per year, a short season variety can be grown within the calendar year whereas a long season variety would not be feasible. Nevertheless cassava grows successfully in areas receiving as little as 500mm per annum, although the duration of the crop is extended in these areas, so that the crop takes up the moisture provided by two years' rain. This, coupled with the crop's ability to survive periods of drought within the growing season, renders the crop very useful to growers in regions with short rainy seasons and/or periods of uncertain rainfall. The effect of different rainfall patterns on cassava production is discussed in detail in Appendix 2.

<u>Soil</u>. Cassava will grow in a wide range of soil types from stiff marine clays through to almost pure sands. However the crop is intolerant of poorly drained soils. The crop is adapted to a wide range of soil pH and is especially tolerant to acid soils, producing good crops at pH 4.5. Nevertheless saline soils and sodic soils are not tolerated and result in stunted growth. Much of this wide adaptability of cassava is related to variety and care should be

1

1

taken because <u>all</u> casssava varieties do not show this tolerance. Cassava is frequently the last crop grown in the shifting cultivation system practised in the forest zones of West and Central Africa and, as such, has earned the reputation for being well adapted to soils of low fertility. Recent research has identified a number of features that may be associated with cassava's special adaptation to poor soils including acid soils and soils with high freealuminium content. Cassava a pears able to maintain relative yields under low nitrogen, potassium and calcium conditions and capable of regulating its growth under low nutrient supply conditions. The crop can continue root bulking under severe lack of phosphorus which renders it extremely valuable for soils with very low phosphorus content. It has been suggested that the crop's ability to yield under apparently limiting phosphorus conditions is related to a soil mycorrhiza which forms a relationship with the roots of the cassava plant.

Experiments show that some cassava varieities respond to fertile soils, by producing stem and leaf out of proportion with root-tuber growth. The phenomenon appears to be related to variety as some 'more efficient' varieties appear to respond in terms of increased total (recoverable) biological yield with proportion in stem and leaves remaining constant to the proportion of tubers. Thus the 'harvest index' remains constant regardless of fertility. Cassava can tolerate sandy soil of extremely low fertility especially if the feeder roots can penetrate to 40-60cm and exploit the lower soil profile for nutrients (and moisture). Deep cultivation to facilitate root penetration frequently leads to increased yield.

On issavy soils where drainage is a problem and in areas where heavy rainfall is experienced causing short-duration waterlogging, cassava is usually grown on mounds or ridges to ensure that the root-tuber zone is relatively well aerated. Cassava does not thrive however in basin sites and chronically poordrained areas, and growth will be retarded in spite of ridging.

<u>Photoperiod.</u> Experiments both in growth char.bers and in the field indicate that the partitioning of dry matter between the roots and the above ground parts of the cassava plant is influenced by changes in day length. Thus harvest index is improved by growing the same variety closer to the equator, ie under short days. Colombian experiments indicate however that different varieties show different response to day length in terms of flowering response, therefore overall generalisations for all cassava varieties may be premature and further experimentation will be required to confirm this. Identification of day-neutral varieties, which do not respond to changes in photoperiod will pave the way to the availability of varieties with broad adaptation to changes in latitude.

<u>Yields.</u> National average yields as computed by FAO are presented in Table 5. They should be taken as rough approximations, since it is difficult to measure accurately the acreage of this crop, which is grown on scattered plots in most of the countries producing it. Moreover, in countries where the crop is harvested over more than one year - like Zambia - records of production are subject to wide margins of error.



iI.

I.

1.1

Farm yields vary with location and are dependent on the interaction between variety, climate and soil with the effects of age at harvesting, disease, pests and management factors superimposed.

т ТТ

11

1111

11.11.1



Table 5: National Average Yields of Cassava in 1980 (a)

Africa

Tonnes/ha

1 I I II I I

I.

I.

III II

÷т.

1.1

	Zaire	6.65
	Nigeria	9.17
	Tanzania	4.89
	Mozambique	4.67
	Ghana	9.78
	Angola	14.23
	Madagascar	6.55
	Uganda	3.42
	Zambia	3.19
	REGIONAL AVERAGE	6.41
Asia		
	Thailand	13.30
	Indonesia	9.37
	India	17.57
	China	13.06
	Vietnam	8.33
	Philippines	10.27
	REGIONAL AVERAGE	11.34
South	h America	
	Brazil	11.94
	Colombia	10.95
	Paraguay	10.83
	REGIONAL AVERACE	11 71
		11./1
Cent	ral America and Caribbean	
	REGIONAL AVERAGE	6.39
Ocea	ania	
	REGIONAL AVERAGE	11.07
	WORLD AVERAGE	<u>9</u> 77
		6.77

Source: FAO Production Year Book 1980 (a) Figures nainly provisiona!.

1 1

1 1

1

I II

1

22

1 1

1

1

11 I

11

Т

The world average is about $8\frac{3}{4}$ tonnes per hectare but the theoretical limit to yield has been calculated to be 90 tonnes per hectare been obtained from plants grown under near optimum conditions at CIAT. However the occurrence of debilitating diseases and devastating pests, together with poor agronomic practices and infertile soils, are responsible for relatively low farm yields in African major production areas. Virus and bacterial diseases particularly reduce root yields. Important pests in Africa include mealy bugs and green spider mite. These pests are currently spreading to new areas where severe yield reductions result. Pests and diseases, and means of combating them, are described in Appendix 7.

5.4 Varieties

There is a wide range of cassava varieties, and a global collection does not exist, although many countries have national collections and import improved varieties from elsewhere. Varieties vary in terms of adaptation to different climatic and soil conditions, and the performance of reputedly high yielding types introduced into a new area has frequently lead to disappointment.

As a result of research activities centred on the International Agricultural Research Centres in Africa (ZITA) and South America (CIAT), coupled with national research programmes, improved varieties are becoming increasingly available. These varieties have resistance to specific pests and diseases and should be selected in appropriate circumstances. From the point of view of the processor the content and quality of starch in the cassava roots is of paramount importance, and this factor is increasingly receiving attention from plant improvement scientists.

Yields quoted in published material may be misleading in that they reflect the yields attained from small plots sited on uniform land which received better than average attention. In many cases extended areas of the same variety may result in significantly lower yields than those obtained from small plots. Information on field-scale plantings should be sought before embarking on cassava production ventures. Where these are not available, the setting up of a pilot-scale production unit is to be encouraged to qualify the results from small-plot experiments.

Care in interpreting all results should be stressed, and where processing is the objective all yield figures should be converted to, and interpreted as:

- unit weight of starch, per unit area, per unit time.

5.5 Fertilisers

It is technically very difficult to sustain yields of any crop over extended time periods without supplementing the naturally occuring elements in the soil which support plant growth. This is very true for cassava which is efficient at obtaining its nutritional needs from even poor soils.

It is not possible to make over-the-board fertiliser recommendations for cassava. These will vary with specific site conditions eg soils and climate. Attention must however, be drawn to the importance of potassium as a nutrient in cassava production. Potassium levels are critical if starch content of roots is to be maintained, and adequate fertilisation with potassium fertilisers is usually required to achieve high yields. Nitrogen and phosphorous, together with a range of minor elements may be required in individual circumstances. Whereas some nitrogen is required to balance additional potassium, too much of this element is thought to encourage the production of stem and leaf without parallel root production. It is becoming increasingly apparent that cassava can obtain its phosphorous needs through the agency of a symbiotic relationship with a soil <u>Mycorhiza</u>. However until further research has been carried out it is safe to assume that cassava needs phosphorus and its fertiliser programme should include this element until direct evidence is available to show otherwise.

Where the scale of cassava production operations is large enough to warrant them, field trials should be carried out to decide site-specific fertiliser requirements. Fertiliser costs are sufficiently high to render these trials financially worthwhile.

5.6 Rotation Crops for Cassava

It is sound agronomic practice to grow a series of crops on the same area to avoid build-ups of pests and diseases, most of which are specific to particular crops. This is the case with cassava.

In addition, the slow growth of cassava during its initial stages and the wide planting distance makes the crop a poor protector of the soil from the erosion standpoint. On sloping fields with soils of poor physical structure, growing cassava can result in severe erosion. This effect is compounded by the extensive soil disturbance, unavoidable during cassava harvesting operations. In this case rotating cassava with a fibrous rooted crop, which requires little soil disturbance, assists in the stabilisation of the upper soil profile.

Small farmers traditionally follow a succession of crops, usually related to the gradual depletion of the soil's fertility. Other farmers practise mixed cropping where rows of crops are intercropped between rows of unrelated crop species.

Unfortunately the move towards mechanisation has tended to an abandonment of sequential and mixed cropping.

Many agro-industrial ventures have neglected the agricultural implications of monoculture, and have developed only sufficient land to cater for the raw material requirements of the factory. This makes no allowance for rotation or break crops, resulting in pest and disease build-up, and/or serious soil erosion which cause low yields and the eventual failure of the venture.

PE

The possible break/rotation crops for use with cassava depend on a list of priorities which include climate, soils and food and industrial requirements of each area. Some which may be considered eg maize or groundnuts would involve the agro-industrial venture in the large-scale production of crops in which it had little direct interest. This complicates the agricultural inputs by adding to the list of machinery, to provide planters and harvesters etc, plus the provision of seed, fertilisers and chemicals. Additional buildings for the storage and processing of rotation crops previous to sale may also be required.

Where cassava is the sole product required of the agricultural component of an agro-industrial venture the use of leguminous cover crops/pasture crops is attractive as they require little in terms of additional inputs other than the expanded land area needed to effect a rotation programme.

Leaf meal could be produced using this rotation system, and incorporated into cassava products to increase their protein content. Alternatively the rotation crop could be grazed to provide some economic return. As stated previously the climatic conditions, length of dry season, and soil conditions must be considered carefully before any decision on rotation-crop policy is decided.

Nevertheless the importance of break crops between cassava crops cannot be over-emphasised and the difficulty in selecting an economically or logistically attractive break crop must not be used as an excuse for not following a rotational policy.

6. PROCUREMENT OF CASSAVA

Factories intended to make products derived from cassave have failed in several tropical countries because the procurement of raw materials has not been properly organised.

Among the factors which must be considered in organising a reliable supply of cassava the following are the most important:

- the source of production: should this be farmers or a plantation, or a combination of both?
- the costs of production of cassava by farmers and by plantation methods.
- the material to be used by the factory: should this be perishable cassava roots or less perishable chips?
- the prices to be paid for roots and/or chips
- the quality standards required of roots and/or chips
- the training of buyers to assess/grade roots and/or chips against required quality standards
- the scheduling of collection and transport of roots and/or chips.

Each factor is considered below.

6.1 Source of Production

From the integrated cassava processing factory's point of view the key requirements of the supply of raw material are that it should be consistently available, of the right quality, and priced at a level enabling the factory to operate economically.

The advantages of supplying the factory from its own plantation are those of control over the availability and quality of material. The disadvantages from the factory's viewpoint are that the costs of machinery and hired labour may well lead to a cost per kg of raw material which is higher than the price at which the factory can buy from farmers; and that the plantation must grow break crops, in which the factory has no interest.

From the national viewpoint, moreover, there may well be a policy to encourage cassava as a cash crop for small farmers, which would be defeated by the factory relying entirely on its own plantation.

In each country where an integrated cassava processing factory is being considered it will be necessary to take these factors into account. In the case of Zambia, where cassava is at present almost entirely a subsistence crop, the recommendation is that farmers should be motivated to grow it also as a cash crop, and that the decision to set up a starch, glucose and dextrins factory should not be taken until supplies from farmers are assured. A small plantation should be set up as a supply source of healthy planting stock for distribution to farmers rather than as a major source of tuber supply to the factory.

PE

6.2 Costs c ⁵ Production

Appendix 3 shows that there is great variation in the production systems which farmers may use in growing cassava. The labour inputs, however, are approximately 77-78 man-days/ha, of which weeding accounts for 30 days and lifting and trimming roots for 19. These figures exclude land preparation.

Appendix 4 shows the mechanisation requirements of a cassava plantation sufficient to provide 40 tonnes of cassava roots a day for 280 days a year. These requirements vary according to the rainfall system: all-year round rainfall permits machinery to be used continually, and numbers of machines needed are therefore lower than those required when planting and harvesting are restricted to certain periods of the year.

The following figures summarise the fob costs, UK port, of the machinery estimated to be required under all-year round, long bi-modal and long unimodal rainfall systems, and the capital costs per hectare. Under short bi-modal and unimodal systems the costs would be higher in total than under those illustrated.

Estimated machinery costs under three rainfall systems

	All-year round	Long bi-modal	Long unimodal
Assumed yield of roots in Africa (t/ha)	18	12	18
Hectarage required (a)	622	934	622
Fob costs, UK port, of machinery required (b) (£000) 131.3	290.8	243.9
Machinery capital costs per hectare (b) (£)	211.17	311.36	390.09

(a) Before allowing for hectarage needed for break crops.

(b) Before allowing for spare parts.

After increasing these costs by 15-20% to allow for spare parts and adding cif charges it is clear that machinery capital costs per hectare under fairly favourable, long unimodal rainfall conditions, could be of the order of £700 per hectare in a location distant from a port; and under less favourable conditions they would be higher.

These costs, together with the price of hired labour, must be closely calculated in evaluating a plantation.

6.3 Choice of Raw Material

Cassava roots begin to deteriorate only 24 hours after harvesting, and it is essential that they are received for processing at the factory before this occurs. This creates formidable logistical problems if the factory relies entirely on fresh roots for its raw material, and has to draw them from an area not immediately adjacent.

27

1.111

11 I 1 III I

1 11

1.1

PE

Cessava chips, sun-dried by the farmer, are much less perishable than roots. Their yield of starch will not be as high in quality or quantity as that of fresh roots; but it should be adequate for many applications in which starch is used as such, and certainly adequate as a material base for glucose and dextrins.

It may be that, as proposed for Zambia, the factory should rely on cassava chips as its main raw material, but buy in roots from the immediate vicinity for the production of high quality starch.

6.4 Prices of Roots and Chips

Prices will naturally vary from country to country. Any proposed factory will have to calculate what it can afford to pay, working back from the prices which it can get for its products in the market, and judging also the level which is needed to give the farmer an incentive.

The yield of starch from fresh roots is only 30% of that from dried chips, and it could be argued that farmers should be offered only this percentage of the chip price. However, they incur at least as much cost in producing roots as in soaking, peeling and drying them into chips, and a price based on starch yield would be a disincentive to sell fresh roots.

It will be more effective to offer 50% of the chip price for fresh roots, and to attempt to charge a higher market price for starch made from roots than for the chip-based product.

6.5 Quality Standards.

For both roots and chips the quality requirements are that they should be:

- free from foreign matter (sand, dirt, insects)
- free from mould or bacterial deterioration
- white in colour
- derived from plants of the right maturity.

The fundamental requirement of fresh roots, however, is that they should indeed be fresh. In contrast, the most important requirement of chips is that they should be thoroughly dry.

The drying of chips, right through to the centre, is essential if they are not to rot. Effective drying by sun and wind depends on chip design and on methods of drying, both described in detail in Appendix 5.


11 1 1

н т

Ш

6.6 Training of Buyers

In countries where cassava has previously been only a subsistence crop, or where only fresh roots have been used in starch factories, it will be necessary to train buyers in the assessment and, possibly, grading of chips.

We recommend that fairly simple criteria can be applied in the early years of projects based on chips. These should be:

- white in colour, with no peel present
- dry to the touch (tending to rattle when shaken)
- able to pass through a 50 mm screen
- free from foreign matter.

6.7 Transport Scheduling

1.1.11

1.1.11

This is particularly important in the case of roots, and Appendix 3 contains a special note on planning transport methods in dry and wet weather.

The logistical problems of collecting fresh roots were referred to in 6.3 above. It is essential to keep in mind that roots must be processed within 24 hours of harvesting: and that (Appendix 3) it takes 19 man-days to harvest one hectare of roots.

It is therefore a matter for careful organisation when scheduling collection of fresh roots. It may be necessary to go to 5 farms once a day for 5 days, to collect 1 tonne of roots from each, rather than to arrange to collect 5 tonnes from each on successive days. In the latter case, unless the necessary labour is deployed, a proportion of the roots would certainly be over one day old.

1

1 1 1

1 1 1

1

1.1

1.1

1 1

1.1.1

7. THE FACTORY CONCEPT: CONSIDERATIONS OF PROCESS DESIGN

A typical analysis of the constituents of fresh cassava root is as follows:

- 25% starch & other carbohydrates
 - 2% cellulose
 - 3% protein
 - 5% others
- 65% water
- 100%

The amounts vary considerably according to such factors as method of analysis, stage of maturity, growing conditions and many others. However the analysis does demonstrate that the main constituent of cassava roots, other than water, is starch, and other carbohydrates. Therefore in designing a factory process, the main technology used and the equipment required will be that used in the starch industry. There are a number of different uses for cassava starch and indeed other parts of the plant. A list of the uses of cassava was given in Chapter 4. It can be seen from this that there are considerable opportunities for the processing of cassava, and that these are mainly starch products. The choice of product to make will be dependent upon:

- (a) Availability of raw material
 - ie root, leaf
 - stalk
 - chips
- (b) Market size or requirements for products
- (c) The shelf life or storability of the product.

The availability of raw materials for a cassava factory is a key issue, as discussed in Chapter 6.

Market requirements have been discussed in Chapter 4, in general and with specific reference to Zambia. Each country, region or area where a processing factory is proposed, should be analysed individually.

The shelf life or storability of the product is perhaps the most important single factor which requires attention at the planting stage. Cassava is a perishable root as soon as it has been harvested, similarly the leaf and stem will also deteriorate rapidly if a process of some kind is not carried out to arrest the spoilage, preserve the product or alter it so that the resultant product will store.

Because the fresh roots and leaves are so perishable, the location of processing facilities often has to be near the production area. A factory sited near to cassaa production could process to an intermediate stage, eg starch, flour or even chips. The product from this rural factory would have a much longer shelf life and could then be transported to other processing facilities or form the raw material for existing factories.

Chapter 6, on procurement, emphasises the need for the introduction of a vertically integrated system of cassava production and processing. This concept therefore requires that the producer makes a product which will keep and can be easily transported to a processing installation or market. A dried chip has been determined as being the most suitable way of doing this. This chip is mainly composed of starch and is the easiest way of storing the commodity until the starch can be extracted.

The cassava processing concept is therefore designed around a starch extraction process. The possibility of deriving some products during the production of starch is considered, as well as the use of dried chips as a raw material. The modification of starches is not considered in detail since the process for doing this uses standard manufacturers' machinery. Information and plans can therefore be obtained from them.

A flow diagram showing a processing concept is shown in Figure 2. It is unlikely that this would ever be built since the demand for the whole range of products or the raw material supply to viably supply each product line would not be available. However, the figure does show the process for each product and therefore a process flow line to suit the product demanded can be planned.

Other considerations which must be taken into account when planning a cassava processing concept of this type are:

- Chip quality, and fresh root availability
- Availability and quality of water for processing
- Market requirements on quality and facilities in the country for further processing
- Effluent disposal standards
- Level of technology required in the process.

A brief discussion expanding the above factors follows.

PE

1 1

1

Figure 2 Cassava: A Comprehensive Processing Concept

П

L I

11

11

T

Т

I.

1

1 1 1

I



I

I.

П

П

I.

7.1 Chip Quality and Root Availability

The use of sun dried producer prepared chips is a new processing concept in Africa. In some countries the drying of sections of the root is already practised. (This was seen in Zambia, see Volume 2). In most cases cassava is processed by the producer or villager into a staple product such as gari or flour directly from the fresh root or after a soaking and fermentation stage. Since the "Chip" has been suggested in this report as a means of prolonging the life of the raw material for further processing, it is important that it be properly dried throughout otherwise some deterioration from moulds and bacteria will occur on any damp surfaces. For this reason a discussion on chip geometry has been included to demonstrate that the size of chip exposed for drying is important. Any chips which have incurred mould growth or which have deteriorated because they are wet, will be rejected for processing into starch or other products because the resultant products will also be poor in quality.

Fresh root availability and methods of production have also been discussed. It is important to emphasise that any capital investment in plant and machinery for cassava processing must be run for as long as possible to be economic. Plants awaiting raw material for processing are inherently a poor investment. Thus it is important to ensure that fresh roots are available in sufficient quantity and quality to ensure maximum plant utilisation. Quality is an important consideration and is related to stage of maturity at harvest; variety; growing conditions; and speed of processing after harvest.

An example of the changes which take place in a cassava root over a three year period is graphically shown in the accompanying diagram. From this it can be seen that maximum starch production can be achieved by leaving the root to mature. However, from the production and processing point of view, this may not be ideal.





Figure 3

Frend of the nutrient content in casesve tubers during 3 year prowing period

7.2 Water Quality and Quantity

The traditional method of extracting starch from cassava is a wet process designed to wash out starch granules from a pulp and to sediment out these granules from the suspension. In small rural factories, up to one tonne per day this is still done on settling tables or in tanks. Settling tables have a very slow flow of starch milk (starch in suspension in water) over a series of inclined trays. The starch particles precipitate out of suspension onto the tables. Varying quality according to granule size can be achieved since the larger or heavier starch granules will separate out first. In modern processing factories, capacity 1 tonne per day plus, the settling out is speeded up by the application of centrifugal force. Centrifugal separators remove the starch granules, and here, varying speeds can be used to obtain differing quality. It is important for quality reasons that the starch be removed from the starch milk as soon as possible since a starchy milk is a good media for the growth of moulds. The centrifugal separation process is therefore efficient and effective at removing starch from the water.

The quality of the water is therefore important, since it will be in contact with the starch and must be of potable quality. It should be potable from the point of view of being free from bacteria or mould spores and it must also be of good chemical quality. Free ions of copper or iodine will affect the colour of the starch.



In the dextrin process steam is required for heating the starch. Where boilers are required, suitable water quality in terms of level of salts of calcium (ie hardness) is also important.

Since the centrifugal process is a wet one of continuous washing and extraction, the quantity of water required is large. A typical example would be a water consumption of 4,300 litres for every tonne of starch produced (ie a 4.3:1 ratio). Some water can be re-used on the modern processes which is reflected in the above figure. Older processes required as much as 16,000 litres/tonne of starch.

In view of this high water demand and since cassava is often grown in areas of the world with low or very seasonal rainfall, we have investigated the possibility of extracting starch using a flour sifting technique rather than a wet process. A dry technique would be feasible depending on the quality and use of the resultant starch. A dried chip would have a starch content of approximately 85% and, depending on the stage of maturity of the parent root, the fibre contained in the chip could be sifted out. This starch product could then be used for dextrin manufacture or even glucose manufacture. Its quality would be poor for food uses since the proteins and fat still bound up with the starch might affect its viscosity and heating properties. Similarly the product may have some application in textile sizing but its boiling qualities would be variable.

The above demonstrates the importance of considering the end product from a cassava factory since a dry process would be cheaper in both capital terms and in use of water, especially if the water needs to be treated before use.

Further research work on the dry processing of cassava starch needs to be done. Some work is already quite advanced on potato starch and this may be applicable for cassava.

7.3 Effluent Disposal Standards

The extraction of constituents of cassava can never be 100% efficient, and depending on the sophistication and thus capital cost of the factory, the efficiency of extraction will vary. In the wet process some product will be lost as soluble sugars in the waste waters, and these sugars provide nutrients to bacteria and microorganisms which ferment and often produce the odours associated with starch or agricultural processing plants. The starch water will need to be treated as it leaves the factory. This can either be a simple ditch and weir system allowing some precipitation of suspended solids, or it may be a more complete effluent treatment plant to ensure organic matter is digested in a more controlled manner. Much will also depend on the disposal of by-products such as the fibre extraction. If this is dried and sold for animal feeds, then there will be mainly a liquid effluent disposal problem. Whatever manner it is dealt with, the disposal of effluent willneed to be considered in the light of the local and government legislation, the quality of the effluent being disposed of and the resources available in the vicinity of the factory, eq rivers, streams.

7.4 Level of Technology Required in the Process

The level of technology required will be dependent upon scale of operation and the market requirement. One other consideration will be location of the factory. Sophisticated factories in remote areas are often difficult to service both technically and managerially. Factories should be simple and appropriate to both location and skill of operators using the plant. The location of the processing facility may also be determined by its proximity to the growing area, which may cause the location to be in a more remote area. In these instances a simple "extension of raw material life" type process is the most appropriate and shipping to further processors in an industrially developed region of the country would save the cost of the factory providing its own infrastructure and service industry.

7.5 Leaf Processing

In Zaire, as an example, it is estimated that in rural areas 60% of the diet is derived from the cassava plant and that leaves are plucked from cassava every two months. The leaves are normally boiled and used as a spinach. They are high in nutrients and therefore have a good food value.

Foed Composition	Units/ 100 gms	Raw Root	Raw Leaf	Potato
Food energy	Calorie	135	60	82
Moisture	Percent	65.6	81.0	77.7
Protein	gms	1.0	6.9	1.7
Fat	gms	0.2	1.3	0.1
Carbohydrate	gms	32.4	9.2	18.9
Fibre	gms	1.0	2.1	0.6
Ash	gms	0.9	1.6	0.9

Source: Leung, Butrum and Chang, 1972.

The biological value of leaf protein is between 44-59 due to the low levels of methionine (an essential amino acid in the protein). If the leaf is supplemented by this at 2 gm/kg, then the biological value of cassava leaf is raised to that of fish or meat. Thus provided people on a cassava-based diet supplement their diet with protein from legumes or fish, then a well balanced ration should be achieved. Leaf protein extraction from cassava is not generally recommended since the crop is normally grown for its roots and cassava is not a plant with a large leaf area. Experiments have shown that some defoliation every two months has little or no effect on root yield, however any off-take greater than this will seriously depress root yield. Other more leafy crops are therefore recommended for leaf protein extraction on a large scale.





The commercial potential of the utilisation of the serial part of cassava (modification of the PRO-XAN process)

PE

11

I II I

ſ

1.1.1

1

1

I.

1 I

The possibility of integrating a leaf protein extraction plant into a cassava processing plant would be a logical concept, especially where cassava is produced on an estate basis. To elaborate this concept further in the case of estate cassava production, the alternative crop to cassava grown in the rotation could be a leafy crop. Such a crop as alfalfa (lucerne) or even a grass cover would be a useful break crop to cassava since a legume would restore some fertility back to the soil or a grass crop could be ploughed back into the soil, providing during its life an opportunity to treat broad leaf weeds which may be a problem in cassava and to provide a break from cassava diseases. The break crop may also provide grazing or feed for livestock but more relevantly the crop could be used for leaf protein extraction. Thus a possible concept would be a cassava factory producing gari or cassava flour and a leaf protein extraction factory, using some common plant producing leaf protein. These products could be mixed to form a nutritionally balanced meal for both human and animal feeding or could be sold separately.

Since the dried products would store well, the possibility exists of using the same factory to produce leaf protein in the wet or rainy season (a period of maximum leaf growth) and cassava flour/gari in the dry season (the period most suitable for root harvest). The products could then be mixed at a convenient time of the year. In this way a factory could be operational 12 months of the year. Much of the equipment used in such a factory is common to both processes providing a saving on capital. (A flow diagram of a leaf protein process is given in Figure 3a).

On further investigation of this concept, the consultants have found very little relevant research work and indeed leaf protein itself is still a somewhat untried product. It would appear that marketing a balanced meal of this type or even leaf protein, is the present constraint. In Nigeria, where the enrichment of gari would appear to be an obvious market opportunity for the urban poor, the concept of leaf protein is still in the experimental stage. Some feeding trials have been done but there has been no attempt at marketing on a larger scale.

In conclusion, therefore, we would suggest that a leaf protein cassava flour complex be looked at in more detail and perhaps a pilot production and marketing trial set up. The technology for both processes is available and could be engineered and therefore such a factory may find a new market opportunity.

8. OUTLINE OF INTEGRATED CASSAVA PROCESSING FACTORY

In this chapter we describe the integrated cassava processing factory and its procurement system as proposed for Zambia. In other countries the circumstances of raw material supply and market demand will vary; but an operation on the scale proposed will probably be applicable to a number of other countries, and to regions in countries of larger population.

Layouts of the proposed Zambian factory are shown as Appendices 8 and 9 and a list of machinery required is given in Appendix 10. Appendix 11.1 gives details of manufacturers able to undertake turnkey projects, and Appendix 11.2 shows those with experience of supplying some of the machinery required.

8.1 Procurement Supply

The factory proposed in this report is a new concept for the African situation since the major source of raw material is cassava chips and not fresh roots. We believe that, if a sufficiently well organised marketing system can be arranged which would not only ensure adequate quantity but would also ensure a quality chip suitable for processing, then the processing of cassava on a commercial scale becomes a very real possibility.

An outline of the proposed factory and associated collection system is shown in figure 4. The recommended system of procurement of chips is described in volume 2 which is designed to ensure that the chips are purchased during the dry season and stored at the factory for later processing. In the case of Zambia this could conveniently be done through the national crop buying organisation (NAMBOARD).

It is proposed that a considerable quantity of chips collected be processed into flour through the existing maize mills. The product would be used in the national dish, Nshima, or could be stored or substituted for maize as a reserve. It is therefore proposed that the cassava starch factory only process that quantity of chips which will be surplus to demand for flour production. However a flour production line has been provided in the process to allow the factory to produce flour since the factory's location may be in an area where there is currently no national mill.

Since the factory would purchase chips from the government marketing system it would not have to have a large purchasing force of its own. In some countries however this team may be crucial to ensure adequate supply of chips to a factory.

The factory would not be built in the Zambian situation until the system of production, buying and milling of chips was well established.

Figure 4 - PROPOSED FACTORY & ASSOCIATED COLLECTION SYSTEM

FARMER_ **SMALLHOLDER** PRODUCING CASSAVA HARVEST (DRY SEASON) ESTATE PRODUCTION PEELING CHIPFING DRYING **RURAL PURCHASER** OR CO-OPERATIVE **REGIONAL FLOUR MILLER** PART OF NATIONAL MILLING COMPANY >MARKET **STARCH FACTORY** STÒRAGE STARCH EXTRACTION **MODIFIED STARCH - GLUCOSE** MARKET DEXTRIN

PE

1 1

1

1 1

40



8.2 The Starch Process

The concept of starch extraction from sun dried chips is uncommon. Standard designs and equipment are not generally available from companies specialising in starch processing. Normally starch from chips would not be recommended since the quality of the resultant produce can never be as good as starch drived directly from the fresh roots. There is therefore little experience on the quality and uses of starch produced from chips. However for industrial purposes (textile sizing and glues) and as the raw material for glucose manufacture the product should be of adequate quality.

It is proposed that the factory described in this report should also have the capability of processing some fresh roots for the production of high grade starch.

8.2.1 Starch from Fresh Roots

The extraction of starch from fresh roots will be done on standard equipment designed for the extraction of starch from potatoes. The process relies on the use of centrifugal force to separate the starch granules from a water suspension.

Fresh roots will be supplied daily to the factory from surrounding smallholders and possibly from a small plantation set up on the Government research station just outside the town of Kasama. This small plantation is advised for the supply of new planting material for the Zambian farmers and which will, when harvesting planting material, also supply roots to the factory at Kasama. We would recommend that any starch or cassava processing scheme have some facility or system of promoting the use of high yielding varieties in the area which assists the farmers in obtaining higher yields of roots per unit area of their land. This normally means that some research or trials area needs to be established to provide information on the most suitable varieties of cassava for a given region. Once the variety has been determined then the regular supply of clean planting material to the farmers assists in controlling disease levels in the region. It also provides a centre for agricultural extension and demonstration for small holders. The resultant roots are available for any nearby processing facility.

The rated capacity of the starch factory is planned at an output of $l\frac{1}{4}$ tonnes starch per hour. This scale is too large for the processing of fresh roots and is designed mainly for chip processing. To supply such a line with fresh cassava roots would require approximately six tonnes of roots per hour (Approx 50 tonnes/roots/day on an 8 hr processing day). This is a considerable undertaking since the average yield of cassava is often below 10 tonnes per hectare and therefore the physical harvesting of 5 hectares per day all the year round is the logistic problem most commonly cited in the poor performance of cassava plants already in existence. This output may be possible from an estate or plantation, but the problems discussed in Chapter 6 above make this uneconomic in Zambia.



It is therefore proposed that only 5 tonnes/day will be processed at the factory for a maximum of 150 days during the dry season, when the quality of roots is at its best. The fresh roots will be from 18 months to two years old. This will mean that the starch level will be high, but the roots may have become rather woody and fibrous.

We calculate that the extraction of starch from these roots will take $1\frac{3}{4}$ hours per day. This process would be carried out as the last process of the day before cleaning down. The remainder of the day would be spent on washing and peeling and rasping of the roots. Since the peeling can now be done by hand (due to lower throughput) considerable savings can be made on the amount of root actually processed. Mechanical peelers presently marketed have been designed for potato and therefore losses of up to 25% of the root have been recorded when peeling a root the shape of cassava.

The process flow line to the point of starch extraction is therefore as shown in Figure 5.

The material balance and water requirements are shown in Figure 6 showing the whole starch process from fresh roots.

Much of the machinery for this stage of the process can be locally made out of mild steel. There is a well established ability in Zambia to produce on-farm milling equipment and these fabricators could readily assemble the conveyors, washers and rasping machines to a specified design.

1.1

Figure 5

١,



PROCESS PLOW LINE FOR PREPARATION OF FRESH ROOTS FOR STARCH EXTRACTION

FRESH ROOTS	5 tonne/day
WEIGHING	Platform Scale & Tared Buckets.
WASHING	Rotary Tumble Washer (recycled water)
STORAGE	Open Silo
PEELING	By Hand
WASHING	Rotary Tumble Washer (Raw/Fresh Water)
CHOPPER	Size Reduction Slicer
DISINTEGRATOR	Rotating Rasp of Local Manufacture.
SLURRY TANK STORAGE	Stainless Steel Vat with Facility for
RESIDENCE TIME	Dosing with Sulphur Dioxide (SO ₂)
MAX 12 HOURS	

43

i.

I I I

L

I.

1

11

Figure 6



TYPICAL MATERIAL BALANCE SHEET FOR CASSAVA STARCH PLANT

1 TONNE FRESH ROOTS 350 KG DRY MATTER (DM) 650 KG WATER

1

WASHING AND PEELING 310 KG DM 750 KG WATER

> RASPING 310 KG DM 2950 KG WATER

> > EXTRACTION 310 KG DM 6450 KG WATER

> > > REFINING 220 KG DM 370 KG WATER

> > > > DRYING 220 KG DM 30 KG WATER

> > > > > 1 1

П. Г. Г.

L

Root Preparation to Slurry

Root slurry is the term used in this report for the disintegrated root material which is awaiting starch extraction. In some cases it is referred to as starch milk.

Since storage for a maximum of 12 hours will be required it will be necessary to introduce Sulphur Dioxide (SO^2) as a preservative for the starch. This prevents fermentation by bacteria from occuring and preserves the colour of the slurry. There will be a tendency for browning to occur due to enzyme action and this is prevented by the addition of SO^2 . The chemical will tend to have a bleaching effect.

The maximum holding time of 12 hours assumes that the processing day will be a total of 16 hours (2 shifts of 8 hours). Two hours will be required for start up and cleaning down, approximately $\frac{1}{2}$ hour start up and $1\frac{3}{4}$ hours cleaning down at the end of each day. The roots will arrive and be stored from the previous day's harvest and will therefore be available for immediate processing as the factory starts in the morning. The roots will then be washed and await peeling which would take some time (estimated that 1 tonne could be peeled by hand in one hour using 10 women). Women have been found to be more adept at removing the peel with a knife than men. Piece work rates could be considered for this task, especially since the harvest is only for a certain period of the year.

Following peeling the roots would need to be further washed to remove pieces of peel and dirt. The design of the washer would be similar to that used before peeling and would consist of an inclined perforated drum. The drum rotates in a bath of water and the roots travel from the higher end and are retrieved at the bottom by a conveyor. Brushes may also be fixed to the side of the drum to have a further cleaning effect. Raw or clean water would be introduced in the second wash but could be circulated and used for the roots prior to peeling, the first wash removing soil and sand adhering to the roots. Some drying out of the roots will occur whilst they are in storage overnight which should facilitate the removal of adhering soil if the roots are forked into the washing machine.

Following washing it is necessary to break up the roots and release the starch. Starch is contained in the cells of the plant as granules. To obtain the maximum starch it is necessary to break each cell and this is done by tasping. In the process shown a size reduction known as chopping is shown which will cut the roots down into small pieces ready to be pushed against a rasping drum. Large pieces will tend to bridge or not be in contact with the rasp effectively. The rasp or disintegrator can be a simple machine such as a roughened drum rotating at speed against a quantity of the roots. This will have the effect of grating the root material and breaking it up into a fine slurry. The root being high in water content should provide some liquid to form a slurry which will flow into the slurry tank. Additional water to assist the process is added over the rasp to increase the extraction of starch from the plant tissue.

Before the slurry enters the tank a simple sieve may be incorporated to extract large pieces of fibre and root material which has not been disintegrated.

Starch is composed of complex chains of sugar molecules which are insoluble in the quantities of water forming the slurry. However some of the sugars will not be complexed into starch chains or molecules and will become soluble in water. These soluble sugars will be lost in the waste water. The amount of loss is related to the stage of maturity of the roots. High soluble sugars in the waste water can also lead to effluent disposal problems since these sugars provide nutrients to bacteria and other organisms. The effluent may then begin to ferment.

It is recommended that the slurry tank be constructed of stainless steel or some other non-ferrous metal. The reaction of iron with starch will cause discolourisation of the starch. Cleaning of the equipment will also be facilitated if this vessel is constructed on stainless steel.

Fibre Extraction from Slurry

The starch at the slurry stage is in suspension in water and the final process for the extraction is by centrifugal force. This process separates suspended solids from a liquid. Since the liquid will also contain other impurities such as fibre these need to be removed first. The slurry is therefore passed through sieves to remove the larger fibre particles. Further amounts of water are added at this stage to assist the flow. Sulphur dioxide water is also added to maintain starch quality.

The fibre which results from these sieving operations is then pressed to remove excess water. The press consists of a rotating drum slung on an endless belt. The fibre is pressed between the drum and the belt. The press reduces the moisture content of the fibre from 93% to 78% approximately. The fibre should have a moisture content of 12%. This is usually achieved by sun drying since the installation of a drier for the fibre cannot be justified on cost. The drier used for the starch is not suitable for fibre so there would be no advantage in attempting to use the drier for two functions. Fibre is sold as an animal feed. In Zambia this could substitute in the ration for maize.

Starch Extraction from Slurry

The press water or starch milk with the fibre extracted will now contain soluble sugars, starch in suspension, protein, fat and other foreign matter in suspension or solution. A further filtration is carried out using a much finer mesh which removes more pulp. This can be incorporated in the fibre. The main e.traction process then follows. The starch milk is centrifugal twice to remove the starch. This considerably reduces the water content. A further dewatering is done through a rotating vacuum filter before the wet starch is passed to a drier for the reduction of moisture content from 40% to 12%.

At a moisture content of 12% the starch will be stable and will store for considerable periods. In this state it may be bagged or kept in bulk for sale. Drier temperatures are important since the high temperatures will cause gelatinisation. A temperature above 70° C will cause gelatinisation resulting in an insoluble starch product. The lower temperatures are achieved by using a flash drier. These types of driers reduce the residence time of the particles in the drier, thus ensuring that high temperatures around each particle are not achieved. Steam is used to heat the drier and therefore a boiler must be provided for the factory. In the Zambia situation this will run on coal brought by rail to the factory. Steam generation may be an important consideration in other installations in Africa with regard to fuel and water availability and cost.

Dry root starch from the drier would be packaged in 25 kg paper sacks with polythene liners. This would be stored awaiting transport to the consumer.

The conversion of chip slurry to starch follows the same flow line and this is the reason for processing root starch for only $1\frac{1}{4}$ hours per day. The rest of the day the plant is used for chip processing.



PROCESS FLOW LINE FOR STARCH EXTRACTION FROM SLURRY (CONTINUED FROM FIG 5)



1

Ш

1

8.2.2 Starch from Chips

Chip Storage

The cassava chips would be purchased by the factory from the National NAMBOARD marketing system. This organisation should co-ordinate the buying and processing of the chips into flour. It should therefore be aware of the location and quantity of any excess chips in the region of the factory.

Since chips are only produced in the dry season purchases and storage will need to be provided to enable starch processing to continue for the full 240 days pc: year. The total chip requirement over the first production year is estimated at 3300 tonnes. Assuming 24 weeks are during the rainy season then the minimum storage would be 1,650 tonnes. To allow a working store of chips we recommend a storage capacity of 2,000 tonnes. These would need to be kept under cover in an A frame building in bulk on the floor.

We recommend that the use of solar heated convection be tried in such a building. This system means that the roof of the store would be double skinned. The outside surface exposed to the sun would be painted black. The sun will heat the air between the roof (the space between roofs being approximately 10 cm). The heated air would be ducted down to the floor and allowed to rise through the stored chips via ducts. This system would have no running costs but would ensure that dry air is passing through the chips and maintaining them in a dry state whilst they are in storage. This is a further concept so far untried with cassava but has been experimentally tried with grain. Since cassava chips may tend to be hygroscopic the circulation of air through the bulk of the chips should be attempted.

The size of the storage capacity would need to be $3,600m^3$. $(1.8m^3/tonne chips)$. The dimensions of such a building to accommodate this would be 10m eaves height, 15m standard span x 25m long. (Floor area for storage only 750 sq.metres at a stack height of 5 metres). Standard A frame building should be used where possible.

Chips arriving at the factory by lorry would first be check weighed over a weigh bridge. This would be possible in the Zambian situation if the chips were purchased in bulk from NAMBOARD. However, in a rural situation where control of cnip quality is difficult delivery should be in sacks so that each could be checked for quality and the absence of foreign matter such as sand and stones. Bags or lorry loads could then be dumped at the foot of an elevator which would enable one to achieve a heap of chips to a height of approximately 5 metres.

Whilst the chips are in store the solar heated air could be blown through them.

Chips to Slurry

The dry chips would be taken out of storage using a tractor mounted bucket or shovel. These would be dumped in a sleeping or chip preparation area. This area would simply be a separate floor near the process area which has a drain or gutter and where the chips can be soaked with water. This should preferably be done about 8 hours before processing, and could conveniently be done whilst the fresh roots are being processed at the end of each day. The moisture content of chips in store would be approximately 12%. Any moisture content higher than this would not inhibit mould growth and deterioration of the chips. The soaking would increase the moisture content to about 40% which will soften the chips and make them considerably easier for processing. The 8 hour delay enables the chips to absorb the water. (21 tonnes to be soaked per 14 hour process period). Floor area required approximately 76 square metres at a 0.5 metre depth of chips.

The soaked chips are then pushed manually to the reception pit of a bucket elevator. This conveyor conveys them to a rasping machine similar to that for roots. Further water will be sprayed into the machine during the rasping process. The rasping of chips has the same effect as on the roots, that of breaking the plant cells and releasing the starch.

Some losses of loose starch and other particulars will occur in this washing process. For this reason water is reused by recirculating it to the rasp in a screed and hydrocyclone, and effectively remove sand and other particles from the water.

The rasped chips are milled to a fine pulp by the rasps and together with the added water now form a slurry. This is then pumped to a holding tank or slurry tank where it will be processed for starch. Agitation is needed on this tank to keep the starch in suspension and to ensure an even flow of slurry to the next process.

At this stage the slurry from the chips is the same as that for roots. The onward processing to starch is therefore as described.

Figure 7

ľ

h

ł,



I I I

1

CHIPS TO SLURRY

CHIPS	-	2000 ton ventilated store with solar drying floor
SOAKING		
AREA	-	moved by mechanical shovel to floor with central guttering
SOAKING	-	8 hour soaking. Water is hosed over the chips which are sread out on the floor (76 sq.m).
ELEVATO	ર -	Bucket type - hand fed by pushing chips into reception pit
RASPING	-	Water addition. Rotating rasps to release starch
TANK	-	Starch milk

8.2.3. Chips to Glucose

Over half the world's starch production is estimated to be converted to glucose. This is done by the action of acids, or enzymes or a combination of the two. The action of these agents is to break down the long starch molecule into its consistent elements, the starch molecule being mostly composed of glucose and simple sugar units. 100% pure glucose is know chemically as dextrose. The production of Dextrose is more elaborate and costly than only going part of the way to Dextrose. Thus the concentration of the glycose syrup, which is the Dextrose process, is known as the Dextrose Equivalent. For example a D E of 50 means that there has been a 50% conversion to pure Dextrose. Pure Dextrose has a powerful reducing property and can be measured and in this way the DE value can be applied to glucose syrups. The other 50% of the syrup referred to in the example will be composed of short chain sugars such as Dextrins. In most applications the presence of Dextrins in the syrup is not important and may be even advantageous.

The most widely used glucose (known as confectioners glucose) has a DE value of approximately 42% and a moisture content of 16-20%. This is produced by the acid process and is the easiest process.

It is recommended, to avoid expenditure on capital equipment to produce a product too refined for the market, that only an acid hydrolysis plant be installed. These plants are in themselves expensive and are little more expensive if the raw material is dry starch rather than slurry. Because of this we have considered in the economics of the cassava concept the possibility of only producing starch in the factory described. Glucose could be produced elsewhere, perhaps Lusaka (in the case of Zambia), where there is likely to be better facilities for food processing than in say Kasama. This may be even more relevant in a case such as Zambia where glucose is required as a brewing substrate in substitution for malt. In this instance the conversion of starch to glucose, indeed even the conversion of cassava flour to glucose would best be done on the brewing premises. This would save considerably on packaging and transport costs and would mean a simplified process could be installed producing a glucuse to the DE value required by the Brewer. The brewing industry requires a DE value of approximately 55-56 and in the case of Zambia is the largest consumer of sugars, or malt in the country.

T T T



1

1



CHIPS TO GLUCOSE DIAGRAM



53

1

1 1

1 I

I.

I.

Г I

The acid used in the conversion is hydrochloric acid, although sulphuric and oxalic are used in some parts of the world. The acid conversion process is much quicker and also less costly since less conversion vats are required. The acid is later neutralised with sodium carbonate. These chemicals are normally readily available.

Chips for glucose extraction will be stored, soaked and rasped into a slurry the same way as described for starch manufacture. Starch from the slurry tank is then preheated with steam before being pumped to the converter. Hydrochloric acid is metered into the stream and as the temperature rises the starch begins to gelatinise. Temperature of conversion being approximately 80° C. The residual time for the conversion to take place is achieved by running the heated, acidified slurry through a spiral tube. Directly after acid conversion the syrup is neutralised with sodium carbonate. The syrup is then cooled to approximately 50° C and then decolourised by passing the syrup through an activated carbon filter.

Finally the syrup is concentrated by evaporating the water off the liquid under vacuum. The resultant syrup is then held in heated containers to aid flow before being filled into 100 kg metal drums. The syrup will have a light yellow colour which should be acceptable for most standards. If the market demands however this can be removed by ion exchange methods.

The conversion of starch to glucose is a standard process used all over the world. Maize starch is now the most common raw material for the manufacture of glucose syrups. The advantage of maize being that the starch is often the by product of the vegetable oil industry and therefore the raw material is obtained cheaply and syrup manufacture is often associated with the same factory. In the Zambia situation however where maize is in short supply for human needs the use of cassava is far more appropriate. Further design and process considerations must be made when a future plant is purchased since such factors as syrup concentration or DE value to be produced will affect the cost of the plant. The concentration will be dependent upon market requirements as will the scale or throughput of the factory. Suffice it to say therefore that for the purposes of this report glucose syrups manufacture is both possible and relevant in the Zambia situation. The more precise details of the plant should be planned at the detailed design stage where standard alucose plant and technology can be used.

Properties and uses of glucose syrups are described in Appendix 6.

8.2.4. Starch to Dextrin

Dextrin is the term used from the products obtained by treating starch in a number of ways. They may be prepared by a wet or dry process either by acid or enzymes or under carefully controlled heating conditions. Once again standard equipment is available for Dextrin manufacture and therefore careful planning considering the markets and the quality of product required is essential. Both batch and continuous processes are available and unless the quantities required are very large we would recommend a batch process. The batch process is also most easily accomplished using the dry process.

The starch with a 12 percent moisture is filled into a reactor. This is a closed vacuum pressure vessel holding 1 tonne of starch. The reactor also contains a high speed mixing paddle and is surrounded by a jacket for heating and cooling the vessel. After filling hydrochloric acid is added in a measured quantity. This is normally done through a metering pump which measures the quantity of acid introduced. The vessel is then heated and a vacuum applied to remove any moisture in the starch. Once dry the reaction is allowed to take place under the action of acid and heat. Finally water is added to bring the moisture up to 12 percent again ready for sale. The product can then be cooled. The Dextrin is removed from the bottom of the vessel and conveyed for packaging in 25 kilo bags.

The total reactor time for yellow Dextrins is 6 hours, white Dextrins take less time. Under the proposed factory therefore two processes could be carried out each day on a 16 hour day. If the Dextrin is stored in bulk after processing packaging could continue whilst waiting for the next batch to react.



8.2.5 Potable Alcohol

Alcohol for drinking purposes or industrial uses can be made from cassava via glucose. Considerable attention is currently focussed upon alcohol or 'Gasohol' production from cassava for use in combustion engines as a fuel. At present alcohol can be more economically made from sugar cane since sugar is:

- normally produced on a plantation scale.
- the waste material bagasse provides a fuel source for the alcohol fermentation process
- there is already a greater amount of fermentable sugar available in cane sugar so that little conversion needs to be undertaken from complex carbohydrates eq starch to sugar before fermentation begins.

The route from cassava to alcohol on an industrial scale is via glucose. The preparation of glucose has already been described in this report. Alcohol production is the process of converting this glucose by fermentation an distillation to alcohol. Thus a factory concept could plan for an alcohol production facility down stream from its glucose line.

8.3 Effluent Disposal

From the discussion on the processing aspects of the factory concept it can be seen that considerable quantities of water are used in the process. Where possible this is recirculated and reused. The final waste water will contain suspended solids of soil, sand and carbohydrates plus other organic matter from the process. There will also be dissolved sugars present in the water. The resultant waste is likely to have a BOD value (Biological Oxygen Demand) higher than would be permissable for discharge into local rivers and streams without some form of pretreatment.

In the tropics, especially the area around Kasama, the most convenient means of reducing the organic matter in the water is to discharge into a lagoon. This allows suspended solids to precipitate out and with high evaporation rates the bulk can also be considerably reduced. Provided the lagoon is large enough to allow a residence time of approximately one week then this method of treatment should be satisfactory. Overflow over a wier would tend to discharge relatively clean water if this residence time is allowed. Thus a lagoon for 5 days discharge of water waste from the factory would need to contain 670,000 litres of water.

9. FINANCIAL EVALUATION

It is not practicable to construct hypothetical financial evaluations of the possible projects in different countries. We show in this chapter the financial evaluation of the Zambian project.

The main points of the financial evaluation of the starch, glucose and dextrins factory are set out below, including, in 9.1.6, a sensitivity analysis. The model can be used for a very rapid re-evaluation of the project at any time. If the project proceeds, actual results can be fed into the model to provide an instant picture of their implications on the factory's financial performance.

We also made a financial evaluation of a factory making starch only and supplying this to outside manufacturers of glucose and dextrins. The results of this evaluation, showing a much lower IRR than the multi-product factory, are shown in 9.2 below.

9.1 Financial Statements

The financial evaluation of the project has been done using a computer model the print out from which is attached as Appendix 12 Reports 1-12. The model logic for individual items is described in the notes attached as Reports 1A-12A, explaining the basis on which figures have been calculated.

In overall terms the model matrix is divided into two elements. Year C shown in the first two columns represents the construction period of 18 months. Year CP1 represents cost build ups in the first 12 months of project development and construction. This compression is possible since it is assumed all initial development will be done out of equity capital and has the advantage of enabling us to show more periods in the operations phase. Year CP2 represents the final six months of installation and trial runs. Thereafter ie years P1 onwards, operational years are shown in six monthly intervals (P1 = July-December, P2 = January-June). This format enables the model to demonstrate the effect of the seasonal raw material purchasing pattern on stocks and cash flow. For the same reason it is assumed that the project will have a financial year July 1st - June 30th so that year opening coincides with the major buying season.

The overall financial performance of the project is good as shown in the following summaries.

9.1.1 Profit and Loss (Report 8)

The project achieves a profit in its first year and as sales increase generates substantial cash flows to enable it to repay all borrowed capital by the end of operational year 6 period 1.



1.1

By year 6 period 2 the project is at optimal practical volume and the half year's results show the following:-

	K'000
Sales	2,088
Less raw materials	612
Gross added value	1,476
Less other variable costs	410
Contribution	1,065
Less fixed costs	597
Profit before tax	468
Tax at 50%	210
Nett Profit	258

Thus, allowing for a reasonable retention of funds for future years, a dividend of K 150-200,000 could be declared for the half year, representing an annual dividend of 15-20% on the equity capital of K2,000,000. Such a distribution would only be possible from about year 5 onwards.

9.1.2 Balance Sheet and Capital Funding (Report 9)

The project will require initial capitalisation as follows (see Yr.C P2).

	K'000	K'000
Sources of funds		
Equity capital Term Ioan capital (75% P & M)		2,000 1,800
Total funds		3,800
Application Fixed Assets		
Land	25	
Factory buildings	500	
Housing	250	
Plant and machinery	2,400	
Vehicles	70	3,245

14	. i	\geq
		- N
V.	- j u	/
\sim		1
		_

- -

	K '000	K'000
Pre-production Working Capital		
Stocks	36	
Debtors	31	
Cash in hand	194	261
Pre-production expenses		294
		3,800

NB Pre-production trial runs are expected to bring in sales equal to approximately 50% of the raw materials used.

The basis of the capitalisation is the assumption that term loan financing will be available to a maximum of 75% of the cost of plant and machinery. The remainder is to be funded from fixed capital with short term overdrafts used to fund the substantial initial working capital requirements until self generated funds are available to take over.

The project's funds flow is more than adequate to service this capital profile and the project becomes totally self financing by the end of year 6 period 1 at which time the position is as follows.

	K'000	K'000
Sources of funds		
Fixed capital Revenue Reserves	2,104	2,000
Less surplus cash	816	1,288
Nett capital employed		3,288
Applications of Funds		
Nett fixed assets		1,848
Current assets		
Stocks Debtors Cash in hand	1,003 482 <u>96</u> 1,581	
Less current liabilities	141	1,440
Total Nett Assets	¥	3,288

60

1

1 I I I

NB

The cash surpluses represent additional funds flow not immediately needed in the business.

Working capital requirements are substantial and grow from an initial requirement Yr.1 Pl of K842,000 to a level K1,441,000 by Yr.5 P2 levelling off thereafter. Initially K400,000 has been financed by an overdraft facility. This represents less than 50% of the total requirement and can normally be expected to be available. The overdraft is paid off by the end of year three period 1.

Term lending of K1,800,000 is equal to 75% of the cost of plant and machinery. The moratorium is three years from disbursement in Year C period 2, and repayments, at six monthly rests, take place during the following three years. The term loan is divided between two headings to enable loans of different terms to be built into the model should this prove necessary in future.

The model takes a conservative view of capitalisation which could be reduced by using a short term overdraft on a revolving basis to fund raw material stock peaks.

9.1.3 Funds Flow Statements (Report 10)

The project sustains a surplus cash position throughout its life. Funds need to be retained to finance the relatively short term loan repayment cycle, where in certain years the annual cash flow goes into deficit.

Given this debt servicing level then distributions to risk capital will be minimal for the first five years of the project. Thereafter however good dividends can be paid. Cumulative surpluses are available sufficient for a small dividend of 5% per annum from year 2 onwards, building up from an annual cumulative surplus in Yr.2 P1 of K132,000 to one of K476,000 in Yr.4 P2.

9.1.4 Financial Ratios (Report 12)

The project's performance indicates the importance of achieving good throughput. Fixed expenses are high and this in the early stages represent 53% of sales value dropping to 29% once higher throughput is achieved. This pattern is confirmed by the percentage of profit after tax to sales and it should be noted that given the high tax level of 45% the profit percentage is almost halved once tax becomes payable.

The profit on capital employed is good, achieving a level of 20.3% in terms of gross capital employed and a very creditable 30.9% on nett capital employed. This assumes substantial internal funding and early term loan repayments which mean that risk capital has to wait a considerable period before appreciable dividends can be paid.

I I I

The high capitalisation of the project is demonstrated by the fact that once established, capital is only turned over once a year and apart from the relatively high fixed capital investment, the current ratio of 11.2 to 1 indicates the high levels of stock and retained cash holdings needed to finance the crop purchases.

The overall capitalisation is conservative in development banking terms with term loans representing initially some 50% of capital employed. Debt service is reasonable dropping substantially during the major repayment period Yrs.3 P2 - Yr.6 P1. The term loan is repaid in a relatively short period which could be extended if this became necessary.

9.1.5 Internal Rate of Return (Report 12)

The internal rate of return of the project is an overall 13.64%. This is marginally above the cost of term loan capital at 13.5% and it is this debt service burden, coupled with a high risk capital component which accounts for the difference between the fully operational return on capital employed and the overall internal rate of return.

Given the importance to peasant agriculture of opening new markets for their crops by local processing perhaps more reasonable interest rates could be considered, at levels more in line with lending to the agricultural sector rather than the industrial sector.

9.1.6 Sensitivity Analysis (Report 13)

We have calculated in the sensitivity analysis the effect on cumulative funds flow and on profit after tax of changes in volume of sales (sales factor) and selling prices (price factor). The range calculated is 0 to -15% in 5% stages.

In overall terms it will be seen that the project is much more sensitive to price fluctuations than to volume fluctuations. This is particularly marked in the schedules showing effect on cumulative cash flow. In the case of price variations a drop of five percent results in a periodic maximum cash shortfall of K126,630 whilst a drop of 10% in sales volume only shows a periodic cash shortfall of K36,070. Profits after tax are not as dramatically affected since the major cash shortfalls occur due to heavy debt servicing.

It would probably be possible to reschedule the debt service to enable the factory to continue should such adverse conditions arise as follows:

- in terms of price sensitivity a price drop of 5% could be easily accommodated by loan repayment scheduling. More than this would require a major rethink of the project.
- in terms of sales volume a drop of 10% could be easily accommodated and one of as high as 15% could possibly still yield a fundable project but investment return would be very low.

9.2 Factory for Cassava Starch Only

We have modelled the factory on the basis of the cassava factory producing and selling starch only. The basis of the model is that overall output and sales will be the same, and that capitalisation will be on a similar basis as follows:

	Multiple Product		Starch Only	
	K'000	%	K'000	%
Share Capital Term Loan	2,000 1,800	52.6 47.4	1,700 1,200	58.6 41.4
	3,800	100.0	2,900	100.0

The marginal difference in structure is caused by rounding up figures, and gives the more conservative view of lower loan capital content. The overdraft has been retained on the same basis since this is tied to working capital which has not altered significantly. Fixed asset cost has been reduced by K900,000, the cost of the glucose and dextrin plant.

The term loan conditions and repayment has been retained on the same basis as the multiple product factory. The reports 1-12 for this option are shown in Appendix 13.

In overall terms the project's internal rate of return is reduced to 8.36%. It does not offer a very attractive proposition to risk investors and would require loan capital to be made available with longer grace periods.

9.2.1 Profit & Loss Account (Report 8)

The factory does not achieve profit break even until year 2 period 1. Subsequent profitability is at a very low level and dividends to equity capital are unlikely to be forthcoming until the 7th year of the project after all debt servicing has been completed.

9.2.2 Balance Sheets (Report 8)

The initial capitalisation of the factory at the end of the construction period is as follows:

	K'000
Sources of funds	
Equity	1,700
Term loans	1,200
	2,900

	K'000
Applications	
Fixed assets	2,345
Working capital	102
Cash	161
Pre-production expenses	292
	2,900

As set up the project has sufficient capital to start operations. Applying the same conditions, repayments are too burdensome as described in the funds flow statement comments below.

9.2.3 Funds Flow Statement (Report 10)

The factory initially has sufficient capital injections to meet its needs. However from year 2 onwards cumulative cash deficits build up to a maximum of K194,000 and are not paid off until the end of year 6.

This arises due to applying the same loan terms as the multi-product factory and the situation could be alleviated by providing longer grace periods. These will need to be of the order of six months' extra grace period on the overdraft and a full year's extra grace period on the term loan.

9.2.4 Key Financial Ratios (Report 11)

Contribution is reduced from 51% to 41%. Fixed costs as a percentage of sales are initially higher but level off at the same figure. This is due to fixed costs being reduced by the plant maintenance charges. Profit on sales is marginally lower in line with the lower contribution. Given the overall reduced profitability and cash flow all other key ratios also demonstrate a poorer performance from the starch only factory.

64

1 1

L III
TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR CONSULTING SERVICES



Elaboration of an Integrated Cassava Processing Factory concept for the production of a variety of marketable cassava products supported by relevant economic calculations.

Responsibilities and Duties of the Contractor.

- A. <u>With regard to the field study work to be carried out in Zambia the</u> contractor is expected to carry out the following activities:
- a) Assess the existing situation in the agricultural cassava production sector with regard to the variety, quantity and quality of cassava tubers presently produced;
- Assess and evaluate the organisational aspects and managerial situation in the agricultural cassava production sector and the marketing proceedings presently applied;
- c) Study the planting, growing, harvesting and post-harvesting techniques presently applied;
- d) Assess the infrastructural situation and comment on its set bility and/or requirements;
- e) Study the present utilisation of cassava tubers in view of direct consumption, village-scale processing small-scale processing and industrial-scale processing and comment on its suitability;
- Assess the domestic market situation and specify the cassava products presently available, with regard to variety, quality, quantity and price structure;
- g) Evaluate the domestic market potential for cassava products and specify types, quality and quantity of cassava products expected to be in demand and outline their most practical price structure and development trends;
- Evaluate the opportunities that exist in the country for exports of cassava products. Specify these products with regard to quality and quantity and estimate the expected export benefit derived therefrom;
- Based on the assessments, evaluations and otherwise studies as mentioned above, specify the types, quantity and quality of the marketable products to be produced by the cassava processing factory to be defined and estimate the quantity and quality of the cassava tuber raw materials required for this purpose;
- j) Comment on the present situation in the agricultural cassava production sector and based on the assessments mentioned under the paragraph a) to
 e) above define the action to be taken in order to make available the required cassava tuber raw materials as estimated under para i) above. Estimate the average cassava raw material costs;
 - Estimate the costs involved in the up-dating of the agricultural cassava production sector and outline the expected man power, equipment and other requirements;

111 11

65

1 1 1 1

k)

11

Assess wages and salaries commonly paid in the country under review and the water and power costs.

I)

q)

i)

- B. With regard to the elaboration of the caseava processing factory concept, the contractor is expected to carry out the following activities.
- a) Define the most suitable processing technology for the production of each of the cassava products to be produced and prepare relevant quantified process and product flow diagrams;
- b) Integrate the different product and process flow diagrams in one overall process and product flow that characterises the processing technology of the cassava processing factory to be defined. By doing so, due consideration has to be given to the utilisation of the by-products and residues of one process by the other in order to guarantee the optimum utilisation of the cassava tuber raw material;
- c) Based on the quantified flow diagrams specify the required equipment by using relevant equipment items from known processes that are available in the market;
- d) Outline the engineering design in principle for such equipment that may not be available in the market and has to be newly developed in connection with the cassava processing factory concept to be defined;
- e) Prepare principal factory lay-out plans and specify the pipings, fittings, motors and other electrical and mechanical installations that are required for the appropriate function of the cassava processing factory to be defined;
- f) Outline the type and size of the required factory buildings that meets with the conditions that exist in the country under review and specify the type of building material most suitably to be used;
 - Specify the service requirements if any of the cassava processing factory such as for example repair and maintenance workshops, laboratory, storage facilities, spare-part stocks, steam boiler, mein water pumps, etc. as well as the administrative facilities;
- Specify the techno-economic data of the cassava processing factory such as manpower requirements, energy, steam, and water consumption figures and define the throughput capacity (raw material) and the production capacity (products);
 - Based on the results of the studies mentioned under A) above, outline those measures in details that need to be taken inorder to secure the required raw material supply to the factory, the production concept of which has been defined;

1.1

Elaborate a suitable practical management plan for the integrated cassava processing factory concept starting with cassava production controls and raw material provisioning and ending with marketing operations thereby covering the entire production process of the cassava processing factory.

j)

- C) With regard to the economic and financial calculations to be prepared in support of the proposed cassava processing factory concept, the contractor is expected to carry out the following activities.
- a) Estimate the investment costs for the entire cassava processing factory as outlined and defined (para B above);
- b) Based on the raw material cost assessment (para A,j) above and the specifications prepared (para B,h) above estimate the expected operating costs;
- c) On this basis (para C,b) above define the cassava raw material price limits and comment on the incentives derived therefrom fro the cassava production sector/farmers;
- d) Prepare a plant investment and schedule of construction layout over one or more stages consisting of fixed assets (equipment, land, buildings, others), preliminary expenses (planning services, start-up expenses, others) working capital, interest and total investment cost over a reasonable period;
- e) Estimate the required working capital, depreciation, replacement and residual values as well as annual income and capital structure if considered appropriate and prepare relevant cash flow calculations;
- f) On this basis and by obtaining all other relevant data prepare a comprehensive economic feasibility analysis as a basis for investment considerations.

APPENDIX 2

THE EFFECT OF RAINFALL DISTRIBUTION ON CASSAVA PRODUCTION



The key to a successful cassava processing operation is to make available the required amounts of roots of the right quality over as much of the year as possible.

In order to achieve this it is fundamentally important to understand the relationship between cassava's growth cycle and the various patterns of rainfall distribution which occur in the tropics.

Growth Cycle

Cassava requires some 9-10 months of growing conditions before root yields are maximised, and starch content has reached acceptable levels. Whereas cassava does not have a definite point at which it must be harvested as, for example, some cereals, the flexibility inherent in being able to store the crop in the ground is to a certain degree offset by a deterioration in root quality and increase in fibre contents.

Rainfall Distribution Patterns

The relationships which exist between cassava production and the climate can best be described by relating the growth cycle of the crop to examples of the various patterns of rainfall distribution which occur in the tropics. Five alternatives are described:

- Year-round rainfall
- Long unimodal rainy season
- Long bimodal rainy season
- Short unidodal rainy season
- Short bimodal rainy season.

The rainfall distribution patterns are shown in Figure 1 together with the planting and harvesting operations which are feasible to undertake within these rainfall patterns. Each rainfall pattern is then described in more detail.

PE

Rainfall Distribution	Year I	Year II
<u>Year - round Rainfall</u> Planting Harvesting	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4	5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Long Unimodal Rainy Season Planting Horvesting		
Long Bimodel Rainy Season Planting Harvesting		
<u>Short Unimodel Rainy Season</u> Planting Harvesting		
Short Bimadal Rainy Season Planting Harvesting		
KEY :	Planting conditions suitable conditions marginal	I
•	narvesting good quality roots immature or over-n	iature roots

i

11 11

Figure 1 - Cassava Fresh Root Production Timing of operations and availability of fresh roots as related to rainfall distribution. Rainfall Distribution Year I Year II 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Year - round Rainfall Planting Harvesting Long Unimodal Rainy Season Planting Harvesting ong Bimodel Rainy Season Planting . - -- -- -Harvesting hort Unimodel Rainy Season Planting . . . Harvesting ort Bimodal Rainy Season Planting - --Harvesting Planting conditions suitable KEY : conditions marginal Harvesting good quality roots immature or over-mature roots Note: The premises upon which this figure has been prepared are presented on the following page.

PE

Premises used in the calculation of Figure 1.

- 1. Cassava requires 9 months of effective rain after planting to produce roots of acceptable quality for processing.
- 2. Cassava requires 2 months of effective rainfall after planting to establish it sufficiently to be able to withstand drought.
- 3. In areas where frost is likely to occur during the dry season, 3 months of effective rainfall will be required to establish the cassava and enable some reserves to be laid down.
- 4. It is assumed that after a long rainy season, residual soil moisture is sufficient to support growth for one month during the dry season. After a short rainy season, half a month's growth is anticipated.
- 5. It is assumed that harvesting after the first two months of the dry season may be difficult due to hard soil.
- 6. The model has been prepared on the assumption that a cassava variety which matures after nine months of growth is planted.

Year-Round Rainfall

Examples of this type of climate exist close to the Equator, namely; Peninsular Malaysia, Sumatra, Kalimantan (Indonesia), Mindanao (Philippines) and Papua New Guinea in Asia; the West African coastal strip, Congo and Zaire in Africa; and northern Brazil and the Guiana's in South America.

Year-round rainfall permits land preparation, planting, growth of the crop and harvesting to go on throughout the year. This situation is the nearest to the ideal for cassava production but is not without problems.

Periods of unremitting rainfall occur during which field operations are almost impossible due to water logged soil conditions. The operation of tractors, cultivation equipment and mechanical harvesters is not only difficult during such periods, but can be physically damaging to soil structure. Even where roots can be harvested by hand, their transportation to the factory involves tractor-drawn trailers and/or trucks which become bogged-down, cause compaction to fields and damage to farm roads. In most circumstances the harvesting of roots from waterlogged soil increases the amount of soil adhering to the roots, resulting in high soil tare and problems with the washing and disposal of soil in the processing factory.

It is realistic to expect that a cassava processing factory which relies entirely on fresh roots as its source of raw material will face many occasions during the year when fresh root supply breaks down due to wet field conditions.

PE

Long Unimodal Rainfall Pattern

Adjacent to the areas which receive year-round rainfall are those which have one short dry season per year. This pattern of rainfall distribution permits planting to go on except during the dry season and the final months of the rainy season. However the rainfall pattern will permit harvesting to go on all year round.

Nevertheless the remarks relating to waterlogged soil in areas with year-round rainfall are equally valid for these areas.

During a dry season there are 4-5 months during which planting operations are suspended due to dry soil conditions preventing germination, or due to the danger of drought killing newly emerging plantlets. Even though sufficient area may be planted up during the early part of the rainy season to supply enough roots for the year-round operation of the processing factory, the difficulty in matching harvest date with maturity period results in the harvesting of either immature or overmature roots. This has an impact on starch recovery rate in starch factories. Where a range of varieties is available with different maturity periods ie varieties which have optimum harvest dates at 7,9, and 11 months after planting it is possible to overcome the maturity problem to a certain extent, by planting an appropriate mixture of varieties.

Long Bimodal Rainfall Pattern

Moving further away from the Equator the areas receiving a long unimodal rainfall pattern merge into those where the rainy season is broken by a dry spell. This complicates the production of cassava, since the occurrence of two dry seasons per year further limits the period during which soil moisture conditions are favourable for the planting and establishment of the crop. Only 3-5 months of planting season occur, which has a serious impact on the availability of quality fresh roots for processing. Using a standard nine-month variety, mature roots would only be available during six months of the year, even though factory operations could continue during the other six months of the yield using immature or overmature roots. Once again by planting a selection of varieties with different maturity characteristics this problem can be partially overcome.

Short Unimodal Rainfall Pattern

Areas receiving this pattern of rainfall distribution, such as Zambia, are marginal for cassava production for industrial purposes as the annual rainy season is of insufficient length to satisfy the growth requirements of the cassava crop. This makes the production of a crop of cassava, from planting to harvesting within one year very difficult. Areas receiving 6-7 months of effective rain are marginal for the production of cassava for orocessing purposes. In areas with a unimodal rainfall pattern with less than 6 months of rainfall there is insufficient moisture to complete the growth cycle within the calendar year and it becomes necessary to leave the crop to survive the dry season and grow on through the rainy season of the following year. Although harvesting after one rainy season is practised by some farmers, both the yield and starch content of the roots are depressed through the crop being harvested prematurely.

From the processors' point of view the production of cassava in such areas is far from ideal. The crop has to occupy the land for two years before yields of roots with satisfactory starch content are available. Also, due to difficulties of harvesting roots from dry soil, the harvesting operations are hindered and may be eventually stopped by hard soil conditions after the residual moisture from the rainy season has gone from the soil. This factor varies with the physical properties of the soil. Nevertheless, because of the short planting period (4-5 months) and the long dry season, it is impossible to organise the production of roots of processing quality for more than 5 months of the year and there are 6 months of the year when it is difficult to obtain roots of even marginal quality.

Cassava processing factories set up in areas with this type of rainfall distribution can expect to experience fresh root supply problems for extended periods, especially during the last part of the dry season and the first part of the rainy season.

This is the reason for basing the Zambia factory project on dried cassava chips, rather than roots, as the major raw material for starch.

Short Bimodal Rainy Season

Much of the sub-Sahel region and Southern Africa fall into this rainfall distribution belt. There is insufficient rainfall to produce a crop of roots of processing quality, even when the crop is grown over a two year period to include four rainy seasons (two per year). The resulting crop is then only available for a short period each year.

Because of the two short rainy seasons followed by a long dry season the planting of the cassava crop must be carried out with the first rains of the first rainy season to ensure its establishment before it experiences the rigours of drought. The impact of this restricted planting season is the difficulty in spreading the period of availability of mature roots over an extended period.

Availability of fresh roots for processing related to rainfall distrubution (months/year)

	Good Quality Roots	Poor Quality Roots	Total
Year round rainfall	12	-	12
Long unimodal rainy season	7	5	12
Long bimodal rainy season	6	6	12
Short unimodal rainy season	5	1	6
Short bimodal rainy season	-	3	3

Thus roots for processing are very limited both in quantity and quality for much of the year.

The establishment of a processing industry based on the supply of fresh cassava roots must be regarded as extremely marginal in areas with this rainfall distribution.

The periods of fresh root availability for the cifferent rainfall distribution patterns are shown above.

Cassava Production under Irrigation

The previous discussion has dealt with the problems associated with fitting cassava production for processing into natural patterns of rainfall distribution. An alternative is the modification of the environment by irrigating during dry periods. In this way it is technically feasible to produce cassava throughout most of the year. However it is a question of economics, and there are few - if any - circumstances where the cost of the provision of irrigation facilities can be borne by such a low value crop as cassava.

Nevertheless there are circumstances when cassava can be grown under irrigation which are economically justifiable. Such a circumstance exists when surplus water from an existing irrigation scheme is available from time to time during the year. It is often possible to predict the periods during which surplus water is available, and plantings of cassava can be timed to coincide with these periods. Therefore by using natural rainfall supplemented by periods of irrigation it is possible to extend the planting period and therefore the production period over much of the year.

This opportunity is particularly worthwhile in areas where the topography is level, allowing the application of water by surface flooding techniques. These do not involve heavy infrastructure costs, so making it economically more attractive. The costs of irrigation are therefore composed basically of water costs and the cost of providing earth channels to direct the water on to the crop.

This opportunity of using cassava to "mop-up" surplus water from existing irrigation schemes is particularly valid for ethanol factories, where a mix of sugar cane and cassava are used as fermentables.

The lack of a critical period such as flowering, coupled with a degree of drought tolerance make cassava an ideal candidate to mop up surplus water, as providing the crop is established there is no necessity to have water available at critical times and periods without irrigation will not cause the total loss of the crop.

COSTS OF PRODUCING CASSAVA



It has been shown in Chapter 5 that cassava production is tied in with the rainfall distribution pattern and a range of production alternatives occurs. The extremes are continuous production of cassava with all the various field operations underway at all times; and a specific, restricted period of the year during which certain operations, such as planting, must be carried out.

There is no simple formula for calculating labour, machinery and material inputs on a global scale. Each producer must decide which production system is most relevant to his circumstances and build up the economics of production using the various inputs on a piecemeal basis. The following table provides estimates of labour inputs for various operations involved in cassava production.

Labour Inputs in Cassava Production

	M an Days/ha
Planting by hand	9.0
Fertiliser application by hand	4.0
Replacing missing plants	1.5
Weed control (3 rounds)	30.0
Selection of planting material for next crop	3.0
Removal of tops before harvest	9.0
Lifting root clumps	10.3
Removal of trimming roots	9.0
Loading	1.5
Total	77-78

Transportation of planting material to the field and preparation of cuttings must also be catered for. The time needed for these operations will vary widely in different locations and circumstances.

No land preparation figures are included in the above table as this would in most cases be done by hired tractor.

In addition to the above list of operations material inputs are required at all levels of cassava production. At the most primitive hand tools are required in the form of knives for preparation of planting material, clearing tops before harvesting and trimming roots, and hoes for soil preparation, weeding and harvesting. Where cash is available for the full range of material inputs required to maximise yields the following additional list is relevant;

insecticide/fungicide treatment for cuttings

1 1.1

fertilisers

1 1 1

- herbicides, both pre-emergence & post emergence
- crop protection sprays (rarely justifiable) -
- machinery and equipment for a range of operations.

During the early years of establishing a cassava production unit, the purchase of planting material is usually necessary. In areas where only small amounts are available this may involve quite a substantial financial provision.

Transportation of fresh roots from field to factory.

This subject is of vital importance in the context of cassava processing. The economics of transporting a low value, bulky crop such as cassava must be carefully calculated before selecting a production area and siting a factory. The difficulties in transporting roots along un-made roads during wet periods are discussed elsewhere. The selection of the type of transport equipment, comparing fast-moving lorries which can easily become stuck during periods of wet weather, to slow moving tractors and trailers must be carefully made. Provision of sufficient equipment to satisfy both field operations and transport requirements is stressed, particularly in tractor numbers. The distance between the production area and the factory involves not only increased fuel and equipment running costs, but also may require additional units of equipment due to protracted running time.

APPENDIX 4

MECHANISED CASSAVA PRODUCTION



Traditionally cassava has been a crop grown on a small scale under labour intensive, small farmer conditions. It is only in comparatively recent times that interest in cassava for processing on a large scale has lead to its development as a plantation crop.

Mechanisation of cassava production is therefore in its early stages; many large plantations are still heavily dependent on manual labour for such operations as planting, weeding and harvesting.

Machinery is now available to plant cassava and to bring the tubers to the surface at harvest time, but no automatic planter or full system harvester has yet been developed. Consequently there is a labour requirement in both of the mechanised operations. Land preparation and chemical weed control systems have been adapted from existing and developing technology.

Machinery requirements for mechanised cassava production can be classified into two groups:

- 1. Those which are cassava specific.
- 2. Those which have an application in the culture of other crops in the rotation.

Equipment falling into group one would be:

- a) Ridger (may have application with break crops)
- b) Cassava planter multi-row
- c) Cassava stem pulveriser
- d) Cassava digger/lifter
- e) Cassava tuber bulk handling facilities.

Equipment in group two would be:

- a) Subsoiler or chisel ripping plough
- b) Plough or disc ploughing harrow
- c) Field crop sprayer
- d) Fertiliser distributor
- e) Tipping trailers.

Tractors would of course be required as prime movers for the equipment.

There would be also a need for equipment for estate maintenance eg grader, grass cutter, loader for gravel and perhaps a ditcher.

Break crop specific equipment such as planters, combine harvesters may be required but are not considered here as they would be costed against the applicable enterprise.

Five areas have been classified according to rainfall distribution.

Areas of year round rainfall, areas where there is a long unimodal rainy season and areas which have a long bimodal rainy season are capable of production for a sufficient period each year to warrant mechanisation of the crop.

Climatic areas with short unimodal rainy seasons and short bimodal rainy seasons are generally not suitable for large scale cassava plantations, and it is unlikely that cassava enterprises in such areas could support mechanisation costs.

Mechanisation requirements for plantations in areas one to three are discussed below. The choice of break crop to be grown will affect the need for machinery. No allowance has been made for break crop specific equipment.

Root Production - Under Year Round Rainfall Conditions

For agronomic reasons continuous cassava culture is not recommended and a rotation which embodies principles of good husbandry should be selected. Cassava yields tend to diminish in the third successive crop, therefore the rotation would probably be two years cassava and one or two years break crop depending on the choice of crop.

To provide raw material (cassed, tubers) for processing at the rate of 40 tonnes per day for 280 days per year under year round rainfall conditions an area of approximately 622 ha of cassava would be necessary if one assumes a yield of 18 tonnes/ha.

For a one year break crop rotation, an estate of approximately 933 ha would be required, and 1,244 ha would be required if the two year cassava, two year break crop were to be selected. The areas quoted are net cultivable land, total estate area including roads, drains, firebreaks, unusable land and buildings would be 15-20 percent more.

It is assumed that land clearing has been carried out to leave the land in a suitable condition for mechanised operations, ie free of stumps and obstructions.

Land preparation operations are influenced by soil type and condition, therefore local conditions may make it necessary to modify the number and type of operations suggested here.

Under year round rainfall conditions there maybe a considerable loss of working days due to wet field conditions. Machinery capacity must therefore be increased by 20 percent to allow flexibility and to even out raw material supply.

This surplus capacity can be used to plant only under suitable conditions, and to harvest roots in addition to those required for input at the factory. The additional roots may be chipped, sun dried and then stored until required to keep the factory running on days when fresh roots are not available.

1.1

1.1

1 11

Field Operations

1.	a.	Chisel plough
	b.	Cross Chisel plough if necessary

- a. Disc Ploughing Harrow passb. Second disc ploughing harrow pass if necessary
- 3. Fertiliser application
- 4. Ridge
- 5. Plant
- 6. Herbicide spray/hand weed
- 7. Herbicide spray/hand weed
- 8. Hand weed if necessary
- 9. Pulverise stems
- 10. Harvest
- 11. Transport.

Year Round Rainfall

Machinery Requirements and indicative FOB prices UK port

	No required	FOB per unit (£)	Total (£)
Chisel ripping plough	2	1,950	3,900
Disc ploughing harrow	2	3,500	7,000
Fertiliser distributor	1	575	575
Ridger	1	730	7.30
Planter	2	1,750	3,500
Crop sprayer	1	1,440	1,440
Knapsack sprayers	10	40	400
Cassava stern pulveriser	1	4,000	4,000
Cassava harvester	3	2,800	8,400
Loader handler	1	2,200	2,200
Boxes	100	18	1,800
Trailers - 8 tonne tandem axle	3	1,800	5,400
Water tanker	1	3,500	3,500
Tractors, 78 hp 4 x 4	6	10,500	63,000
Tractors, 78 hp 2 wheel drive	3	8,500	25,500
	Total		131,345

Machinery capital cost = £211.17 per Ha.

1

1

1

i.

I.

1.1.1

i.

1

In addition, spares and workshop equipment will be required. Local conditions will influence level of stocks and standard of facilities which must be provided.

1

Т

() I I

1

T

11 I

Ť.

1

1

L II...

II II.

Long Bimodal Rainfall System

It is assumed that yields achievable under long bimodal rainfall conditions are approximately 12 tonnes/ha in Africa.

934 ha of cassava would be necessary to produce sufficient fresh roots to supply a factory with the equivalent of 40 tonnes of fresh roots per day.

Quality roots can be harvested for only 6 months of the year so equipment specified is capable of harvesting the total area in 6 months. Roots surplus to requirements would be sun dried and used to provide raw material for the factory during the rest of the year.

Long Bimodal Rainfall System

Machinery requirements and indicative FOB prices UK port

	No required	FOB per unit (£)	Total (£)
Chisel ripping plough	2	1,950	3,900
Disc ploughing harrow	2	3,500	7,000
Fertiliser distributor	2	575	1,150
Ridger	4	730	2,920
Planter	10	1,750	17,500
Crop spayer	1	1,440	1,440
Knapsack sprayers	15	40	600
Stem pulveriser	3	4,000	12,000
Cassava harvester	7	2,800	19,600
Loader/handler	2	2,200	4,400
Boxes	200	18	3,600
Trailers	4	1,800	7,200
Water tanker	1	3,500	3,500
Tractors 78 hp 4 x 4	18	10,500	189,000
Tractors 78 hp 2 wheel drive	2	8,500	17,000
	Total		290,810

Machinery capital cost = £311.36 per Ha.

1.1

11

ίι ι

11.1

In addition, spares and workshop equipment will be required. Local conditions will influence level of stocks and standard of facilities to be provided.

Long Unimodal Rainfall

It is assumed that yields under long unimodal rainfall patterns will be similar to those achieved under year round rainfall.

Due to constraints on operations imposed by the rainfall pattern, less time is available for the various operations and good quality roots will probably be available for only 7 months each year.

The equipment list provides for the harvest of all roots during the seven month period. Roots surplus to the factory daily requirement would be chipped and dried to provide raw material for the factory for the remainder of the year.

Long Unimodal Rainfall

Machinery requirements and indicative FOB prices UK port

	No required	FOB per unit (£)	Total (£)
Chisel ripping plough	2	1,950	3,900
Disc ploughing harrow	2	3,500	7,000
Fertiliser distributor	1	575	575
Ridger	2	730	1,460
Planter	3	1,750	3,500
Crop sprayer	1	1,440	1,440
Knapsack sprayers	10	40	400
Stem pulveriser	2	4,000	8,000
Cassava harvester	4	2,800	11,200
Loader handler	2	2,200	4,400
Boxes	100	18	1,800
Trailers - 8 tonne tandem axle	4	1,800	7,200
Water tanker	1	3,500	3,500
Tractors 78 hp 4 x 4	14	10,500	147,000
Tractors 78 hp 2 wheel drive	5	8,500	42,500
	Total		243,875

Machinery capital cost = £392.09 per Ha.

1.1.111

1 1

1.1

1.1

In addition, spares and workshop equipment will be required. Local conditions will influence level of stocks and standard of facilities to be provided.

TTELE TELEVISION

П

п. т.

ш

Ш

L

APPENDIX 5

CHIP DESIGN AND QUALITY



.1

1.1.1

The fundamental food processing concept, that quality of product is directly related to the quality of raw material, is especially true of cassava processing. The finest quality starches can only be made from fresh roots which are harvested and processed at a time and in a manner controlled and directed by the factory. A sun dried cassava chip of unknown origin and age is inevitably going to result in starch of poorer quality. The factory which relies on the supply of dried chips as its raw material will therefore be most concerned that its supply is of the highest quality possible. This will be inherently difficult if the supply is from smallholders and is reliant upon the weather. The factory's main criteria for buying chips will be that they are:

- thoroughly dry
- free from foreign matter (sand, dirt, insects)
- free from mould or bacterial deterioration
- white in colour
- derived from plants of the right maturity.

Chip Design and Drying

To ensure that a chip is dried in the shortest possible time by the natural means of sun and wind, the geometry of the chips must allow the maximum exposure to these drying forces. A large section of root which is exposed to sun drying will quickly dry on the outside but will seldom become dry through to the centre before deterioration from micro-organisms has taken place. This deterioration will not take place if the moisture content is below 12 percent moisture, ie below the level to support the micro-organisms. Therefore the size of the chip is important to ensure thorough drying - the smaller the better since this will dry throughout far quicker. On the other hand if a chip is too small, not only will it be blown away or crumble into a dust but it will also be more likely to become mixed with dust, soil or sand.

The vectors which cause drying are wind and sun. The wind is possibly the more important of the two. In order to increase the effect of these vectors several factors need to be considered:

- geometry of chip, ie shape and size
- loading depth, ie depth of pile exposed for drying
- air temperature
- windspeed

11 I I I I

- solar radiation
- moisture content of the fresh root.

1

1

The recommended geometry of the chip is 5mm wide by 50-80mm long. These can be made from simple chipping machines which chop the root. The machines are often made in the country from locally available materials.

1

1.1

81

1 1 1

. . .

The loading depth is important if the sun and wind are to reach each chip. The maximum depth recommended is 10 kg/sq. metre. This density will vary depending on whether the chips are being dried on trays or on the ground.

Air temperature and windspeed are factors which ensure that the air surrounding the chip is dry enough to evaporate moisture from the chip surface. The effect of drying is considerably increased if the chip is raised off the ground to allow air circulation around it. The system in Zambia of woven matting held off the ground is effective and should be encouraged. In some countries inclined trays are used which angle the chips towards the sun, thereby increasing solar radiation and increasing the effect of the wind. These are often expensive to erect and have been mainly used for experimental purposes. If trays or woven mats can be easily and cheaply made locally then considerable increases in drying can be achieved. The quicker the drying the less deterioration can occur with the quality of chip.

1

1

1

1 1 1

1 1 1

ı.

PROPERTIES AND USES OF

Type glucose	Properties
Acid-converted	High viscosity, moderately sweet
Acid-enzyme dual (63 DE)	Increased moisture holding, higher sweetness, less flavour masking, higher fermentability, and lower viscosity.
High maltuse (43 DE)	Controlled moisture absorption in candy. Low dextrose content reduces danger of crystallisation, Improved colour stability and taste.
iligh fermentable (70 DE)	Increased percentage of fermentable sugars up to 80% plus.
Acid-enzyme Extra high DE (70-72 DE)	Increased sweetness, reduced content of high sugars, less flavour masking, reduced viscosity.
Liquid glucose (95 DE)	Contains 80-90% dextrose plus higher sugars. Can be considered commercial liquid dextrose.
High maltose Extra high DE (52 DE)	Increased maltose content. Reduced hygroscopicity in sugar boilings.
High maltose Low DE (36 DE)	Reduced humectant properties. Increased viscosity and body.

ł

83

SOURCE: STARCH PRODUCTION TECHNOLOGY, Radley 1976.

GLUCOSE SYRUPS

Use

This is the original 'glucose'. It is limited in its properties (43 because the composition is predetermined by the degree of hydrolysis. Used in sugar confectionary, mixed syrups, and chewing gum.

This was the first technological breakthrough in glucose production. Substituted for acid-converted glucose at higher levels Has taken over most of the market in preserves, catsup, fruits, marshmallows, bar candy, etc. because of better humertant properties and increased sweetness. Also because of higher fermentability, widely used in brewing.

The first product in a proliferation of new glucose products starting about 1959. This and subsequent products were obtained by manipulation of the carbohydrate composition by use of specific enzyme systems. Used primarily for hard candy at increased levels up to 50% DE. In jams and jellies, can use at maximum allowed by the US Food and Drugs Administration plus added destrose. In ice cream, can be used at higher levels up to about 40%.

Will replace up to 100% of sugars in bread and rolls. First sympto be widely accepted by the baking industry.

Replaces conventional "Dual" in fruit juices and concentrates. Possible future application in canned fruits and pickles.

Used in pickles, although limited by relatively low solids. Used in baking to replace crystalline dextrose.

Can be used in ice cream at levels to 50%. Used in confectionery, especially hard types, at higher levels.

Not available at present. Indicated use in dried cream substitutes. Possible use in icr cream and dried juice powders.

аламаан жийи байлаан жана калана калан жийин байлаан жана жана калан калан жана калан калан калан жийин солоон о

PROPERTIES AND USES OF GLUCOSE SYRUPS



PESTS AND DISEASES OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA



INTRODUCTION

Although a countrywide survey of the pest and disease situation has not been carried out, sufficient circumstantial evidence is available through reports and observation to suggest that a number of serious pests and diseases are present in Zambia. These must be seen to be responsible for significant yield losses and pose a serious threat to increased production. A better understanding of pests and diseases by the extension services could lead to an improvement of the current situation.

PESTS

The protracted drv season renders cassava prone to insect pests which thrive under dry conditions. A number of these colonise the cassava to draw their food requirements from the plant.

Scale Insects

Severe infestations by this pest were observed during the consultants' visit to Zambia, particularly at Misamfu Research Station, Kasama, in Northern Province. The insects resembled **Aonidomytilus albus** but proper identification should be carried out by a competent entomologist.

Heavy scale populations cover the stem and lateral buds. Sucking activities weaken the plant, cause defoliation and death to the stem apex, and may even kill young plants. Although wind dispersal is known to occur the pest is usually transmitted from crop to crop on infested cuttings. The scale population increases during dry periods: therefore crops of cassava planted late in the rainy season, thereby entering the dry season in an immature stage of development, are particularly prone to severe damage.

Some natural parasitism of the scale occurs, particularly by the coccinellid **Chilocorus distigma.** Avoidance of infested plants for use as planting material is the best method available to subsistence farmers. Applications of systemic insecticides to plants which will be used for planting material is recommended for those situations where cash is available. As a last resort, infested cuttings can be dipped in insecticide but even after killing the scales, the performance of the cutting may be poor.

Mealybugs. This important pest has been reported in Northern Zambia and again is favoured by the dry season. High mealybug infestations are reported to cause severe problems to the cassava plant. Initially attacking the terminal area of the shoots, the insects invade older parts of the shoot, petioles and leaves when population pressure becomes severe. The damage to the plant is done in two ways; by sucking sap and by introducing an unidentified substance into the plant during sap-sucking which causes stunting of the shoot. Heavy populations result in gross distortion of the shoot apex, die-back and in severe cases death of the plant. The causative organism **Phenacoccus Manioti** is believed to have been introduced to Africa from S. America.

1.1

н т н т

The insect pest is dispersed on infested planting material or by wind. Control by chemical methods through the dipping of cuttings is the only sure method of combatting the pest. No natural predators are known which are effective at low-level mealybug populations. Farmers can reduce potential damage by the pest by planting early in the rainy season to ensure that the crop is well established and thus better equipped to withstand an attack during the dry season.

Termites. These insect pests attack cuttings, young plants and even root-tubers in extreme cases. The severity of the attack is related to the length of the drought, and plants established late in the rainy season are particularly prone to attack. Wilted shoots and dead plants are the symptoms of termite attack. The tubers of apparently healthy plants may be found to have been hollowed out by termites on harvesting. Very high losses are reported when cuttings are planted into termite infested soils during dry periods. Insecticide treatment to cuttings by dipping or dusting has been shown to be an effective method of protection.

Whiteflies. Although not considered to be an economic pest of cassava <u>per se</u>, the whitefly **Bemisia tabaci** (and other **Bemisia spp**) have been observed on cassava in Zambia. The importance of this pest is related to its suggested role as vector of African Mosaic Disease.

DISEASES

11

Cassava Mosaic Disease. This is the major disease of cassava in Africa and is endemic throughout the continent, Zambia included. Believed to be caused by a virus (or a complex of viruses) transmitted by the whitefly (**Bemisia** spp), the disease causes considerable losses. Depending on the severity of infection the symptoms vary from mild yellowish mottling of leaves to severe leaf distortion and yellow areas. Leaves are reduced in size by severe infections and root yields may be reduced by as much as 80 percent depending on the cultivar grown. Differing degrees of resistance to the disease are known, and the use of those showing high degrees of resistance is a recommended method of combatting the disease. Recent research indicates that roguing infected plants may hold promise as a means of preventing the serious build-up of the disease in clean plantations.

Cassava Bacterial Blight. This disease is reported in the Northern Province and is caused by Xanhomonas Manihotis. The organism causes water-soaked angular spots on leaves which may develop into more serious symptons including blight, wilt, defoliation and stem die-back. Exudation of gum from leaf veins, petioles and immature stem may also occur. As the disease is caused by a vascular pathogen, it can move throughout the plant even to the roots. Similarly the disease is passed from year to year by the use of infected planting material cut from plants with the disease. Infection from diseased plants to healthy plants within a crop is by rain splash or on contaminated hand tools, clothing etc. Varieties showing high levels of resistance to the disease are known and are recommended in countries where available. Cuttings from healthy plants should be used as planting material where possible.

1.1

Methods are available for the production of disease-free cuttings from diseased plants, and can be used where otherwise healthy material is not available.*

FROST DAMAGE

Although frosts are predictable during most years in many parts of Zambia, especially the Central and Southern Plateau areas, occasional frosts may occur all over the country. Mild frost affects cassava by causing bronzing of the leaves. As the severity of the frost increases its effects on the plant increase from leaf scorch, defcliation, stem-tip, die-back, to total death of above-ground parts of the plant. Providing the soil does not freeze the cassava plant will survive air frosts of -10° C. Even though all the above-ground parts of the plant will be killed, growth is resumed from buds on the stem base or planting piece below soil level.

Frosted cassava which has been defoliated and the green-portions of the stem killed resemble those severely attacked by cassava bacterial blight or **Phoma** spp. Some reports of these diseases in Zambia may have been caused by frost.

OTHER PESTS AND DISEASES

Pests and diseases other than those described above may occur in Zambia, but no reports are available.

They may occur in neighbouring countries and can be expected to spread into Zambia. One such example is the pest 'green spider mite'. This pest was introduced by accident from the Americas to Uganda and is spreading to many parts of Central West and East Africa. The mite is particularly severe in areas with long dry seasons and its activities in the growing point and developing leaves at the stem apex, cause a severe reduction in leaf size. This results in poorer yields. The Zambian authorities should be on the lookout for the appearance of this pest.

*Footnote:

1

1 1

Ref: 'The International Exchange and Testing of Cassava Germ Plasma in Africa' edited Eugene Terry & Reginald Macintyre; pub'd 1975 by International Development Research Centre.

1



1

I.

I.

I.

I.

L

I.

L II

L II

1

SECTION

Ш

П

1

۲. ۱







1

٩

<u>...</u>

1. 1. -

I.

т т

1

111

1 1 1 1

6-947







We have done to the second sec

LIST OF MACHINERY REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED FACTORY



A. STARCH EXTRACTION - Fresh Roots and Chips

- 2 x Conveyor/Elevator
- 1 x Washer
- 2 x Chopper
- 2 x Rasping Machine
- 2 x Elevator
- 2 x Hopper
- 2 x Dosage Screw
- 1 x Disintegrator
- 1 x Pump
- 2 x Slurry Tank with paddle
- 1 x Starch Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Starch Separator
- 1 x Cyclone for sand extraction
- 1 x Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Vacuum Filter with feed tank
- 1 x Screw conveyor
- 1 x Flash drier
- 1 x Screen/Sieve
- 1 x Starch Bulk Silo
- 1 x Bagging Machine
- 1 x Sewing Machine

T.

1

1

1 11

1.1

1 x Conveyor

به ا

113

1

1 1

1 1

1

11 I I

PE

8. GLUCOSE PRODUCTION

1 x Pump

1 x Balance Tank/Starch Suspension Tank

1 x Acid Tank

1 x Vacuum Filter with feed tank

1 x Pump

1 x Water Tank

1 x Flow Meter

1 x Pump

1 x Water Heater

1 x Plate Heat Exchanger

1 x Centrifugal Heat Exchanger

1 x Monopump and Filter

1 x Temperature Recorder

1 x Plate Heat Exchanger (cooler)

1 x Expansion Chamber

1 x pH Meter

1 x Caustic Tank

1 x Pump

Π.

1 x Filter/Clarifier

1 x Holding Tank

1 x Filling Machine

1 x Drum Filling & Weighing Machine

1.11



C. DEXTRIN PRODUCTION

- 1 x Conveyor Elevator
- 1 x Reactor Vessel
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Acid Tank
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Water
- 1 x Conveyor
- 1 x Sifter
- 1 x Conveyor
- 1 x Bulk Store/Bin
- 1 x Bagging Machine
- 1 x Sack Sewing

D. UTILITIES REQUIRED

- 1 x Boiler
- 1 x Sulphur Dioxide Plant
- 1 x Hydrochloric Acid Plant
- 1 x Caustic Soda Mixing Plant
- 1 x Effluent Treatment Plant (Civil engineering)
- Process Piping
- Process Control Systems
- Utility Piping
- Electrical Works and Cable
- Building Materials
- Spare parts, workshop and store.

APPENDIX 11

DETAILS OF MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS ABLE TO PROVIDE TURNKEY FACTORIES



NAME & ADDRESS OF COMPANY

1. ALFA LAVAL AB POSTFACK S14700 TUMBA, SWEDEN

1.

.....

- 2. HOVEX ENGINEERING LIMITED AE - KADE 35a P 0 BOX 105 VEENDAM, HOLLAND
- 3. KOMATSUGAWA CHEMICAL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED SF TMM BUILDING NO. 10-5, 1-CHOME IWAMOTO-CHO CHIYODA-KU TOKYO,101, JAPAN
- 4. NIVOBA POSTBUS 40 9640 VEENDAM, HOLLAND
- 5. NEWELL DUNFORD ENGINEERING LTD NEWELL DUNFORD HOUSE PORTSMOUTH ROAD SURBITON SURREY UK
- 6. PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE (PRODA) 3 INDEPENDENCE LAYOUT P O BOX 609 ENUGU, NIGERIA
- 7. SALZGITTER INDUSTRIEBAU GmbH POSTFACH 411169 3320 SALZGITTER 41 F R GERMANY

- 8. STARCOSA GmbH POSTFACH 5105 AM ALLEN BALMHDF 5 D 3300 BRAUNSCHWEIG F R GERMANY
- 9. UBERSEE-TECHNIK RODINGSMARK^{*} 29 2000 HAMBURG 11 F R GERMANY

I I I

COMMENTS

- Complete starch plants from cassava using centrifugal process. Fresh roots to starch only.
- Complete engineering design and installation of starch factories.

Consulting engineering and project preparation.

Compact containerised starch plants. Considerable experience of cassava processing especially from dried chips. Also glucose and dextrin plants.

Complete gari manufacturing plants on turnkey basis. Little experience of starch production.

Design and fabrication of equipment for processing raw cassava into gari.

Complete starch glucose and dextrin plants from fresh cassava.

Cassava flour plants and complete starch plants.

Planning and erection of industrial plant, specialising in equipment for the production of starch, and starch derivatives.

1.1

L L

1 1 1

1 1 1

1

1 I

1

92

1

1

100 1 1 1

- È

Ш

LIST OF MANUFACTURERS WITH EXPERIENCE OF THE SUPPLY OF SOME MACHINERY



NAME & ADDRESS OF COMPANY

2.

- 1. ANHYDRO A/S OSTMARKEN 8 DK-2860 SOBORG-COPENHAGEN DENMARK
- 2. A P V MITCHELL 30 THORNTON ROAD THORNTON HEATH SURREY UK
- 3. BERNAUER SECADORES INDUSTPIAIS LTDA CIAXA POSTAL 3748 SAO PAULO BRAZIL, S AMERICA
- 4. BRITISH ARKADY COLTD ARKADY SOYA MILLS OLD TRAFFORD MANCHESTER M16 ONJ UK
- 5. BUELL LTD GEORGE STREET PARADE BIRMINGHAM B3 1QQ UK
- 6. BUHLER-MAIG 19 STATION ROAD NEW BARNET HERTFORDSHIRE UK (Also HQ in Germany)

7. NOVO INDUSTRI A/S NOVO ALLE DK 2880 BAGSVAERD DENMARK

8. ROSIN ENGINEERING COMPANY 35/37 WILLIAM ROAD LONDON NW1 3ER UK

Drier manufacturers with experience of starch production from cassava.

- 9. RONCAGLIA SpA MILLING ENGINEERING WORKS P O BOX 519 41100 MODENA ITALY
- 10. WESTFALIA SEPARATOR AG D 4740 OELDE/WEST F WERNER-BABIG STR W GERMANY 93

1 I.

COMMENTS

Flash driers for starch drying only.

Driers for starch and complete design engineering for glucose factories

Manufacture and installation of driers. Flash fluid bed, rotary conveyor and bin dryers.

Mixers for dough making using cassava flour.

Thermal drying of freshly harvested raw roots for pellet production.

Pelletising of chips for feed and milling of dried chips

Enzymes for hydrolysis of starch to modified products. Have process know-how especially ethanol and alcohol production.

Flour milling and sifting machinery. Some experience of tapioca industry.

Separators and docariters for starch separation.

1 1

- I I I


...

BUDGET COSTINGS ERECTED IN ZAMBIA IN STERLING

Α.	STARCH EXTRATION (see list)	579,000
B	GLUCOSE PRODUCTION	512,000
с.	DEXTRIN PRODUCTION	200,000
D.	UTILITIES (Part included in buildings)	268,000
Ε.	BUILDINGS & CIVILS & HOUSING	412,000
		<u>1,971,000</u>

1

1

1011

1

1

-

Л

U.

APPENDIX 12

FINANCIAL REPORTS MULTIPRODUCT FACTORY



i

-



1

I.

Т

1

Ť.

1.

il il.

1~

ī.

Ì

													***	7	1
	18061	に 15日 15日	n da ser Na ser	₹4°,¥?	rate t	14381		18372	1.4	16492	(KGF)	×€	t nav t	٢٤٩٢	18081
	00000 343	90.40 90.40 90.40	and the second s	မို မ ကြင်္သား အမ္မီ ကြင်္သား အမ္မီ			3 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 1	9 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	9 10 10 11 1 10 11 10 10 11 10 10 11 10 10 11 10 10 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5 8 5	9 - 19 1. 11	901 90 901 90 901 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 9	500 C	ું છે. જુરાવ મુરુષ હુ છે
51847.4 50.0 138 13 531 138.1 13.1 13.1 13.1 13.1 13.1 13.1 1		89 984 8		82289 8228 8195 8195 8195 8195 8195 8195 8195 819		10190 1000 1000000	୍ରି ରୁନ୍ଦୁର୍ ଜୁନ୍ଦୁର୍ଦ୍ଦୁର୍	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100		HOLOO HANDO HANDO HOLOO HOLOO HOLOO HOLOO	100 C 1	100001 11170 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000000	49990r. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	9. 1 . 6. Nobel
				33-31-11 33-31-1385 33-31-1385			9000 000000000000000000000000000000000		339253 329253				33 8 9338		3333333
			्र् <u>ः</u> इ.स. २ ०००० ० इ.स. २०००	28090 89	-# \$ 7 4 28-5 85	4.5 .5 .5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2.5 2			93.5383 93.5383	0-000-0-000- 				3393 38 9	000000000 1900000 191000000000000000000
10-01 Selfers	501 - S	(a), 3	0.1	200	330	1361	19 19	0877			े दिन्द्र य	24.6	2375	1.61	2422
STARLE FRU	9) . 9e			1 3 23 7 3 7 3 7 3	語	1911 1914 1917 1917	101	43 C1 7.4	2002	21	200	57 M	201	
المكرم وروا	- 75 - 73 - 73	5 · · 5	0°C		2 - N C	0.50t	3. Ye -	5.2.5			ي. رانتان	2.2.2	100 AVE	705.4	746-1
1990-5 5.41	555	365				51921		85603	0.07	14061	13041	21S			
HIMLE ALES	1.181	. S O	2			:332	1412	1000	100.		1.53				

 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I
 I

.....

.

• ł i

11

11

96

I I II I I I I I I I I I

REPORT 1: CASSAVA FACTORY THROUGHPUT



Report 1A

The model is primarily "driven" by the sales forecast. The quantity sales for each product may be seen in rows 3,9, 14, and 19.

Given the sales forecast this section of the model takes the sales forecast and calculates the tonnage of cassava roots and chips required to produce that quantity, using the conversion factors shown in each subsection. These conversion factors are based on the technical data described in technical section of the report.

It will be noted that over and above basic raw materials the model also calculates throughput of the two main stages of the factory is slurry production and starch production. This is used in report three to assess the factory loading.

It will be noted that sales are apparently made during the construction period. This is done to generate costs for trial runs and chip purchases in season. By the simple device of valuing such sales at zero price, one months costr are automatically written off to developmental expenses in Period Yr.C 1. A further months chip stocks are raised as stock in the working capital routine. In period Yr.C 2 a further one month's sales are also raised to boost the cost loads on trial runs. The sales are however allowed to stand as revenue earning on the basis that having generated approximately three months' production resources they will produce one month's (ie $33\frac{1}{2}$ %) saleable product. Note that root starch production is only generated in period Yr C P2. since roots must be procured fresh. (ie purchased and processed at the same time). Sales are valued at 50% to give a realistic saleable product outturn. This is expected to be higher than the chip starch outturn since root starch will be produced in the final trial month period.

J J

1.1

1.1.1

SCENARIO C4 190-32

11

1

1.1

11 1

11 1

+--

CASSAVA FACTGATIVALUE OF INPUTS/QUIPUTS

13 10114 301 -301 -3-3-3 8-3-3 8-3-4 888 223 33 SH 512 864. 864 88 888 825 18622 833 85 89 012 110 2680 000-1-000-1-222 <u>S</u>SS 823 149.57 Rg 35 2038 412 2022 8<u>.13</u> <u>____</u> 35 ន្លាះ 908 109 109 36 1961 80.0 51.0 1,1 351 ្លុះក្នុង 200 , têk 80 23 600 H 255 255 80.¥ 001 100 100 いません 855 855 855 533 1111 1111 ŝb 855 255 23 1790 SSS S 1.40 88.4 8¢8 333 SP 84 105. · • 85.4 8<u>38</u> 6.352 857F **3**88 ŝ 23 1651 59 88.4 85.53 25.53 3999 888 YR3P1 SB 22 1441 하 8855 8855 54292 324 835 288 86 23 289 289 1651 1829. 83 88* 8858 288 85 \$ 374 000 000 000 283 1202 333 19192 S^m ន្លដ្ឋន 30 361 1226 800 A 82 88 8 8 228 YELFI gÞ දිස් 803 22 99 ន្លិអន ခွမ္း စ YRCF2 6:2**4** 822 ខ្ល 83 54 omo ဝမ္ကင ാറ്റാ \circ 1.50% 80 000 Z\$ VALUETINFUTS NEXTOTATANKYKKAK 1. ROUT PRICE ROUTS CONSUMED 2 5 5 t M TUTAL EALES KST FRICE N/T KOOT STARCH SOLD T ROOT STARCH TOTAL DIR MATERIALS VALUE : UUTPUTS CST PRICE K CHIP STAKCH SCLU CHIP STARCH CHIP PRICE CHIPS CONSUMED GUDDE SALD GUCOSE SOLD CHIP CUCOSE LEXTRIM PRICE LEXTRIM SQLD CHIP DEXTRIM

1111111

98 1 1

1 1

I.

T

 ${\mathbb T}^{-1}$

 $| \cdot |$

1 - 1

I = I

1.1

I = I

PE

REPORT 2: CASSAVA FACTORY: VAL' E INPUTS/OUTPUTS

Report 2A

This report takes the physical quantities in report 1 and converts them to purchases and sales values using agreed prices. Note that the root starch price changes as explained in Appendix 1A and that glucose sales prices have been uplifted by the drum costs. Drum costs are to be recharged to customers and the model approach, showing a higher sale price on the one side, and a materials cost in the variable expenses, ensures that adequate stocks are generated in the working capital routines.

T TE T

1 II I I

1.1

1.1

11

LL.

 $[\ [\] \]$

L I I - I

and the standy find a side of the stand of t 219.5 192 antist 3.5 mart 1 1 3 store of 8.18 -813 Same of the second second S. に設定 24 A A D ্ৰাৰ প্ৰাণ Jugh . 1. s 16 1.20 r Allenanting a State Silimonia Com 2.4.52 ***** **3**:15 **** 1 anima Sciencia 1.12 2 संस्थिति हो है। है • 1.74 2.1 14.7 -1 site Bullesie sale at 1 s 13 sta , a o satu atta Bat. 201 201 274 累計 M 113 -読み 1.1 217 217 Sar 计 计 日本 S (**) 12 3.34 1 3 \$.3 I.T.H 1.04 1.04 1.04 373 ana 1956 91.33. G 0.20 1917 914 1917 914 11 147.2 0001-204 012 0 00 1939 CLEAN SUC ē. 1.1.74 ्रि 2

REPORT: CASSAVA FACTORY: OPERATING TIMES



A State of the second

ないたが、「ないない」のないで、

A Second

Report 3A

This routine is included to enable us to judge the factory load factors. The dextrinend glucose lines are separate to the main stream and have adequate capacity to process their offtake from the main line.

The critical process is slurry to starch by a small mergin and to this must be added the element of the utilization by the root starch production. Thus, maximum load is the sum of rows 60 and 60. This is reached in year 3 P2 after which the third shift is brought in.

Maximum capacity is conservatively set by assuming that the 1.25 tonne line has a practical operating optimum of 1 tonne per hour.

Shift hours are assumed to be as follows:

2 shift working = gross 16 hours

tess changeover, start up and closedown = nett 14 hours.

3 shift working = gross 24 hours

less changeover etc = nett 22} hours

(NB - the print out rounds up to 8 hours per shift but the model calculates on the actual of 7¹/₂ hours).

SCHARLD :				HASSALS	27	19 5	×	F							
	YNC?:	19092	1414	8. 2.	÷.	242	1.62	1430-12	The second	24.52	ż	Ne le	. X	19652	38
LECTACTY ANOLAN INTERCAT PAUD NTS PER UNIT ATE PER UNIT LECTRICUTY-URLUM		585.4	and the second s	and a set	1935 ²	មន្ត្រះ រុះ	ਗ਼ੑੑਫ਼ਖ਼ੵਖ਼	# 33 : *	(1 8 5)	្តន្ត្រវន្ទ	ग्रे स ङ्घ	şnşa	ૢૣૻૹઙૢ૽ ^ૡ	្តុំត្រូវ្ទន	- <u>19</u> 30
ATER DTAL STARDA AND TODO PES TONNE ATE PER VOOLITHE ATER-LANIABLE		Star.	8789	RIF -	R184	1731 1	ផ្ទរន្តអ	R782	B13>	g:3=	8782	8738	N788	N.388	
uc. Dia Start from TRES PER LIGALE ATE PER LITTE	ୁ ଅନ୍ୟୁ ଅନ୍ୟୁ ଜୁନ୍ଦୁ	ੱਖਿਲੇ ਡ	និងដំង	<u>ଷ୍</u> ମଶ୍ରୁଣ	त्रम्प्रुः इम्प्रुः	NUM	NH NH	Nerva	<u>श्</u> रम्भुन	<u>ধ</u> ্বস্থান	ગુલ્લુલ	ध्रमस्य हम्मस्य	and the second s	Battle	aga.
ACHLORIS ACHLORIS UCOSE SOLU STANS PER TONIE OST PER NG. MENICALS	1383°'	Bağ.,	ୁ କ୍ଷିଞ୍ଚ <u>ସ</u> ିଧ୍ୟ	કુલરુવ	3832 3	ୁ କୃଳ୍ପ <u>ୁ</u> :	8 333	38 89	କ୍ଷିକ୍ଷିଟ୍ର <u>ସ</u>	38 8334	3835	3833	and a second sec	8889 1 6	
ACCINE MATERIALS UTAL STANDY SOLUS AN UNIT ALLOH AN UNIT COST STAL BAG LUST S	2:18 2:18	383.4	98381 3 -	3787. 2		jus.	্লায়ুহ	39983 1	รูพรุส	ู่ วัทรุท	2888) Suzu	្ម័ររន្ គ	3888 2 -	
LUCORE SOLI NUM LINIT LEICHT * Num LINIT LEICHT *	MSSX H	ង្កើនខ្លួន អ	888 8 2	8 888	2228X	\$88 8 2	8887 1	3 3 89	ଞୁ <u>ଞ୍ଚ</u> ଞ୍ଚୁଞ୍ଚ	ន្ទន្ទន្ទ	issa:	8838 1	<u>8388</u>	8338 19	ăr,șa
EVTRIN SOLD AB JULT WEIGH AB JULT CUST AB JULT CUST DTAL BAGE CUST			813M	843 ^m	8ns.	\$718 *	NIG3*	รัพร์.	Sus.	388.4	ans.	3.13.	รี่หรื.	<u>ร</u> ีมรี	
ACAINS PATERIALS	21	\$ 1	8	17	141	3	166	54	8	194	ŝ	22	215	3	

ß

I I

J

1 1

1 1

1 | |<u>|</u>

 $[1,\ldots,1,\ldots,1,\ldots,1,\ldots]$

I = I

1 1

102

T

L

1 1

Т

i

1 1

и п

Т

T

I

1

I = I

REPORT & CASSAVA FACTORY - OTHER VARIABLE COSTS



Recort 4A

44.200

di seria di

In expressing the variable costs and given that quantity figures, especially of electricity and water are so high the units per tonne and prices are equal to 000% units where appropriate.

Note that drum costs are generated by the programme. This is a contra in the profit and loss account with the inflated sales price. This ensures stock of drums are created for the working capital requirements.

1

11

いたちましたいたかないたちをなるというないないないのでい

お正法があるためになって

| 1900 | | | | | | |

1 1 1

ТĒ

									-
	ngang Talangka gina i	, ang galawa ata wata keta keta ata ita da k	n Norman ann an 1970 an 1970 an 1970 an 1970 Norman	(855275) × 197 — 1, ¹ g	n ann ge ann Ballan an t-an Albana.	e ore dought	99 A. A. T.	lapalatar tar	
	14284	พรรุกร	ତୁ ବନକୁଥିକ ଓ ସ	38	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	101		100	
	24924	NSSRA	ຍ ວຍວ ດໃນ ຊີ້ ຊີ	8	<u>ଚଚତ୍ରମୁବ</u>		123	1721	
	1.07%	។ខ្លួន ខ្ល	କୁ ବନବୃହନ ମି ମି	3	၁၀ ္ရရွဝ	12	1361	1848	
	1692	NSSER	ນີ້ <u>ວນວ່ຽ</u> ມ ຊີ່ ຊີ່	3	00000	3	2	5/61	
	145X1	nggeg	ନ୍ଦୁ କରଙ୍କୁହନ ମୁଁ କୁଁ	3	00380	9	3	2102	
	i de la compañía de la	NSSER	ත් පාන්තිය සි. ප	2	୍ର୍ୟୁଷ୍ଟ୍ର୍	127	1016	6227	
	18451	រន្លន្តឧត្ត	N	1	<u>୍ରେଟ୍</u> ଟର୍ବ	3	B		
	SARY	៧នុទ្ធខន្ស	2	2	00000	5	3	2.483	
	14291	NSSER	and and an	3	ంంర్లిలం	8	3	2610	
	ş	NSSER	ນີ້ ດາງເງຊິ _ນ ມີ	176	୦୦୦୦୦୦୦	2	83	82	
	1 AC	NZZRZ	ကို ဝဟက္ဝွနာ ကို ငရိ	176	၀၀ ၀၀၀	<i>a</i> :	182	18	
R .	55	NSSRA	ນີ້ ອາເອຊາ ທີ່ ວິ	3	୦୦ ୦୦୦୦	51	2	1662	
3	rê têt	.ทรุรุคล	ମୁ କାନକୁମ୍ବାମ ମୁ କାନକୁମ୍ବାମ	\$1.	00000	1.27	53	3118	
B	24.Day	កន្តទុ កត្ត	မွ ခင်ခိုင် မွ ခင်ခိုင်	> 2 5	00000	0	0	3245	
	14081	NRSEN!	ಟ್ ಂಂತ್ರೆಸಂ		00000	ò	0	1258	
		FINEL ASSET COST AND PAND FACTORY BUILL FORTING FORTING FORTING	TOTAL COST LAND PACTORY BULLD MILTRE PLANE MILTRE MILTRE MILTRE MILTRE	MALNTENANCE	LAND LEW MILLD DEP/AT FACTORY BULLD DEP/AT PLANT VEHICLES DEP/AT HOUSING DEP/AT	DEPRECIATION	TOTAL CUP DEP	NET FLXED ASSETS	
		3~353585	धि ^ळ ्यतिष्ठते	္ခ်ီစာရွန္လာအ		°Å3	• 123	20 3	
		در مدی چین کر میں در میں	۱ ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰	· · · ·		• •	••••		
	•								

I

I

I

1 I 1 I

ľ

ŵstau S

1

T H

I İ I

I I

I I

I I I I

REPORT 5: CASSAVA FACTORY FIXED ASSET MAINT/DEPR



Report 5A

This routine assembles the maintenance and depreciation costs on fixed assets. Note that no depreciation costs are raised in the construction period and that only maintenance of vehicles is charged in this period.

After due thought it has been assumed that given a reasonable maintenance expenditure buildings should not be depreciated. In the case of plant and machinery it is assumed that the initial cost will include a supply of spares and that maintenance cost will rise progressively over the first five years levelling off at 20% per annum from year five onwards.

1 I 1 I

1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1								a Solo								
		1.50%		2 T 54. 7 H 1. 1. 1.				18371	a de la c	10.00 10.000			口透電	ر الأركياً :	1995	
		₩1 2 1	t ≢wysk ∙ Sys Site	0,11) (* 14 1.4	anite e	19 yı. 1		419 <u>2</u> 7 • 7 	3×4×22×34 2×39 2×34	46 A. 200 M.	99 8 4	99 10 00 00 10 00 10 00 10	an a	Ba P ((5 + + -(2) - +	50 g + 4	santan ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang
333 1933		ා යන් තුළාණ දුදුවා	1900-00 1933	00-00-44 14-00-074 17-14-0 14-04-0000000000		5.080 10.08 10.08	200 B	47.5 80 15375-11 1411-1-1 141	32	្លេះ ភ្នំ ស្ពិ ខ្មែរ-ទីសម្ពី អ្នករ អ្ន ្ន្ន	4:4	्वाद्यांती (ब्रह्म क् र (प्रतीप्रती) (प्र	Provide a fi La constante an en fi	929 2795	ાન છે. સુવૈ મું ગુજરાત સંચારત	5-15-35-3 7-16-34 1635-161-3 6-2
			17 Jan (5 a m 17 Jan (5 a m))		- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1		500	9 013	an (1) 2 (2) 7 (2) 1 (1) 1 (1) (2) 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1)			-παγία Ο και μ 10 - Και 19 10 - Γαι 19 1	54040277 200 - 10 2014 - 1	11)-027- -04-1-75 174-02-1-4 	na politika La constanta Maria Stanta Stanta Stanta	
1997 1997 1997		1999 - 1997	• a € a 25 • 27 • 21 • 4	.5 4 573 5 4 677 6 4 677 6 4 7 6	s Erne De se €tat see est			्र न्द्र र दु भूगः - मु भ भग्रे र म		55.5	53 - 54 53 - 54 54	14 4 4 61 - 5 5 - 5 7 9	Mala and a state of a	00 * .) 00 * .) 20 * .) 21 * .)	249 (444) 149 (444) 199 (449) 199 (449) 199 (449)	
	14. 5100.5	8		5 1	475 1				4	:21	។ ដូន ។ ដូន ក្រោះ ភាព ដូន ភាព ដូន		4	1003 1003	ן 1 ב 1 ב 1 ב 1	
		0-0- 	*	•	ы рэ 1 24 р	् - प्र 27 म	94	21		a	10 10 100 110 110	11.5	20-44 20-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4 4-4	ار 1 او کو 1 او کو 1 او کو 1 او کو		···· 1 · • 1 · •
n nordfing Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense Lingense		25			- 4 - 1 - 1 	1.2				• 2 m		יין 1971 - 1971 1971 - 1971 1971 - 1971 - 1971 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971 - 1971	1120g - 42 - 43	: 2 ji 15	· 199	
e de la composition Contra contra composition Contra contra			- 49 - 49 - 59 - 49 -		* 0 ¥ 14	्यः ८४१-२ २७२ - २२ २७	3			3 13	i3 ∘ä	28 ° 7	7) °.1	eu n 		
			-) 	- 1 - 1 - 1										4	*	

Į

| ||

106

1

I.

I.

REPORT 6: CASSAVA FACTORY: WORKING CAPITAL



Report 6A

The working capital requirements of agro-industrial units are frequently complicated by the need for seasonal buying of raw materials. The model is constructed to cope with the particular problems of the cassava market.

Period 1 July to December the majority of cassava has to be acquired. For period 2 January - June supplies will only be available in June when the buying season begins. The effect on working capital is one of high stocks and low cash holdings at end period 1 and the reverse at end period 2. As can be seen the model has been constructed to incorporate this important cash flow feature.

Other working capital requirements have been estimated on the following basis:

- packing materials at three months usage
- finished goods stocks at four weeks sales
- debtors at six weeks sales

1 1

1 1

1.1.11

1.1.11

- creditors at six weeks materials purchases

Debtors and finished goods stocks are the most significant items. These are relatively conservatively estimated since stocks are valued at full market value rather than at cost and debtors could be reduced by insisting on earlier payment. It is in fact not unknown, in developing countries, for producers of important industrial inputs to insist on payment in advance.

Since purchases are to be through NAMBOARD we assume that some credit will be available.

107

1.1

831 97			3	•	1	•	1	•	1	•	1	•	4	i D	i i	:
ļ	FORATE "44 AH'E 1	0	<>	с л	- 30 -	- 0	0	0	ं		æ					
			· · · 1) · 1) 1) 1) 1)									1 - 1 				
EU a.e.			() 1 2 3					ad no			3.1	, 1, 1 , 1 , 1		33		51.5
13 1	CHT-TCSM LEBT	9	• •		123								\circ			
ġ 	1.2.	1650	220					0				->				
· 물문날		200	\$**\$			~~? ?	202	• • • • • • •	<u></u>	0.3.5 2.5	23.3	<u>~~</u> 신문	-93			
(<u>7</u> 93		;00r 		1 ->->- 1 ->->- 1		0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			 ^3;				1°33		1 - 5 050 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	

1

1

1 I I

1 1 1

Т

L

-

AND A THUR AND AND AND AND A SUB-

ALTERN : SCEWARLO :

* * * *

I.

I.

T

I.

Т

ī

K

Т

П

ı+

Ш

ī

П

П

L

L

1 1

T

I.

REPORT 7: CASSAVA FACTORY: TAX/INT/DEBT/CAP



Report 7A

This section of the model is the one through which the capitalisation, debt service and tax charges are entered and/or calculated into the main financial statements.

Interest charges have been assessed on the basis of rates currently been asked in Zambia. The term loan is set at 75% of plant and machinery which is the amount that the Development Bank of Zambia has indicated it would be prepared to lend. The loan is split into two to enable the model to accommodate two sorts of term loan financing should this be necessary in the future.

Debt service has been set at three years moratorium and three years repayment in six monthly rests. The Development Bank of Zambia has indicated to us the length of moratorium period they were willing to grant, whilst repayment has been set to enable the earliest practical repayment period.

It is assumed that the project will enjoy a tax holiday for the first five years' operations.

I II II III II I

IL EL E

T TT T

I.

1 11

I II I

1 1

1.1

i.

T

计计算中的 计分子子 医静脉下下的 医牙囊内牙炎

1

I

.

il. L

I

- 4
150-24

T T

	!			
1.055				
(A92)				
47				
-1				
		-3	a de la dela de	
		5	A.S. V.X.X	

ৰ দেশ কেনেটা কেনেটা কেনেটা কেনেটা কেনেটা কেনেটা ক		5 5	រាំទទាំ ព ាំពាំ រាំទទាំពិណ័ព		54414 + 0 (2) (544) - 5434 + 1 (544) - 74 (544) - 74 (5		00 4	0.072		-10 - 1 - 0 - 1 - 1	
4 0 0 4 2 0 4 3 0 4 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4	3		္ဂလင္ဆာစ္ ကားရ နဲ႔ လို ကို ကို ကို ကို ကို ကို ကို ကို ကို က		e da da la ela destat Regional de la companya Regional		10 t	,	~		
(한 - 20 년)과 4년 1 - 10 - 17 대한 4월 123 대화 2 - 1			<u>2</u> 39520			5	ິນວ‡	<u>198</u>	5		2
	800 IS		ာရည္က (၁၈) ကိ	21 4	9014/142010/11 1960 20071 2014	ł.	+o.	ଂମନ	-1 đ	ဆို ့	21
· 아파 · 아파 · 아파 · 아파 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1 1 (1) 1 (2) 1 (2	26		:,	(γ) + 3 ⁽¹ δ + − (2) +2 + 4(γ) = − − (2) - (1 + 3) < + 1 + − − − (3) - (1 + 3) + 1		10 	്റ്റ്	1	Q. 1	2
- 103 (DF) + 016 + + 1 - 101 +		3		•	ing najsalar (najsalar) algo (19) — Henga (najsalar) Carica (najsalar) — Hinga (najsalar)		1	strational intrana		7 2 16	
αβταΣτάβι/39879+ 2263/241+ 		3			and the second sec		0 4 5	1924944 19959			
		2 2	េ ១០ ភ្នំកេរហ៊ូច។ ក្រំ មាន នោះ នោះ ក្រំ	400			101	э. <u>.</u>		30	6
	E N	3,4	21223 1 3	107 - 1 - 7				42 page 24 23 - 25	뙵	S.	22
-17 - 17 - 17 - 17 1∞ 1 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17 - 17		8	5 4 4843		n an chuir an thairtean 19 An Chuir an Chuirtean 20 An Chuir an Chuirtean 20 An Chuir an Chuir an Chuir	ित्व नि	<u>.</u>	194444 -449 19		30	0
ተ (ወይንሁ) - ኮንኮን ተ ዓይን ተ		(9) T();		•	n ag i e die a chec 20 normen die die 19 die 20 geloop die die die die die		Ě)	2:15	4		
်ံးချင်		3 5	第二代表: 指。		341-3 7 9	• • • • • • • • • • •	-05- 6-1	2 + 4 + 4 2 4 12 - 2	<u>.</u>	ǰ	
÷ 0,			ស្លាយក្នុងស្រួ ស្លាយក្នុងស្រួ ស្លាយក្នុងស្រួ				ġ	nd navy a Navy State		·	
ាលា លោក ។ សេតុសារ សេតុសារ			imea, sineaca Salara	- 1 5			<u>.</u>	ಂಗ್ರಾತ			
0404040	0 0		i Picanananana UD Pin Ca I C	-7		13		- (3 42 3 - 15			
	14.54.54.5 24.45.51.5 24.45.51.51.51 24.015 0.050.000	CHING CONGUED COIDE DIR TRICKING	3435 AURED VALUE ELET VIOTIY-VARIABLE ARET-VARIABLE SIE CHENTOR S ACKING S	ういまた いっぽん いまたい		1014 FIRE 10515	Runt berjak Istrati alax Perever		1014. LATERED	PRUPIC SET AND TAX	

ł

..........

ī

I.

. . .

I I

I I

1 1

1 1

I. I. I

I.

Т

11 11

110

I I

T T

1 I I 1 I I

REPORT 8: CASSAVA FACTORY: PROFIT STATEMENTS



Report 8A

The variable elements of the profit statement have been entered from the previously described reports where they are calculated. In terms of the fixed expenses the following have been estimated at fixed annual levels:

- electricity
- water
- miscellaneous.

Depreciation and annual maintenance are calculated as described in report 5.

The major item is staff and labour which has been estimated in accordance with the following table for operating periods:

		Basic Si	ingle Shift	Increm	nent 2 Shifts	Incren	ent 3 Shifts
	No	Rate K	Total K	No	Total K	No	Total K
Management	5	9,000	45,000	-		1	9,000
Lab.Technician	1	3,960	3,960	-			·
Foremen	2	5,280	10,560	1	5,280	1	5,280
Mechanics	2	4,300	8.600	1	4,300	1	4,300
Admin/Clerks	7	3,300	23,100	1	3,300	1	3,300
Drivers	3	3.000	9.000	-	•	1	3,000
Guards	4	2,410	9.640	1	2,410	1	2,410
Operatives	12	2,665	31.980	12	31,980	12	31,980
Labourers/	20	1.645	32,900	4	6.580	4	6.580
Groundsmen			•				-
	56		174,740	20	53,850	22	65,850
Add 7½% shift allowance			·		4,038		4,263 *
Total			174,740		57,888		70,113

* NB Management does not receive shift allowance.

I = I

1 1

per period

I = I = -I

1 I I

2 shifts = $\frac{175,000 + 58,000}{2}$ = 116,500 3 shifts = $\frac{175,000 + 58,000 + 70,000}{2}$ = 151,500

1

111

1 I II II I

L

1.1.11

1

1

1



The cable elements of the profit statement have been entered from the calculated descination of the fixed entered at the following we been estimated at fixed annual levels:

ter, ort 8A

- Tricity
- _

111-1

111-1

- miscre neous.

Depreciation and a maintenance are calculated as description in report 5.

The major item is stated labour which has been estimated in accordance with the following table for operation periods:

		Bas Annie Shift	and nent 2 Shifts	Increa	nent 3 Shifts
	No	Rate K Kotal K	Total K	No	Total K
Management	5	9,000		1	9,000
Lab.Technician	1	3,960			•
Foremen	2	5,280 10 20	1 5,280	1	5,280
Mechanics	2	4,300 8,64	1 4,300	1	4,300
Admin/Clerks	7	3,300 23,1	1 3,300	1	3,300
Drivers	3	3,000 9	-	1	3,000
Guards	4	2,410 J	1 2,410	1	2,410
Operatives	12	2,665	12 31,980	12	31,980
Labourers/ Groundsmen	20	1,645 ,900	4 6,580	4	6,580
	56	174,740	20 253,850	22	65,850
Add 7½ shift allowance			038		4,263
Total		174,740	57,888		70,113
* NB Asnager	ment	does not receive shift a	llowance.		
2 shifts		= <u>175,000 + 58,000</u> 2	= 116,500		
3 shifts		= <u>175,000 + 58,000 + 70</u> 2	<u>,000</u> = 151,500		
		111			

+1

1.1

1

1 1

 $\Gamma = \Gamma$

1 I

I = -I

1 1

1 1

1 1

1 1 1

1

1

In building up the construction period the cost levels for the majority of items are either generated within the model or set at levels commensurate with operating period costs. The major item not described by the schedules is again labour and staff which has been estimated as follows using the above annual salary rates:

- In the first six months staff will build up to the following levels.

	No		Rate K	Total K
Management	3	X	9000/2	13,500
Foreman	1	x	5280/2	2,640
Mechanics	1	x	4300/2	2,150
Clerical	2	x	3300/2	3,300
Drivers	1	x	3000/2	1,500
Guards	2	x	2410/2	2,410
Operatives	-	-	-	<i>-</i>
Labourers	4	x	1645/2	3,290
		Total		28,790

- In the second six months staff will build up to the following levels.

	No		Rate K	Total K
Management	4	x	9000/2	18,000
Foreman	1	x	5280/2	2,640
Mechanics	1	x	4300/2	2,150
Clerical	4	x	3300/2	6,600
Drivers	3	x	3000/2	4,500
Guards	3	x	2410/2	3,615
Operatives	-		-	-
Labourers	8	x	1645/2	6,580
		Total		44,085
Total labour and say	i staff ₍	period Yr C P1	72,875	73.000.

1

11 I.

н т

I.

1

Т 111

1 I I I

1 I I I

10

I = I = I

1 1 1

In the final six months of construction the full staffing will be engaged. However given the low output load this is expected only to be at a one shift level and in the case of operatives and factory labour, they will only be engaged during the last three months when trial runs take place. The staffing level is calculated as follows.

	No		Rate K	Total K
Management	5	x	9000/2	22,500
Foremen	2	x	5280/2	5,280
Lab.Technician	1	x	3960/2	1,980
Mechanics	2	x	4300/2	4,300
Clerical	7	x	3300/2	11,550
Guards	4	x	2410/2	4,820
Operatives	12	x	2665/4	7,995
Labourers/	12	X	1645/2	9,870
Groundsmen				
Labourers/	8	x	1645/4	3,290
Groundsmen				71,585
Say				72,000

1.111

1.111

1 1

1 1 1

1

1 11

11

1.1.1

1

1.1.1

П

П

11 1

П Т

Т

I.

1 1

1 I

4104 200000 4 * (19 F.) ୍ 1961 433. 1923 40363 63005. 63465 . -----1911 . 1 33 11 0**1**21 --0 63 ÷ 2 Э 33 8 . 193 2 1 Ξ 39 31 **4**00 :•• e. 434 8 . • • 2 ţ 38 IS 1 **1** 1 53 ! 1 6 4 4 6 2 5 4 6 5 6 5 7 4 6 6 7 4 5 7 5 7 7 4 5 7 5 7 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4 3311 1 · · · · CHARTER STREET STREET STREET ; 553 K 10104 11104 Û÷Ç ; 2 • : <u>811</u> ų. đi C 11 n n n Transformer TALES INCO 383 B . • . • 45 11 3 : 1 មូលេម្ន ខ្ ក្នុលម្ន ខ្ ក្នុលម្នា 2 32 -., · ·? .≷ • ÷ . ł ł 1903 1 1 1 1 856 4 đ 1 - - - + . ÷ C MELLON-LAN LED C.C.G.T.S. C.B.T. C.C.G.T.S. C.B.T. C.P.T.M. EMALON 101110 212010 71 , 'n ÷۰, 2417 ូះ ភ្ល ... URARA 2302751 1074. 51075 1051093798294746173 1061093798694746173 1074. E.W. S. S. 2021 NET FLAEL ASSETS ALL CARENT 2-58-13 日本の日に、日日本 * 4 10140 (18980) 114610 1168 SCENAR TO 1814, F.L.11 小学 いいてい 14-11-14 24-06-14-14 24-06-14-14 ** 11 130-31 t ol te Lie ann an tàis ann ann an an Mhairtean Ann Ailtean an Mhairtean Ann Ailtean Ann Ailtean (T 32 23333 \geq 12 5,5,5,6,1,2

114

REPORT 9: CASSAVA FACTORY: BALANCE SHEETS



Report 9A

The model constructs the balance sheets largely from data already calculated in previous reports. One item however requires particular mention, namely cash surplus. This item is made necessary as a balancing item since the cash in hand figure is already fixed on the basis of the working capital requirement.

This form of presentation has the major advantage of demonstrating clearly the surplus cash flow build up and available for possible equity distributions. It must agree with the cumulative surplus cash flow shown in report 10, funds flow statement, and thus gives a clear audit check that the model logic is working. Finally in any one year this figure represents accumulated reserves not immediately required in the business and therefore enables us to refine capital employment, and thus the relevant ratios, to a figure representing the capital actually used in the business in the year in question.

ierurt (v : Scenario :

.....

1 1

的现在分词有限的生活的 建固定的 的现在分词 计算法 建合金的现在分词

	1:037												1.00-		
1411445 141144 1515 Dr. 1414 17 Arts: 144 17 Arts: 144 1511410 14110	300 1	ିବ୍ୟୁ ଜୁବ୍ୟୁ ଜୁବ୍ୟୁ	1912 - 1, 3 1, 47 4 - 1 1 - 1	254			100 Pro - 204 100 Pro - 204 100 Pro - 200 100 Pro - 204 100 Pro - 204 10	un politica provincialita practa e e		(361)	8, 8, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1,	8483 (1110) 1111 (1110) 1111 (1110) 1111 (1110) 1111 (1110)	्रम् हो विद्यालय अक्वियो क्वियो दी आहे काल्स	000 m - 10 2010 - 10 2010 - 10 2010 - 10	000-004 - 178-1 6279-014 914-9-9
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		in Di Sui) 12 13	đ	00 4 1		:5+	6 64	jn i	4	40 40 60	∎ 	ils.		33
12. 10-1634 [66] 3-1643 (66]	<u>०</u> ः भ	244 24 28	<><><>	~~~	6.012		0.00	000	0010	-:	ي و مع	(+ - * +)*	a a magna	u teo feo feo	1999
L SURCES OF DS	27 T	**	400	3	3			8							
L TATIONS OF 1811 1811 1812 1813 1813 1813 1813 1813		10 ma 23 25 25	- 2464 		. • • • • •	- 13 - 1	a tang Tang Tang		11. A	* 4.4 **		1. N. 194 1. N. 194 1. N. 194	743	, ^ ,	- 4 - 2
1 - 2012 - 2012 - 1 2010 - 103 - 105 - 1 2011 - 103 - 105 -	4 <u>7</u> 1 -∑8		2004. 5	· • •	42468	\$\$\$\$ \$	17 - 18 1	33	- 3 (3 9393 1114	1163	4344		1. 1. 1 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	• •	19 - 19 1
1. 1.561 S. 1.541 S. 1.4		1	•			i ses	>	13	1.32		344		ŝ		• •
	. 7 M a	33	- 4 - 4 2 - 7	. 1 n	9 4	11 Q	• • •		and and a Grade a	ાનાં કરે ગોર અને વ	: • •	1 1 1	:.:	• •	.1. *
	-2	5							2	n,	-	4	A	•	\sim
		17	1 / 1 1 / 1 1 / 1 1				• • • 3 • • 3 • • •	19	1.1.4	•13					
					2	3		2 0	् स्ट्रे म		\$	191	1. 1 - 1		
	9 mi	ب ے ہے۔ + ر				63	.	20 17 1		5-0 6-4	55 A) 55 A)	80 (1) 53 (1) 10 (1)		1 1,3-4 1,0-1,2 1,1-1,1-	걸릴

-- --

1

Г I

REPORT 10: CASSAVA FACTORY: FUNDS FLOW STATEMENT



Report 10A

This statement is computed by the model from the data in previous reports. It should be noted that term loan interest is included in both inflows and outflows to give a total debt service on which the debt service ratio can be computed.

		- 40 - 40 - 40	1-024	• • 2 • 1 • •				14281	24 25 27 27 27		2 4 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1	14021		14951	78872	14. 14.
3	CONTRIBUTION MARGINE	•_•	S	ų T	5	3	5	ភ	÷	5	51	哥	ភ	ដ	ş	- 13
···•	TILL UCETSALEST	0	3	13	- 11 - 11	4		13	20	:3	ۍ. رو	39	er Fi	21	\$1	
م	VERSION CONTRACTOR	÷	3	-	÷	÷.	• "5 1=4	::	1	4	: • •	2	2	9		
0.3	地名美国克尔 计中国 计成 谢明	\odot	 ?	1	71	3	1	ţ1	51		1	-1	8	ង	3	-11
- - 5	1013/013/2 - ENELOXED	(31.9)	10.01	e ?	(4 0		5.8	1) • • • •	10.0	17.5	2	20.2	51-3	8 8 7	21.5	20.3
• 3.		0 . 0		* :		+	•	0.4	ų - 4		ыл 5	2.5	5 10 10	0.5	<u>ः</u> २	5. 5
• 5	1911年8日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本日本	0.4	0 0	С С	e L	13 1	4 (1		10.7		े		0-11		64 17	
0 2	1日にした日 6月12日日	2	7		3	말	0.÷	• •	6	30	1	9. •	1.	->	0	<u>`</u> >
°.3*	CERI SERVICE COVES	0.0	•••	() ()	4) 	105 1 2 - 4	:	ы) М	() 		•	·	[···	с. 4 . •	0.0	0
n ng c				· • •	:0:	ः ::	0 	9.51 1	• • •	्र		3.5	20.5	5. 21 21	3.5	Х. .
رە دە																*****

I

I

1 1

1 1

Т

i

T

1

١.

I

ī

T

I

I

I

T

I.

т. т. т. т.

I

П

п

1 - 1

REPORT 11: CASSAVA FACTORY: KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS



Report 11A

We have extracted certain key financial ratios to give an overview measurement of the project. The majority of the ratios are self explanatory and need no further comment as to their derivation. In the two profit/capital employed ratios we wish to clarify the basis of calculation as follows:

These ratios have in the first instance been calculated as annual rates of return rather than six monthly rates. This has been done on the basis of adding the previous periods profit (loss) to that of the period being assessed, except in the first period where it has been necessary to multiply the current period profit or loss by two since no previous period exists.

The difference between the profit/capital employed ratio (234) and the profit/net capital employed ratio (239) is that, in the latter case, the surplus cash figure in the balance sheet has been deducted from the capital employed to give the net figure.

- *** 11 日本 日本 おうがおざからて 合作な 合いなな ないがた たまか かたみ からみ あみ て こりこ こ・1 •• ÷ **ः** and the second s Colora e al Morro o a colora a colora e e Malera 「「「「「」」」」。

1 1

120

ļ

REPORT 12: RATE OF RETURN ANALYSIS



Report 12

The model calculates the NPV against a given rate of return. It will be noted that the cash flow expressed in six monthly periods in the main model has been consolidated to annual figures for this calculation and that whilst the print out shows only the first 15 periods, after which the annual results are the same, the model does hold a full 20 periods enabling ten years project life to be discounted.

In compiling the report we have established the IRR that yields an NPV as near \neq s possible to zero by using a separate Finesse routine available as part of the package.

The final years cash flow has been adjusted to include the recovery of working capital together with the disposal of fixed assets as follows:

Land 100% Buildings 50% Plant 5% Vehicles 10%	
Land 100% Buildings 50% Plant 5%	
Land 100% Buildings 50%	
Land 100%	

法軍と言う 220 (97.36) (243.61) (284.40) (334.07) (278.28) (318.07) 0.85 0.95 +38:30 128.51 0.99 00-10 1.8 81.6.49 0.9 0.95 167-31 217.11 81 249.41 261.92 321-22 8.0 . 95 3 122.84 330 36.5 26.0 0.50 5.5 14-124 14-124 1.00 4-40 11.12+ 204-66 . 34.001 361.15 0.83 264.74 0.8 (***)557 (**) 0.95 306.14 3 356.88 0.83 0.90 5.55 3. 30.35 80 11. P +75.94 11.37 0.90 1.00 0.30 267.79 3.95 8.0 8.1 316.8 (30.07) 0.15 108-08 0.8 83 81 379.02 153.75 8.0 74.12 199.43 96.5 1.8 245.11 83 109.79 13.93 402.58 8 0.50 63.29 8 8.1 152.93 196.08 0.00 8.0 8:1 229.23 10.2 88 80.75 169.05 28 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 33 33 28 28 130.82 200 236.62 88 28 18 18 88 5.S. 1441.80 88 19 19 163.93 88 88 28.2 20 20 <u>୍</u>ଟ୍ର ଅଞ୍ଚ 33 88 85.88 2015: 79 20 88 178·28 88 208-51 3123.77 10.80 18.58 88 23.25 30.361 (R. 6) 1977年1月 ୁ ଅଷ୍ଟି 38 38 28. 28. 28. 28 28 38 145 98. 00 518 28 28 20 28 33 12.28 88 85 0 FERCENT CHARKE IN SALES FACTOR 0.95 0. 00 FUNCENT CHANGE IN SALES FACTOR 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 RESULTS IN CUMULATIVE 151.39 581.69 39.39 151.201 1037.96 1363.90 1 0 PERCENT CHANNE IN SALES FACTOR 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 RESULTS IN CUMUATIVE 0.2.00 1.62.30 51.22 0.2.00 1.63.30 1504.04 1337.29 2 0 PER ENT CHARGE :: SALES FACTOR 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 AESULIS IN PROFIT AFTER TAK 1 (7/, 07) 134.40 298.95 198.95 198.95 0 PERCENT CLAIRE 11 SHLER FACTOR 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 RESULTS IN STOFT AFTER TAX 1.51.00 25.66 72.69 257.55 257.55 257.55 0 FERCENT CHARTEL IN SALES FACTOR 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 RESULTS IN CURRATION 1.00 1.00 11 0.01 1.00 1.00 11 2.00 1.0 2.00 1.0 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.00 1.4200201 (2.4402) 4.420 4.420 0.450 0.450 0.450 0.451 0.450 0.450 8.650 (15 18 - 406 6) 1.671 0.7 1.632 (10) 1.466 60 1.672 6.527 1.692 650 1.692 650 1.672 650 PERCENT CHARKE C CASE CASE CASE CASE CASE CASE CASE FIST CASE CASE CASE CASE CASE CASE 888 करू हर्म 300 132.22 និន ស្ត្រ ស្ត្រ S.88. 889 765 888 8,9,9 28.2 8.9.9 1.00 38.98 38.98 201.04 201.04

(34-20) (636.93) (1123.18) (1303.86) (1508.19) (1606.96) (1735.57) 88.488 816.49 83 8 0.8 8 0.5 188.99 8 212 131.57 2.5 246+41 ି ଅକ୍ଟ (20.42) (817.41) (313.69) 83 8.1 772.84 0.30 8.0 800 0.90 0.5 323.37 8.1 1.14.11 218.97 +27.77 (126-53) 364.15 0.35 8 57.46 33 8.0 38.0 19.61 8.0 138.03 8 356.38 0.95 (622.45) (710.60) 102-2114 413.34 0.8 8 8.0 32.65 127-10 221.55 8 310.00 <u>ି</u> ଅନ 0.90 8.9 2.5 (121.72) 379.01 (12:27) 8.1 0:30 0.95 0.85 00.16 15:31 THE SAL 80 8.9 80 8 (65:01) (+23,76) (2.43) 8.0 +02.58 8 124-23 80 0.0 8 229.23 8.0 73.23 3.0 8.1 122-660 276.74 88. 38 88 88 20 88 1. čt. 2255. čt 83 33 88 88 200 00 20.13 88 83 AS 35 10 50 15 8 (14.041) 88 22 81.41 200-13 150.96 <u>୍ଚ</u> ଅଞ୍ଚ 88.0 28.3 285 285 3123.77 33 38 88.00 (409.26) 149-120 98. 38 123-05) \$53-050 (R.S.) 88 176. CZ 38 36 88 3-5 88 50 88 73 38 38 28 88 88 89.53 1987 200 -10.00 FERLENT CHANGE IN PRICE FACTOR 0.30 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 9.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 4654.15 IN CURRENTIVE 46.62 124.44 (51.75) 193.95 4 -:0.00 FEIENT CHARE IN PRICE AUTOR 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 REBUTS IN PROFIL AFTER TAX (226.71) 187.24) (69.74) (56.51) 1 142.71 142.71 142.71 00 PERCENT CHANGE IN PAILS: FACTURE 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 8. 115 IN CUMUNTUR 112:22 (5.02) (23.0.) 5.0.00 947.18 1274.51 1 0 FESCENT CHANGE IN PAICE FILTUN 1.00 1.00 1.00 8650LTS IN CUMBLATUNE 1.001 43.75 34.61 1365.58 1970.13 2334.68 2 -5.00 FERCENT C-MMGE IN FALCE FAUTOR 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 2.26-71 0.77.12) 0.99 F.09 226-71 0.77.12) 0.6-94 F.09 200.13 200.13 200.13 200.13 0 PERCENT CHANGE IN PRICE FACTOR 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 PRESULTS IN PROFIT AFTER TAX 0 1.01 20.08 72.59 0.1.35 251.55 257.55 -15.00 PERCENT DENERS IN PAICS FACTOR 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 86.42 116.45 (102.55) (251.42) 1523-25) (1310.99) (1099.71) (586.42) PERCENT 6.00 F ૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢૢ 1.99 SKK (T. 20 28. 28. 28. (813.18) S.88 2-3-0 35.55 26 35.55

1.1



_			YRCP1	YRCP2	RIPI	1R192	YR2P1	18292	YR3P1	YR3P2	18491	YR4+2	YRGPI	VRSP2	18621	18682	YR7F
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	GUANTITY: TONNES STREETING ADDITION STREET ROOT STARCH SOLD YIELD RSL TO RST ROOT SLURRY YIELD R TO RSL ROOTS INPUT		0 10 0.0 260 0.0	15 10 156-2 250 60.1	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 250 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 360 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	73 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 250 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.5	968 372
3 70 00 1 21:	Chip Starch Solu Yield CSL to CST Chip Slurry Yield C to CSL Chips Infut CSL	12721	181 10 1985 700 269-3	181 10 1885 700 259-3	1087 10 11323 700 1618	1132 10 11792 700 1685	1232 10 1 285 5 700 1537	1332 10 13875 700 1792	1432 10 14917 700 2131	1532 10 15958 700 2290	1632 10 17000 700 242°	1732 10 18042 790 2577	1 932 10 19083 790 2725	1932 10 20125 700 2875	1932 10 20125 700 2875	1932 10 20125 700 2875	19 201 7 28
	GLUCOSE SOLD YTELD CST TO G OHIP STARCH G YIELD CSL TO CST CHIP SLURRY S YIELD C TO CSL CHIPS INPUT G		0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 190 0.6 10 0.0 700 0.0	190 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 190 0.9 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 19 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 190 10 6.0 700 9.0	1007
	SEXTRIN SOLD YIELD CST TO D CHIP STARCH D YIELD CSL TO LOST CHIP SLURKY D YIELD C TO CSL CHIPS INHUT D		0 190 0.0 10 0.0 790 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 6.0	0 100 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	0 100 10 0.0 790 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	9 100 10 0.0 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 6.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	9 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	10 0 7 0
	TOTAL CHIPS SOPUT	T	7.3	269+3	1619	1685	1833	1982	2131	2280	2429	2577	2726	2375	2875	2875	28
	TOTAL STARCH PROD	Ţ	181.0	194.0	1180	1225	1325	1425	1525	1625	1725	1820	1925	2025	2025	2025	
3	TOTAL STARCH SOLL	1	181.0	194.0	1180	1225	1325	1425	1525	1625	:725	1525	1925	2025	2025	2025	2(
3	TOTAL CHIP SLURRY	T.	1985	1985	11323	1179.	12833	13875	14717	15958	17000	180 4 0	:8083	20125	20125	20125	20

light replaced by

CODDY 1 1 CARGOUA FACTORY THEY CONFICT

= =

		YRCP1	YRCP2	VRIF1	YR192	192P1	18,092	TR3P1	tk3p2	YR4#1	YR4F2	18571	tksf2	Yrofi	18692	VR7P1
VALU	ELINPUTS															
8007 800	PRICE A/T TS CONSUMED	1 00 1 0	100 j	100 37	:00 37	100	100 37	100 37	100 37	100	100 37	100	100 37	100 37	100 37	100 37
CHIP CHIP	PRICE N/T PS CONSUMED	200 54	200 54	200 324	200 337	200 367	200 376	200 426	200 400	200 486	200 515	200 345	200 575	200 575	200 575	200 575
TOTA	UIR NATERIALS	54	00	361	374	404	434	463	+93	523	553	582	212	512	012	612
KOUT	E:OUTPUTS HINTERESEARCH PRICE N/T STARCH SOLD T I STARCH	0	400 15 8	°00 ?5 74	800 93 74	500 93 74	900 93 74	300 93 74	3 <u>60</u> 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	900 93 74	800 93 74	200 93 74	800 93 74	300 93 74
CHIP CHIP CHI	PRICE ANT STARCH SOLD T P STARCH	181 0	500 191 145	500 1087 870	800 1132 906	800 1232 986	500 1332 1966	800 1432 1146	500 1532 1226	800 1632 1306	800 1732 1386	300 1832 1466	300 1932 1546	900 1932 1540	800 1932 1546	300 1932 1546
GLUC GLUC CHI	ose phice indi dse gold i p glucose	000	1:00 0	1100 0 0	1100 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0	1100 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100) 0	0011 C 0	1100 0
DEXT DEXT Chi	RIN PRICE MAT RIN GOLD T P DEXTRIN	0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0	1700 0 0	1700) 0 0	1709 0 0	1700 0	1700) 0	:700 0	:700 3 0	17 30 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0
TOTA	BALES	0	151	944	930	1060	1140	1226	1300	1380	:460	1540	1620	1020	1520	1620

Chiller March and Although a share and a share of the state of the sta

REPORT 2 :

CHARLES STREAM STREAM STREAM STREAM

的 新闻 在 新闻 在

CASSAVA FACTORY WALLE OF THPUTS/OUTPUTS

846 7 . 0 . 0 10189144 0008104 0908104 ສະ ສະ ບຸດເກລາວເຊັ່ນດີ ກີດເມລາຍີ່ ເມື່ອງອີດຄານີ້ຜູ້ນີ້ Strund & Bolt 50 A NO. MAR 222 1357 A. 1934 1934 0000 ¥ ogin (ຜີພິ ບໍ່ດີການກີ່ບໍ່ຊີ່ ມີດີມີແກ້ທີ່ຜູ້ໃ ಾಟ್ಡಿ ಅನ್ನ ಬ್ರ 222 100000000 000 က် ကို ကို ကို ကို කිය රංජානස්ථ්¥ සිල්සිකස්ශ්¥ Robin Robin Nog Signal No. Solution 1993 5 <u>.</u> wijot 0.16 133A 2013 2 75.0 No.4 19061 2014 12 8.33 ust sino 00 285. 2955 2955 1212 000 အပ္အဝန္န 0.2000.004 732 212 5.9**%** NON ROS miles a 194 0.90 333 000 0920 K **au** 70100374 15315 800 angsa 897 877 7-057 35.4 20-A 0110 808 502 901 -394 334 3.34 평그님 명그님 -314 838 1.88.7 0.00 191 318 333 222 2:4 8:5 323 000 334 234 20% 0%0 25.0 273 298 2 238 505 503 19 BJE. 0000 ិនខ្លួក 966.7 273 2 N34, 344 030 ಜ್ಞಾಸ 000 234 232 273 8.55 233 .9.7.4 3 0.10 200 204 Non. 000 274 Rob. 334 273 2007 896 202 18-18 .9.14 ဝဝုလ 0.10 ROE 3.34 នុង្ខង 298 234 278 1202 0.10 334 97. A 394 80.51 80.50 80.510 .<u>द्</u>रुह 334 No. 2200 20th စ်ခုခ ဝင်္ဂ 80.13 80.13 13 191 0-191 0.10 01 2.22 `**2**3% 234 ಇವನ 998 ADDESS: TO KALLER STREAMED ADDESS TO KALLER STREAMED ADDESS TO KALLER STREAMED ADDESS TO KALLER STREAMED ADDESS STREAMED ADDES

いいの

17.

YRYF:

×8.6F2

Tele:

žer,

TAGR

STER S

TRAPT

TRJP2

LANK A

6222

YAZHI

18192

TALAY

YRCP2

1 dour

3

CASSAM STAKCH

31 FECTORY FOR F

Ser.

STATE STREET A LOUVE STREET

CASSAVA FACTORY: DTHER VARIABLE COSTS

REPORT 4 2 FACTORY FOR CASSAVA STARCH UNLY

TROPE TROPE TREPE
30	ELECTRICTY															
10000000000000000000000000000000000000	TUTAL STARCE FROM T UNITS FER TOIME RATE FER UNIT ELECTRICITY-VARIABLE	191.0 250 0.04 2	196.0 250 0.04 2	1180 250 0.04 12	1225 250 0.04 12	1329 250 0.04 13	1425 250 9.64 14	1525 250 0.04 15	1025 250 0.04 16	1725 250 0.04 17	1825 250 0.04 18	1925 250 0.04 19	2025 250 0.04 20	2025 250 0.0+ 20	2025 250 0.04 20	2025 250 0+04 20
14 V 21	WATER REFERENCE FROM THE STAR	191.0	196.0	1.180	1225	1325	1425	1525	1025	1725	1825	1925	2025	2025	2025	2025
850 360 37 27	LT.000 MER TONNE RATE PER COOLITRE WATER-VARIABLE	4.3 2.30 2	4.3 2.30 2	4.3 2.30 12	4.3 2.30 12	4.3 2.30 13	4.3 1.30 14	4.3 2.30 15	4.3 2.30 10	4.3 2.30 17	4.3 2.30 18	4.3 2.30 19	4.3 2.30 20	4.3 2.30 20	4.3 2.30 20	4.3 2.30 20
87 2595 69 1 7 9 9 9 1	CLEL STUTISTICS FOR STARCH PROL T LITRS PER LITRS FUEL	191.0 132 0.52 12	190.0 132 0.52 13	1190 132 0.52 81	:225 :32).52 -84	1325 132 0.52 91	1425 132 0.52 98	1525 132 0.52 105	1625 132 0.52 112	1725 132 0.52 118	1825 132 0.52 120	1925 132 9.52 132	2025 132 0.52 139	2023 132 0.52 139	2025 132 0.52 139	2025 132 0.52 139
122240 1400 940 95	CHEMICALS AND SUMMERSING SUMMERSING GLUCOSE SOLD Y EST.AGS PER TONNE COST PER AG. CHEMICALS	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50 2) 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50	0 30 0-50 0	0 30 9.50 0	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.30 0	0.50 0	0 20 0.50	0 30 0.50	0 30 0.50	0.50 0.50	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50 0
1014 1020 103 103	ACNING MATERIALS EXCERNICEMENTALISE TOTAL STARCH SOLD I BAG UNIT NEIGHT IS EAG UNIT COST TOTAL BAG COST S	181.0 25 1.00	195.0 25 1.00 3	1180 25 1.00 47		1325 25 1.00 53	1425 25 1.00 57	1525 25 1.00 51	1625 25 1.90 65	1725 25 1.00 37	1825 : . <u></u>	1925 20 1.00 77	2025 25 1.00 81	2025 25 1.00 81	2023 25 1.00 \$1	2025 20 1.00 91
140 1040 1050 1050 106	GLUCOSE SOLD T DRUM UNIT WEIGHT RG IRUM UNIT COST TOTAL DRUMS COST	100 15.00 0	100 15.00 0	0 100 15.00 6	0.51 12.96 100 0	0 100 15-00 0	100 100 100	0 100 15.00 0	100 15.00 0	0 100 15.00 0	0 100 15.00 0	100 15.00 0	100 15.00 15.00	0 100 15:00 0	100 15-00 0	0 100 15-00 6
190 1971: 1980: 1989:	DEXTRIN SOLD I BAG UNIT WEIGHT ING BAG UNIT COST TOTAL BAGS COST	0 20 1.00 0	0 25 1.00 0	00 15 1.00 1.00		65.5 65.5	0 25 1.00	25 1.00	25 1.00	25 1.00 0	25 1.00	25 1.00	200	0 25 1.00	25 1.00	0 25 1.00 0
110 27	HACKING MATERIALS	7 =======	8	4," ###11##	+9 200012		57 #11#1#	61 =======	ى ئەتتە	69 2211105		77 	91	31	81	91

. ş.
28 \$\$\$\$\$\$ 9/1 လာလူရာ လူ လူ 14282 ္ ႏွင္ကုိ 911 22:23:24:24 19662 23992 N P ୶୕ୠୄୠ୶ ංශ්යුන්ත පි 3 ୍ମ କରୁ ବ୍ୟୁ କୁ 2/1 ਸ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ੑਫ਼ਫ਼ੑ TADET 뎛 ుిని 2 યકુકુરફ|ર 计计算机 ာရာ သူဌမ လူ ဂ ୍ରାର୍ବ୍ରଶ୍ 3 3 1965 NZSCS 330 5 3 144 1832 R R 1999 - 1999 1999 - 1999 1999 - 1999 203 ม**รูร**ะรู | รู 14432 សត្វភ្លូស្រុក រដ្ឋ 14 LASSAVA FACTORY INTER ASSET MAINT DEPR NSS288 3 *** の語の語 ာာင္စရာ သူ ß <u> ဂဝဠဠဝ</u> 8 138 -----ររន្តន្តនន្ត ភ្ន ာမိုင်ရမ် ကို TELET 3 ခခင္မရင္ **388**83 120 YAU'T YAUP2 (24), 34/3+(24/3 * 6/4 * 7/4 * 4 ားခုရွှင့ :3 2 <u>188889</u> eren eren Alexandre Alexan ು ್ವಭಾ 101 ***** ଅଞ୍ଚଛିମନ୍ତ୍ର ଧ୍ୟୁ ം ടൂ പെട്ടും 끎 381 101 1111111111 TALAY NSSR ာမားခံလူမ်ာ လူ ంంసర్పం ्ह . Frottory for Cressing Starth Unly N332° N N 100 000g 3**63828**33 (ROP) 2014 29C 4 u U MAINTENANCE AND FACTORY BUILDINGS PLANT & ERUISPENT U VEHICLES MUSING P. C.C. 25857 COST CANE FACTORY BULLE PLANT LAND SAUTURY BUILD SLANT SCHELOBARD 107A. C361 VENCLES i4 X 1333 in the second

1279

1341

1007 1510

1669

1381

Set.

6602

2,745

1253

NET FIXED ASSETS

1000

31

3

33

2

34

믥

2

5

-

THE LOT LED

5"36"56

n en en en

l

l

		1 29.7	500 2005	82 .	9†\$	3	04	<u>م</u>))
	¥2 #6	534	500	50 50 50 50		360 1910 1910	-9 4 	-15		
	161 (Re	10- <u>2</u>		ಹ ಸ್ವಾಭ		360	9+ [3	چ د ا		
	72	• 3 3••	283	स्ट्रिय	्र श्रुवध्)8e	-	4.2		
	185 	508-4	383	66 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 1	3*6		ះឆ្ន	ాజి	8°5	
	25 745	53.ª	838 838	n Ser	्य इ न् श्च	94	٩ĥ	.1.98 1.98	13°8	22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22
	187 1 87	98	284	કરાક સ	2*9	12	are E	64-2 2	83	
	re F2	284	335	3 58 9	8.8		•8		10-3-4 10-1-4	
	6 1 2 2 3 3 4 3 4 3 4	428rd	୍ୟୁକ୍ଷିଣ୍ଡ	ស ទទួក	्र स्र ⁺ श्च		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	~1 9 3	12 6	
	raudiskija 192 - Yki	·23-	383	838 838	3*8 3*8	0.3	• 3 3	- (A	5°°3	
	540105 54 54	534	223	user See	3+3		בות	ရက္ခရွ	₹°8	
	ASSAUA P2 485	13-	38 . 8	ନ୍ଦ୍ର ଜୁନୁଷ			ဂဂ္ဂ	1 de la	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
	a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	•8		्र इन्द्रे	***	R	ကယ	l cao	្រះន	1) 14 61
	52 ×81	-ng	1000	ි ගලඅ			+ [7]	0.4		
$r = \frac{1}{4} \frac{1}{2}$ $r = \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2}$ $r = \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2}$	51680- 51680- 51 - 560-	ng-	955 3		000	3	00	¦≏,;	4000	17 17 17
	ASSace A	1 - L - S	5 41 9 5	്റ് 	а Ск		TF NTS		ເດິນ ສີ່ມີ	
		t	•	ICH ALS	65 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	ŝ	A RU		MATER LA MATER LA MATER LA	
	са, т к	11.100 11.1000 11.10000 11.10000 11.100000000	an a	े के जिसे जिसके जुन जिसके जुन						4.' 3
	с. С.		া ১১১ প্রার্থিয়া	الله الله الله الله الله الله الله الله				150 1538	់ភ្នំ ក្រើឆ្នីនេះ	
		1							••• ••	

11.1

,			1-52.94	24 24	199 199 199	0	> 0000	0000	法法律计计
			78062		2021	0	100 0	000	2011年1月1日
			TRAT	2	785	0	> ! ^?	, <u>08</u> 0	***
			14537	0		0	° 88	° <u>8</u> 8	*****
			145A1	ò	38 3 99	0	2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3	°88	
			78472	0	223	>		°38	11
			19481	0	288 23	• • ••	≥ ≏ <u>8</u> 3	° ရန္	****
		91./Cak	YR3P2	0	5 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	0	• • • <u>• • • •</u>	ిక్రెక్ట	建建建成
		E0/1w1/	143P1	0	283 22	0	0000	3003	*****
		DEC: 1 AX	18.0%	0	1285	81	0000	008	****
		UN FACT	142A1	0	1983. 1983:	3	000	3008	****
		04654	24187		្តទទួន មនុន្តន	38	ວີ ຈວ. 	0000	种植物计种
L			19151	\sim	ាទំន កំពុះ	\$	> i >>> #	9 00 g	
		in the second se	X OF 2	0	449 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44	0		200	
		AVA 57A	YKCP1	0	0000 000 00		0 3 1	000	***
		FOR CASS		AX RATE 1	T RATE 2 T RATE 2	0EBT	DEN.	UCBT CEBT CEBT CEBT	
		FACTORY		PORATE T	DEBT IN DEBT IN	061-162	olut-Ter		
		ः 1. अ				18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19			2
		ίτ i	· · ·	I					

4-190 G 13 1620 1620 1620 3 88886 3 × 1 491 10231 1361 \circ ន្តន្ 뛄 ****** 38885 Y KQP2 ****** ***** 1:20 ି 515 536 3 201 PS | -3 158 ļ ł 14991 * 900 N :620 gran<u>n</u> 35 о., 麗 610 3 255 238 ្ទ 1 83 64.1 24953 经济特殊政治 ***** 1620 **x**° ଞ୍ଚୁଷ୍ଣରଞ୍ଚ 38 8 33 512 201 128 134 5 8 35 11 1.05% 133 , 255 G ***** 230 2 23 ବ୍ଷ୍ୟୁ 133 g a sub 3 ÷ 2 ଛି 行動自由行行 Saar Jon 「「「日本」、「日本」」 છેટલ 4.980 4.980 0.00 0**9**1 33 8 000 58 3 23 1 చ မာဝ 5 4:900 1:90 1:90 1380 ಾಷ್ಟ್ 87780 6 538 14 5 ినేది ŝ å 8 ន្លដ đ CASSAVA FACTORY LORDET STATENENTS Self.AF 8 8 A ₽° *** 120 Partors Partors **.**838 5 300 1 8 1 1 1 គរដ្ 2 $\frac{2}{2}$ * * ő i PNII III YEST Pass 8 3B ន្ទ 7 18 \$ ក្លែនដ S 4 4 æ 63 5 0 į は時時にいれ 9411 8**118** 1.900 Ner Mer ***** 3 183 ក្មទទ 5 3 5 ទ 8 Ъ 91 1 TANK CAN :* 2°0 8 35 2 53 844 8 ្តទទ 30 3 \$ **\$**2 E the states 60 đ ಸ್ಥೆದ್ಗಿ ಇ ខ្លួនដ 2 33 Ş ŝ 20 꽃답 13 ちさき ి శ్రీలింది BB <u>8</u>| ્રિંગ 11111 1412 Burne. 3 105 1000 '<u>ട്</u>ങ8| 100 2 Ş P^M ⊃î¥ 텱 語 シュキ 20 į TRUTORY FOR CASSAUR STARCH UNLY (11)Capita မ္မီစ ୍ଥିକ 3 283 9<u>9</u>0 12 81 7 35 3 5 (210) PROFIT AFTER TAX (210) 14081 3 (510) (517) 000 C 0000 ្នះ ER -5 าตนีอเ ន ~ <u>80</u> 5 GROSS ALDED VALUE ELECTRICITY-VARIABLE MATCH-VARIABLE UTHER VARIABLE CLISTS TOTAL LUR MATERIALS FIG. CHENCOLS PROCING HATERLAUS PROCING HATERLAUS CONTRIBUTION UNBUR STAFF UNBUR STAFF UNBENFICT NAIRENFIC NAIRENFIC STERFICS UNBURGHOUS FROFIT SEFORE INTEREST & TAX INTEREST SHORT-TEXM DEBI MEDIJM-TEXM DEBI LONG-TEXM DEBI 1014, FIXED CO515 NET OND TAX TOTAL SALES RAH PHIERIALS: KURS CONSUMED CHIPS CONSUMED ļ THOUSAND SUPER CONTRACTOR UTAL INTEREST AXAT ON STATES 11:000 ro, LXDe35 ੶ੑਲ਼ਫ਼ਖ਼ਖ਼ਜ਼ੑਖ਼ਖ਼ੑਲ਼ਲ਼ਜ਼ੑਲ਼ਜ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑੑਲ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਫ਼ਖ਼ੑਗ਼ੑੑੑੑੑੑ **ୡ୳ୡ୳୶ୠୖଌୡୡୖଌଌୖୣଌୣ୲**୷ୠୡୄୠ୲ୠୠ S

	566	_5i	.886 6	rist	19	501	353538	10 0 0					Rend
CAPITAL ENPLOYED	au redium-tesm debt 90 LONG-Term Debt	1074 EQUITY	GAPITAL CAPITAL 1 RESERVES	B TOTAL WET ASSETS	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	MET CURRENT ASSETS	IDIAL CURRENT	3 CURRENT LIABILITIES: 1 CARDITORS/ACCRUALS 20 SHORT-TERM DEBT	2 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	L CURRENT ASSETS: TOTAL STOCKS LEDITORS/PREPATRENTS B CASH	o rightha thousand Y yearson thousand Year fixed assets		rt 9 : Factory for cass
1390	00	1390	(012.) 0001	1390	13	112	0	60	112	కింపి	1258	1991	WA STA
2608	88	:+08	258	2608	161	102	0	00	102	ren	2345	1202	
2583	558	1363	1700	2922	8	234	ŧ	\$2	720	22.59 565 565	1263	TATAT	
37	88	1374	178	137	3	395	396	88°	782	Fr	2181	TR1P2	Cass
2390	600	1.290	(310)	2590	(74)	Sát	293	2823	936	୫ଛିଞ	2099	19291	AVA FAC
2649	88	1449	22	2049	(86)	700	8	1819 1819	8	665 3	2017	16292	TORY : BA
2733	88	1533	100	2733	(88)	986	107	.107	992	58 3	1935	YRJP1	ANDE S
2660	88	1660	178 188	2660	(212)	921	ī	41 0+	1035	ୢୄୄଽଽଽ	1853	12352 1	Ê.
12.04	\$3	1784	#8 #8	2584	(194)	1007	12	-22 -1-0	ШØ	2021	1771	TRAFT.	
7229	ଞ୍ଚ	1959	330	2559	(172)	1043	128	000	1170	<u>ক্লহায়</u>	:689	1842	
1.267	38	2107	1700	2507	(8 et)	1128	134	13	1262	2883	1007	in State	1 7 1 2 2 2 3
33	88	2425	178 178	2625	(64)	1164	Ξ		1305	2 48	1525	TROP2	
2575	00	575	1700 875	2375	(62)	1194	E		1315	9.400 9.400	1443	1966:	
2731	00	2731	1031	231	177	1194	ž		1335	ମ୍ବେକ୍ ୯୭୦ ଜ	:36:	1442	
1368	00	3360	1198	2868	416	1194	1+1	5	1335	254 S	1279	YR7F1	¥ 4 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

££I

I.

1

T T 1

I I

1.2

1

1 {

\$ • 7

I

I.

I.

1

÷

4

i

		YRCP1	VRCP2	YK1P1	YR192	TR2P1	18252	YR 3 P1	YK3P2	¥8 491	YR4P2	YRSP1	YRSF2	YR6P1	186F2	YK7P1
170 206 190 134 207	RUACHA THOUSAND ATTACHA THOUSAND SOURCES OF FUNDS: PROFIT AFTER TAX DEPRECIATION M-T & L-T DEDT INT	(210)	(52) 0 41	(26) 32 81	(9) 82 81	16 82 81	57 82 81	84 82 81	127 82 81	:24 32 68	175 82 54	207 82 41	258 82 27	149 82 14	157 82 0	157 32 0
208	CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS	(210)	(4))	137	154	179	222	247	290	274	311	330	367	245	239	239
1630 1640 1670	CAPITAL MEDIUM-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	1600 0 0	100 500 500	000	000	000	000	0	000	000	000	000	0000	000	000	000
121 213 21• 27	TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS	1390	1259	137	154	179	222	247	290	274	311	330	367	245 	239	239
8 215 216 217 218	APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS: FIXED INVESTMENT WORCING CAPITAL	1258 112	1088 110)	0 134	0 159	0 169	0 136	0 135	ن مذ	0 85	0 36	0 35	0 30	0. 30	0 (0)	0
217 1650 1680	DEBT REPAYMENT: MEDIUM-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	0	0	0	ç	0	0	0	100 100	100 100	100 100	100 100	100 100	100 100	0	0
121 222	TUTAL DEBT REPAYMENT	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	200	- 200	200	200	200	200	0	0
183 185 186	Interest: Medium-tern debt Lung-tern debt	0	20 20	41 41	41 41	41 41	41 41	+: +1	41 41	34 34	27 27	20 20	14 14	7	00	0
121 207	M-T & L-T DEBT INT	0	41	31	81	81	81	81	81	66	54	+1	Y	14	Ŷ	Ģ
121 223	TOTAL DEBT SERVICE	0	41	8:	81	81	8:	81	281	268	254	241	227	214	ý	0
121 224 225	TOTAL APPLICATIONS OF FUNDS	1369	1118	215	240	250	217	266	317	353	290	326	263	243	(0)	()
225 225 227 328	SURPLUS CASH BALANCES: SERIOL CIMILE AT LUF	21 21	141	(78)	(86)	(71)	5	(20)	(27)	(79)	21	¢ (867) (104	(<u>62</u>)	239	237

		YRCP1	YRCF2	YR1P1	YRIP2	Y82F1	18 29 2	YR3P1	YRJP2	YROP1	18492	YRSF1	YRSP2	YROPI	TROP2	YR7P1
30	CONTRIBUTION MARGINA	Û	44	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46	46
8 31	FIXED COST/SALESZ	0	71	37	36	35	33	32	30	32	30	30	29	29	29	29
N.	PROFIT AFT TAX/SALEX	0	(54)	(3)	(1)	1	5	7	10	9	12	13	16	9	10	10
ర స	PR AFT S-T INT/SALES	0	(27)	6	7	9	12	14	16	14	16	16	18	18	18	18
\$ •	PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYEDL	(30.2)	(9.6)	0.5	5.0	6.5	8.9	11+2	14.0	15.5	16.5	18+6	20.3	22.2	20.9	19,8
	SALES/CAP EMPLOYED	0.0	0.1	0.4	0,4	0.4	0.4	0.4	0.5	0.5	0.6	0+6	0.6	0.6	0.6	2.4
8	CURRENT RATIO	0.0	0.0	1.5	2.0	2.9	4.5	9.3	9+1	9.3	9.2	9.4	9.2	9.4	9.4	9,4
8	DEBT/CAP EMPLOYEDZ	0	46	46	47	46	45	44	39	31	23	ló	. 8	Û	0	0
8	LEBT SERVICE COVER	0.0	(1.9)	1.7	1.9	2.2	2.7	3.0	1.0	1.0	1.2	1+4	1.6	1+1	0.0	0.0
3	PROFIT/NET CAP EMPLO	(30.7)	(10.3)	0.6	5.0	0.3	8.7	10-8	13.4	14,4	15.4	17.4	19.8	21.4	22.3	23.1
8 27	ㅋㅋㅋ૨ㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋㅋ	13330R	*****	312525	3113 1 12	\$36325	223332		115851	122333	196218			578 24 5	*****	*****

	YR1	YR2	¥R3	¥R 4	¥85	YRS	YR7	- YR8	YR9	YR10
NET CASH FLOW	(2900)	(1.6)	96.2	315.8	463.9	575.9	454.1	↓ 77 • 8	477.8	2153
U DISCOUNT PERCENTAGE	8.30	8.36	8+36	8.36	8.36	8.36	8.36	8.36	8.36	8.36
D. C. F.	(2900)	(1.5)	81.9	248.2	336+*	385.5	290.5	272.4	251.4	1045
N. P. V.	0.2									

KEPUKI	12	CAPTONN	-	PASSALA	074074	RATE	ÛF	RETURN	ANALYS19	
		FACTURY	FUR	LASSAVA	SIARO	I UNL	¥			

 $\langle a \rangle = 1$

United Nations Industrial Development Organisation



Elaboration of Integrated Cassava Processing Factory Concept (Project US/INT/80/006) Volume 2: Cassava Processing Factory Project in Zambia

Final Report

のためになったのであるのである。



Minster Agriculture Limited



(2 of 2)

P-E International Operations Limited

P-E International Operations Ltd

A member of The P-E Consulting Group

Park House Egham Surrey UK TW20 OHW Telephone Egham (0784) 34411 Teléx 933783 Telegrams Prodeng Egham

The second

COLOR D

July 1982

1 1

UNITED NATIONS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT ORGANISATION

ELABORATION OF INTEGRATED CASSAVA PROCESSING FACTORY CONCEPT

FINAL REPORT

VOLUME 2

CASSAVA PROCESSING FACTORY PROJECT IN ZAMBIA

Holding Company P-E International Ltd Registered Office Park House Egham Surrey UK TW20 0HW Registered in England No. 1228758 Employment Agencies Act 1973

I.



Pag

Contents

30%#

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	SUMMARY OF VOLUME 2	2
2.1	Background Data	2
2.2	Cassava Agronomy	2
2.3	Utilisation	2
2.4	Market Potential	Z
2.5	Proposed Project)
2.0	PTOPOSE F BELOFY Implementation Scheduling	4
2.8	Financial Evaluation	4
2.9	Economic Evaluation	5
3.	PROJECT BACKGROUND AND HISTORY	6
4.	KEY FACTS ABOUT ZAMBIA	7
4.1	General	7
4.2	Institutional	9
5.	CASSAVA'S AGRONOMIC REQUIREMENTS AND ZAMBIA'S	
	ENVIRONMENTAL SUITABILITY FOR THE CROP	13
5.1	Background Information on Cassava	13
5.2	Growth Requirements	15
5.3	Zambia's Environmental Suitability for	17
	Cassava Production	10
6.	CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA -	
	AN ANALYSIS OF THE CURRENT SITUATION	29
6.1	Areas of Production	29
6.2	Methods of Production	30
6.3	Lend Preparation	- 33
6.4	Varieties	34
6.5	Planting Material	35
6.6	Planting Methods	20 32
0./ 6 A	Lop Management	37
6.9	Conclusions on Agronomy	37
7.	UTILISATION OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA	38
7.1	Nehima Flour Production	38
7.2	Casseva Leaves	39
7.3	Alcoholic Beverages	39
7.4	Nutritional Considerations	40



Gunu		rage
8.	MARKET POTENTIAL FOR CASSAVA AND CASSAVA PRODUCTS IN ZAMBIA	41
8.1 8.2	Traditional Market Demand and Market Study	41 42
9.	THE PROPOSED PROJECT	51
9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4	Overall Proposal Organisation of the Market for Cassava Agronomic Improvements Establishment of Factory	51 52 55 58
10.	THE STARCH FACTORY	59
10.1 10.2 10.3 10.4 10.5 10.6	Location and Site Factory Engineering Glucose Manufacture Dextrins Manufacture Inputs Required Delivery Costs	59 61 67 68 69 71
11.	IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULING	73
12. 12.1 12.2	FINANCIAL EVALUATION Financial Statements Factory for Cassava Starch Only	75 75 80
13.	ECONOMIC EVALUATION	82
13.1 13.2	Foreign Exchange Balance Other Economic Factors	82 83
14.	CONCLUSION	84

APPENDICES

のなないたのであってい

1.	TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR CONSULTING SERVICES
2.	ORGANISATIONS AND COMPANIES INTERVIEWED
3.	CROP INTAKE BY OFFICIAL MARKETING ORGANISATIONS IN ZAMBIA

4. PESTS AND DISEASES OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA



Ш

¥,

APPENDICES control

潮麗

山田市の市市市に行きたいというなどの市所です。

新聞のための時間のないというためで

- 5. FACTORY PLAN
- FACTORY PLAN 6.

7. LIST OF MACHINERY REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED FACTORY

DETAILS OF MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS 8. ABLE TO PROVIDE TURNKEY FACTORIES

9. FINANCIAL REPORTS MULTI-PRODUCT FACTORY

10. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR CASSAVA STARCH FACTORY ONLY.

Abbreviations used in the Report







FINAL REPORT

VOLUME 2: CASSAVA PROCESSING FACTORY PROJECT IN ZAMBIA

1. INTRODUCTION

This final report on UNIDO Project US/INT/80/006 is submitted in accordance with Contract No. T81/73. UNIDO commissioned P-E International Operations Limited (P-EIO) in association with Minster Agriculture Limited (MAL) to execute the contract (Telex of Authorisation, 16 October 1981). The views expressed in this report are those of our two organisations, and do not necessarily reflect those of any member of UNIDO.

The aim of the project is to elaborate and evaluate the concept of setting up a factory to make the range of products which can be derived from cassava. This necessitates study of the agronomy of the crop and of the procurement system necessary to ensure an adequate supply of raw material; research into the markets for the factory's products; the definition of appropriate technology and the outline design of the factory; and the evaluation of the concept, both financially and economically.

UNIDO chose Zambia as the country in which the concept was to be tested, and from this testing there has emerged a project, specifically for Zambia, which is described in the present Volume 2 of the report. The concept as a whole is discussed in Volume 1.

The full terms of reference for the study are set out in Appendix 1.

The first stage of the work was a fact-finding tour of Zambia in November and December 1981. The field work team included:

D R Atkinson (P-EIO), team leader and economist

D J Wholey (MAL), cassava specialist

- T R W Jarman (MAL), cassave processing specialist
- J Turnbull (MAL), farm management specialist.

The organisations and persons contacted in Zambia are listed in Appendix 2. We are grateful to them all for their outstanding co-operation.

The team was enlarged during the preparation of the interim and draft final reports in January - May 1982 by four P-EIO consultants: K B Freeman and R W Waghorn, project engineers, and C J S Baker and A H Catterall, financial analysts. Support was also provided by P-EIO's Marketing Research Department and Drawing Office.

The interim report was sent to UNIDO Vienna on 27 January 1982 and discussed with Mr H Koenig, Senior Industrial Advisory Officer, Agro-Industrial Branch, on 22 March 1982.

The draft final report was sent to UNIDO, Vienna on 5 July and accepted on 13 July 1982.

PE

2. SLIMMARY OF VOLUME 2

2.1 Background Date

Zambia's population of almost 6 million rises at 3.2% pa. Average population density is very low, but urbanisation has concentrated over 40% of the people in towns. Many have come from the 4 outlying Provinces which grow and rely on, cassave as the main staple.

Maize, heavily subsidised by the State, is the staple outside the 4 cassava-producing Provinces. There is a large, latent demand for cassava in the national dish, Nahima, among urban immigrants.

2.2 Cessave Agronomy

えたの語言である

Cassava needs 1000-1500mm of rainfall, well distributed over the year, to yield a mature crop within a year; ceases to grow below 10°C; and is severely hampered by frost. Zambia's rainfall is below that needed for an annual crop, and temperatures fall below minimum requirements for part of the year. Pests and diseases are encouraged by the long, dry season.

Cassava is therefore harvested at 12-18 months (sweet varieties) or at 2-3 years (bitter varieties), and yields are below average for Africa.

Agronomic methods can be improved: planting material is poor, plant population per ridge is too high, ridges are too far apart, weeding is inadequate and, where fertilisers are used at all, they are the wrong ones.

2.3 Utilisation

Cassava is grown almost entirely as a subsistence crop for use in Nahima. Leaves are eaten as a protein-rich relish in cassava-producing Provinces. Beer is made from cassava peel in 2 Provinces.

2.4 Market Potential

Unlike other major staples, cassava does not have a producer price and there is virtually no organised market.

2

Refer to

Chapter 4

Chapter 5

Chapter 6

Chapter 7

Chapter 8

8.1



8.2.1

8.2.2

In Zambia there is a latent demand for marketed cassave flour in the urban areas for Nahima and in the baking and brewing industries as a substitute for maize and imported wheat and barley. This could have amounted to about 50-55000 tons in 1981.

There is a well-defined demand in Zambia for starch, glucose and dextrine, all imported, which could be made from cassave. This totalled about 2400 tonnes in 1981, and is increasing. Users in the foodstuffs, textiles, paper and pharmaceutical industries would welcome a national source of supply, provided their quality requirements were met, and would pay a Kwache premium of at least 10% over import prices.

We do not see an export potential for cassava-based products: world markets are over-supplied, and Zambia's land-locked position makes for high transport costs.

2.5 Proposed Project

STATISTICS

のためであるとなるないであるというであると

We propose a project with the following features:

- to stimulate cassava production the Government announces a producer price for the crop in Northern Province.
- because of the cassava roots' perishability, the producer price is for dried chips rather than roots
- Namboard and Co-operative Unions buy the dried roots during the maize buying season (June - October/November) and channel them to Indeco's hammer mills
- Indeco mills process the roots to cassava flour, and sell the flour in urban areas for Nshima making and bread and beer production
- Namboard and Co-operative Union buyers are trained before the 1983-4 buying season in the quality specifications for dried chips
- MAWD's extension workers are trained to advise cassava growers on agronomic practices
- if, after two years, cassava production has responded to these incentives sufficiently, a factory is set up to make starch, glucose and dextrins from this crop.

Chapter 9

8.2.3



2.6 Proposed Factory

This should be located at Kasama, which is in the best cassava growing area and has good communications and facilities.

Most of the factory's production will be derived from dried chips, but a minor amount of locally-produced roots will be bought direct by the factory for processing into high-grade starch.

The factory will rapidly build up to 2-shift working, employing about 77 people, and go on to 3 shifts after 3 years, employing almost 100 people.

2.7 Implementation Scheduling

The producer price for chips should be announced late in 1982 for the 1983-4 buying season.

Training of Namboard/CU chip buyers must be completed in 1982, to ensure that farmers responding to the incentives to grow cassava find the market available.

The project should be briefly re-appraised in August/September 1985. Provided supplies have increased sufficiently, and the market is still favourable, contract procedures should begin in October 1985. Key staff will be engaged during 1986 and increased to one-shift level in January-May 1987. The plant should be commissioned in May 1987 and after trial runs, begin commercial production in July 1987. Two-shift working should be achieved before the end of 1987.

2.8 Financial Evaluation

The starch, glucose and dextrins factory will require a capital investment of K3,800 thousand, of which 52.6% will be loan capital and 47.4% equity. An overdraft equal to approximately half the working capital will be needed initially.

Profit after tax (payable only from Year 6 onwards) is calculated to rise from K129,000 in year 1 of production to K504,000 in year 6.

Chapter 10

Chapter 11

Chapter 12

Report 9

Report 8

Reports 9-10

The overdraft should be repaid after $2\frac{1}{2}$ years of production and all loan capital after $5\frac{1}{2}$ years. A small dividend can be paid to equity shareholders until year 5; thereafter a dividend of 15-20% should be payable.

The IRR on the project is 13.64%.	Report 12
Sensitivity analysis shows that the project is more sensitive to price changes then to volume changes.	Report 13
An analysis of a starch-only factory shows an IRR of only 8.36%.	Appendix 10
Economic Evaluation	Chapter 13
The second of his sheet that for its	

The economic evaluation shows that foreign exchange outgoings from the starch, glucose and dextrins factory project will be more than recouped after 2 years of production by import savings, and that net import savings after 6 years of production will be $K9\frac{1}{2}$ million.

2.9

Other economic benefits are the direct employment of about 100 people and the opportunity to some thousands of farmers to earn cash from cassava.

\square	\sum
P	Fi
N	7

3. PROJECT BACKGROUND AND HISTORY

Before the study began Mr Koenig of UNIDO explained its background as follows:

- world interest in cassava is stagnant, if not declining. An imaginative, practical concept is needed to revive that interest.
- many tropical countries grow cassava, but the supply and markets are not organised. Processing plants have been set up in several parts of the world, but they have usually been single-product plants, subject to variations in demand for those single products. Supplies of cassava have been intermittent. Thus factories have shut from time to time because of lack of demand or lack of supply. Farmers, wanting to sell but finding the factory shut, abandon cassava as a cash crop and use it only for subsistence.
- a multi-product cassava processing factory may be able to overcome these difficulties, by altering the mix of derived products according to the state of market demand and thus offering a stable outlet for cassava roots or chips as a cash crop.
- a conceptual study is therefore needed, embracing the markets for products derived from cassava; the agronomic requirements of the crop; the procurement system needed to induce an adequate supply; processing technology; and the financial and economic feasibility of the scheme.

The conceptual study should be made on the basis of markets and supplies being free from artificial constraints or encouragements. The results would, of course, have to be adapted to take account of such constraints or encouragements in any particular country.

The special circumstances which have to be considered in the case of Zambia are discussed in Chapter 4 below.

4. KEY FACTS ABOUT ZAMBIA

Before considering the agronomy, markets and processing of cassava in Zambia it is necessary to draw attention to a number of important facts: some general, like population and area; others institutional, like the state agricultural marketing system and the subsidisation of maize, which affect the prospects for cassava.

4.1 General

- **4.1.1** The first important fact affecting the prospects for cassava in Zambia is that the <u>climate</u> is too cold and dry for it to be an annual crop. It is normally harvested after 1-2 years of growth. This is explained in more detail in Chapter 5.3 below.
- **4.1.2** Zambia's area of 750,000 Km² is as large as France and the Federal German Republic combined, but the population is less than 6 million.

Urbanisation is growing strongly. Copperbelt, Lusaka and Central Provinces, where the mines and most industries are located, now have 43% of the population, having drawn many migrants from outlying Provinces (see Table 1 and Map 1). Cassava is grown almost entirely in four of the outlying Provinces.

TABLE 1

Population Shifts in Zambia

Growth 1969 1980 Numbers % pa Thousands 3.9 816 1,249 433 Copperbelt 340 6.3 354 694 Lusaka <u>15</u>5 Central 359 3.3 <u>514</u> Sub-total 1,529 2,457 928 4.7 2.0 678 133 545 Northern 78 1.6 Western 410 488 77 1.9 Luapula 336 413 2.4 North-Western 232 302 70 3.0 496 190 686 Southern 2.3 Eastern 510 <u>656</u> 146 3.1 TOTAL ZAMBIA 4,047 5,680 1,623

Source: 1980 Census of Population and Housing, Preliminary Report.

7

Ш



There is a well-defined potential <u>market</u> for cassava based starch and its derivatives in Zambian industry and a latent demand for cassava flour among urbanised consumers; but the factor of distance between the cassava-producing areas and the markets is one which must be given due importance in evaluating the project.

- **4.1.3** Shortage of foreign exchange is a constant problem. Zambia depends on copper for over 90% of its export income, and production has fallen from about 700,000 tons a year in the early 1970s to 580-610,000 tons in 1979 and 1980. This shortage of foreign exchange is an encouragement to cassava processing, since all starch, glucose, dextrins and potable alcohol are imported, and industrial users will pay a premium for home supplies of the right quality. On the other hand, lack of foreign exchange has led to a shortage of transport equipment locomotives, wagons and road vehicles of all kinds which, though easing in the last year, makes the collection and distribution of produce difficult. In particular, it makes exporting exceptionally difficult.
- **4.1.4** Electrical energy is abundant: Zambia exports 15% of its output. Water for well-sited industrial plants is also abundant.

4.2 Institutional

- 4.2.1 <u>Central Planning</u>. The National Council for Development Planning (NCDP), which is responsible directly to the President, plays a leading and increasing role in the planning of the economy. The Director-General was of the greatest assistance to our team, permitting unrestricted travel and thus enabling the agronomists to visit all four cassava-growing Provinces in a short space of time. At the verbal presentation to the NCDP and other interested organisations it was indicated that the NCDP was in favour of the proposed factory project.
- **4.2.2** <u>Ministerial licensing of industrial projects</u>. All industrial enterprises must be licensed by the Minister of Commerce and Industry under the Industrial Development Act of 1977.

A new enterprise can qualify for "priority" status if it meets four out of six criteria:

- maximum utilisation of domestic raw materials
- production of intermediate goods for use by other industries
- diversification of industrial structure
- creation of substantial opportunities for permanent employment
- improvement of domestic industrial skills
- promoting industrial development in rural areas.

We are confident that the factory proposal in Chapter 9 below meets all six criteria, and as a priority enterprise should qualify for the following benefits:

preferential treatment over granting and processing of import licences

- rebates on customs duty payable on capital equipment, raw materials and other intermediate goods
- relief from sales tax, selective employment tax and corporation tax.

These concessions are granted for five years. The Ministry of Commerce and Industry may then extend them if the business is still expanding and a longer concessionary period would be nationally beneficial.

4.2.3 State ownership of industry and distribution. Zambia has a mixed economy, but the State has a majority share in manufacturing companies which account for 75% of the country's industrial output and it controls the import and export trade and large-scale retailing.

Zambia Industrial and Mining Corporation Limited (ZIMCO) is the holding company for the Government's stake in mining, manufacturing and trading. Indeco Limited, responsible to ZIMCO, has a majority holding in 34 industrial concerns, including milling, brewing, baking, textile, drink and pharmaceutical companies. Most of the potential industrial consumption of cassava products depends on Indeco subsidiaries' demand, and it is likely that the proposed cassava processing factory would come under Indeco control.

Another ZIMCO subsidiary, National Import and Export Corporation (NIEC) is responsible for large-scale retailing in Zambia through some of its own subsidiaries, and the expansion of the retail market for cassava flour will depend largely on NIEC policy.

4.2.4 <u>State agricultural price support, input supply and marketing arrangements</u>. Zambia has a system of agricultural price support, input supply and marketing, which will have an important bearing on the proposed venture. The system is operated by the National Agricultural Marketing Board (Namboard) and the Provincial Co-operative Unions. The latter are taking an increasing part, while Namboard's territorial field of operation is being diminished.

Agricultural price support. The main features of the price support scheme are as follows:

- each year the Ministry of Agriculture and Water Development (MAWD) declares a producer price for crops: maize, the principal staple and 18 other crops; <u>but not cassava</u>. (See Appendix 3 for crops and volumes). We strongly recommend that cassava is included in the list.
- Namboard or the Provincial Co-operative Union buys in these crops* at their depots, paying the fixed producer price. The largest depots are open all the year round, but most are open only from June to October, the maize buying season.
- Farmers are not paid cash on the spot, but are issued with credit notes. There is delay in cashing these notes, partly due to transport problems, which often results in farmers not being able to buy seed and fertiliser in time to achieve optimum or even good yields of maize.

* Footnote:

note: Excluding cotton, tea, coffee, sugar and tobacco, which are bought by specialist state bodies.

<u>Input Supply</u>. Namboard and increasingly the Co-operative Unions, are responsible for transporting fertilisers and seeds to their depots for farmers to buy them before planting time. Fertilisers are mainly imported, and have been heavily subsidised.

<u>Marketing</u>. Namboard and the Unions sell maize and the other supported crops at controlled prices. Maize goes mainly to the millers (about 92% of the total) and to the brewers (about 8%).

Extent of Maize Subsidies. It will be noted from Appendix 3 that maize accounts for the great majority of agricultural crops bought from Zambian farmers. The following figures of subsidies to Namboard and the Provincial Co-operative Unions refer to all crops; but most of them relate to maize.

Summarised Extract from Government of Zambia's Estimates of Revenue and Expenditure 1/1/81 - 31/12/81.

	1980 Total Authorised Expenditure	1981 Estimate					
	(Million Kwacha)						
Namboard							
Maize handling costs (a)	28.9	24.9					
Maize price differential (b)	74.9	15.0					
Fertiliser handling costs (a)	15.8	10.4					
Fertiliser price differential (b)	27.6	27.5					
1978 deficit	23.8	- (c)					
Co-operative Unions	<u>11.5</u>	<u>25.9</u> (d)					
	<u>182.5</u>	<u>103.7</u>					

(a) Reflects costs of collection and distribution within Zambia.

(b) Reflects difference between costs of imports and sales of imported product to Zambian users.

(c) Namboard's overall deficit is always voted some years in arrears by supplementary estimate. The 1979 deficit will be similarly dealt with in the 1982 estimates.

(d) Reflects the devolvement of buying and marketing responsibility from Namboard to the CUs.

These figures illustrate several important points:

Maize production is unreliable, though the crop is the major staple. The very high charge for maize price differential reflects the cost of importing 3.2 million bags in 1980 to supplement the small marketed crop of 3.7 million bags in 1979-80.

If only 80% of the K182.5 million in 1980 is attributed to maize, this represents a national cost of K21.2 per 90 kg bag, in subsidies.

Compared with K21.2 per 90 kg bag in subsidies, Namboard and the Co-operative Unions were paying 13.50 per 90 kg bag, to the producer, and selling at K13.50 per bag, plus K0.25 as a nominal rail transport charge and K0.19 for the sack.

In practice, therefore, Namboard and the Unions are buying, administering and distributing maize free of charge, with Government paying the cost from its revenues.

The true cost of a 90 kg bag of maize in 1980 was about K35 compared with K13.50.

5. CASSAVA'S AGRONOMIC REQUIREMENTS AND ZAMBIA'S ENVIRONMENTAL SUITABILITY FOR THE CROP

Before describing the current status of cassava in Zambia in Chapter 6 we summarise in the present chapter the nature and the agronomic requirements of the plant and then discuss Zambia's environmental suitability for growing it. A general and much fuller account of cassava's agronomic requirement is given in Volume 1, Chapter 5.

5.1 Background Information on Cassava

Cassava is a short-lived, perennial shrub with enlarged starch-rich roots. Very many cultivars exist, ranging in height from 1 to 5 metres.

The roots of cassava develop from the stem cuttings during the second and third weeks after planting. Under good conditions nine or more fibrous roots become root-tubers during the second and third months of growth by a process of secondary thickening and starch deposition. The diameter of root-tubers increases with age until maturity which varies with variety but normally occurs after 5-15 months of growing conditions. Both the dry matter and starch content of root-tubers increase becoming fibrous and in some cases hollow. An advantage that the cassava crop offers the farmer is the lack of a fixed harvest date allowing great operational flexibility and enabling the farmer to store the crop in the ground.

The root-tubers form the primary product of the cassava crop. The usual size is 25-40cm in length and 5-15cm in diameter. The thickness of the peel and the ease with which it can be removed from the flesh of the root is a varietal characteristic. Peeling losses can vary between 10-20% of the fresh root.

At the core of the root-tuber there is a concentration of xylem vessels which become lignified with age. In over-mature roots these lignified vessels render the roots undesirably fibrous and are removed in some hand processes.

The cassava plant contains toxic principles which release hydrocyanic acid (HCN) under certain conditions. The cyanogenic glycocides linamarin and lotaustralin are distributed throughout the cassava plant, but the concentration varies greatly between varieties and also with climatic, edaphic and cultural conditions. Toxicity of cassava and its products is associated primarily with free HCN that is formed when the cyanogenic glycocides have been hydrolysed. This is effected by a hydrolytic enzyme Linamarase which is present in all the plant tissue together with the cyanogenic glycocides. In active healthy tissue of the growing plant the enzyme and glycocide substrate do not come into contact, however on mechanical damage, eg after harvesting, contact occurs and hydrolysis takes place releasing HCN.

It is well established that HCN itself is one of the most powerful mammalian poisons known, large doses causing acute poisoning usually resulting in death. The lethal dose of HCN for an adult male is reported to be 50-60mg. A guide to acute toxicity is as follows:

Innocuous	:	Less than 50mg HCN per kg of fresh peeled tuber (FPT)
Moderately poisonous	:	50-100mg HCN per kg of FPT
Dangerously Poisonous	:	Over 100mg HCN per kg of FPT

The habitual ingestion of small quantities of HCN, too small to produce acute symptoms can result in chronic effects including malfunction of the thyroid resulting in goitre in serious cases, and atoxic neuropathy causing lesions of the skin, mucous membranes, nerves and spinal cord. Both conditions are caused by indirect effects of HCN entering the bloodstream via the alimentary tract.

The peel fraction of caseava root-tubers contains substantially higher concentrations of cynaogenic glycocides than the flesh. The ratio of glycocide in peel to flesh varies between 5 to 10:1. Traditional users appear to be aware of the danger as peeling is practised as a preliminary to cooking.

Cassava variations with root-tubers containing small amounts of HCN are normally called sweet, and those with large amounts, bitter.

FAO estimates world production at 117 million tonnes of roots in 1979 (Africa 45 mn.t, Asia 41 mn.t and S America 30 mn.t). Yields per hectare averaged 11 tonnes in Asa, $11\frac{1}{2}$ tonnes in S America and $6\frac{1}{2}$ tonnes in Africa.

Farm yields vary with location and are dependent on the interaction between variety, climate and soil with the effects of age at harvesting, diseases, pests and management factors superimposed.

The world average is 8.75 tonnes per hectare but the theoretical limit to yield has been calculated to be 90 tonnes per hectare per year. Experimental yields of 80 tonnes per hectare have been obtained from plants grown under near optimum conditions at CIAT. However the occurrence of debilitating diseases and devastating pests, together with poor agronomic practices and infertile soils, are responsible for relatively low farm yields in African major production areas. Virus and bacterial diseases particularly reduce root yields. Important pests in Africa include mealy bugs and green spider mite. These pests are currently spreading to new areas where severe yield reductions result. Appendix 4 describes the pests and diseases attacking cassava in Zambia, and the action recommended to combat them.

5.2 Growth Requirements

<u>Temperature</u>. Cassava growth is favoured by a warm moist climate with temperatures in the range $25-29^{\circ}$ C. Temperatures lower than 25° C will reduce growth which, in general, ceases at 10° C. Research suggests that the base temperature for cassava germination is 13° C, and that emergence is retarded below 18°C. As it is the temperature of the growth medium that is the critical factor, the soil temperature in the 5-10cm zone should be used to delineate conditions favourable for establishment. Once the crop has emerged, both the soil temperature and air temperature play an important role. Whereas growth ceases at 10° C, the crop will survive lower temperatures and light frost but will defoliate under these conditions. Short duration severe frosts (ie below -3°C) kill exposed green tissue but growth is supported from woody tissue when temperatures rise. Longer term exposure to severe frost will kill all above-ground growth. Based on a 13°C base temperature for germination, Austalian research workers recommend planting to be done in areas with daily mean temperatures in excess of this figure. However more recent reports recommend 18°C as the low-level temperature boundary for cassava cultivation due to reduced percentage emergence and retarded early growth rate at below this temperature. As indicated above cassava is commercially grown at high altitude in the Andes, therefore it is to be expected that there exists a large varietal effect and some varieties may be tolerant to temperatures much lower than the 18°C suggested by the Australian cassava workers. Research at CIAT has proved that varieties tolerant of low temperatures exist. Temperatures in excess of 29^oC are reported to affect yields adversely but little reliable information is available to confirm this figure.

Rainfall. Cassava thrives in areas receiving 1,000 - 1,500mm of rainfall, distributed evenly throughout the growing season. Physiological experiments indicate that different varieties have varying maturity patterns with some reaching a production peak after nine months of growing conditions whereas other varieties require in excess of twelve months. Therefore the practicability of producing cassava depends upon the interaction between variety and rainfall pattern. In the situation where only eight rainy months occur per year, a short season variety can be grown within the calendar year whereas a long season variety would not be feasible. Nevertheless cassava grows successfully in areas receiving as little as 500mm per annum, although the duration of the crop is extended in these areas, so that the crop takes up the moisture provided by two years' rain. This, coupled with the crop's ability to survive periods of drought within the growing season, renders the crop very useful to growers in regions with short rainy seasons and/or periods of uncertain rainfall.

Soil. Cassava will grow in a wide range of soil types from stiff marine clays through to almost pure sands. However the crop is intolerant of poorly drained soils. The crop is adapted to a wide range of soil pH and is especially tolerant to acid soils, producing good crops at pH 4.5. Nevertheless saline soils and sodic soils are not tolerated and result in stunted growth. Much of this wide adaptability of cassava is related to variety and care should be taken because all casssava varieties do not show this tolerance. Cassava is frequently the last crop grown in the shifting cultivation system practised in the forest zones of West and Central Africa and, as such, has earned the reputation for being well adapted to soils of low fertility. Recent research has identified a number of features that may be associated with cassava's special adaptation to poor soils including acid soils and soils with high freealuminium content. Cassava appears able to maintain relative yields under low nitrogen, potassium and calcium conditions and capable of regulating its growth under low nutrient supply conditions. The crop can continue root bulking under severe lack of phosphorus which renders it extremely valuable for soils with very low phosphorus content. It has been suggested that the crop's ability to yield under apparently limiting phosphorus conditions is related to a soil mycorrhiza which forms a relationship with the roots of the cassava plant.

Experiments show that some cassava varieities respond to fertile soils, by producing stem and leaf out of proportion with root-tuber growth. The phenomenon appears to be related to variety as some 'more efficient' varieties appear to respond in terms of increased total (recoverable) biological yield with proportion in stem and leaves remaining constant to the proportion of tubers. Thus the 'harvest index' remains constant regardless of fertility. Cassava can tolerate sandy soil of extremely low fertility especially if the feeder roots can penetrate to 40-60cm and exploit the lower soil profile for nutrients (and moisture). Deep cultivation to facilitate root penetration frequently leads to increased yield.

On heavy soils where drainage is a problem and in areas where heavy rainfall is experienced causing short-duration waterlogging, cassava is usually grown on mounds or ridges to ensure that the root-tuber zone is relatively well aerated. Cassava does not thrive however in basin sites and chronically poordrained areas, and growth will be retarded in spite of ridging.

<u>Photoperiod.</u> Experiments both in growth chambers and in the field indicate that the partitioning of dry matter between the roots and the above ground parts of the cassava plant is influenced by changes in day length. Thus harvest index is improved by growing the same variety closer to the equator, ie under short days. Colombian experiments indicate however that different varieties show different response to day length in terms of flowering response, therefore overall generalisations for all cassava varieties may be premature and further experimentation will be required to confirm this. Identification of day-neutral varieties, which do not respond to changes in photoperiod will pave the way to the availability of varieties with broad adaptation to changes in latitude.

5.3 Zambia's Environmental Suitability for Cassava Production

Based on reports and maps collected during the field survey, the environment of Zambia was reviewed for the overall suitability for cassava production. There is a fundamental difference between environmental suitability for subsistence cassava production and commercial cassava production to supply a processing factory. This difference is discussed under the major topics.

1 1 1

11 1 1

Zambia lies in the tropical latitudes between approximately 8° and 18° south of the Equator and is composed mostly of gently undulating plateau with the land surface at between 900-1500m above sea level (Map 2). The monotony of the plateaux, made up of shallow basins with lakes, swamps and grassy plains is broken by isolated hills and ranges, and river valleys and gorges.

<u>Climate</u>. Zambia's climate is tempered by its plateau situation, so that the majority of the country enjoys mainly pleasant weather. The river valleys at altitudes down to 300m are considerably warmer but these represent a small proportion of Zambia's land area. The most striking feature of the Zambian climate is the division into two seasons, the rainy season and the dry season.

<u>Rainfall.</u> This is the climatological element of primary importance to tropical agriculture. In general the year can be divided into a dry season and wet season, however in effect the variability in terms of duration of the rainy season and the amounts of rain falling within the rainy season, can be great, ie unreliable. In general the rainy season extends from November to March inclusive, and occurs as a result of the southward migration of the tropical convergence zone (TCZ). As the zone crosses the northern boundaries of Zambia in December, the rains begin earlier in the north than in the south of the country. The TCZ migrates northwards during February and March of the following year causing the rains to cease earlier in the south than the north. This effect is responsible for the rainy season extending for some 60-70 days longer in the north than in the south (Map 3).

From the point of view of cassava production, the rainy season is too short to produce a crop within one calendar year. As explained in Section 5.1 above, the development of storage roots coes not occur until during the second and third months after planting. Similarly, in order to produce yields of commercially acceptable roots, a further period of some six months of growing condition is required to enable the roots to increase in both size and starch content, ie a total growing season of 240-270 days. No areas of Zambia receive a rainy season of sufficient length within one year to support cassava's growth cycle. Due to this, it is the general practice to grow the crop over two or more years (see Section 6.3). The cumulative effects of two or more rainy seasons are required to bring the crop to maturity. Cassava's ability to withstand the long intervening dry season is pre-requisite for the success of this method of production.





The mean annual rainfall is shown in Map 4. Since rainfall is scant during the dry season the quantities shown on the map can be regarded as representing the rainfall received during the rainy season. Although the actual amount of rainfall required per month to support growth varies with temperature, windspeed, soil type, stage of canopy development of the crop and other factors, in excess of 100m of rainfall per month is a reasonable estimate of cassava's rainfall requirements during its germination and growth phase. Residual moisture in the soil profile can support growth, but this depends on soil type, and the depth to which the cassava roots have been able to penetrate. In some circumstances up to one month's growth can be supported on residual moisture.

On this basis it is possible to demonstrate the potential months of growth given that the cassava is planted at the beginning of the first month with 'effective' rainfall. In order to compare the climate's ability to support cassava growth (or otherwise), four stations in the north, north-west, south and south-east are compared.

Station

Table 4:Comparison of Monthly Rainfall and Ability to SupportCassava Growth at Four Stations in ZambiaMean Monthly Rainfall (1931-60) mm

	Mwinilunga	(NW)	N	ibala (N) (Livin	gston	e (S)	Ch	nipata (S	E)	
July	0			0			0			0		
August	1			2			0			1		
September	15			5			2			1		
October	92	(P)		22			26			9		
November	196	(*)		117	(P)		92	(P)		94	(P)	
December	261	(*)		221	(*)		164	(*)		208	(*)	
January	225	(*)		217	(*)		186	(*)		256	(*)	
February	222	(*)		210	(*)		175	(*)		236	(*)	
March	227	(*)		238	(*)		101	(*)		164	(*)	
April	95	(*)		104	(*)		28	(*)	(?)	45	(*)	(?)
May	8	(*)	(?)	21	(*)	(?)	5			5		
June	1			1			1			1		
TOTAL:	1,342			1,157			781			1,020		

Source: Climate of Zambia (1971)

(P) = Month during which crop planted

(*) = Indicats growth month for cassava

(?) = Indicates possibility of curtailed growth



MAP 4

PR

Mwinilunga is on average capable of supporting cassasva growth for a period of 6-7 months per calendar year (Table 4). In the north, Mbala is capable of producing cassava over a period of 5-6 months. Further south, the growing season is much shorter and is only capable of supporting cassava growth for 4-5 months.

It may be possible in some years to produce a crop of immature roots in the extreme north of the country, however research in Malaysia has shown that root starch content does not reach acceptable levels for processing until 44 weeks. The only method whereby the growing season could be extended sufficiently is by irrigation. It is not normally economically justifiable to irrigate cassava unless surplus water is available from an existing irrigation scheme at low cost.

<u>Temperature</u>. Temperatures are equable in most of Zambia considering its tropical latitudes. This is partly due to the elevation of the land and partly due to the cooling effect of rainfall and the shading from clouds during the potentially hottest time of year as the overhead sun travels south of the equator.

The chart following Map 5 shows the monthly mean daily minimum, the monthly mean, and the monthly mean daily maximum temperatures at four stations in Zambia. As discussed above, research findings indicate that cassava growth is retarded when the ambient temperature falls below 18° C. The mean monthly temperature at most stations in Zambia approaches, or falls below, this critical temperature for the period May-August. For some parts of the day the temperature rises sufficiently to permit growth, however it is expected that growth will be retarded for most of this period and as a result, productivity affected.

During the dry season absolute minimum temperatures fall to below freezing point in many parts of Zambia. Map 5 shows that almost three-quarters of Zambia receives at least one frost per year. From time to time frost occurs in the frost-'free' area, these being unpredictable in severity and frequency.


Temperatures at four stations in Zambia



SOURCE : The Climate of Zambia (1971)

I I II I

T

Ш

1

T T

1 I.

I.

П

11

I I

T

Mild frost kills the leaves and green parts of the cassava plant. Severe frost, ie below -4^{0} C causes death of the above-ground parts of the plant. Whereas the plant can regrow from underground portions of the stem, productivity is reduced by the plant having to regrow a complete canopy each year. It is therefore inadvisable to grow cassava in areas affected by severe frost. In the following section it is described how current cassava production in Zambia is concentrated in the areas of low frost incidence.

<u>Soils.</u> The soils of Zambia in common with all soils, owe their origin to the action of environmental influences (both physical and biological) on the parent material. There are a number of parent materials in Zambia each giving rise to a range of soils depending on the nature and degree of environmental influence superimposed. The parent materials include:

- granite
- sandstone
- limestone
- deep sands
- alluvium
- peat.

These parent materials are weathered by the rainfall and high temperature to produce mineral fragments which eventually become incorporated in soil. Rain falling on the soil and passing through it can move clay particles and chemical compounds from surface layers to lower layers or out of the soil altogether. This is known as leaching, and is more prevalent in the north of Zambia where rainfall is higher. í

Three climatic soil zones can be recognised in Zambia:

- North of the 1,000mm isohyet
- Between the 1,000 and 750mm isohyet
- South of the 750mm isohyet.

The area north of the 1,000mm isohyet, including the northern parts of the North-Western and Northern provinces, has deeply weathered and strongly leached soils. Even over limestone they are strongly acid with low contents of calcium and magnesium, and the clay minerals have low exchange capacities rendering the soil with a poor ability to hold nutrients. Leaching has removed clay from the upper layers of soil so that the topsoils are generally sandy over a more loamy or clayey subsoil.

In the zone receiving between 1,000 and 750mm of annual rainfall, soils are affected less by weathering and leaching and are therefore less acid in reaction with more available nutrients. Leaching is still strong enough to transport clays from topsoil to subsoil, producing lighter textured surface layers. South of the 750mm isohyet, ie mainly in the river valleys of the south, the excess of rainfall over evaporation is small. This results in little or no leaching, with only very porous soils, eg sands, showing any leaching effects. I oam and clay soils are almost uniform in texture down the profile

and generally have a deposit of lime at some depth in the profile. Some soils accumulate soluble salts and sodium where they are present in the parent material.

Topography influences soil formation and examples of the effects of this factor can be observed in Zambia. The major topographic effect is its influence on drainage, which in turn affects the degree and nature of weathering on soils. Weathering proceeds most rapidly in well drained soils in high rainfall areas. Soils which are wet for most of the year due to being situated in a basin site are usually grey (or black) in colour due to the absence of oxidised iron, (which imparts the red and yellow colours to freer draining soils). Where grey soils dry out for part of the year, some red/yellow mottles are present due to limited oxidation. Under continuously wet conditions organic matter decomposes slowly and accumulates to form peat, as found in basin sites, referred to locally as 'dambos', in the wetter northern parts of Zambia.

Soils of dambos and floodplains that do not receive new deposits of alluvium on flooding, become strongly weathered and very acid in the topsoil (even where they are alkaline in the subsoil). Soils of this type occur on the upper Zambesi floodplain near Mongu, on the Kafue Flats and in dambos in southern Zambia.

Termite mounds are a striking feature of Zambia's landscape, and the termites have an important bearing on Zambia's soils. Termites bring material from deep in the ground to the surface and this material is washed over the ground over a long period of years. Since the termites can only carry soil particles smaller than 2mm in diameter, their activities lead to a sorting of soil material and can reverse the action of leaching by bringing unweathered soil particles to the surface. Lime is often found in the core of old termite mounds, deposited through the evaporation of lime-containing ground water drawn up by capillary action. In general the activities of termites have ameliorating effects on the soil.

Vegetation has a major influence on Zambian soils. Under woodland and forest, deep rooting trees bring up nutrients from deep down in the soil profile and build these into branches and leaves. When these fall and decay, or are burnt by man, the nutrients are released and become available to support plant growth. On the deeply weathered and strongly acid soils of Northern Zambia the greater part of the soil's nutrient supply is contained in the organic litter on the soil surface derived from the natural vegetation, and the largest part of the nutrient reserves of an area are 'locked-up' in the living vegetation. The lopping of trees to produce firewood for ash production - the Chitemene system - is described in more detail later in Chapter 5 of the report. Lopping, however, is a better practice than total felling which interrupts the cycling of nutrients between soil and vegetation.

The main soil groups of Zambia are shown in Map 6. In terms of area the sandveld and Barotse sands are the most important soils of Zambia.



_ _

1

Cassava soils in Zambia cannot be identified per se, as the crop has a wide adaptation in terms of soil type and texture. The crop will produce subsistence yields on all but waterlogged soils. Cassava's ability to grow on very infertile soils has been confused with lack of fertilizer response. In fact the crop will respond dramatically to balanced fertilizer applications, especially in impoverished soils. Its ability to produce in soils too acid and/or too infertile for other crops has resulted in its reputation as a soil depletive crop. All crops deplete the soil of nutrients to a greater or lesser extent. Cassava is more efficient than most at obtaining nutrients from already depleted soils. This is a major source of confusion.

In general casssava can be found growing in all soils with the exception of waterlogged soils in areas where the climate is suitable for its production. Thus the crop cannot be associated with any one soil series in particular. Its ability to produce a subsistence crop from leached acid soils with low nutrients favours its production in soils of this type. It is under these circumstances, especially where inputs are economically out of the reach of the growers, that cassava has an important part to play in Zambian agriculture.

Unfortunately the unique ability of cassava to produce in relatively infertile soils tends to prejudice the crop's access to more fertile soils where its true productivity would be realised. In more than one country cassava is reserved as a crop for infertile soils and 'banned' from more fertile soils. It is to be hoped that such an unenlightened attitude does not exist in Zambia.

PE

CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA - AN ANALYSIS OF THE CURRENT SITUATION

6.1 Areas of Production

Some cassava is grown throughout Zambia as a famine reserve crop. However, in certain areas cassava forms an important part of the main staple food. These areas are in the Western, North-Western, Northern and Luapula Provinces, as was shown in Map 1.

The production of cassava by Province was estimated in the agricultural census of 1970-71 and is shown in Table 5.

Province	Ha ('000)	Production* (*000 tons)	Yield# (t/ha)	% of Total Sold	
Luapula	41.2	255	6.2	19	
Northern	40.3	268	6.7	14	
North Western	34.0	201	5 .9	23	
Western	33.6	104	3.1	18	
Copperbeit	8.5	27	3.2	46	
Eastern	2.2	18	8.2	30	
Central	1.6	7	4.5	3	
Southern	0.25	1	4.0	10	
Total	161.7	881	5.5	19	

Table 5: Cassava Production in Zambia by Province, 1969-70

Converted from published figures of flour equivalent at 5 tons fresh roots : 1 ton flour

Source: Census of Agriculture, 1970-71

These data indicate that cassava yields in Zambia are low by international standards, and FAO's estimates are even lower. However, it is difficult to measure accurately the acreage of this crop, which is grown on scattered plots; and production is also difficult to record since cassava is normally grown for more than 2 years.

Our reviews of the limited cassava trials carried out in Zambia and our field observations indicate that yields per hectare have been underestimated.

Due to the virtual absence of any marketing system for cassava in Zambia it is impossible to estimate the current status of cassava production in the country. The small quantity of cassava and cassava products which change hands, provides little, if any indication on the extent of production in any particular area. Only an exhaustive detailed survey extending into the subsistence agricultural areas could provide meaningful production statistics under the current status of the crop. It is understood that a survey is currently underway in parts of the North West Province.

I I I

Although the main cassava producing areas are largely decided by environmental factors (predominantly frost, drought and acid soils as described in Chapter 5), tribal traditions play an important part in the crops pattern of distribution. In the North Western Province the main tribes are the Lunda, Luvale and Kaonde. The first two are traditional cassava eaters who have practised an almost sedentary type of agriculture for many years. They account for much of the cassava grown in this Province.

The Kaonde are traditionally hunters and gatherers with sorghum and millet as a staple diet, and until recently did not eat cassava. In 1964/5 the Zambian Government began a programme of encouraging nomadic tribes to settle along lines of communication to facilitate the provision of such services as medicine and education. This has had a marked effect on the Kaonde, stimulating them to adopt a more sedentary form of agriculture. This led to a change in staple from sorghum to cassava which is a much lower risk than sorghum, a change adopted from the Lunda and Luvale.

In the Northern and Luapula Provinces there are six main tribes of which the Bemba predominate. Cassava is the basic staple of the Lavwa tribe, and together with millet the staple of the Bemba.

The main tribes of Western Province are the Lozi and related groups. These tribes grow cassava on the Barotse sands although maize is the main staple. The Nkoya tribe, found to the east of Kaoma, include cassava in a widely diversified cropping pattern with an average of 4 major crops per holding although maize is the main staple.

Beyond the outskirts of the larger towns in Zambia extensive gardens have been laid out by wage-workers as a supplementary source of food. These gardens are generally irregular in shape and cassava is often an important crop. This type of production accounts for the majority of the cassava grown on the Copperbelt.

The emphasis that agricultural extension workers are placing on maize production is believed to be causing a decline in cassava production in many parts of Northern Zambia. For example up to 90 per cent of the inhabitants of the Northern Province now include maize in their diet. This despite the consistently low maize yields obtained in many parts of the province. A similar decline in millet production is believed to be occurring in the traditional production areas.

6.2 Methods of Production

Zambian cassava production is almost entirely at the subsistence level. In some cases cassava surplus to the immediate needs of the family, is produced for sale, especially in the vicinity of densely populated areas eg the Copperbelt. No examples of truly commercial production, where the produce is destined entirely for sale, have been reported.

As most of the cassava is produced at the subsistence level, traditional forms of cultivation are practised. As these vary in different parts of Zambia they have been reviewed to provide a more complete understanding of production systems. Three different types of agriculture predominate in cassava growing areas (Map 7):

- shifting 'axe and hoe' cultivation
- fishing and semi-permanent hoe cultivation
- semi-permanent hoe and plough cultivation

This type of agriculture is commonly Shifting Axe and Hoe Cultivation practised in North-Western and North-Eastern Zambia, where rainfall exceeds 1,000 mm per year and where the soils are heavily leached. The system employed is referred to as 'Chitemene cultivation' of which there are several types. In general the Chitemene system of cultivation involves the incomplete clearing of forest to provide branches and saplings which are then transported to the area to be cultivated and burned. The intention is to obtain a deeper laver of ashes after burning than would be possible by burning the vegetation in situ. In this way an intense burn is achieved, which provides more ash (in place of charcoal) which is rich in plant nutrients, especially phosphate. In addition the higher temperatures generated potash and increase the availability of nutrients in the soil, especially nitrogen and sulphur, and have a sterilisation effect on the soil, killing seeds, roots, and stumps (thereby reducing weed competition) and killing many harmful and competitive soil microorganisms. By leaving the trunks of trees intact regrowth of combustible material from the partially cleared area occurs much more rapidly than it would from an area where trees are felled. In this way the fallow period required between successive cuts is relatively short. The choice of areas to be used for burning and cultivating depends on the availability of combustible material and is characteristically confined to the heavily wooded, well drained watersheds.

Typically crops are planted in the ash-enriched soil for a 3-4 year period after which the nutrients become depleted and the capacity to produce crops reduced. The cultivated area is abandoned and the whole area allowed to regenerate.

There are four main types of shifting axe and hoe cultivation practised in Zambia within the chitemene system:

- large circle chitemene
- small circle chitemene
- block chitemene
- Mwinilunga system.

The areas where each type predominates is shown in Map 7.

1.1

1 1

1 11



Cassava is grown under all systems but occupies a major or lesser role in the cropping programme depen ling on the dietary preferences of the appropriate tribes. For example the large circle chitemene is the agricultural system of the Bemba of Northern Zambia who, as consumers of millet and cassava grow both crops in association. The small circle chitemene is the system of the Lala of the southern portion of Northern province, who are sorghum eaters. As such sorghum is given priority in the cropping programme.

Fishing and Semi Permanent Hoe Cultivation This type of agriculture is commonly practised around the lakes and large swamps of North-East and central Zambia. In these communities fishing is the predominant activity, but crop production is required to supplement their food supply. Cassava is the predominant staple crop as it needs little attention and yields are comparatively high on the rich alluvial soils even after several crops have been taken.

Semi-Permanent Hoe and Ox-Plough Cultivation In addition to using family labour this system employs oxen for ploughing. In the system is employed in both North-East and North-West Zambia. In the North-East cassava is produced using ox plough cultivation in the Manbwe area. In North-West and Western Zambia three types of this system can be recognised; the Luvale, Barotse and Kaoma systems.

6.3 Land Preparation

Land preparation starts during the dry season and is carried out jointly by husband and wife. The husband concentrates on the more arduous tasks such as clearing the land. The trees and shrubs are cleared, stacked and burnt during early October. As soon as the rains begin and the soil is softened hoeing (or ox ploughing) begins. Hoeing may be carried out to a depth of up to 45 cm.

Cassava does not grow well under waterlogged conditions and therefore the freer draining soils in any locality are always selected. The crop is grown either on the flat. on ridges or mounds.

The method used is generally determined by the annual rainfall distribution, the drainage properties and depth of the soil. However traditions are such that individual farmers, even within the same field, may use different methods. In lower rainfall areas of North-Western and Western Provinces cassava is grown on the flat whereas in the higher rainfall areas of North-Western, Luapula and Northern Provinces it is grown on mounds or ridges. In all areas mounds or ridges are used along the edges of dambos or lakes.

Both ridges and mounds vary considerably in size and shape, and rarely follow any organised pattern. They are built-up by hand using a hoe and weeds are often incorporated during the procedure.

11 11

11 11

1.1

6.4 Varieties

L L

The local varieties of cassava in Zambia are named after the village from which each was collected or after the person who introduced it into the area. This has resulted in what appears to be a large number of varieties within Zambia and presents a considerable task to those responsible for the germ plasm pool of the country.

No co-ordinated varietal collection has been carried out for Zambia although such a task is underway currently. Some limited collections have been made on an ad hoc basis in the past, but many varietics have been discarded due to disease or lost due to frost. It is therefore impossible to present a complete list of cassava varieties grown in Zambia. As up to 40 different languages are spoken by the inhabitants of the cassava producing areas of Zambia, one variety may bear many different names, making the assembling of a naticnal varietal collection without duplications a complicated and time consuming task.

Cassava varieties are subdivided by the growers into sweet and bitter varieties based on their taste, which in turn, reflects the content of HCN. Depending on taste, the cassava may be eaten raw or prepared in different ways. This is discussed elsewhere in the report. Table 6 presents the names of the most common varieties grown in the different Provinces.

Table 6: Common Varieties Grown in Zambia

Provinces

Туре	Western	North-Western	Northern & Luapula
Bitter	Ngubu	Mandama	Matutu Mushi
	Usiku	Matali	Lyon Go
	Litale	Litale	Nyanta
	Njamba	Nsangashila	
	Kakota		
	Likalumusi		
Sweet	Kabumpa	Kabumpa	Mbeleshi
	Nalumino	Mutemba	Lubuta
	Mutambo	Mwakamoya	
	Mandelema		
	Salindai		

The distinction between bitter and sweet varieties is fairly constant throughout Zambia. The sweet varieties are often eaten raw at 12-18 months of age when the tubers are still very small. The bitter varieties are never eaten raw and are not usually harvested until they are 2-3 years old.

34

6.5 Planting Material

The quality of planting material used by the farmers is poor and often the material observed was broken or twisted off rather than cut cleanly. The length of planting material varied between 200mm and 1m. Most farmers realised that the longer planting material was required when dry planting, but there was considerable variation within regions and even within fields.

The use of poor quality planting material contributes substantially to low yields and late maturing crops. The low value and subsistence nature of cassava as a crop has led farmers to increase the area under the crop rather than looking to improved cultural practices to increase productivity. For example, many farmers were observed to be using planting material from both extremities of the plant. The soft vegetative growth from the top of the plant imposes severe water stress on the cutting through transpiration losses, often resulting in the death of the cutting, especially when dry planted. Cuttings from the base of the plant were seen to include part of the root system which cannot be propagated into another tealthy plant. Branched and diseased cuttings were also observed.

Planting material of the local varieties is in abundant supply in most areas. It is obtained either from the mature crop as it is harvested or by pruning back a younger crop. However in areas where frost occurs, planting material can become scarce during the following planting season.

To combat this loss of planting material, the farmers of Western Province cut their cassava back (before there is any danger of frost) almost to ground level and bury the stems in a pit covered with grass to protect them from the frost. In other parts of Zambia farmers seldom store planting material for longer than a couple of months, and more often only for a few weks. Bundles of planting material are put in a shallow pit or trench, upright and in the shade where they survive reasonably well.

Any farmer who wants to start growing cassava is normally given cassava cuttings by a friend, although when the IRDP at Kabompo wanted to buy cuttings they were charged K1 per bundle. This works out at approximately K100/ha which is excessively high.

Poor quality planting material is responsible for extensive termite damage witnessed in North-Western Province. The healthy plants managed to survive but high proportions of the sticks planted did not germinate due to termite attacks. The farmer compensated by increasing his plant population. However this resulted in clusters of healthy plants that survive the termites being in great competition with each other. Late planting (January to March) substantially increases the likelihood of termite attack and very few plants survive.

LL L

11.1

- П – П

1 1

6.6 Planting Methods

The planting methods used in Zambia vary tremendously from field to field. The plants are usually grouped in clusters of 2 to 3 or even more per station. The angle of planting varies from haphazard to 45° facing the same direction to 45° facing alternate directions.

The time of planting is October to December and most farmers realise (although one research station did not) that anything planted between January and September, ie within 3 months of the end of the rains or during the dry season is unlikely to be very productive.

The plant population per mound or ridge is usually excessively high resulting in stunted plants, poor root development and low yields. However the distance between mounds and ridges is such that the overall plant density per hectare may even be too low and excessive bush regrowth and weeds occur. This also causes reductions in yield due to competition for limited nutrients. Also, extra work is created for the farmer if and when he weeds his crop.

6.7 Crop Management

After planting, the cassava receives very little further attention but benefits from attention given to any inter-crop. In semi-permanent agriculture where maize is interplanted in cassava in its establishing year, the cassava benefits from the compound fertiliser applied to the maize at planting and a later application of nitrogenous fertiliser as a top dressing. Fertiliser is not normally applied specifically to cassava.

Cassava is rarely weeded more than once a year. The main reason for weeding appears to be to prevent fire dame \Rightarrow rather than to prevent weed competition with the crop. It is not normal tor cassava to be inter-cultivated except when preparations are being made to plant an intercrop.

In general the level of basic crop technology applied to the cassava crop in Zambia is low and reflects the status of the crop within the agricultural sector. The rate of uptake of any technology will depend on the creation of a market that is seen to function and acquires the confidence of the farmers.

Some farmers have tried using fertiliser on cassava but found that the keeping quality of the roots when left underground after maturity was reduced from 2-3 years to 1 year. Black spots appeared in the roots and decomposition started. The flavour and cooking qualities were also adversely affected when fertilised cassava was used to make flour. This is probably a function of storage and would not occur if the crop was harvested at optimum maturity. It is likely that the fertiliser used by these farmers was high in nitrogen as it was probably intended for maize. One of the tobacco mixtures which is low in nitrogen would have been much more suitable. However the damage has been done and farmers are likely to resist the application of fertilisers to cassava. With the establishment of a market and pricing structure there will be an incentive for farmers to harvest when the crop is

1.1.1.1

1.1.1.

36

н і і і



mature. This will avoid the storage problems yet yields will be increased and the long term fertility of the soil improved. Farmers are at present reluctant to spend money on fertiliser to increase yield as marketing any surplus can be difficult without an organised market and price structure.

Sometimes the cassava leaves are removed by hand during the second wet season to let sunlight into the intercropped beans or groundnuts.

6.8 Harvesting

In many areas cassava is grown as a famine reserve crop and is therefore harvested over extended periods, often up to 4 years. By this time the roots are fibrous and in many cases starting to decompose. In many instances the crop is never harvested.

However in areas where cassava forms an important part of the staple diet, harvesting of the sweet varieties commences at 12-18 months. The roots are harvested when required as they are often eaten raw. The larger tubers are periodically removed and the plants earthed up again to allow the plants to continue growing.

The bitter varieties are not usually harvested during the first two years. As with the sweet varieties harvesting is without exception done by hand. During the wet season the roots are easily pulled from the soil without causing any damage. However much more care is required during the dry season when the ground is hard.

In North-Western Province the bitter varieties are harvested when required commencing immediately after the second wet season. The roots are left in the ground for up to 3 years without any deterioration in quality.

By comparison, in Northern Province, the mature crop is harvested continuously throughout the dry season, sun dried, and stored as chips in traditional pepper pot grain stores.

6.9 Conclusions on Agronomy

It is clear that productivity and quality can be raised by improving agronomic practices, notably by better planting material, more uniform plant spacing and better weed control and more effective diagnosis, prevention and control of pests and diseases. Recommendations on agronomy are set out in Chapter 10 as part of the proposed integrated cassava project.

7. UTILISATION OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA

Cassava, being a subsistence crop in Zambia, is largely used as required by the rural households. The main use is in the preparation of Nshima, the traditional porridge which forms the staple of the country. In the urban and maize producing areas Nshima is made from maize. In the more rural areas and those where maize does not grow well Nshima is made from cassava or millet or a mixture of the two. Nshima is made from flour and the preparation of the flour varies slightly within the country: however the effect is to prepare a storable commodity from the very perishable fresh roots.

The "sweet" varieties are generally eaten raw, cooked like potatoes by boiling or roasted on an open fire.

71 Nahima Flour Production

The "bitter" varieties are predominantly used to make flour and are rarely eaten in any other form.

Roots from plants which have been growing for 2 years or more are harvested as the demand arises. These are washed and then suspended into a pit of water. The water in the pit is normally stagnant and the same water used from previous makings. The roots are then allowed to ferment and soak for a period of three to five days. Residence time in the pit is dependent upon speed of fermentation. This in turn is affected by ambient temperature and the effect of previous makings providing a viable culture of organisms to start the fermentation as rapidly as possible. The traditional reason for soaking is to rid the root of the poisonous effect of hydrogen cyanide. The roots are considered "ready" when they have become soft and the peel comes off very easily. In some areas roots are peeled before they are soaked.

(At this point we wish to observe that the traditional soaking and fermenting process will not be suitable for cassava intended for starch production, since poor starch will result from this raw material. We recommend in Chapter 10 that as part of the project a small washing plant should be set up in each village supplying the proposed factory).

After soaking, the softened root is removed from the water, peeled and split longitudinally along natural cleavage lines to reveal a central pithy core. This is removed and discarded, the remaining root is then broken further into small "chunks or chips" and placed on rush matting to dry. In order to keep the drying chips away from livestock, the rush matting is often placed on a rack above the ground. This has an additional beneficial effect since drying is then assisted by air movement as well as the sun. Drying may take several days, and is prolonged during damp weather or if the mats are not taken indoors at night with rising humidity.

Once dry "to the touch" the chips are pounded in a mortar and pestle to make flour. Usually more than a day's requirement of flour is made, the flour storing reasonably well in the "kitchen area" of the home. Where considerable quantities of chips are made these may be stored in beehiveshaped mud grain stores. During the dry season with low relative humidities, the chips will remain in good condition in these stores.

1.1

38

When eaten the flour is added to boiling water and mixed to obtain a thick porridge consistency. This is usually moulded and shaped by hand on a plate and served with a stew or relish. Feeding is communal from the plate. Different boiling times were noted for maize and cassava Nshima, maize requiring 20-30 minutes of boiling to get the correct consistency whereas cassava needed only 5 minutes and in some cases addition of cassava flour to boiled water taken off the heat was all that was required.

7.2 Cassava Leaves

Cassava leaves are generally thought of as the poor man's relish. However they are in fact widely eaten throughout the cassava producing areas especially during the wet season when they are readily available and fish is not so readily available. Fish is the most common relish for many of these areas, especially during the dry season.

In Luapula Province young cassava leaves are sometimes eaten without cooking but generally the leaves of rape, sweet potato, pumpkin and beans are preferred. The older cassava leaves are too tough to eat even after cooking.

To cook cassava leaves, the young leaves are first pounded and must be cooked immediately. Women are sometimes seen running with the pounded leaves to their cooking pots. The leaves are boiled in water for 2-3 hours, by which time there is little water left in the pot. More water is added and the leaves boiled for a further 30 minutes.

To make the leaves more tender there are several things that can be added, usually with the second lot of water. Salt is used in preference to soda if available. The soda is manufactured by rural families by collecting the ash after burning a variety of plants including cassava stalks and certain tree species. Of particular importance is the Mwanda or Musamba tree (Brachytegia longifolia). This tree is very common and is widely used as a source of firewood. Pounded groundnuts can also be used to sorten the cassava leaves and are usually added after the leaves have been boiled for 2-3 hours. Salad or cooking oil is also used, especially by urban families. Roasted cassava is often eaten with roasted groundnuts.

7.3 Alcoholic Beverages

In North Western Province beer is made from the cassava peel after it has been dried and pounded. It is called Masangu or 7 day beer. This beer is also made in Luapula Province but not in Northern Province.

Cassava is used in North Western Province to make gin, called Lutuku. The distillation of this liquid is highly illegal, but widespread.

11-1

11 1

1.1

1.1

7.4 Nutritional Considerations

In many parts of the cassava growing areas the staple diet consists of cassava and fish. This is a reasonably balanced diet and severe malnutrition is relatively uncommon in the traditional rural sector. However it is the custom in Zambia for the adult males to be fed first, the women and children making do with what is left. This often results in young children getting little or no relish and therefore less protein in their diet.

However malnutrition can be a problem in the urban areas especially when a mother goes out to work and leaves older children looking after and feeding the younger children. In the urban areas within the cassava producing areas there is a definite trend away from cassava as the staple, towards maize as it is generally more readily available. Meat, fish and other foodstuffs rich in protein are often expensive and difficult to obtain in the urban areas, resulting in large proportions of dietary protein coming from the staple.

The trend towards eating more maize, especially in the urban areas, constitutes a substantial increase in the crude protein intake, especially of children, as maize flour contains 7-8 percent crude protein compared to only 1-2 percent in cassava flour. The nutritional value of some of the traditiona' foodstuffs is shown in Table 7.

Great care must therefore be taken that any increase in the availability and consumption of cassava flour must be accompanied by a nationwide publicity campaign on how to best prepare a balanced diet, using cassava as a staple.

TABLE 7

NUTRITIONAL VALUE OF TRADITIONAL FOODSTUFF

Foodstuff	Dry Matter DM %	Crude Protein CP %	Crude Fibre CF %	Metabolisable Energy (ME)	
Cassava flour	90.4	1.2	3.5	2,670	
Fresh cassava leaves	28.0	15.3	6.9	-	
Finger meal millet	90.0	10.3	8.1	2,557	
Maize meal	89.8	8.6	2.0	2,934	

Source: The University of Zambia, 1978.

1

1









1 1 1

1 I I

ł

8. MARKET POTENTIAL FOR CASSAVA AND CASSAVA PRODUCTS IN ZAMBIA

8.1 Traditional Market

Traditionally there used to be a substantial internal trade of cassava flour within the subsistence economy. In 1953 the Department of Agriculture, Northern Rhodesia, reported that 1,000 tons of cassava flour were exported from the Kabompo and Zambezi Districts of North Western Province to the Western Province, mainly in exchange for fish. The marketed surplus has been substantially reduced and is now almost non-existent, largely due to cassava being regarded as a subsistence crop only and farmers being discouraged from growing it as a cash crop.

In Northern Province farmers sometimes sell the standing crop and it is common for households to sell up to 50 kg of cassava flour per year.

In North Western Province fresh roots, sun-dried chips and flour are available in limited quantities on the local markets. In addition sun-dried 'pellets' are made from bitter varieties by squeezing out the water by hand immediately after soaking, peeling and then forming balls or pellets up to 5 cm in diameter. These pellets are then sun-dried until they are hard, and marketed.

In all areas the marketing of fresh roots is extremely localised, is normally limited to the sweet varieties, and is limited to the production areas. Fresh leaves are also sold locally. In particular fresh leaves from the urban gardens on the Copperbelt and along the line of rail sell extremely well.

Unlike the other major staple crops in Zambia, an organised market structure for cassava does not exist at present. This has resulted in the farmers having considerable difficulty in marketing any surplus cassava. Farmers from Kabompo reported spending up to 10 days trying to market one sack of sun-dried chips. This involved travelling by bus almost 500 km to the Copperbelt.

There was an attempt to organise the market for cassava two or three seasons ago. Namboard and the Co-operative Unions were instructed to buy cassava chips, and equipped with funds to do so. No producer price was set, however.

We were unable to ascertain the precise facts, but there are indications that prices paid, certainly in Northern Province, were too high for the flour milled from bought chips to be acceptable to the market. The stock is still sitting unsold in the Northern Co-operative Union's warehouse at Kasama.

This experiment has not been repeated. The fact that official buying was withdrawn makes it the more important to the success of the proposed project that a producer price should be declared and that the seriousness of the Government in encouraging cassava should be demonstrated.

8.2 Demand and Market Study

- 8.2.1 The potential demand for marketed cassava in 1981. The potential demand for marketed cassava-derived products in Zambia can be divided into two broad segments:
 - an accurately measurable demand for starch, glucose, dextrins and potable alcohol in industries which at present rely entirely on imports for their supplies of these products. We were greatly helped by The Development Bank of Zambia, who gave us access to their survey of this demand. We were able to verify the accuracy of this survey and to extend the sample of firms covered.*
 - a much larger but less precisely measurable demand for cassava flour in the consumer market and in the baking, brewing and stock feed industries.

We interviewed all the brewing and stock feed producers, and also the largest bakers of bread and biscuits.

The accuracy of measurement of the market for starch and derived products results from the certainty that, provided quality standards are met, industrial users will buy all their supplies within Zambia rather than go through the frustrating delays of obtaining foreign exchange for imports: and the prevailing import prices give a good indication of what the market is now paying.

The market for cassava flour is less certain because the minor share which the product can gain of the present maize market could vary considerably: and the acceptable market price for cassava flour could also vary considerably, as discussed below.

Table 8 shows estimates of the current potential market. The text following the table explains the basis of the estimates and includes comments on likely future trends.

*Footnote:

Since our survey was made we have had access to the results of another study, carried out by a private entrepreneur, which confirm the figures of demand for starch and glucose by existing industrial users.

Official statistics of imports are much lower than the three surveys indicate, eg imports of starch are shown as: 1977, 147 tonnes; 1978, 214 tonnes; 1979, 164 tonnes.

We are satisfied from the consistency of the three user surveys' findings that our estimates of demand are correct, and that the official figures are incomplete.

1

1

11

Ш

11

ш

PE

TABLE 8

Estimated potential for marketed cassava products in Zambia in 1981.

Product	Application Present Potential (Tonnes/year)		Present Delivered Price + 10% (a) (K/ton	Reason for using cassava e)		
Starch	Textiles	300	900	Import Replacement		
	Food - biscuits, Blancmanges, Puddings,etc.	500 +	850	Import Replacement		
Glucose	Food - biscuits, Puddings,etc.	1,400	1,050	Import Replacement		
	Pharmaceutical	ls 30	1,200	Import Replacement		
Dextrins	Glue for paper	150	1,800	Import Replacement		
	Pharmaceutical	ls <u>5</u>	1,800	Import Replacement		
	TOTAL ABOVE	2,400 approx				
			Estimated Acceptable Price	3		
Cassava Flour	N s hima	40 - 45,000	Breakfast Meal + 7% (= roller + 35%	(i) Urban immigrant demand(ii) Quality improvement		
	Blends with wheat flour	7-8,000 (10%)	Roller meal	(i) Replace imported		
			price	(ii) Release maize for other uses		
	Chibuku & mosi 3,000 (10%) beer		Roller meal price	Release maize for other uses		
	Stockfeed 12,500 (10%)		Roller meal price less 10%	Release maize but added protein required		
	Potable alcohol (liquor blending) <u>litres</u>) 750,000	55n/litre	Import Replacement		

(a)

T.

ייווי. ווווו 1 1

i.

Т

1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1

1

) Users of starch and derived products, now imported, would be willing to pay at least a 10% premium for local supplies.

1 - 1

1 - 1

L

T

8.2.2 The market for starch and derived products in 1981

8.2.2.1 <u>Starch</u> is used as a thickener in prepared foods, such as pasta and blancmanges, and in the biscuit industry as a substitute for wheat flour. Firms making these products, such as Speciality Foods Limited, Ndola and Family Biscuits Limited, Lusaka, are all in the private sector. Consumption of starch in these products is about 500 tons a year, and rising at about 10% a year.

The second application for starch is in the sizeing of textile yarns. Kafue Textiles Limited, an Indeco company, uses 150 tons a year and Kabwe Textile Mills, being built by the Chinese Government, could use about 100 tons a year. There are two smaller, private mills.

Total usage of starch is estimated at 800 tons in 1981.

8.2.2.2 <u>Glucose</u> is used as a sweetener in the food industry, which consumed about 1400 tons in 1981. There is no consumption in the soft drinks industry, which imports and dilutes concentrates, sweetening them with cane sugar to the proprietors' specifications.

There is a small usage of glucose in anhydrous form as the basis for injections, and some is used in the manufacture of pills. The state-owned pharmaceutical industry is working far below capacity, partly because of a lack of foreign exchange to keep machinery in operation.

- 8.2.2.3 <u>Dextrins</u> are mainly used in glue for the paper processing industry, particularly in envelopes. Consumption was about 150 tons in 1981.
- 8.2.2.4 <u>Potable and power alcohol</u>. Duncan, Gilbey and Matheson (Z) Limited, in which Indeco has a substantial holding, imports potable alcohol from South Africa for blending into a range of spirits. The company is negotiating imports from Zimbabwe.

The company's management estimates that imports of alcohol for blending have risen from 500,000 litres five years ago to 750,000 litres in 1981.

Theoretically, this market could be supplied by alcohol derived from cassava, but there are good resons why this should not be so:

- other studies, to which we have had access, show that molasses is a much more efficient source of alcohol than cassava. There is a State-owned sugar plantation at Nakambala. If a current feasibility study proves favourable, the molasses from Nakambala will be used for power alcohol; but the minor amount needed for potable alcohol could be supplied from this source.
- the alue of the potable alcohol market is small. The expected import price from Zimbabwe is K0.55 (US \$0.60) per litre, which puts a value

1.11.1.1

1 111

1 111

1

44

1 1 11

1 1

1.1

ТŰ

1.1

of just over K400,000 on the market. It is highly unlikely that a potable alcohol unit, added to the proposed factory could produce alcohol from cassava to make a profit on an output of this size.

We have therefore excluded alcohol from our proposals regarding a cassava processing factory in Zambia, but we shall include it in the more generalised factory concept.

- 8.2.2.5 Total volume and value of market for starch and derived products. The total volume of imports of starch, glucose and dextrins was about 2,400 tons in 1981. The total value of the market in 1981 is calculated at K2¹/₂ million, taking import prices and adding a conservative 10% as the Kwacha premium which industrial users would be willing to pay for a local source of supply.
- 8.2.3 The potential market for cassava flour. There are four principal potential applications for cassava flour: Nshima; bread baking; beer making; and stock feed.
- 8.2.3.1 Nshima. As explained in Chapter 7 above, cassava is used to make Nshima in the four main cassava growing Provinces, but little is marketed.

One entrapreneur has a hammer mill outside Lusaka. He buys cassava chips in Western Province, mills cassava flour and sells it in 1 !rg bags to NIEC Stores Limited, owning the largest supermarkets in Lusaka and the Copperbelt. This business has grown to 130 tons a year. The flour is sold retail at K0.67/kg in Lusaka and K0.69/kg in the Copperbelt, compared with K0.27/kg for maize breakfast meal and K0.21/kg for roller meal.

This enterprise, Kamms, is the only one of its kind in Zambia. Its high prices reflect its high costs (whips delivered to the hammer mill cost K0.33/kg); but they also illustrate the willingness of the immigrant population in Lusaka and the Copperbelt to pay a premium over maize meal prices for cassava flour. This is partly a matter of taste and also one of ease of preparation: a blending of cassava with maize makes Nshima much easier to stir.

There is good evidence of a latent demand for cassava flour in the urban concentrations. Alan Marter of the Rural Development Studies Bureau, University of Zambia, found that 30% of a sample of 100 respondents in Lusaka would make cassava their main staple at the same price as maize*, most of the 30% having come from cassava-growing provinces.

* Footnote: "Cassava or Maize", July 1978.

....

PE

During our study we found that 80% of a sample of 50 respondents in Lusaka and the Copperbelt, who had come from Northern, Luapula and North-Western Provinces, would like to make cassava their main staple at a small premium over maize.

The extent of migration from these Provinces to the urbanised centres of population was indicated in Table 1. The population of Lusaka, Copperbelt and Central Provinces rose by 928,000 people between 1969 and 1980. The Preliminary Report on the '980 Census of Population notes that most of the increase was at the expense of Northern and Luapula Provinces, the chief cassava growing areas.

It is impossible to be precise in estimating the extent of the latent demand for cassava flour in Nshima. We have estimated in Table 8 that cassava flour could replace 10% of the maize sold in Lusaka, Copperbelt and Central Provinces at premium of 7% over maize breakfast meal, equal to 35% over roller meal. This would result in a consumption of 40,000 - 45,000 tons of marketed cassava flour a year, rising by at least 4% a year with the population increase and continuing urbanisation.

8.2.3.2 Bread Baking. National wheat production is rising, but at about 10,000 tons (see Appendix 3) is small compared to the annual average import of about 75,000 tons, costing K28 million.

Some private bakers dilute wheat flour with up to 10% of maize. The largest baking firm, part of Indeco, uses 100% wheat flour, and is unable to supply total demand.

Tests at the National Institute of Scientific Research have shown that 10% of cassava flour can be blended with wheat without impairing flavour or texture. Such a blend would easily meet national standards, which specify a protein content of not less than 6.5%. Wheat's protein content is about 12%.

The argument for using cassava rather than maize as the blending material is the national need to rely more on the more reliable crop.

We have estimated in Table 8 that 10% of wheat imports could be substituted by cassava flour, but that, since cassava has no qualitative advantage over maize in this application, it would command no premium over roller meal.

8.2.3.3 <u>Beer Making</u>. National Breweries Limited and Zambia Breweries Limited, both Indeco subsidiaries, make respectively Chibuku beer and lager. There are no private breweries.

1.1

Chibuku is an opaque beer, made from maize and delivered in bulk, still fermenting. It must be drunk within a few days before it goes bad. It retails at K0.18 a litre.

Lager beer (known as mosi) is brewed from imported malted barley (60%), maize (20%) and sugar (20%). It retails between K0.55 and K0.78 per bottle of 375 ml, equivalent to K1.49 - K2.08 a litre.

Production is very high, relative to the population:

Cutput (Million litres)

Lager	Total		
99	301		
105	281		
105	286		
108	294		
	Lager 99 105 105 108		

National Breweries use about 27,000 tons of maize a year and Zambia Breweries 2-3000 tons. During years of maize shortage they have had to restrict output. Neither brewery has experimented with cassava as a substitute material but both are willing to test it, particularly after hearing that Minster Agriculture Limited is advising a brewery in Zimbabwe on its use.

We have tentatively estimated that cassava could substitute 10% of the maize used in brewing. This could amount to about 3,000 tons a year, in flour form. The reason for the substitution would again be the greater reliability of cassava as a crop. It would have no technical advantage, and would command no premium over the maize roller meal price.

8.2.3.4 <u>Stockfeed</u> is produced by National Milling Company and Indeco Milling Company, both Indeco subsidiaries.

Total output averages 120,000 - 125,000 tons a year, of which over 75% is poultry feed, 18% is pig feed and 6% is cattle feed.

Maize and bran are the major constituents. The added protein content of meat and fish meal is almost all imported.

It would be possible for cascava to substitute some of the carbohydrate concent of stockfeed; but the very low protein content of cassava would require the addition of imported protein to balance this deficiency.

11 1

ш

1 1

1 1

1.1.11

1 1 11

1.1

1.1

1 I I

Theoretically, cassava might be used to substitute 10% of the present ingredients of stuckfeed; but at a price at least 10% lower than that of roller meal. We do not recommend that any effort should be spent in promoting cassava in this application, other than to sell the waste from the proposed factory.

8.2.3 Export Potential

We have researched the potential markets for the export of cassava and cassava products from Zambia, but we conclude that there is no scope during the next decade, and possibly little thereafter.

Cassava roots are too perishable to be exported, even to neighbouring countries.

Cassava chips are not so perishable. However, the world market outside Southern and Central Africa is intensely competitive, with Thailand exporting millions of tons of cassava pellets and the EEC trying to restrict imports of this product. There is no scope for a new, small-scale supplier. Within Southern and Central Africa, most of Zambia's neighbours are already much larger producers of cassava than Zambia herself. (Zaire, 12 mn t; Mozambique $2\frac{1}{2}$ mn t; Tanzania $4\frac{1}{4}$ mn t; Angola $1\frac{2}{4}$ mn.t). Zimbabwe is not shown as a producer by FAO, but transport charges from the cassava-producing Provinces in Zambia to the Zimbabwe border would be at least K100/ton by rail and K250 by road.

As regards starch, glucose and dextrins, the industrialised nations manufacture the bulk of their requirements themselves, with maize, largely imported but partly home-grown, as the principal source of starch. The rest of their consumption f starch, glucose and dextrins is made up by imports; but this trade is substantially controlled by a few large and often vertically integrated companies.

If Zambia was to set up a cassava processing capacity, greater than that required to supply the home market, and so relying on exporting to some extent, two options would be open: either to set up a sophisticated and costly marketing organisation, seeking to sell direct to overseas users of starch, glucose and dextrins; or else to sell to one or more of the large international companies, thus putting a dangerously high proportion of production into an ologopolistic market.

If, in the long term, the cassava processing industry in Zambia expands to the point where an additional factory, gear.d to exporting, would not seriously affect the viability of the industry if it failed, then it could be contemplated. This point is, however, more than a decade in the future.

We recommend that exporting should be left out of the planned activities of the proposed factory during its first five years, and that it should rely on import substitution as its benefit to Zambia. As explained in Chapter 11, on implementation scheduling, the factory should not be built until the supply of naw material is assured, which will take some years. Exporting should thus not be considered for at least a decade from now.

1.1

1.1

Ш

Ш

PE

8.2.4 Estimated Future Market and Factory Sales

The market in Zambia for starch, glucose and dextrins has been rising by about 10% a year in volume for the last two years, and is expected to show a similar increase in 1982.

We expect this high growth rate to slacken somewhat in future, as shown in Table 9 below.

	Volume change	Annual demand (values at 1981 prices (a))							
Year	from previous Year (%)	Sta	rch	Gluc	:058	Dextrins		Total	
		Tonnes	K'000	Tonnes	K'000	Tonnes	K'000	K'000	
1981	10	800	640	1430	1573	155	263	2475	
1982	10	880	704	1575	1733	170	289	2725	
1983	9	960	768	1700	1870	185	315	2950	
1984	3	1035	828	1835	2020	200	540	3190	
1985	7	1110	888	1960	2155	215	365	3215	
1986	6	1175	940	2075	2283	230	390	3615	
1987	5	1235	988	2180	2400	240	405	3795	
1988	5	1300	1040	2290	2520	250	425	3985	
1989	5	1365	1092	2400	2640	265	450	4180	
1990	5	1435	1148	2520	2770	280	475	4395	
1991	5	1510	1208	2650	2915	290	495	4620	

Table 9 - Estimated demand in Zambia for starch, glucose, and dextrins

(a) 1981 import prices + 10% premium less K100/tonne for delivery. (Net price for starch, K800/tonne; glucose, K1100/tonne; dextrins, K1700/tonnes).

Figures have been slightly rounded.

As discussed in Chapter 9 'The Proposed Project' and Chapter 11 'Implementation Scheduling' we do not envisage the factory coming into commercial production until 1987, and then only provided that an adequate supply of marketed chips and roots seems assured.

Assuming that the factory project goes ahead, we have estimated its sales on the basis that, after three years of operation, it will be able to meet the quality requirements of almost all industrial users; but that, during the first three years of operation it will take longer to convince users of starch than users of glucose and dextrins. These assumptions are reflected in the estimates in Table 10.

Ť.

1 111

1.1

1.1



T.

11.1.*

II I I

- | | ----

1 I

I I

Table 10 - Estimated Factory Sales at 1981 prices

Year	S	Starch		Glucose			Dextrins		Tota	
	Tot demand	Sales tonnes K'000		Tot demand	Sales		Tot demand	Sales tonnes	K'000	Sales K'000
	tonnes		K'000	tonni s	tonnes	K'000	tonnes			
1 987	1235	645	516	2140	1600	1760	240	160	272	2548
1988	1300	825	660	2290	1750	<u>1925</u>	250	175	298	2883
1989	1365	1005	864	2400	1950	2145	265	195	332	3281
1990	1435	1185	948	2520	2150	2365	280	215	366	3679
1991	1510	1365	1092	2650	2350	2585	290	235	400	4077



L.

1 1

1

1 1 1 1

1

I.

1

L L L

L L L

1 1

1 1

١.

1 I I I

 $1,\ldots,1,\ldots,1,$

1 0.1 1

Т

I.



9. THE PROPOSED PROJECT

The main conclusions reached in previous chapters are the following:

- Agronomically cassava is doubtful as a <u>commercial</u> crop in Zambia due to climatic conditions
- Agronomic practices can be improved to increase yields
- The crop is produced by smallholders on a subsistence basis, which means small quantities of fresh roots in very dispersed locations
- The cessava fresh root has a life of only 24 hours before deterioration begins
- The smallholders already have a tradition of cassava flour making
- There is currently no organised market for cassava or cassava products other than the small quantity marketed by Kamins
- There is a potential for the sale of considerable quantities of flour and a developing market for starch and starch products.

9.1 (

Overall Proposal

We propose an integrated project which will stimulate the production and use of cassava in Zambia by the following means:

- organising a market for the crop
- improving agronomic practices and yields
- when these two measures have caused supplies to increase, setting up a starch, glucose and dextrins factory which will provide a further stimulus to cassava growers.

In order to overcome as far as possible the problem of perishability of fresh cassava roots we propose that the major source of raw material for the factory should be dried chips. This is a new concept in cassava processing in Africa. It will not yield starch of as high a quality as fresh roots; but the starch produced should be adequate for most end-uses requiring starch as such, and it will certainly be adequate as a product for further processing into glucose and dextrins, which together account for most of the potential output from the factory.

T.

1 1 1

It is fundamental to the success of the project that the inevitable losses in root quality, which would occur through time delays in transport, should be prevented by local drying and chip production.

The factory would also buy in a minority supply of fresh roots for the production of high quality starch, but this would be from farmers close to the factory. This operation would be separate from the procurement system for chips.

An alternative source of supply would be to set up a plantation within transportable distance to the factory.

We do propose that there should be a plantation close to the factory, but not fur the purpose of supplying it with cassava; rather, it should be a breeding ground for healthy plant stock of the best varieties, for distribution to farmers. A plantation set up to supply the factory would not, in our judgement, be economic partly because the ort, uni-modal rainy season would lead to serious under-utilisation of machinery and partly because of the cost of hired labour. Nor would it help the large number of farmers in Northern Province who should benefit from receiving cash income from their sales of cassava chips to Namboard or the Co-operative Union.

9.2 Organisation of the Market for Cassava

9.2.1 Cassava Chips

As a means of encouraging production in the traditional cassava growing areas, it is proposed that the purchase of chips from farmers only takes place in selected provinces - namely:

- Wustern
- North Western
- Luapula
- Northern
- Copperbelt.

The price paid for the cassava chips would be announced and controlled by Government in the same manner as that for maize. We suggest that a producer price of 20n/kg (£200/tonne) would be sufficient to stimulate production and to allow a reasonable profit to the factory (see chapter 12).

It is anticipated that the collection and marketing of the cassava chips be the same as that for maize. Thus chip purchasing would be seasonal (June - November) and through rural depots of co-operative unions and Namboard. The chips would be transported to district or regional centres where they would be further processed.



÷.

шт

11 111 11

Cassava chips are at present cut into various shapes and sizes and vary in quality and moisture content. They are not, unfortunaiely, a standard commodity such as grain, which varies in moisture content but has a standard shape.

It is critical to the keeping quality of cassava chips that they should be thoroughly dried. If the centre of the chip is still moist it will rot, and the rot will spread to other chips in the store.

We recommend that farmers should be instructed to cut peeled cassava roots into slices of not more than 5mm in thickness and between 50mm and 80mm in length.

They should also be instructed to dry them on raised mats, as most already do.

Buyers will need to be trained in quality control and be able to undertake simple acceptance tests before accepting a consignment from a farmer. The buyers of maize presently undertake grading procedures. This is an elaborate process and one which sorts maize into five different quality standards, each with a laid down purchase price. With cassava chips it is proposed that the chips be:

- white in colour with no peel present
- dry to the touch (tending to rattle when shaken)
- able to pass through a 50 mm screen
- free from foreign matter.

The above standard would qualify for the statutory price. Any chips not satisfying these quality criteria would be either:

- rejected if considered too wet
- purchased at a reduced rate

Samples which are considered too wet can be re-dried in the sun by the farmer and offered for sale again at a later date. (Providing no secondary deterioration has occurred).

From the depots or mobile buyers the chips would be transported to larger national flour mills to await further processing into flour. In some cases the chips would be purchased direct by the existing milling installations.

Chips delivered to existing milling installations would be hammer milled to flour and packaged into suitable containers for either retail sale or for hulk purchasing by industrial end users. It is anticipated that the flour will be sold for inclusion into Nshima or to the brewing industry for mosi and Chibuku manufacture or to the bakeries for inclusion into bread and biscuit making.

1.1

Where hammer milling capacity does not exist and where there would be a reasonable demand for flour for Nshima purposes, it is proposed that hammer milling installations be set up at the rural buying centres. Flour from these installations would be mainly sold locally but could be distributed along the national network as exists at present.

The hammer mill installations would be very simple factories based on machinery already manufactured in Zambia. These may be driven either by electricity if available or have their own prime movers.

Where demand exists these installations could also mill maize into flour for local consumption.

Cassava chips would therefore become a traded commodity and moved along the existing transport network currently operated by Namboard. The buying functions of Namboard are being increasingly decentralised and will be operated by the Co-operative Unions. It is hoped that this will result in faster payment to the farmer.

The marketing channels are outlined in chapter 8, the main potential market being for cassava flour. Many of the existing flour mills have roller mills and facilities for heat treatment of maize with steam prior to milling. This process would not be necessary for cassava chips where only Many mills already have hammer mills a hammer mill is required. installed for the animal feed market or for the preparation of breakfast meal from maize. The separate milling of cassava chips would therefore fit well into a production system. The purchasing would occur at the same time as maize and storage capacity at mills will need to be increased. It is recommended that the traditional systems of storage on concrete floors with tarpaulin covering be adopted. This is cheap and can be easily constructed from local materials and using local labour. The chips should be milled as soon after purchase as possible since they will not store as well as maize. The resultant flour would be packed into retail packs for sale in 2 kg and 10 kg polythene bags and in 90 kg hessian sacks for distribution to industrial users.

The industrial users are expected to be the bakers and brewers where cassava flour would be used as a substitute for maize or imported wheat and barley (malt). These industries currently purchase flour or maize grits from the parastatal milling operations. These organisations would therefore be responsible for distribution and sales of cassava flour.

For the retail markets the parastatal milling companies would pack for distribution into the Government owned supermarket and retail chain. Flour would also be available for sale to wholesalers in the normal manner.

PE

9.2.2 Cassava Roots

As explained in Chapter 10, it is proposed to buy in about 5 tonnes/day of fresh cassava roots during the dry season to produce high quality starch for those end-users who may find chip-based starch inadequate for their quality.

The purchasing of these roots should be by direct negotiation between the factory, or an appointed agent, and the local farmers. It would be disastrous for the Government to declare a producer price for roots, and to have farmers delivering them to collection points from which they could not be moved to the factory before deteriorating.

The yield of industrially recoverable starch per kg. of roots is only 30% of that from dried chips, and it could be argued that, if the producer price for chips is 20n/kg, the price offered by the factory for roots should be 6n/kg. On the other hand, the farmer incurs more cost in preparing, planting, weeding and harvesting than in soaking, peeling and chipping, and he would probably be loath to accept 6n for roots rather than 20n for chips. We propose therefore, that the factory should negotiate contracts for the supply of fresh roots at 10n/kg.

It may be possible to charge a higher selling price for root-based starch than chip-based, in view of its higher quality. Since the quantity involved is minor, we have not allowed for such a premium in the financial evaluation.

9.3 Agronomic Improvements

There are several ways in which productivity can be increased by judicious advice:

- better planting material
- more uniform plant spacing
- better weed control.
- better control of pests and insects
- rotational cropping

1

All of these improvements can be achieved without cash inputs.

9.3.1 <u>Better Planting Material</u>. Cassava cuttings should not include branches, leafy sections of green stem or roots. The best material to be used is the central portion of the stem where the thickness of the woody tissue is equal to the thickness of the central pith.

There is no detriment to using long cuttings: in fact these tend to be more drought tolerant and lead to a rapid early growth rate.

1.1

1 1 1

1

++

П

 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1

 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
 1
Cuttings should be selected from plants free, or with low incidence of pests and diseases. Both scale insects and mealy bugs are transmitted from crop to crop on planting material and infested cuttings should be discarded. Plants showing symptoms of mosaic disease and bacterial blight should be avoided when selecting cuttings.

In areas where frost is a hazard, the stem can be seriously affected, leading to poor cuttings with low germination potential. Only unfrosted material should be used even if this means that stems are cut and stored in pits before frost can damage them.

9.3.2 Uniform Plant Spacing. Currently farmers are planting a number of cuttings in close proximity on mounds or ridges and leaving large distances between mounds. This leads to severe competition for light, water and nutrients within the mound but allows weed growth to establish between mounds. By better spatial arrangement the crop will require less weeding and provide more unform yields. It is probable that the use of multiple cuttings per mound is related to the use of poor quality planting material. The introduction of better quality cuttings will be needed as a pre-requisite to more organised plant spacing.

9.3.3 Better weed control. Currently weed control is practised during mounding/ridging and during the dry season to reduce the risk of uncontrolled fires destroying the cassava crop. By in roducing better cuttings which are spaced out more evenly, better weed control will accrue from sheding. However, where the use of interplanted crops allows, weeds show hoed out as they compete with the cassava for water and nutions is regrowth in particular should be controlled as the woody space.

Varietal screening and the selection of recommended cassava varieties are still at an early stage in Zambia, and it is not anticipated that much advice on variety can yet be provided to growers.

However, a tuber research unit has been set up recently at Manza, and its work should contribute in the coming years to identifying these varieties most suitable to the Zambian climate. It will be important that, as the most suitable varieties are identified, multiplication units are set up from which good planting material can be distributed to farmers.

9.3.4 Better diagnosis, prevention and control of pests and diseases. Appendix 4 contains a discription of the pests and diseases attacking cassava in Zambia and of the most effective measures against them. The main points are summarised below.

56

т п

Existing Pests		Damage Caused	Effective Measures	
	Scale insects	Suck nourishment	Avoid infested planting stock. Plant early in rainy season.	
	Mealy Bugs	Suck sap	Plant early in rainy	
		Inject harmful substance	season.	
	Termites	Attack cuttings, young plants, even hollow out tubers in drought	Plant early in rainy season Dip or dust with insecticide	
Existing D)iseases			
	Cassava Mosaic (major endemic disease)	Spread by whitefly. Leaf distortion & reduced yields	Use resistant varieties Rogue infected plants.	
	Cassava Bacterial	Wilt, defoliation,	Use resistant varieties	

(Note: frost damage produces similar symptoms; some reported bacterial blight may be the result of frost instead).

Plant healthy stock

stem die-back

Potential Pests & Diseases

Blight

Green Sulphur Mite Attacks leaves, reduces yields

Chemical controls can be used to combat the above pests and diseases, but the small Zambian farmer cannot usually afford them.

Much more practical is the assistance which the extension services can provide in advising on resistant varieties, on the best planting times and on the diagnosis of infested or infected planting stock.

It is important that the extension services should be trained in these matters during the 1982-3 season (see Chapter 11, 'Implementation Scheduling'.

9.3.5 Rotational cropping. Rotational cropping is essential to avoid the build-up of crop specific pests and diseases. In the case of cassava it is more than ever necessary to prevent soil erosion.

Many factors affect the choice of rotation crops, including climate, soil and nutritional and industrial requirements. Where the main objective is to grow cassava, the use of leguminous or pasture crops is attractive, as they require little in terms of additional inputs other than the expanded land area needed to effect a rotation programme. Moreover, leaf meal could be produced from these crops for incorporation into the cassava products to increase their protein content, or the rotation crop could be grazed.

This is another matter on which the extension services should be trained to assist cassava growers.

It will be essential to improving agronomic practices in the short term, and to speeding the adoption of the best varieties in the longer term, that MAWD's extension services should be enthused, and trained to promote these practices and varieties. At present the extension services are, at best, not promoting cassava production. By promoting maize, even in the areas where it is not the most suitable crop, they may well be discouraging cassava.

9.4

Establishment of Factory

The measures proposed above should encourage farmers to increase their output of cassava, in response to a producer price for chips and to advice on agronomic practices.

When it is clear that farmers have increased production of cassava as a cash crop sufficiently, a factory should be set up to produce the high value-added products, starch, glucose and dextrins, as a substitute for imports.

The proposed factory is described in Chaper 10 below.

10. THE STARCH FACTORY

Provided that the proposed organisation of the market for cassava chips leads to an adequate increase in supply, a factory should be set up to produce starch, glucose and dextrins. We show in Chapter 11 that this should not be built before 1986, aiming for commercial production by mid-1987.

Initially the factory should work on two shifts, with some spare capacity to compensate for inexperience. After 3-4 years it should be necessary to introduce a third shift.

After that, it would not be desirable to extend the capacity of the factory, since the area required to supply chips would have been stretched to its economic limit; rather, it would be necessary to set up a factory of the same size in another suitable location.

In the following sub-sections we discuss the best location for the first proposed factory; the engineering of the project; the processes for manufacturing glucose and dextrins from starch; the inputs required; and the cost of transport from factory to market.

10.1 Location and Site

I I I I

1 I I I

11 1

1

1 1

1

1 1 1

The factory would be sited in Kasama in Northern Province and would purchase cassava chips from the parastatal milling and distribution centres. The main criteria for choosing Kasama as a site for the factory are:

- well situated in the centre of the largest cassava growing area.
- Northern Province suitable for cassava production.
- Kasama is on the line of rail and has good road communications with centres of population and industry. (See Map 8).
- The town has readily available services such as power, water, and sewage disposal.
- Kasama is sufficiently large and developed with social amenities, such as schools and hospitals, to attract the calibre of staff required to run such a factory.
- Factory would provide employment in a rural area of the country.
- Transport distances for the cassava chips would be as short as possible since most raw material would be derived from Northern and Luapula Provinces.
- Some fresh roots for high grade starch production would be possible from the vicinity of Kasama.

1

Ť.



Kasama has areas designated for light industrial purposes and it is proposed that one of these would be used.

10.2 Factory Engineering

The starch factory would utilise the most up-to-date equipment currently on the market for starch extraction. The system proposed would be that normally used to extract starch from fresh roots and therefore in the case of chips these will be milled and made into a slurry before joining the flow line. After extraction the product would be dried and packaged for sale. Other products could also be made before the final drying process, these would be glucose and dextrins.

Diagrams of the flow line are shown on the next three pages, including a fresh root and chip reception area, root washing and rasping and chip hammer milling. Starch is extracted from the milk and slurry by a centrifugal process. This is followed by drying, packing and storage. Glucose and dextrins are obtained by the hydrolysis of starch using acid, or an enzyme or a combination of both. In this case simple acid hydrolysis will be used which is intended to free the glucose from the starch. Dextrins are then extracted by a further heating process. The whole design will use equipment as efficiently as possible and the reuse of the same drier for all the products will be planned.

Full flow diagrams of the starch lines, based respectively on roots and chips, are shown in Appendices 5 and 6.

A list of machinery required for the proposed factory is given in Appendix 7. Appendix 8.1 gives details of machinery manufacturers able to undertake turnkey projects, and Appendix 8.2 shows those with experience of supplying some of the machinery required.

10.2.1 Material Storage.

11

11

11 1 ... 1

11 1

Cassava chips will only be produced by the farmers during the dry season, the purchasing season being a maximum of six months as is currently organised for maize. Since the factory would need to operate for 12 months of the year it is proposed to store chips for processing in the wet season. The factory would contract with the parastatal buying system to obtain the requisite amount of raw material and deliver this in bags to the factory. The factory should receive chips rather than flour since the latter would be more difficult to store and handle over long periods.

The quantity of dried chips required by the factory would amount to 3,300 tonnes in its first year (equivalent to 16,500 tonnes fresh roots). Storage capacity of 2,000 tons would need to be erected at the factory site. The chips would be delivered to the factory in hessian sacks, each weighing 50 kilos, which would be emptied into a bulk storage area inside a large A frame building.

1

T T T

1 11

1 1

11.1

FLOW DIAGRAM FOR PROPOSED STARCH PLANT

FRESH ROOTS DRIED CHIPS ł STORAGE STORAGE WASHING AND PEELING HAMMERMILL İ CHOPPING SLURRY TANK **RASPING/DISINTEGRATION** 1 EXTRACTION FINE SCREENING STARCH REFINING DEWATERING DRYING PACKAGING STORAGE

E E

I.I.

I.

П. П.

1 1 1

1

1

Т

1 11

1 11 1 17 17

I.

1 I

....

1 I.

1

1 1



T.

I.



64

1111

1111

1

I I

1 1 1 1

+--+ **J**| |

1.

1

T

1 1 1

I I I

- ! --

I.



The floor area for the outside stack and frame building to allow 2000 tons storage would be approximately 750 square metres, this allows a stack height of 5 metres in bulk.

Contracts will be made with Namboard and co-operatives to supply the chips during the dry season to the factory. Grading standards will be the same as those stated for the buying centres.

Fresh roots will also be supplied to the starch factory during the dry season months. It is intended that 5 tonnes/day of fresh roots will be processed into 1 tonne/day of high-grade starch.

The average cassava yield of fresh roots in Zambia is approximately 5.5 tonnes per hectare. Thus the supply manager would be responsible for contracting with farmers to harvest one hectare equivalent per day. It is likely that the factory would need to collect these roots each day from the farmers in the vicinity of Kasama. The supply manager would therefore need to carefully organise which farmers are harvesting for the factory on any one day so that the transport need only go to one area to collect the roots. The average area grown by Zambian farmers is a quarter of a hectare, this is constrained by labour demands and the subsistence requirements of the households. This would mean four farmers harvesting per day. However the presence of the factory and the supply contracts would tend to encourage the farmer to plant larger areas since the crop would become a cash crop.

The raw materials for the starch factory would therefore be arriving daily during the dry season: chips from the parastatal depots in bags for storage and immediate processing, fresh roots from daily purchases from farmers. These would be processed on the day of arrival and would therefore only be stored temporarily on a concrete floor, preferably under shade.

10.2.2 Processing to Starch. Fresh roots would be washed soon after arrival at the factory to remove soil and then stored ready for peeling. Removing soil is essential to prevent wear on the rasping machine which is the critical process in starch extraction. A washer which removes the cork layer can be constructed so that the roots can go straight into the rasper.

Fresh roots would then be hand peeled. This is far more efficient than machines due to the irregular shape of cassava tubers. Peeling machines currently on the market tend to cause considerable wastage of the tubers. The peeling operation can be simply done by using a knife and cutting longitudinally through the peel. The knife can be inserted under the peel which can then be peeled off in large pieces. Ease of peeling is also a function of root maturity and variety which is another factor which should be considered by the factory purchasing officer. Experience has shown that peeling is best done by women who become particularly skilled at the operation.

1.1

1.1

1

1 11 1

т п т

The rasping machine is designed to break up the "flesh" of the roots and break the cells containing the starch. This stage is critical in starch extraction from cassava since the rasping operation determines to a large extent the amount of starch release. The measure of starch extraction during rasping is known as the "rasping effect" which may vary between 70 and 90% of the starch content released. The rasping machine would be power driven and consists of a rough drum revolving past the foot of the hopper. The roots are forced against the drum and disintegrated into very small particles. The resultant "milk" is run off for starch separation. These machines are simple in construction but need to be accurately set. They would best be constructed in Zambia to existing designs.

A secondary rasping may be necessary depending on the efficiency of the first machine. In separating the starch considerable amounts of water are added to the pulp. The resulting slurry should then be continuously stirred to keep the starch in suspension before screening.

The screening process is simply to remove the starch and the pulp and fibre. The pulp and fibre are then available for inclusion into animal feeds.

At this stage in the process the slurry from the chip reception would enter the line and thereafter the starch purification would be the same. The starch from the fresh roots would however be processed separately from the chips simply by undertaking the process at a different time of day. Approximately one hour of processing time would be required to extract the starch from the fresh root milk, which could be undertaken at the end of the day's processing. Storage tanks to accommodate one day's starch processing would therefore be necessary.

The chips would be taken from storage and fed through a hammer mill to make flour. Some supervision of the feed to the hammer mill should be done to ensure discoloured or mouldy chips were not able to contaminate the flour. The hammer mill would be of standard design and could also be manufactured in Zambia. The machine would have a capacity of 2 tonnes/hour, but two machines of one tonne/hour may be more applicable and less likely to cause delays to the factory should one machine break down.

The slurry process is simply the addition of water to the flour with continual stirring to remove the starch. This would be done in large stainless steel tanks with paddles.

The quality of the water would be important at this stage since from this point the process water is in contact with the starch. Therefore any impurities or chemicals in the water will finish in the product. The town supply at Kasama is reported to be of good potable quality but would need to be analysed before the factory was installed in case some water treatment is necessary. The fact that this good water supply is available is one of the reasons for choosing Kasama as the site for the factory.

66

TTTTT

1 I I III

1.1.1

1 1

1 1

1.1.1

1 I I I I I I

1 I I I I I I

Having obtained the starch in suspension the next stage is to remove it by a settling proc. This term is derived from the rural process of allowing the starch to settle out of suspension on inclined trays or tables. This process is still used in very small rural mills but has been modernised by using centrifugal force to separate the suspended starch from the water. For good quality starch it is essential to remove the starch from the water as rapidly as possible since some sugars remain in the water which subsequently ferment and can impart a sour taste to the flour. The starch will therefore be removed by centrifugal separators followed by further settlement and washing to give a concentrated slurry of starch. Some water can be removed from the slurry using further centrifugal techniques until the starch remaining has a moisture content of about 40%.

The final stages of starch processing will involve the removal of remaining moisture to approximately 12-15% and this is normally achieved by evaporation. Traditionally this drying process was done using inclined trays in the sun or wood fired drying floors but this system is slow and is applicable for installations of only 1-2 tonnes per day. An artificial means of drying would therefore be necessary, this would be by using indirect heat and passing the starch flour through a stream of all of applicable is required to prevent gelatinisation.

The dried starch can now be finished and packed. The finishing process is one which breaks up any lumps and separates any non-starch particles before sieving. Sieving sizes are normally 100 - 200 mesh/inch (4 mesh/mm) to produce a fine grade powder. The starch can then be backed and stored.

10.3 Glucose Manufacture

Glucose is formed when the starch molecule is broken down into its constituent parts by acid. The acid process is known as "Hydrolysis" which produces glucose or dextrose sugar, glucose being less sweet and less soluble in water than sucrose or beet and cane sugar. Glucose is the common name for the syrup and dextrose for the solid sugar. In small plants such as the opplanned the seeding of glucose to form crystals and its subsequent $dryio_{ij}$ a normally too capital intensive a process to be considered. It is therefore proposed that some of the starch from the factory be converted to glucose which will be sold in drums, charged out to customers at full cost.

Two methods are used for the hydrolysis of starch: acid; and partial acid hydrolysis followed by an enzyme conversion. The simplest conversion is to use the acid system exclusively. Hydrochloric acid is normally used. The acid is added to the starch slurry until a desired acidity or PH is reached whereupon the mixture is heated until the desired hydrolysis has taken place. This process can either be on a batch sytem or continuous. A batch system would suffice for such a size of plant and would be easier to operate than a continuous operation. Following hydrolysis the neutralisation takes place by the addition of sodium carbonate to bring the PH to near neutrality (6-7).

It is proposed that the glucose making process use the starch slurry from dried chips after the water has been added to form a slurry and the slurry screened to remove fibre. Quality control tests at this stage will show how much hydrolysis will need to take place. Since the chips will have been derived from fermented roots some hydrolysis will have already occured, but much of this will have been lost in the soaking water during preparation.

The final process is the refining and concentration of glucose. Refining consists of the removal of impurities, such as proteins and fats. These can be removed by centrifugal separation and finally filtration. Colours can be removed by filtration through activated carbon or fullers earth which absorbs all the impurities affecting colour without any effect on the glucose. Concentration, using vacuum batch converters, removes water from the liquid, leaving a concentrated glucose solution which can be packaged in bulk for distribution.

10.4 Dextrins Manufacture

Dextrins are made by the heat treatment of starch and are known as gelatinised starches. Dextrins are used mostly in the adhesive industry with cassava-derived dextrins being of particular value in remoistening gums for envelopes and stamps because of their adhesive properties and agreeable taste.

Three groups of dextrins are recognised,

- British gums
- White dextrins
- Yellow dextrins

The demand identified in Zambia was for yellow and white dextrins. The difference in processes to form the three groups is mainly a function of temperature and PH. The resultant gums vary in solubility in water and in viscosity. In general therefore once the process line has been set up all three could be manufactured according to demand. A simple outline of the different processes is given below.

British gums are formed by heating the starch alone or in the presence of a catalyst to a temperature of between $180 - 220^{\circ}$ C. The resultant product is light to dark brown and gives a solution in water with a lower viscosity than normal starch.

White dextrins are formed using a gentle heat treatment (C80 - 120° C), for a shorter time but in the presence of a stronger catalyst such as hydrochloric acid. The product is then less soluble in water and is almost white in colour.

Yellow dextrins are formed when lower catalyst or acid levels are used but higher temperatures ($150 - 220^{\circ}$ C). Some caramelisation takes place, causing a yellow to brown colouring. These dextrins are easily soluble in water forming solutions of low viscosity.

The dextrins will be in powder form on leaving the factory and packed in 25 kilo paper, polythene lined bags, or as customers direct.

10.5 Inputs Required

The major inputs required for the factory will be:

- manpower
- electricity
- water
- chemicals
- packaging materials
- transport
- oils and fuels.
- **10.5.1** <u>Manpower</u>. It is anticipated that the factory will work 16 hours per day over a five day week. At this working level the current market requirements for starch and starch products would be satisfied. Output could be increased by the introduction of a third shift.

Management levels are expected to be a total of 5 and factory workers a total of 71 on double shift, and 6 and 92 respectively on 3 shifts. The factory has not been designed to be fully automated but rather to create employment in Kasama. A list of the estimated labour is shown overleaf.

The administrative staff would need to cope with payments to farmers and clients for raw materials and accounting purposes, and therefore there will need to be quite a large number of staff.

Labour Force For Factory(double shift)

- 1 Manager
- 1 Assistant Manager
- 1 Technical/Mechanical Superintendant
- 1 Accountant
- 1 Sales and Raw Material Procurement Officer
- 5
- 1 Laboratory Technician
- 3 Foremen
- 3 Mechanics/Maintenance Fitters
- 45 Operators/Labourers
- 5 Guards
- 3 Groundsmen
- 4 Clerks
- 3 Drivers
- **<u>4</u>** Office Staff (Secretarial Staff)
- 71

Total Staff 76

The job title indicates the main duties of each member of staff. This is a suggested level which may need to be changed in the light of circumstances once the factory is established.

- **10.5.2** <u>Electricity</u>. Zambia is fortunate in having an abundant supply of electricity. Kasama is well served, there being a 110 KVA line to the town. Power requirements are estimated at 250 units per tonne of starch which will cost on average K10.00 per tonne produced.
- 10.5.3 Water. Water as stated, must be of good quality and in abundant supply. The starch extraction process is one where considerable quantities of water are used, an estimated 4300 litres per tonne of starch produced.

The quality of water must be high containing no iron salts which will react with the starch to give blue or discoloured products.

Water analysis will need to be done when final plans are drawn up in order to determine the need for water treatment plant. During the field study water analysis was not available but verbal assurance was given that the quality is satisfactory.

1 1 1

1.1.11

1 11

1 11

1

1

1 1

1 1

10.5.4 <u>Chemicals</u>. The main chemical supplies required will be for the manufacture of glucose and dextrins, and this will be hydrochloric acid. This should be obtainable in drums from local Zambian suppliers.

A further chemical may be needed in water treatment. Sulphur dioxide is usually added to the wash water to effectively bleach the starch.

- 10.5.5 <u>Packaging Materials</u>. The starch will be packed in 25 kg plastic bags and the glucose in 200 kg drums. Dextrins will also be packed in plastic bags. Delivery of the products will be by road and rail to Lusaka and the copperbelt.
- 10.5.6 Transport. The transport requirements of the factory will be
 - 1 10 tonne lorry (or tractor and trailer)
 - 1 Pick-up
 - 1 Saloon car.

Dependent upon the vicinity of the contracted growers to the factory collection of roots may be easiest by tractor and trailer. This could substitute for the 10 tonne lorry since the latter will be used mainly for collection or delivery of products to the rail head and for chip and root collection. Chips will mostly be delivered and any long distance road transport will be done by contractor. It is anticipated that most of the fresh root supply will have to be collected for the factory.

Rail will be used as much as possible for inputs and in the delivery of products to the industrial users.

10.5.7 <u>Oils and Fuels.</u> Kasama again is well situated for the supply of oils and fuels. An attempt should be made to standardise on diesel which will also be used for the drier so that bulk purchases can be made. Concessionary terms should be sought on the supply of fuels.

10.6 Delivery Costs

П

The markets for the starch, glucose and dextrins produced in the Kasama factory are mainly in the Copperbelt, Central and Lusaka Provinces, at a distance of between 625 and 800 kilometres (see map 8).

Transport costs were as follows in December 1981:

	Rail Kwacha	Road /tonne
Kasama - Ndola (Copperbelt)	26.1	85
Kasama - Lusaka	27.4	100



Rail transport is much the cheaper method but locomotives and rolling stock are scarce, and even when they are available the haulage from Kasama to the Copperbelt or Lusaka is said to take 9-10 days (the gauges on the Tanzania -Zambia (TANZAM) and internal Zambian railways are different, and goods have to be transferred at the Kapiri Mposhi junction).

Rail should be used when facilities are available, but in evaluating the project we have allowed K100/tonne for delivery costs. The products are sufficiently high-priced to stand this level of transport cost.



11. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULING

Most projects have an assured supply, and depend mainly on as assessment of market demand for their viability. In the case of cassava processing on an industrial scale in Zambia, the reverse is true: there is a proven market demand for starch, glucose and dextrins, but it is uncertain whether the necessary supply of cassava can be stimulated to satisfy the demand.

We are sure that this supply of raw material, chiefly in chip form, must be stimulated before a processing factory is set up. It will take at least two seasons before the Zambian authorities can be confident that the measures, recommended in Chapter 9 above, have been successful in sufficiently increasing cassava production as a cash crop.

To recapitulate, it will be necessary to announce a producer price for chips and to provide a market for them, via Namboard and the co-operatives, in hammer mills. Namboard and CU staff must b trained in buying cassava chips, and extension staff trained in casssava agronomy.

The following timetable is appropriate to the proposed project:

Action	Timing
Zambian Government/NCDP adopts project	Sept/Oct 1982
Government/NCDP appoints Project Manager	Oct 1982
MAWD announces producer price for chips in 1983-4 season (simul	late 1982 taneous with maize pric announcement).
Project Manager organises:	
 training of MAWD extension workers 	1982-83
- training of Namboard/CU cassava chip buyers	1982-83

-	storage trials of cassava chips	1982-83
-	option on factory site in Kasama	early 1983
-	census of existing hammer mills	late 1982
-	construction of new hammer mills in	
	Northern Province where necessary	1982-83

It is <u>essential</u> that the above actions are completed before the buying season begins in June 1983, so that farmers responding to the new incentives to grow cassava find that the market is indeed available.

After a period of two years, during which sales should increase and the system becomes established, the next action should be:

brief re-appraisal of project feasibility

11 11

11 1

1 11

i I

П

Aug/Sept 1985.

e

1

1.11

1.11

PE

If the results are satisfactory, the timetable should proceed as follows:			
Acti	ion	Timing	
Proj	ect Manager		
-	issues design brief/tender document for plant	Oct 1985	
-	issues tender documents for building work, with		
	provisional specification for production		
	building	Dec 1985	
-	appoints accountant, technical manager,		
	l foreman, 1 mechanic, 2 office staff,		
	1 driver, 2 guards, 4 general workers	Jan/June 1986	
-	receives tenders for plant	Jan 1986	
-	updates specification for production building	Jan 1986	
-	receives tenders for building work	Feb 1986	
-	appoints contractor for plant	Mar 1986	
-	appoints contractor for building work	April 1986	
-	takes up option on factory site	early 1986	
-	appoints sales and raw materials purchasing		
	officer, 2 clerks, 2 drivers, 1 guard,		
	4 general workers	July/Dec 1986	
-	appoints assistant manager and all staff up		
	to one-shift level for trial run period	Jan/June 1987	
Con	tractors		
-	complete finished products store	Jan 1987	
-	complete production building sufficiently		
	for plant to be installed	Jan 1987	
-	complete building work	April 1987	
-	start commissioning of plant and training staff	May 1987.	

Trial runs at this stage will result in an estimated 50% of output being saleable. Quality testing and offers of samples to potential customers for testing will be made.

-	Plant begins production on commercial scale	July 1987
-	Staff is built up to two-shift level	July/Dec 1987

Inputs of finance are shown in Chapter 12, dealing with financial evaluation.



12. FINANCIAL EVALUATION

The main points of the financial evaluation of the starch, glucose and dextrins factory are set out below, including, in 12.1.6, a sensitivity analysis. The model can be used for a very rapid re-evaluation of the project at any time. If the project proceeds, actual results can be fed into the model to provide an instant picture of their implications on the factory's financial performance.

We also made a financial evaluation of a factory making starch only and supplying this to outside manufacturers of glucose and dextrins. The results of this evaluation, showing a much lower IRR than the multi-product factory, are shown in 12.2 below.

12.1 Financial Statements

The financial evaluation of the project has been done using a computer model the print out from which is attached as Appendix 9 Reports 1-13. The model logic for individual items is described in the notes attached as Reports 1A-12A, explaining the basis on which figures have been calculated.

In overall terms the model matrix is divided into two elements. Year C shown in the first two columns represents the construction period of 18 months. Year CP1 represents cost build ups in the first 12 months of project development and construction. This compression is possible since it is assumed all initial development will be done out of equity capital and has the advantage of enabling us to show more periods in the operations phase. Year CP2 represents the final six months of installation and trial runs. Thereafter ie years P1 onwards, operational years are shown in six monthly intervals (P1 = July-December, P2 = January-June). This format enables the model to demonstrate the effect of the seasonal raw material purchasing pattern on stocks and cash flow. For the same reason it is assumed that the project will have a financial year July 1st - June 30th so that year opening coincides with the major buying season.

The overall financial performance of the project is good as shown in the following summaries.

12.1.1 Profit and Loss (Report 8)

The project achieves a profit in its first year and as sales increase generates substantial cash flows to enable it to repay all borrowed capital by the end of operational year 6 period 1. By year 6 period 2 the project is at optimal practical volume and the half year's results show the following:-

	K'000
Sales	2,088
Less raw materials	612
Gross added value	1,476
Less other variable costs	410
Contribution	1,065
Less fixed costs	597
Profit before tax	468
Tax at 45%	211
Nett Profit	258

Thus, allowing a reasonable retention of funds for future years, a dividend of between K150-200,000 could be declared for the half year, representing an annual dividend of 15-20% on the equity capital of K2,000,000. Such a distribution would only be possible from about year 5 onwards.

12.1.2 Balance Sheet and Capital Funding (Report 9)

The project will require initial capitalisation as follows (see Yr.C P2).

	K'000	K'000
Sources of funds		
Equity capital Term Ioan capital (75% P & M)		2,000 1,800
Total funds		3,800
Application Fixed Assets		
Land	25	
Factory buildings	500	
Housing	250	
Plant and machinery	2,400	
Vehicles		3,245

	K'000	K'000
Pre-production Working Cap	ital	
Stocks	36	
Debtors	31	
Cash in hand	194	261
Pre-production expenses		294
		3.800

NB Pre-production trial runs are expected to bring in sales equal to approximately 50% of the raw materials used.

The basis of the capitalisation is the assumption that term loan financing will be available to a maximum of 75% of the cost of plant and machinery. The remainder is to be funded from fixed capital with short term overdrafts used to fund the substantial initial working capital requirements until self generated funds are available to take over.

The project's funds flow is more than adequate to service this capital profile and the project becomes totally self financing by the end of year 6 period 1 at which time the position is as follows.

	K'000	K'000
Sources of funds		
Fixed capital Revenue Reserves	2,104	2,000
Less surplus cash	816	1,288
Nett capital employed		3,288
Applications of Funds		
Nett fixed assets		1,848
Current assets		
Stocks Debtors Cash in hand	1,003 482 96 1,581	
Less current liabilities	141	1,440
Total Nett Assets		3,288

77

11.1

Ш

NB

The cash surpluses represent additional funds flow not immediately needed in the business.

Working capital requirements are substantial and grow from an initial requirement Yr.1 P1 of K842,000 to a level K1,441,000 by Yr.5 P2 levelling off thereafter. Initially K400,000 has been financed by an overdraft facility. This represents less than 50% of the total requirement and can normally be expected to be available. The overdraft is paid off by the end of year three period 1.

Term lending of K1,800,000 is equal to 75% of the cost of plant and machinery. The moratorium is three years from disbursement in Year C period 2, and repayments, at six monthly rests, take place during the following three years. The term loan is divided between two headings to enable loans of different terms to be built into the model should this prove necessary in future.

The model takes a conservative view of capitalisation which could be reduced by using a short term overdraft on a revolving basis to fund raw material stock peaks.

12.1.3. Funds Flow Statements (Report 10)

The project sustains a surplus cash position throughout its life. Funds need to be retained to finance the relatively short term loan repayment cycle, where in certain years the annual cash flow goes into deficit.

Given this debt servicing level then distributions to risk capital will be minimal for the first five years of the project. Thereafter however good dividends can be paid. Cumulative surpluses are available sufficient for a small dividend of 5% per annum from year 2 onwards, building up from an annual cumulative surplus in Yr.2 Pl of K132,000 to one of K476,000 in Yr.4 P2.

12.1.4 Financial Ratios (Report 12)

The project's performance indicates the importance of achieving good throughput. Fixed expenses are high and in the early stages represent 53% of sales value dropping to 29% once higher throughput is achieved. This pattern is confirmed by the percentage of profit after tax to sales and it should be noted that given the high tax level of 45% the profit percentage is almost halved once tax becomes payable.

The profit on capital employed is good, achieving a level of 20.3% in terms of gross capital employed and a very creditable 30.9% on nett capital employed. This assumes substantial internal funding and early term loan repayments which mean that risk capital has to wait a considerable period before appreciable dividends can be paid.

The high capitalisation of the project is demonstrated by the fact that once established, capital is only turned over once a year and apart from the relatively high fixed capital investment, the current ratio of 11.2 to 1 indicates the high levels of stock and retained cash holdings needed to finance the crop purchases.

The overall capitalisation is conservative in development banking terms with term loans representing initially some 50% of capital employed. Debt service is reasonable dropping substantially during the major repayment period Yrs.3 P2 - Yr.6 P1. The term loan is repaid in a relatively short oeriod which could be extended if this became necessary.

12.1.5 Internal Rate of Return (Report 12)

The internal rate of return of the project is an overall 13.64%. This is marginally above the cost of term loan capital at 13.5% and it is this debt service burden, coupled with a high risk capital component which accounts for the difference between the fully operational return on capital employed and the overall internal rate of return.

Given the importance to peasant agriculture of opening new markets for their crops by local processing perhaps more reasonable interest rates could be considered, at levels more in line with lending to the agricultural sector rather than the industrial sector.

12.1.6 Sensitivity Analysis (Report 13)

We have calculated in the sensitivity analysis the effect on cumulative funds flow and on profit after tax of changes in volume of sales (sales factor) and selling prices (price factor). The range calculated is 0 to -15% in 5% stages.

In overall terms it will be seen that the project is much more sensitive to price fluctuations than to volume fluctuations. This is particularly marked in the schedules showing effect on cumulative cash flow. In the case of price variations a drop of five percent results in a periodic maximum cash shortfall of K126,630 whilst a drop of 10% in sales volume only shows a periodic cash shortfall of K36,070. Profits after tax are not as dramatically affected since the major cash shortfalls occur due to heavy debt servicing.

It would probably be possible to reschedule the debt service to enable the factory to continue should such adverse conditions arise as follows:

- in terms of price sensitivity a price drop of 5% could be easily accommodated by loan repayment scheduling. More than this would require a major rethink of the project.
- in terms of sales volume a drop of 10% could be easily accommodated and one of as high as 15% could possibly still yield a fundable project but investment return would be very low.

12.2 Factory for Cassava Starch Only

We have modelled the factory on the basis of the cassava factory producing and selling starch only. The basis of the model is that overall output and sales will be the same, and that capitalisation will be on a similar basis as follows:

	Multiple Product		Starch	ו Only
	K'000	%	K'000	%
Share Capital Term Loan	2,000 1,800	52.6 47.4	1,700 1,200	58.6 41.4
	3,800	100.0	2,900	<u>100.0</u>

The marginal difference in structure is caused by rounding up figures, and gives the more conservative view of lower loan capital content. The overdraft has been retained on the same basis since this is tied to working capital which has not altered significantly. Fixed asset cost has been reduced by K900,000, the cost of the glucose and dextrin plant.

The term loan conditions and repayment has been retained on the same basis as the multiple product factory. The reports 1-12 for this option are shown in Appendix 10.

In overall terms the project's internal rate of return is reduced to 8.36%. It does not offer a very attractive proposition to risk investors and would require loan capital to be made available with longer grace periods.

12.2.1 Profit & Loss Account (Report 8)

The factory does not achieve profit break even until year 2 period 1. Subsequent profitability is at a very low level and dividends to equity capital are unlikely to be forthcoming until the 7th year of the project after all debt servicing has been completed.

12.2.2 Balance Sheets (Report 8)

The initial capitalisation of the factory at the end of the construction period is as follows:

	K'000
Sources of funds	
Equity	1,700
Term loans	<u>1,200</u>
	2,900

K'000

Aliestions	
Applications	0.715
Fixed assets	2,345
Working capital	102
Cash	161
Pre-production expenses	292
	2,900

As set up the project has sufficient capital to start operations. Applying the same conditions, repayments are too burdensome as described in the fund flow statement comments below.

12.2.3 Funds Flow Statement (Report 10)

The factory initially has sufficient capital injections to meet its needs. However from year 2 onwards cumulative cash deficits build up to a maximum of K194,000 and are not paid off until the end of year 6.

This arises due to applying the same loan terms as the multi-product factory and the situation could be alleviated by providing longer grace periods. These will need to be of the order of six months' extra grace period on the overdraft and a full year's extra grace period on the term loan.

12.2.4 Key Financial Ratios (Report 11)

Contribution is reduced from 51% to 41%. Fixed costs as a percentage of sales are initially higher but level off at the same figure. This is due to fixed costs being reduced by the plant maintenance charges. Profit on sales is marginally lower in line with the lower contribution. Given the overall reduced profitability and cash flow all other key ratios also demonstrate a poorer performance from the starch only factory.

13. ECONOMIC EVALUATION

The most important elements in the economic evaluation of the project are shown below. All prices and costs are at constant 1981 levels.

13.1 Foreign Exchange Balance

Foreign exchange outgoings will be as follows:

- the estimated investment of K 3.245 million in fixed assets (Report 5) will include approximately K 2.8 million of imports (all the K 2.4 million of plant and equipment, over K 300,000 of factory and housing building components and all the K 70,000 of vehicles).
- interest on medium and long-term debts, payable by the project to Zambian leading institutions in Kwacha, is assumed to be payable by these institutions to overseas sources of finance in foreign exchange (Report 8)
- the import content of 'other variable costs' (Report 8), consisting of fuel, chemicals and packing materials, is estimated at 90% of their total
- the import content of maintenance costs (Report 8), consisting mainly of spare parts, is estimated at 67% of their total.

Conversely, the factory's sales will be entirely import substitution, apart from the 10% premium over 1981 import prices which users are assumed willing to pay for a Zambian source of supply. (See table 8, Chapter 8).

On the above assumptions the balance of outgoings and savings in foreign exchange will be as follows:

	Yr CP1	Yr CP2	Yr 1 P1+2	Yr 2 P1+2 (K'	Yr 3 P1+2 000)	Yr 4 P1+2	Yr 5 P1+2	Yr 6 P1+2	
Foreign Exchange Outgoings				•	·				
Fixed assets Med/Long term interest Other variable costs Maintenance	850 - 36 5	1950 61 36 5	- 244 443 194	- 244 495 234	- 244 562 274	182 630 316	102 662 356	20 71 <i>3</i> 356	
Total outgoings	891	2052	881	973	1080	1128	1120	1089	
Period Balance	- 891	-1870	+1412	+1620	+1874	+2182	+2550	+2670	
Cumulative Balance	-891	-2761	-1349	+271	+2145	+4327	+6877	+9547	

It is clear that foreign exchange outgoings will be recouped by the end of the second year of production.

13.2 Other Economic Factors

Among the other factors to be taken into account the following are significant:

- the factory will employ 77 people on double shift and almost 100 on three shifts. It may be necessary to employ expatriates initially for the technical manager and laboratory technician posts, involving some costs in foreign exchange. Other management staff and some of the mechanics and clerks will be transferred from other firms in Zambia, rather than trained up within the project organisation. Otherwise the factory can be staffed by people at present unemployed or underemployed.
- some thousands of farmers will be given the opportunity to earn cash from cassava rather than grow it solely as a subsistence crop.
- both these circumstances should have a multiplier effect on employment in Northern Province, helping to counteract the drift towards urbanisation.

14. CONCLUSION

The industrial market in Zambia for starch, glucose and dextrins, derivable from cassava, is growing. It relies entirely on imports, and would welcome a Zambian source of supply, provided that quality requirements are met.

The prices which users are willing to pay, the volume of the market and the prospective factory costs combine to make the proposed project financially attractive. It would be economically beneficial, especially in saving foreign exchange.

The critical question is whether Zambian farmers in Northern Province can be induced to increase cassava output sufficiently to supply the project. The actions outlined in Chapter 11 are urgent.

If they are effective in stimulating production, we are confident that the proposed project will be successful.

Submitted for P-E International Operations Limited by

D. R. attain

D R Atkinson Project Leader

APPENDIX 1

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR CONSULTING SERVICES



Elaboration of an Integrated Cassava Processing Factory concept for the production of a variety of marketable cassava products supported by relevant economic calculations.

Responsibilities and Duties of the Contractor.

- A. <u>With regard to the field study work to be carried out in Zambia the</u> contractor is expected to carry out the following activities:
- a) Assess the existing situation in the agricultural cassava production sector with regard to the variety, quantity and quality of cassava tubers presently produced;
- Assess and evaluate the organisational aspects and managerial situation in the agricultural cassava production sector and the marketing proceedings presently applied;
- c) Study the planting, growing, harvesting and post-harvesting techniques presently applied;
- d) Assess the infrastructural situation and comment on its suitability and/or requirements;
- e) Study the present utilisation of cassava tubers in view of direct consumption, village-scale processing small-scale processing and industrial-scale processing and comment on its suitability;
- Assess the domestic market situation and specify the cassava products presently available, with regard to variety, quality, quantity and price structure;
- g) Evaluate the domestic market potential for cassava products and specify types, quality and quantity of cassava products expected to be in demand and outline their most practical price structure and development trends;
- Evaluate the opportunities that exist in the country for exports of cassava products. Specify these products with regard to quality and quantity and estimate the expected export benefit derived therefrom;
- i) Based on the assessments, evaluations and otherwise studies as mentioned above, specify the types, quantity and quality of the marketable products to be produced by the cassava processing factory to be defined and estimate the quantity and quality of the cassava tuber raw materials required for this purpose;
- j) Comment on the present situation in the agricultural cassava production sector and based on the assessments mentioned under the paragraph a) to
 e) above define the action to be taken in order to make available the required cassava tuber raw materials as estimated under para i) above. Estimate the average cassava raw material costs;
- k) Estimate the costs involved in the up-dating of the agricultural cassava production sector and outline the expected man power, equipment and other requirements;

Assess wages and salaries commonly paid in the country under review and the water and power costs.

1)

g)

i)

B. With regard to the elaboration of the cassava processing factory concept, the contractor is expected to carry out the following activities.

- a) Define the most suitable processing technology for the production of each of the cassava products to be produced and prepare relevant quantified process and product flow diagrams;
- b) Integrate the different product and process flow diagrams in one overall process and product flow that characterises the processing technology of the cassava processing factory to be defined. By doing so, due consideration has to be given to the utilisation of the by-products and residues of one process by the other in order to guarantee the optimum utilisation of the cassava tuber raw material;
- c) Based on the quantified flow diagrams specify the required equipment by using relevant equipment items from known processes that are available in the market;
- d) Outline the engineering design in principle for such equipment that may not be available in the market and has to be newly developed in connection with the cassava processing factory concept to be defined;
- e) Prepare principal factory lay-out plans and specify the pipings, fittings, motors and other electrical and mechanical installations that are required for the appropriate function of the cassava processing factory to be defined;
- f) Outline the type and size of the required factory buildings that meets with the conditions that exist in the country under review and specify the type of building material most suitably to be used;
 - Specify the service requirements if any of the cassava processing factory such as for example repair and maintenance workshops, laboratory, storage facilities, spare-part stocks, steam boiler, main water pumps, etc. as well as the administrative facilities;
- Specify the techno-economic data of the cassava processing factory such as manpower requirements, energy, steam, and water consumption figures and define the throughput capacity (raw material) and the production capacity (products);
 - Based on the results of the studies mentioned under A) above, outline those measures in details that need to be taken inorder to secure the required raw material supply to the factory, the production concept of which has been defined;

Elaborate a suitable practical management plan for the integrated cassava processing factory concept starting with cassava production controls and raw material provisioning and ending with marketing operations thereby covering the entire production process of the cassava processing factory.

j)

- C) With regard to the economic and financial calculations to be prepared in support of the proposed cassava processing factory concept, the contractor is expected to carry out the following activities.
- a) Estimate the investment costs for the entire cassava processing factory as outlined and defined (para B above);
- b) Based on the raw material cost assessment (para A,j) above and the specifications prepared (para B,h) above estimate the expected operating costs;
- c) On this basis (para C,b) above define the cassava raw material price limits and comment on the incentives derived therefrom fro the cassava production sector/farmers;
- Prepare a plant investment and schedule of construction layout over one or more stages consisting of fixed assets (equipment, land, buildings, others), preliminary expenses (planning services, start-up expenses, others) working capital, interest and total investment cost over a reasonable period;
- e) Estimate the required working capital, depreciation, replacement and residual values as wril as annual income and capital structure if considered appropriate and prepare relevant cash flow calculations;
- f) On this basis and by obtaining all other relevant data prepare a comprehensive economic feasibility analysis as a basis for investment considerations.

APPENDIX 2



ORGANISATIONS AND COMPANIES INTERVIEWED

1. Interviewed on General, Marketing and Technical Subjects

National Commission for Development Planning Ministry of Commerce and Industry Ministry of Agriculture and Water Development (Planning Unit; Mt Makulu Research Station;) National Council for Scientific Research National Nutrition Commission Development Bank of Zambia Ltd Indeco Ltd Indeco Milling Ltd, Ndola National Milling Co. Ltd, Lusaka Zambia Breweries Ltd, Lusaka and Ndola National Breweries Ltd, Kitwe Supa Baking Co. Ltd, Lusaka Kabwe Industrial Fabrics Ltd, Kabwe National Drug Co. Ltd, Lusaka and Kabwe General Pharmaceuticals Ltd, Kabwe Duncan Gilbey & Matheson Ltd, Lusaka Kafue Textiles Ltd. Buhler Maig Zambia Kabwe Textile Mills Family Biscuits Ltd, Lusaka Imco Ltd. Lusaka Zambia Bottlers Ltd, Lusaka Kamms, Makeni, Lusaka Local Government and Lands Brian Colquhoun, Hugh O'Donnell & Partners (Zambia)

	PE
L	

2. Individuals Interviewed by Agronomist Team

Provincial Agricultural Officer, Solwezi	K J Sinyangwe
Crop Husbandry Officer, Solwezi	W K Ngalande
District Secretary, Chizela,	Major Chisha
Marketing and Co-operatives Officer, Solwezi	E C Kamalamba
Planning Officer, Solwezi	J Hansen
Nutritional District Council, Kabompo	Miss R Iversen
IRDP, Kabompo	Dr J Pemle
Farm Management and Extension Officer, IRDP, Kabompo	M Galama
G.T.Z. Frankfurt, W.Germany	H D Drechsler
IRDP Control Unit, Lusaka	D N Siame
IRDP Co-ordinator, Kabompo	Dr U Weyl
Chairman District Council, Acting District Governor Kabompo	A Njambela
District Secretary, Kabompo, NWP	M Mukwamataba
Supervisor of Crop Trial Plots - IRDP, Kabompo, NWP	C Samukonga
IRDP Co-ordinator, Mpika, NP	D Pudsey
Horticultural Officer, Acting Provincial Agricultural Officer, Kasama	Mr Chibela
Provincial Land Use Planning Officer, Kasama	Mr Faeste
Officer in Charge, Misamfu Research Station, Kasama	OK Sinyangwe
Project Co-ordinator Agronomist, Misamfu Research Station, Kasama	H C Svads
IRDP Extension Training Officer, Kasama	H Moebjerg
Home Economics Officer, Kasama	Miss M Malama
Cartographer, MAWD, Kasama	G Chileshe
Mill Manager, Northern Co-operative Union, Kasama	Y I Umar
Assist Director, Mt Makulu Research Station, Lusaka	D M Naik
Assist Director, Mr Makulu Research Station, Lusaka	R Vernon
Livestock & Pest Research Centre, National Council for Scientific Research, Lusaka	Dr JB Jayasinghe
Cereals Co-ordinator, Mt Makulu Research Station, Lusaka	A Prior
Commercial Farmer, Ndola	C Gent
Commercial Farmer, Mkushi	A D Anderson
Economist, Planning Unit MAWD, Lusaka	B Baldwin
Agronomist, IRDP, Mpika	R Mellok

APPENDIX 3

PE

j.

CROP INTAKE BY OFFICIAL MARKETING ORGANISATIONS IN ZAMBIA

Commodity	Marketing Year Ending 30 April						
Commonly	Quantity	1976-77	1977-78	1978-79	1979-80	1980-81	
Bought by Namboard and	d PCUs						
White maize	90kg hag	8,333,022	7,738,347	6,462,847	3,732,874	4,247,404	
Sunflower	50kg bag	319,291	266,413	151.027	238, 171	5	
S/G nuts	80kg baq	118,340	43,275	27,921	34,215	27., 394	
Paddy rice	80kg bag	26,162	23.256	36,565	23,156	2.065	
Soya beans	90kg bag	6,714	14,151	13,186	14,387	34,235	
Wheat	90kg bag	43,867	59,158	58,342	72,530	lit ++ 45	
Barley	90kg bag	1,717	3,181	736	-	-	
Mixed beans	90kg bag	1,872	2,119	294	2,981	24,945	
Sugar beans	90kg bag	117	71	380	374	7814	
Velvet beans	90kg bag	20 ⁿ	71	102	227	256	
Sorghum	90kg bag	1,175	8,881	9,094	1,561	1,038	
Cow peas	90kg bay	189	175	114	54	130	
Sunhemp	90kg bag	71	126	82	54	100	
Finger millet	90kg bag	28	ń	-	2	2.641	
Bought by other State B	lodies						
Seed notton	kg	3,884,450	8,928,831	8,429,639	14,916,241	22,912,830	
Tea leaves	kg	10,168	81,446	144,120	249,279	313,858	
Roasted coffee	kg	32,692	43,947	77,225	23,911	28,096	
+Sugar-cane	mt	779,611	691,369	774,811	887,515	919,717	
Tobacco-Virginia	kg	6,262,492	5,588,072	3,703,608	4,590,567	4,126,679	
Tobacco-Burley	kg	211,590	311,742	264,049	386,783	554.416	

refers to Calendar year 1976-77 means 1976 calendar year and so on

refers to Fiscal year ending 31 March.

PESTS AND DISEASES OF CASSAVA IN ZAMBIA



INTRODUCTION

Although a countrywide survey of the pest and disease situation has not been carried out, sufficient circumstantial evidence is available through reports and observation to suggest that a number of serious pests and diseases are present in Zambia. These must be seen to be responsible for significant yield losses and pose a serious threat to increased production. A better understanding of pests and diseases by the extension services could lead to an improvement of the current situation.

PESTS

The protracted dry season renders cassava prone to insect pests which thrive under dry conditions. A number of these colonise the cassava to draw their food requirements from the plant.

Scale Insects

Severe infestations by this pest were observed during the consultants' visit to Zambia, particularly at Misamfu Research Station, Kasama, in Northern Province. The insects resembled **Aonidomytilus albus** but proper identification should be carried out by a competent entomologist.

Heavy scale populations cover the stem and lateral buds. Sucking activities weaken the plant, cause defoliation and death to the stem apex, and may even kill young plants. Although wind dispersal is known to occur the pest is usually transmitted from crop to crop on infested cuttings. The scale population increases during dry periods: therefore crops of cassava planted late in the rainy season, thereby entering the dry season in an immature stage of development, are particularly prone to severe damage.

Some natural parasitism of the scale occurs, particularly by the coccinellid **Chilocorus distigma.** Avoidance of infested plants for use as planting material is the best method available to subsistence farmers. Applications of systemic insecticides to plants which will be used for planting material is recommended for those situations where cash is available. As a last resort, infested cuttings can be dipped in insecticide but even after killing the scales, the performance of the cutting may be poor.

Mealybugs. This important pest has been reported in Northern Zambia and again is favoured by the dry season. High mealybug infestations are reported to cause severe problems to the cassava plant. Initially attacking the terminal area of the shoots, the insects invade older parts of the shoot, petioles and leaves when population pressure becomes severe. The damage to the plant is done in two ways; by sucking sap and by introducing an unidentified substance into the plant during sap-sucking which causes stunting of the shoot. Heavy populations result in gross distortion of the shoot apex, die-back and in severe cases death of the plant. The causative organism **Phenacoccus Manioti** is believed to have been introduced to Africa from S. America.
The insect pest is dispersed on infested planting material or by wind. Control by chemical methods through the dipping of cuttings is the only sure method of combatting the pest. No natural predators are known which are effective at low-level mealybug populations. Farmers can reduce potential damage by the pest by planting early in the rainy season to ensure that the crop is well established and thus better equipped to withstand an attack during the dry season.

Termites. These insect pests attack cuttings, young plants and even root-tubers in extreme cases. The severity of the attack is related to the length of the drought, and plants established late in the rainy season are particularly prone to attack. Wilted shoots and dead plants are the symptoms of termite attack. The tubers of apparently healthy plants may be found to have been hollowed out by termites on harvesting. Very high losses are reported when cuttings are planted into termite infested soils during dry periods. Insecticide treatment to cuttings by dipping or dusting has been shown to be an effective method of protection.

Whiteflies. Although not considered to be an economic pest of cassava per se, the whitefly Bemisia tabaci (and other Bernisia spp) have been observed on cassava in Zambia. The importance of this pest is related to its suggested role as vector of African Mosaic Disease.

DISEASES

Cassava Mosaic Disease. This is the major disease of cassava in Africa and is endemic throughout the continent, Zambia included. Believed to be caused by a virus (or a complex of viruses) transmitted by the whitefly (**Bernisia** spp), the disease causes considerable losses. Depending on the severity of infection the symptoms vary from mild yellowish mottling of leaves to severe leaf distortion and yellow areas. Leaves are reduced in size by severe infections and root yields may be reduced by as much as 80 percent depending on the cultivar grown. Differing degrees of resistance to the disease are known, and the use of those showing high degrees of resistance is a recommended method of combatting the disease. Recent research indicates that roguing infected plants may hold promise as a means of preventing the serious build-up of the disease in clean plantations.

Cassava Bacterial Blight. This disease is reported in the Northern Province and is caused by **Xanthomonas Manihotis.** The organism causes water-soaked angular spots on leaves which may develop into more serious symptons including blight, wilt, defoliation and stem die-back. Exudation of gum from leaf veins, petioles and immature stem may also occur. As the disease is caused by a vascular pathogen, it can move throughout the plant even to the roots. Similarly the disease is passed from year to year by the use of infected planting material cut from plants with the disease. Infection from diseased plants to healthy plants within a crop is by rain splash or on contaminated hand tools, clothing etc. Varieties showing high levels of resistance to the disease are known and are recommended in countries where available. Cuttings from healthy plants should be used as planting material where possible.



Methods are available for the production of disease-free cuttings from diseased plants, and can be used where otherwise healthy material is not available.*

FROST DAMAGE

Although frosts are predictable during most years in many parts of Zambia, especially the Central and Southern Plateau areas, occasional frosts may occur all over the country. Mild frost affects cassava by causing bronzing of the leaves. As the severity of the frost increases its effects on the plant increase from leaf scorch, defoliation, stem-tip, die-back, to total death of above-ground parts of the plant. Providing the soil does not freeze the cassava plant will survive air frosts of -10° C. Even though all the above-ground parts of the plant will be killed, growth is resumed from buds on the stem base or planting piece below soil level.

Frosted cassava which has been defoliated and the green-portions of the stem killed resemble those severely attacked by cassava bacterial blight or **Phoma** spp. Some reports of these diseases in Zambia may have been caused by frost.

OTHER PESTS AND DISEASES

Pests and diseases other than those described above may occur in Zambia, but no reports are available.

They may occur in neighbouring countries and can be expected to spread into Zambia. One such example is the pest 'green spider mite'. This pest was introduced by accident from the Americas to Uganda and is spreading to many parts of Central West and East Africa. The mite is particularly severe in areas with long dry seasons and its activities in the growing point and developing leaves at the stem apex, cause a severe reduction in leaf size. This results in poorer yields. The Zambian authorities should be on the lookout for the appearance of this pest.

*Footnote:

Ref: 'The International Exchange and Testing of Cassava Germ Plasma in Africa edited Eugene Terry & Reginald Macintyre; pub'd 1975 by International Development Research Centre.



SECTION 1

T

I.

I.

П

1.1

1 I II.







APPENDIX 7

 $[\cdot]_{-}$

1 I

1 - 1 = - - 1

T.

LIST OF MACHINERY REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED FACTORY

PE

A. STARCH EXTRACTION - Fresh Roots and Chips

- 2 x Conveyor/Elevator
- $1 \times Washer$
- 2 x Chopper
- 2 x Rasping Machine
- 2 x Elevator
- 2 x Hopper
- 2 x Dosage Screw
- 1 x Disintegrator
- 1 x Pump
- 2 x Slurry Tank with paddle
- 1 x Starch Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Starch Separator
- 1 x Cyclone for sand extraction
- 1 x Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Separator
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Vacuum Filter with feed tank
- 1 x Screw conveyor
- 1 x Flash drier
- 1 x Screen/Sieve
- 1 x Starch Bulk Silo
- 1 x Bagging Machine
- 1 x Sewing Machine
- 1 x Conveyor



B. GLUCOSE PRODUCTION

1 x Pump

1 x Balance Tank/Starch Suspension Tank

1 x Acid Tank

1 x Vacuum Filter with feed tank

1 x Pump

1 x Water Tank

1 x Flow Meter

1 x Pump

1 x Water Heater

1 x Plate Heat Exchanger

1 x Centrifugal Heat Exchanger

1 x Monopump and Filter

1 x Temperature Recorder

1 x Plate Heat Exchanger (cooler)

1 x Expansion Chamber

1 x pH Meter

1 x Caustic Tank

1 x Pump

T.

I.

1 x Filter/Clarifier

1 x Holding Tank

1 x Filling Machine

1 x Drum Filling & Weighing Machine

1

1 I I

Т

Т

Ť.

T.



C. DEXTRIN PRODUCTION

1 x Conveyor Elevator

- 1 x Reactor Vessel
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Acid Tank
- 1 x Pump
- 1 x Water
- 1 x Conveyor
- $1 \times Sifter$
- 1 x Conveyor
- 1 x Bulk Store/Bin
- 1 x Bagging Machine
- 1 x Sack Sewing

D. UTILITIES REQUIRED

- 1 x Boiler
- 1 x Sulphur Dioxide Plant
- 1 x Hydrochloric Acid Plant
- 1 x Caustic Soda Mixing Plant
- 1 x Effluent Treatment Plant (Civil engineering)
- **Process Piping**
- Process Control Systems
- Utility Piping
- Electrical Works and Cable
- **Building Materials**
- Spare parts, workshop and store.

APPENDIX 8

1. DETAILS OF MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS ABLE TO PROVIDE TURNKEY FACTORIES



NAME & ADDRESS OF COMPANY

- 1. ALFA LAVAL AB POSTFACK S14700 TUMBA, SWEDEN
- 2. HOVEX ENGINEERING LIMITED AE - KADE 35a P O BOX 105 VEENDAM, HOLLAND
- 3. KOMATSUGAWA CHEMICAL ENGINEERING COMPANY LIMITED 5F TMM BUILDING NO. 10-5, 1-CHOME IWAMOTO-CHO CHIYODA-KU TOKYO,101, JAPAN
- 4. NIVOBA POSTBUS 40 9640 VEENDAM, HOLLAND
- 5. NEWELL DUNFORD ENGINEERING LTD NEWELL DUNFORD HOUSE PORTSMOUTH ROAD SURBITON SURREY UK
- 6. PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE (PRODA) 3 INDEPENDENCE LAYOUT P O BOX 609 ENUGU, NIGERIA
- 7. SALZGITTER INDUSTRIEBAU GmbH POSTFACH 411169 3320 SALZGITTER 41 F R GERMANY
- 8. STARCOSA GmbH POSTFACH 5105 AM ALLEN BALMHOF 5 D 3300 BRAUNSCHWEIG F R GERMANY

9. UBERSEE-TECHNIK RODINGSMARKT 29 2000 HAMBURG 11 F R GERMANY

COMMENTS

Complete starch plants from cassava using centrifugal process. Fresh roots to starch only.

Complete engineering design and installation of starch factories.

Consulting engineering and project preparation.

Compact containerised starch plants. Considerable experience of cassava processing especially from dried chips. Also glucose and dextrin plants.

Complete gari manufacturing plants on turnkey basis. Little experience of starch production.

Design and fabrication of equipment for processing raw cassava into gari.

Complete starch glucose and dextrin plants from fresh cassava.

Cassava flour plants and complete starch plants.

Planning and erection of industrial plant, specialising in equipment for the production of starch, and starch derivatives.



NAME & ADDRESS OF COMPANY

- 1. ANHYDRO A/S OSTMARKEN 8 DK-2860 SOBORG-COPENHAGEN DENMARK
- 2. A P V MITCHELL 30 THORNTON ROAD THORNTON HEATH SURREY UK
- 3. BERNAUER SECADORES INDUSTRIAIS LTDA CIAXA POSTAL 37:8 SAO PAULO BRAZIL, S AMERICA
- 4. BRITISH ARKADY CO LTD ARKADY SOYA MILLS OLD TRAFFORD MANCHESTER M16 ONJ UK
- 5. BUELL LTD GEORGE STREET PARADE BIRMINGHAM B3 1QQ UK
- 6. BUHLER-MAIG 19 STATION ROAD NEW BARNET HERTFORDSHIRE UK (Also HQ in Germany)
- 7. NOVO INDUSTRI A/S NOVO ALLE DK 2880 BAGSVAERD DENMARK
- 8. ROSIN ENGINEERING COMPANY 35/37 WILLIAM ROAD LONDON NW1 3ER UK
- 9. RONCAGLIA SpA MILLING ENGINEERING WORKS P O BOX 519 41100 MODENA ITALY
- 10. WESTFALIA SEPARATOR AG D 4740 OELDE/WEST F WERNER-BABIG STR W GERMANY

П

1

1 111

COMMENTS

Flash driers for starch drying only.

Driers for starch and complete design engineering for glucose factories

Manufacture and installation of driers. Flash fluid bed, rotary conveyor and bin dryers.

Mixers for dough making using cassava flour.

Thermal drying of freshly harvested raw roots for pellet production.

Pelletising of chips for feed and milling of dried chips

Enzymes for hydrolysis of starch to modified products. Have process know-how especially ethanol and alcohol production.

Drier manufacturers with experience of starch production from cassava.

Flour milling and sifting machinery. Some experience of tapioca industry.

1 111

Separators and decanters for starch separation.



1.1

BUDGET COSTINGS ERECTED IN ZAMBIA IN STERLING

Α.	STARCH EXTRACTION (see list)	579,000
в	GLUCOSE PRODUCTION	512,000
с.	DEXTRIN PRODUCTION	200,000
D.	UTILITIES (Part included in buildings)	268,000
E.	BUILDINGS & CIVILS & HOUSING	412,000
		<u>1,971,000</u>

APPENDIX 9

FINANCIAL REPORTS MULTI-PRODUCT FACTORY

I.

1 = -1.1

1.1

1 1

Т

1 1

Т

Ì

1 1

Т



1

Ш

I.

	FURT 1 1 SCENARIO 1				CA	65ava F	ACTORY:	THKOUGH	T⊍∿							
		YRCP1	YRCP2	YR1F1	181P2	1R2P1	¥ R2₽ 2	YR3F1	YR3P2	YR4P1	YR4P2	¥8521	185P2	186P1	186P2	Y87P1
	1 QUANTITY:TOWNES 2 XIXIIIXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	FEXE T 0 T 0.0 T 0.0 T 0.0 T 0.0 T 0.0	15 10 156-2 260 60-1	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 250 372.6	93 10 965.7 260 372.6	93 10 969.7 260 372.6	93 10 968-7 260 372-6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968+7 260 372+6	93 10 968+7 260 372+6	93 10 768.7 260 372.6	93 10 968-7 260 372-6	73 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6
	90 CHIP STARCH SOLU 100 YIELD CSL TO CST 11 CHIP SLUKRY 120 YIELD C TO CSL 13 CHIPS INPUT CST	T 35 2 10 T 364.6 2 700 T 52.1	35 10 364-6 700 52-1	207 10 2155 700 308.0	252 10 2625 700 375.0	297 10 3094 700 442+0	342 10 3562 700 508+9	337 10 4031 700 575.9	432 10 4500 700 542+9	+77 10 4969 700 709+8	522 10 5437 700 776+3	567 10 5906 700 843+7	512 10 5375 700 910.7	512 10 5375 700 910+7	612 10 6375 700 910,7	612 10 6375 700 910.7
I	3 140 GLUCDSE SOLI 150 YIELD CST TO G 16 CHIP STARCH G 100 YIELD CSL TO OST 17 CHIP SLURRY G 120 YIELD C TO OSL 18 CHIPS INPUT G	1 (33 2 100 1 133.0 2 10 1 1385 2 700 1 197.9	133 100 133.0 10 1385 700 197.9	800 100 900.0 10 8333 700 1190	800 100 800.0 10 8333 700 1190	250 100 800.0 10 8354 700 1265	900 100 900.0 10 9375 700 1339	950 100 950.0 10 9896 700 1414	1000 100 10 10417 700 1488	1050 100 1050 1093/ 700 1562	1100 100 1100 11458 700 1637	1150 100 1150 11977 200 1711	1200 100 1200 12500 12500 700 1786	:209 100 1200 10 12500 700 1786	1200 100 1200 10 12500 700 1786	1200 100 1200 10 12500 700 1786
	3 19D DEXTRIN SDLD 20D TIELD OST TO D 21 CHIP STARCH D 10D TIELD OSL TO OST 22 CHIP SLORRY D 12D TIELD O TO OSL 23 CHIPS INPUT D	1 13 100 13.6 2 10 135.4 2 700 1 19.3	13 100 13+0 135+4 700 19+3	80 100 50.0 933.3 700 119.0	80 100 50.0 833.3 700 119.0	85 100 35.0 10 835.4 700 126.5	90 100 90.0 937.5 700 133.9	95 100 93-0 10 989-6 700 141-4	100 100.0 1042 700 148.8	105 100 105.0 10 1074 700 156.2	110 100 110.0 10 1148 700 163.7	115 100 115.0 10 1198 700 171.1	120 100 120.0 10 1250 700 179.6	120 100 120.0 1250 1250 700 178.6	120 100 120.0 1250 1250 700 175.6	120 100 120.0 1250 1250 700 178.5
	24 TOTAL CHIPS INPU 3	F T 269+3	269+3	1918	1695	1933	1982	2131	2280	2429	2577	2726	2875	2875	2875	2875
	- 25 - TOTAL STARCH PROI - 3 - 15 - 1122 - STARCH SOLL	6 T 181-0 9 T 35-0	196.0 50.0	1180 300.0	1225	1325	1425 435.0	1525 42010	1625 525.0	1725 570.0	1825 515.0	1925 550.0	2025 705.0	2025	2025 705.0	2025 705.0
	- 3 - 307AL CHIP SLIKE	r T 1885	1835	11323	11792	12933	13375	14917	15958	17000	13042	19083	20125	20120	20125	20125
	9 29 TOTAL CHIP STARC 27	+ } 181.0	18130	1087	1132	1232	1332	1432	1532	1632	1732	1932	1932	1932	1932	1932 ======

•

102

_

_

_

-

_

_

-



Report 1A

The model is primarily "driven" by the sales forecast. The quantity sales for each product may be seen in rows 3,9, 14, and 19.

Given the sales forecast this section of the model takes the sales forecast and calculates the tonnage of cassava roots and chips required to produce that quantity, using the conversion factors shown in each subsection. These conversion factors are based on the technical data described in technical section of the report.

It will be noted that over and above basic raw materials the model also calculates throughput of the two main stages of the factory ie slurry production and starch production. This is used in report three to assess the factory loading.

It will be noted that sales are apparently made during the construction period. This is done to generate costs for trial runs and chip purchases in season. By the simple device of valuing such sales at zero price, one months costs are automatically written off to developmental expenses in Period Yr.C 1. A further months chip stocks are raised as stock in the working capital routine. In period Yr.C 2 a further one month's sales are also raised to boost the cost loads on trial runs. The sales are however allowed to stand as revenue earning on the basis that having generated approximately three months' production resources they will produce one month's (ie $33\frac{1}{2}$ %) saleable product. Note that root starch production is only generated in period Yr C P2. since roots must be procured fresh. (ie purchased and processed at the same time). Sales are valued at 50% to give a realistic saleable product outturn. This is expected to be higher than the chip starch outturn since root starch will be produced in the final trial month period.

									-

REFORM DE : BOEPARIO I

CASSAVA FACTORY IVALUE OF INPUTS, OUTPUTS

	HOP1	18.52	YRIPI	YR:92	¥8291	Y N292	YR3P1	¥8362	784P1	YR4P2	YRSPI	rrop2	180P1		Y8721
SU VALUETINA UTB D EXXMINICATA AN ANALAS SII BOST PRICE SUT SC GOSTS COASLMER	160 0	100		100 37	100 5	$\frac{100}{37}$	10 <u>0</u> 37	1 <u>00</u>	100 37	100	100 37	100 37	100 37	100 37	10) 17
B SAU CHIP PRICE X/T SA CHIPS CONSUMED	200 54	200 54	200 32 4	200 337	100 367	200 396	200 426	200 456	200 486	200 515	200 545	200 573	200 575	206 575	200 575
3 TOTAL DIR MATERIALS	54		Jol	37+	404	434	453	493	523 	553 : ======		812 	512	512 	512 ======
56 VALUE:03TPUTS 2 VALUE:03TPUTS 2 VALUE:05TPUTS 2 VALUE:05TPU	Û Î	400 15	300 93	300 93	300 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	900 93 74	500 93 74	80 0 73 74	300 93 74	300 73 74	500 93 14	300 23 74	800 73 74

:706 95 162

:760 100 170

1760 105 179

1700 90 153

500 567 454

1100 1150 1265

1700 115 196

1700 110 187

300 512 490

800 512 470

: 100 1200 : 320

.760 120 204

300 512 ▲90

1100 1200 1320

1700 120 204

300 612 490

1100 1200 1320

1709 120 204

1					•								
i i	55.	TOTAL DIR MATERIA	x 3	54		ີ ວ່ວ1	37+	404 = _====	434 ======	453 22.002.00	493	523	053 ======
	2 2 170 146 86	VALUE: OUTPUTS TATATAXAXAXAXAXA RST FRICE NOOT STARCH SOLD NOOT STARCH	а хж Аулії Т	Û Ç	904 51 6	900 6 93 7 4	800 43 74	800 93 74	200 93 74	809 93 74	900 93 74	500 93 74	30 0 73 74
	ين علا کالہ	CST PRICE CHIP STARCH SOLD CHIP STARCH	MĮ	0 35 0	800 35 28	900 207 156	800 252 202	590 297 238	300 542 274	S00 387 310	800 ▲32 346	300 477 3 8 2	800 522 41 8
	3 410 144 42	SLUCDER FRICE SLUCDER SULN CHUR GLUCDER	К/ <u>Т</u> Т	.3 3	1100 133 145	1100 300 380	1100 800 880	1100 850 933	:100 700 290	::00 930 :040	1100 1000 1100	1100 1056 1155	1100 1100 1216

•

40 GLUCOSE SOLT 40 GLUCOSE SOLT 42 Cater GLUCOSE

∆2] Ţ : 700 80 1**36** 1700 80 136 1700 85 140 1700 13 12 े दि 0

104

_

_

REPORT 2: CASSAVA FACTORY: VALUE INPUTS/OUTPUTS

Report 2A

PF

This report takes the physical quantities in report 1 and converts them to purchases and sales values using agreed prices. Note that the root starch price changes as explained in Appendix 1A and that glucose sales prices have been uplifted by the drum costs. Drum costs are to be recharged to customers and the model approach, showing a higher sale price on the one side, and a materials cost in the variable expenses, ensures that adequate stocks are generated in the working capital routines.

105

SALARAN . YAUTAN ADARAD

• •

: 11月1日 - 11日 11月1日 - 11日

 $\cdot \gamma$

1.931 54535 YR4P. 14.3°2 YRUE1

19757

YA6.22

18292 1.25 141 1-141 TRUE 1409X

က်ဖြင့် စ ရ စ ပြီးကို ပြ ကိုမ် စ ရ စ ပြီးကို ပြ ဂိုင်ကိုအဦးနေ ဆိုင်ကိုအမြားရန် အဝိတ္တိုအမြားရန် 8380454 932 932 932 90 S 일근함 ີ່ຜູ້ ເຈັ້າ ເຈັ້າພາກະເຊັ່ຽວວິລາດສາຍ ສາວສາຍແປນສາຍ ເຈັ້າພາກເຊັ່ຽວວິລາດສາຍ ສາວສາຍແປນສາຍ လက္ရွိရွိနဲ့ ရွိ လက္ရွိရွိနဲ့ ရွိ anti-arage arage arage res arage 20.4 uriist C 2200958 19-18-19-18-្មះខ្ម 27 27 27 27 13-18 19-18 2021 1713 ្នាំ 6.55339999744 1900-90099994 1917 - 1918 - 1918 - 1918 1919 - 1928 - 1918 - 1918 1919 - 1928 - 1918 1919 - 1928 - 1918 1919 - 1928 - 1918 1919 - 1918 1919 - 1918 - 1918 1919 - 1918 1918 - 1918 - 1918 1918 - 1918 1918 - 1918 - 1918 1918 - 1918 - 1918 1918 - 1918 0.988.09.44 lagi di di Anti-Anti-A Sila Anti-0021 0021 11 (**1**7) (2) (1) (1) (1) ္ကာ္ ႏုိင္ပါ <u>ំ</u> លាក់រំដំ N-91-9 800 201 3.11 8087 8773 8773 음만것 글 .90 H 8.5 00.22 29.**4** 2013 ်ပီးရ စီပဲရှိ စီစီရ စီပဲရှိ 2000 2012 19**1**3 5.0 m S374 10010 10010 10010 ુ કુ સ્ટુ ન્યુન હાલુક રહેવું 1.(1)) (1.14 1901) 1.(1) (1.14 1901) 301) (1.14 1901) 관객 12833 2<u>94</u> 8.18 4.14 8.15 8.18 8.15 ୍ରୁଣ୍ଣ i const ngro or ន្ល**ុវ** >244 823° 444 7 3° 1 ्रः । २ ्र 1415 0.3 2 2 2 2 -944 838 974 344 U - OP 24 No.4 0400041 - 10100 - 10200 2.3 ്പ്പ 285 29.0 a Jowness Boldreise Bilandis 0001 011 201 234 ्र



Report 3A

1

Ш

This routine is included to enable us to judge the factory load factors. The dextrin and glucose lines are separate to the main stream and have adequate capacity to process their offtake from the main line.

The critical process is slurry to starch by a small margin and to this must be added the element of the utilisation by the root starch production. Thus, maximum load is the sum of rows 60 and 68. This is reached in year 3 P2 after which the third shift is brought in.

Maximum capacity is conservatively set by assuming that the 1.25 tonne line has a practical operating optimum of 1 tonne per hour.

Shift hours are assumed to be as follows:

2 shift working = gross 16 hours

less changeover, start up and closedown = nett 14 hours.

3 shift working = gross 24 hours

less changeover etc = nett $22\frac{1}{2}$ hours

(NB - the print out rounds up to 8 hours per shift but the model calculates on the actual of $7\frac{1}{2}$ hours).

1 1 1

1 I I

Т П.

П

	1
12	1
	- 1
1	- į
2.	- 1
	- 1
- - -	÷
· •	÷
	- [
	- 1
	•
	1
5	1
	- 1
	- 1
E.	;

T

	¥4.75 L
	140°2
*****	1.96.11
	1.45.21
	16492
	Y RIAN
	1121
	1- 3 6-1
	14241
	14261
	1414
	18CP2
*******	1-033

80.252 1980 1980 1980 1980 1980 1980 1980 1980	11228-05 1220-024 1320-024	8-1922 545580 1845780			ດ 1056 ເດີຍ 1056 ເດີຍ 1056 ເດີຍ 1074		
RICTI RICTI STARCH FAUR STARCH FAUR FCR TOWNE FCR DUIT RICTTY-UARIABLE	STARCH PROD. STARCH PROD. SER TONNE PER DUNE PRODUCT RE- VARIABLE	STACH FROM STACH FROM S F22 TOWAR S F23 TOWAR S F23 LITRE	CALS SERVICE TRANS SERVICE TRANS SERVICE TO SERVICE TO	NG PATERIALS STARTSTRAND STARTS SOLD MIT USI NIT COSI - S	st cout unit weight of the cost		NG MATURIALS
	131.0		0 50 50 50 50 50 50	•≥33 18			38
0.00 200 200 200	6.1 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4 9.4	01220 01220 01251 01255	536 ⁻¹		13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 1	rfat, bate o o o dat de la o d	
00-40- 00-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-40-4	SECONT BIT	1180 0.52 0.52 0.52	្ត្តន្លន្នជ	સ્ સ્પ્રકૃત 	3332	show :	
3241		្រលាល ៖ លោក ៖ លោក ៖ លោក ៖ លោក ៖	3233		5558 2558 2558	\$13	
302 4 09 			និនាទីដ		3338 2		
9531	¥1284	រុះសូរុះខ្ល ខ្ល	Sag.		2300	S131	
3931	17 1 7555	3333	038 *	୍ୟ ଅନ୍ତି । ଜ୍ୟାନ୍ତି । ଜ୍ୟାନ	1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100	893°.	
2004 00 2007 1	ရက္က ရ ရက္က ရ ရက္က ရ	112	8885 1	94954 11			
	8235	<u>N</u> GG8	3 3 33	્રેલકાર	7 2 3338	393*	3
	2720 2720			ુ:ઘટ્ટ :		<u></u> *	194
			3932	2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	3882	1949) 1949) 1921 1921	2 2
	N122	200400	ွင်္သာ	ମ କୁକ୍ଳ ବୁଷ୍ପ ହ	ୁ କୁତ୍ରିଚିଛି	ରୁମ୍ <u>ଟ</u> ୍ର ଅମ୍ବର୍ଦ୍ଧ	213
8358	8*23 8*3		ဒ္ဒဒ္တအ္အ	2322 2322	2838 2838	္လာန္း ့သ ကုန္နန္းသ	
<u> </u>	8783		2012		3838	2:15	
500 +0	6363-52-53 64-4154-43 75-6-4	2002	2322-244 241-244 24	22338 2 1	୍ର୍ୟୁଞ୍ଚ	040 (24) (464 (2	

1

I

100

11-1

Report 4A

PF

In expressing the variable costs and given that quantity figures, especially of electricity and water are so high the units per tonne and prices are equal to 000's units where appropriate.

Note that drum costs are generated by the programme. This is a contra in the profit and loss account with the infiated sales price. This ensures stock of drums are created for the working capital requirements.

П

1 1

1 - 1

1.1

CASSAVA FACTORYTEIXED ASSET MAINIVUEPR

ł

ŀ

I

I

1

I

ENARIG I	
HEPORT	

	YRCF1	19092	YA1P1	18.12	18251	24222	1.674	1KJP2	Y3481	34P2	1,425,1	18572	rkoři.	1262	- Pr. 1
TAER ASSET LOST AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A BUURARS AND A BUURARS AND A BUURARS AND AND AND AND	97.96 97.96 98	21394 A	3894 3894 297	5295 5295 5295 5295 5295 5295 5295 5295	50000 1000000	N83228		N3922	୳ୢୢଌୢଌଽୄୠ	1999 1999 1999 1999	12200 12200 12200 12000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 10000 1000000	80000 1000 1000 1000 1000	2899 2998 2998 2998	888223 888223	
191 4. (281	1759		5410	날		173	0+20	9 13	5 9 33			3 4 2		+	•
LAND MALVET AUTORY & LLD MALVET LAND MULVET DEMILLES MALVET AULSING MALVET	ာင္စင္က ဝ	00000 14 0	စက္စစ္စစ ဇို	രാര്ള്ളം ട്ട	<u>ଚ୍ଚାନ୍ତ୍ର</u> ୍ୟୁ ୍ୟୁ	ດນທີ່ດີ. ເຊິ່	ာ ၁၈၀ဝီဂ	စအစဥ္က အ ျ	2000 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 20	099 0 99 5	ବଳ ୁ ର୍ଜ୍ଜ ସୁ	ବନ୍ଦ୍ରକ ଜ ମ	ରାନଦ୍ୱର ବ୍ୟ	ୁ ବନ ୁ ଶ୍ୱନ	
an at Earlie. Hearlie an an ann an an an an	F . 11 88 87 89	7-1 81 11 11 11 11 11	0 4]	24-7 24-7	2	9_1	307	97	3	202	00	200	3	3	
	ంలం ంా	~~~~	<u>ంందర్శం</u>	ာင္ရရင္ရ	ခာရွှင္ချာ	စစ္စင္ရွင္ရွ	00000 	ာခ်င်ခ	~ ~	ుంనరం	ာဇာဌ္ဘာ	->>⊅⊘⊂> ->464	ంతర్రం	ంచినిం	
ERRETATO.	2						127								•;
DIAL CUM DEP	< 5	0	127	452	192	800	35	30	539	:016	143	: 270	1377	47 X	,
ET F. XEN ASETS	egz i		3118	166.7	2564	2737	lai0	20 20 4	.350		2102	3/61	3 4 01		

į

İ

1.1

T

110

1 11

L

Т

T T T

I

I.

REPORT 5: CASSAVA FACTORY FIXED ASSFT ' HAINT/DEPR



Report 5A

1 1

11

1111

This routine assembles the maintenance and depreciation costs on fixed assets. Note that no depreciation costs are raised in the construction period and that only maintenance of vehicles is charged in this period.

After due thought it has been assumed that given a reasonable maintenance expenditure buildings should not be depreciated. In the case of plant and machinery it is assumed that the initial cost will include a supply of spares and that maintenance cost will rise progressively over the first five years levelling off at 20% per annum from year five onwards.

									211			
												а П
										··		1
!			រដូរដូរ		e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e		בלי גריין גריים גריין גריים שלי אינים שלי אינים שלי אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים אינים איני גריים אינים					
							eren eren eren eren eren eren eren eren		- - 	S : SLEN		1
	A PATENT		тандже. 14 би 3 3	10CAS	с. 14 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25	MATERIA RIOL X MATE VA	ዀ፞፝፝፞፞፞ኯ፝ጟ	កអម្ម				-
	146 146 16 16		లిగా చేస			2 JJ	₹.	<u>8</u>				
	co f 		4 ¢		~~~	282 इ	4004 1204 121	. 86	051 14 0			l
	&os	vr ¥ ≪	593 #** #* # -1		5-5	::38 :23	-11-5-			2 4 7 7		ł
		ser a l			3	808	785 	-26- 5	Ft Vett			1
		38 T.J.	65a 24		5.5 5.5	55≊ 	8838 8838	-20 5	i Ap	ASAVA -		-
	00 + 	2 2 2	• · · ·			KON Chi	- 200 • 200	· ē#	i nari			
	107	801		* 75 *		500 500 500	4	1011 1011 1011	2 18321			l
		80	390		1090 1090	50.05 5715	2000	100 100	YR372			
	- 525 - 121 - 121	in en	1 1 1 1 1 1 1			300 200	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	. <u>5</u> 55	ゴズキンド			
	553 128	6°	+36	4/4 =======	1.61 5855 5855	50.0 49.0	50 8 50 8		YR422			-
	185 185	ŝ	\$500	153	: 387 500 4	50.0 1020 2020	4000 4000 6000	1 2011 2011	YREF'I			
	141 141 141 141 141 141	u. Čitu	te No		2038 525 4	213 50-0 50-0 70-0	954 659	50 19 19	185P2			
	612 :41	80	***•	1063	2085 112 128	្លីស្រីស្រី ស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រីស្រី	500 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	₽₿œ	1869/1 V			
	1 2 0 E	С. Стр	8. 19.0	524	2088 321	505 510 510	*73 200 96	100	×672			1
	Le c	e e ra	÷		2088 32: 4	145 145 145		1.00 10 10	8751			



Report 6A

The working capital requirements of agro-industrial units are frequently complicated by the need for seasonal buying of raw materials. The model is constructed to cope with the particular problems of the cassava market.

Period 1 July to December the majority of cassava has to be acquired. For period 2 January - June supplies will only be available in June when the buying season begins. The effect on working capital is one of high stocks and low cash holdings at end period 1 and the reverse at end period 2. As can be seen the model has been constructed to incorporate this important cash flow feature.

Other working capital requirements have been estimated on the following basis:

- packing materials at three months usage
- finished goods stocks at four weeks sales
- debtors at six weeks sales
- creditors at six weeks materials purchases

Debtors and finished goods stocks are the most significant items. These are relatively conservatively estimated since stocks are valued at full market value rather than at cost and debtors could be reduced by insisting on earlier payment. It is in fact not unknown, in developing countries, for producers of important industrial inputs to insist on payment in advance.

Since purchases are to be through NAMBOARD we assume that some credit will be available.

11

ЕП

			5 4 5	
			41	
စဥ္မာ ဝင္ယာစ	0		24 11 11	
		4-2		
ိမ္မိန္က ေန႔န္က	00		· >	
ာင္အက္ရွ္ ႏွင္က	0	138 138	0	
00000000	0	293]	" " " " "	法
	0			1.4.2.1.1
	8		0	T BAV -T
စက္က စတ္တေ	3	122 2222	0	
oog oog 				
	S I I			
	Ş.	14665 §	1	
		⊘a>a>a * * * # 4 9 8 8 9 8		
	1650	0.00	0	
Len LCBT LCBA LCBT LCBA LCBT LCBA LCBT LCBA LCBT CAA LCBT AA LCBT	ICAN CERT		A CLUB AND AT	
	-18945		などの主要	; :
	រទ្ធីសន្តីរ រ			

]}

114

шт

REPORT 7: CASSAVA FACTORY: TAX/INT/DEBT/CAP



Report 7A

This section of the model is the one through which the capitalisation, debt service and tax charges are entered and/or calculated into the main financial statements.

Interest charges have been assessed on the basis of rates currently been asked in Zambia. The term loan is set at 75% of plant and machinery which is the amount that the Development Bank of Zambia has indicated it would be prepared to lend. The loan is split into two to enable the model to accommodate two sorts of term loan financing should this be necessary in the future.

Debt service has been set at three years moratorium and three years repayment in six monthly rests. The Development Bank of Zambia has indicated to us the length of moratorium period they were willing to grant, whilst repayment has been set to enable the earliest practical repayment period.

It is assumed that the project will enjoy a tax holiday for the first five years' operations.

REPORT S : SUENANIO :

I I

CASSAUR FACTURYSPROFIT STATEMENTS

ł

ľ

ľ

Ľ

1

П

:		14067	YRCF2	19197	trife's	YÀZPI	16292	1423Y	YK3P2	YR4P1	YR4P2	14SAT	163P2	1.49%X	¥8.692	YR75'1
•	NUMPHA THOUSAND SALES REVENCES SALES REVENCES SALES REVENCES CHEP STARCH CHEP CLUDSE CHEP EXTREM	0000	∿휪붛덙	13806 2 13806 2 13806 2	4008 1989 1989	្ដន្តរដ្ឋ	* * 8 53	10450 10450 16451	11006 1700 1700		4000	1965 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	*904 *9004 *9004	5555 5555 5555 5555 5555 5555 5555 5555 5555	5000 1990 1990 1990 1990 1990 1990 1990	4568 4008 4004
	TOTAL SALES RAM FATERTALS: ROTS CONSUMED CATES CONSUMED	ം റ ം ഗ	20 °5	ស្តី ក្តៃ	81 P.P.	1392 367	16 13 B	191	1690 2641	84 F.8	1889 1889 1889	86 Fig	20 88 575	580 580 555	288 285 255	2088 373
	TOTAL LIR RATERIALS	45	60	195	374	404	424	+63	264	523	223	285	612		210	-1
	CAUSS ANDED VALUE ELECTRICITY-VALABLE ANTER-VARIABLE FUEL CHENCALS PACEING MATERIALS	કુનલવુલક્ષ	and the second s	<u> 양</u> 리리였더된	뿜더리♥더권	8222422	1901 1418 1917 1917 1917 1917 1917 1917 1917 19	<u> </u>	2445 2445 2445 2445 245 245 245 245 245	1267 177 186 186 186 186	98889779 8889779	1. 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 204	**************************************	2558912 2128925	ୁ ନୁର୍ବନ୍ଧିଷ୍ମପ୍ର ମୁ	90000 2000 14 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
	UTHER VARIANCE COSTE	4	3	55	2	112	967	10 14 15	3 3 4	Σ13	372	39:	014	₽ 1 ♦	्र •	ः •
السبكا السبكة ليسبه الدررة	CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION ELECTRICITY-FIXED MATER FIXED MAINTENANCE MISCELLANEOUS DEPRECIATION	สักลาค80 อักลาค80	Stor No		324-489	1044505	26 4 - 28 G	254-986	121	* <u>1</u> 24-985	100 m 200 m	01 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	566 - 26 57 57	324-3865	91 91 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92	21 2 21 2 20
	TOTAL FLAED COSTS	133	107	1	4	475	472	505	502	5	567	597	597	297	197	765
	-ROFIL REFUE INTEREST & LAK INTEREST: & LAK SKENT-TERM DEBT MEDLUM-TERM DEBT MEDLUM-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	2000 2000 2000	် စစ္တရွ	ಕ್ಷ ಸರಚ	80 A 40 0	239 61 61	51 19 19	310 50 51	361 61 61	545 0 1212 1110	397 14 14	4 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	အို ဝဝဝဝ	လ္မွ ဝင္ဘင္ရ •	1000 1 1	4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
	TUTAL INTEREST	0	13	146	146	91	421	128	ន	101	18	13	1+	8	0	
	PRUFIT BEFORE TAX TAXATION	(23) -	0 (20)	0¢	100	80	93	181 0	239	90 2	31¢ 0	13.0	80° 77 7	9 3	3:1	9 4
	PROFIT AFTER TAX	(722)	(<u>1</u> 9)	3	2	66	150	183	239	52	316	3	87	¥2	37	8
		1													,	

I

1.1

1 1

REPORT 8: CASSAVA FACTORY: PROFIT STATEMENTS



Report 8A

The variable elements of the profit statement have been entered from the previously described reports where they are calculated. In terms of the fixed expenses the following have been estimated at fixed annual levels:

- electricity -
- water
- miscellaneous. -

Depreciation and annual maintenance are calculated as described in report 5.

The major item is staff and labour which has been estimated in accordance with the following table for operating periods:

ate K 2,000 3,960 5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	Total K 45,000 3,960 10,560 8,600 23,100 9,000 9,640	No - 1 1 1 -	5,280 4,300 3,300	No 1 1 1 1 1	Total K 9,000 5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000
2,000 3,960 5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	45,000 3,960 10,560 8,600 23,100 9,000 9,640	- 1 1 1	5,280 4,300 3,300	1 1 1 1	9,000 5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000
3,960 5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	3,960 10,560 8,600 23,100 9,000 9,640	- 1 1 - 1	5,280 4,300 3,300	1 1 1 1	5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000
5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	10,560 8,600 23,100 9,000 9,640	1 1 - 1	5,280 4,300 3,300	1 1 1 1	5,280 4,300 3,300 3,000
4,300 3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	8,600 23,100 9,000 9,640	1 1 - 1	4,300 3,300	1 1 1	4,300 3,300 3,000
3,300 3,000 2,410 2,665	23,100 9,000 9,640	1 - 1	3,300	1 1	3,300
3,000 2,410 2,665	9,000 9,640	- 1		1	3 000
2,410 2,665	9,640	1			2,000
2,665	71 000	▲	2,410	1	2,410
•	21,980	12	31,980	12	31,980
L.645	32,900	4	6,580	4	6,580
	174,740	20	53,850	22	65,850
			4,038		4,263 *
<u></u>	174,740		5 7,888		70,113
-		174,740 174,740	174,740 20 174,740	174,740 20 53,850 4,038 174,740 57,888	174,740 20 53,850 22 4,038 174,740 57,888

1 1 1

per period

 $= \frac{175,000 + 58,000}{2}$ 2 shifts = 116,500 $= \frac{175,000 + 58,000 + 70,000}{2}$ 3 shifts = 151,500

117

1

In building up the construction period the cost levels for the majority of items are either generated within the model or set at levels commensurate with operating period costs. The major item not described by the schedules is again labour and staff which has been estimated as follows using the above annual salary rates:

- In the first six months staff will build up to the following levels.

No		Rate K	Total K
3	x	9000/2	13,500
1	x	5280/2	2,640
1	x	4300/2	2,150
2	x	3300/2	3,300
1	x	3000/2	1,500
2	x	2410/2	2,410
-		-	-
4	x	1645/2	3,290
	Total		28,790
	No 3 1 1 2 1 2 - 4	No 3 x 1 x 1 x 2 x 1 x 2 x - 4 x Total	No Rate K 3 x 9000/2 1 x 5280/2 1 x 4300/2 2 x 3300/2 1 x 3000/2 2 x 2410/2 - - - 4 x 1645/2

- In the second six months staff will build up to the following levels.

	No		Rate K	Total K
Management	4	x	9000/2	18,000
Foreman	1	x	5280/2	2,640
Mechanics	1	x	4300/2	2,150
Clerical	4	x	3300/2	6,600
Drivers	3	x	3000/2	4,500
Guards	3	x	2410/2	3,615
Operatives	-			-
Labourers	8	×	1645/2	<u>6,580</u>
		Total		44,085
Total labour and	d staff	period Yr C P1	72 ,8 75	73.000.

PE

In the final six months of construction the full staffing will be engaged. However given the low output load this is expected only to be at a one shift level and in the case of operatives and factory labour, they will only be engaged during the last three months when trial runs take place. The staffing level is calculated as follows.

	No		Rate K	Total K
Management	5	x	9000/2	22,500
Foremen	2	x	5280/2	5,280
Lab.Technician	1	x	3960/2	1,980
Mechanics	2	x	4300/2	4,300
Clerical	7	x	33LC/2	11,550
Guards	4	x	2410/2	4,820
Operatives	12	x	2665/4	7,995
Labourers/	12	x	1645/2	9 .870
Groundsmen			-	,
Labourers/	8	x	1645/4	3,290
Groundsmen			-	
				71,585
Sav				72 000
Jay				12,000

Ш

П

1

1

1

н

1

1 I.

PORT	9 : SCENARIO 1				CASS	ava fac	TORY:BA	LA⊮.≂ s	heets							
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	YRCP1	· • •	:61F1	INTER .	18291	1882	tri3F1	TR3PC	(R4P1	YR4P2	TRSP1	iksp2	YR6P1	YR6P2	YR7F1
170	NUACHA THUUSANU	1207	s2 4 5	3118	2991	2864	2737	2±10	2483	2356	2229	2102	:975	1848	1721	1594
104 104 105	Cunnetti HSSETST TUTAL STOCKS DEBTORS/PREPATHENTS CASH	65 0 54	3 6 31 54	585 290 9	324 298 324	654 321 56	374 344 367	754 367 86	424 390 426	854 413 76	474 435 486	753 459 86	524 482 545	1003 482 96	524 482 575	1003 432 96
21 92	TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	119	121	884	940	1032	1085	1137	1240	1343	1396	1498	1551	:591	1581	1581
43 51 520	CUPRENT LIABICITIES: CREDITORS/ADDRUALS SHORT-TERM DEBT	0 0) 0	58 004	ас 200	200	100 100	107 0	114 0	121 0	:23	134 0	141 0	141 Ŭ	141 0	141 0
4	TOTAL CURRENT	 0	 Э	483	386	293	200	107	114	121	128	134	141	141	141	141
l ó	NET CURRENT ASSETS	119	121	+00	559	739	885	1080	1126	1222	1268	1364	1410	1440	1440	1440
((SURPLUS CASH	47	140	44	35	132	259	382	♦03	379	475	564	773	910	1201	1586
1001	TUTAL NET ASSETS	1423	3506	3562	3630	3734		4073	4012	3957	3973	4030	4158	4104	+362	4619
899	FINANCED BY: CAPITAL RESERVES	1650 (227 /	2000 (294)	2000 (238)	2000 (185)	2000 (66)	2000 90	2000 273	2000 512	2000 757	2000 1073	2000 1430	2006 1858	2000 2104	2000 2362	2000 2619
Ż	TOTAL EQUITY	1423	1706	1762	1935	:934	2090	2273	2512	2757	3073	3+30	3853	4:04	+362	4619
3 60 90	MEDIUM-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	ů O	900 900	900 900	900 900	900 900	+00 70 0	900 900	750 750	600 600	450 450	300 300	150 150	0 0	0	0
11	CAPITAL ENFLOYED	1423	3500	3562	3635	5734	3890	4673	4012	3957	3973	4030	4158	4104	+362	4619

•

-

2014) - M

1

= = 120

= =

= =

-

_

2 5

| |

REPORT 9: CASSAVA FACTORY: BALANCE SHEETS

Report 9A

The model constructs the balance sheets largely from data already calculated in previous reports. One item however requires particular mention, namely cash surplus. This item is made necessary as a balancing item since the cash in hand figure is already fixed on the basis of the working capital requirement.

This form of presentation has the major advantage of demonstrating clearly the surplus cash flow build up and available for possible equity distributions. It must agree with the cumulative surplus cash flow shown in report 10, funds flow statement, and thus gives a clear audit check that the model logic is working. Finally in any one year this figure represents accumulated reserves not immediately required in the business and therefore enables us to refine capital employment, and thus the relevant ratios, to a figure representing the capital actually used in the business in the year in question.

121

iepont	10 : SCENARIO 1				Cassava	FACTOR	it i Fundis	FLOW S	TATEMEN	TS						
		YRCP1	YRCF2	VR1F1	18182	¥≺2P1	18282	YR3F1	18382	184P1	YR4P2	785P1	1K5P2	trop1	trop2	YR791
170 206 190 134 207	NWACHA THUUSAND TXX ANALAKANANANANANA SUNCES OF FUNDS: PROFIT, FIFR IAX DEPRECIATION M-T & L-T DEBT INT	(227) 0 9	(57) 0 51	- 56 127 122	73 127 122	99 127 122	156 127 122	183 127 122	239 127 122	245 127 101	316 127 81	357 127 61	+28 127 41	246 127 20	258 127 0	258 127 0
203 203	LASH GENERATELI FROM OPERATIONS	(227)		304	321	.4ð	404	431	4 98	+73	524	545	595	394	385	385
1630 1640 1670	CAPITAL MEDIUM-TERM DEBT L'ONG-TERM LEBT	:550 0 0	350 900 900	000	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0000	0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0
	TOTAL SOURCES OF	1423	2144	304	321	348	404	431	+68	473	524	545 111111	595	394	385	385
215 215 215 215 215 215 215 215 215 215	APPLICATIONS OF FUNIS: FIXE: INVESTMENT ADRNING GAFITAL DEBT REPAYMENT:	1258 119	198 8 2	0 279	0 159		0 140	199 0	4a	0 90	0 +ò	0 96	0 46	0 30	0 0	0 0
165[: 163[:	MEDLUM-TERM DEBT	9 0	0 9	0 0	Ú Q	Û Q	0	0 0	150 150	150 150	150 150	150 150	150 150	150 150	0 Ŭ	0
22	TOTAL DEBT REPAYMENT	9	0 0	Ç	0	ý	Ŷ	9	300	300	300	300	300	300	ý	Û
183 185 186	INTEREST: MET.100-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	ç ç	30 30	51 51	61 61	51 61	51 61	61 61	61 61	51 51	41 41	30 30	20 20	10 10	Ú O	0 0
121 207	M-T & L-T DEBT INT	0	 ol	122	122	122	122	:22	122	101	31	61	+1	20	Û	0
223	TOTAL DEBT SERVICE	0	51	122	.22	:22	122	122	+22	401	381	361	341	320	۷	0
	TOTAL APPLICATIONS UF FUNDS	1377	2050	401	280	301	268	317	834 	497	•27	456	387	350	0) ======
226 227 228 229 229	SURPLUS CASH SALANCEST PERIOD CUMULHTIVE	47 47	93 140	د ج _ا ن 44	: 41 30	47 132	137 269	114 382	20 +03	(24 379) 97 476	88 564	209 773	44 815	3 85 1201	385 1586

.

_ _ _

,--* . .

-

- - **122** - -

_

-

_

= =

\$

•

4

REPORT 10: CASSAVA FACTORY: FUNDS FLOW STATEMENT

Report 10A

PE

T.

1

I = I I

1 1 1

This statement is computed by the model from the data in previous reports. It should be noted that term loan interest is included in both inflows and outflows to give a total debt service on which the debt service ratio can be computed.

1.1

1.1

1 = 1

1 1

1.1.1

1.1.1

1 + 1

_																	-	
	-			-														
						d - 3 - 5 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 6								* • • • • •				
														•				
			11 : SCENARIO :				CASSAVA	FACTOR	THEY F	INANCIA	L SATIO	5	•					
		-E-OPT	11 : SCENARIO 1	~prp-	~20°07	70101	UASSAVA	FACTOR	TOP F	INANCIA VDTD4	L SATIO	5				v2124	v0100	
		<2-08*	11 : SCENARIO 1	YRCP1	YRCP2	(K1P1	CASSAVA YR1P2	FACTOR (R2P1	112EY F 18252	INANCIA YR3P1	L SATIC	5 734P1	YR4F2	*8521	185P2	YR671	¥8682	-£7F1
		230	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA	×RCP1 0	YRCP2	(RIP1 51	SASSAVA YR1P2 51	FACTOR (32P1 51	112EY F 78292 51	INANCIA YR3P1 51	L SATIC 18372 31	5 734P1 31	YR4F2 51	×R5P1 51	7R5P2 51	YR671 51	186P2 51	⁻ 87F1 51
		230 231 3 332	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINE FIXED COST/SALESE PROFIL AFT TAX/SALESE	<u>∵RCP1</u> 0 0	*RCP2 50 53	(R1P1 51 55	CASSAVA YR192 51 34	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34	11.5EY F 78292 51 32	INANCIA YR3F1 51 32	L SATIC 18322 31 30	5 734P1 51 32	184F2 51 30	*85P1 51 30	185P2 51 29	YR671 51 29	186P2 51 29	187F1 51 29
		<2-0P ⁺ 230 3 231 9 232 232 233	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALES PROFIT AFT TAX/SALES	2RCP1 0 0 0 0 0 3	YRCP2 50 53 (33) (33)	(RIP1 51 35 4 14	CASSAVA YR1P2 51 34 6 15	SACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7	115EY F 78292 51 32 10 19	INANCIA YR3P1 51 32 11 19	1 SATIC 18372 51 30 14 21	6 7R4P1 31 32 14 19	YR4F 2 51 30 17 21	¥ R5 P1 51 30 13 21	785P2 51 29 20 22	YR671 51 29 12 32	YR6P2 51 29 12 22	187 F1 51 29 12 22
		230 231 3 232 3 232 3 232 233 234	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALE% PROFIT S-T INT/SALE% PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED%	<pre></pre>	<pre>%RCP2 \$3 \$33 \$33 \$3 \$ \$30 \$ \$30 \$ \$30 \$ \$ \$ \$</pre>	(R1P1 51 35 4 14 4.8	CASSAVA YR1P2 51 34 6 15 10-2	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 10 11-1	TREY F TRE92 51 32 10 19 12.8	INANCIA YR3P1 51 32 11 19 1+.3	14 SATIC 14 21 16.6	6 73421 31 32 14 19 17.9	YR4F2 51 30 17 21 18.7	*R5P1 51 30 13 21 20.2	785P2 51 29 20 22 21.3	18621 51 29 12 22 22.8	YR6P2 51 29 12 21 21,5	18.7F1 51 29 12 20.3
		230 231 232 233 234 234 8 234 8 235	11 1 SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALEA PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED SALES/CAP EMPLOYED	<pre>% CP1 0 0 0 0 0 3 (31.9) 0.0</pre>	*RCP2 50 53 (33) (3.0) (0.1	(R191 51 35 4 14 4-8 0.4	CASSAVA YR192 51 34 6 15 10+2 0-4	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 15 11+1 0.4	TREY F TREE 51 32 10 19 12.8 0.4	INANCIA YR3F1 51 32 11 19 14.3 0.4	▲ SATIC YR3P2 31 30 14 21 16.0 0.4	5 734P1 31 32 14 17.9 0.5	18472 51 30 17 21 18.7 0.5	* R5 P1 51 30 13 21 20.2 0.5	rR5P2 51 29 20 22 21.3 0.5	YR621 51 29 12 22 22.8 0.5	186P2 51 29 12 21.5 0.5	187F1 51 29 12 20.3 0.5
		<2-0P ⁺ 230 3 231 9 232 9 233 9 234 8 235 235	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALEA PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED SALES/CAP EMPLOYED CURRENT RATIO	<pre>% RDP1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0</pre>	YRCP2 50 53 (33) (3-6) 0-1 0-0	(RIP1 51 35 4 14 4.8 0.4 1.9	CASSAVA YR1P2 51 34 6 15 10-2 0.4 2.4	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 10 11-1 0.4 3.5	11.5EY F 78292 51 32 10 19 12.8 0.4 5.4	INAMEIA YR3P1 51 32 11 19 14.3 0.4 11.1	1 SAVIC 78372 51 30 14 21 16.0 0.4 10.9	5 7R+P1 51 32 14 17.9 0.5 11.1	rR4F2 51 30 17 21 18.7 0.5 10.9	¥ R5 P1 51 30 13 21 20.2 0.5 11.1	7R5P2 51 29 20 21.3 0.5 11.0	YR621 51 29 12 22.8 0.5 11.2	YR6P2 51 29 12 21.5 0.5 11.2	187F1 51 29 12 29.3 0.5 11.2
		230 230 31 9 232 32 33 232 3 232 3 235 9 235 9 235 9 237	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALE% PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED SALES/CAP EMPLOYED CUMRENT RATIO DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED	<pre></pre>	<pre>*RCP2 \$3 \$33 \$33 \$ \$3 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$</pre>	<pre>(RIP1 51 55 4 14 4.8 0.4 1.8 51</pre>	CASSAVA YR1P2 51 34 6 15 10.2 0.4 2.4 50	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 10 11.1 0.4 3.5 48	113 EY F YR292 51 32 10 19 12.8 0.4 5.4 40	INANCIA YR3P1 51 32 11 19 14-3 0.4 11-1 44	x Satic rR3P2 51 30 14 21 16-0 0.4 10.9 37	5 73421 51 32 14 19 17.9 0.5 11.1 30	YR4F2 51 30 17 21 18.7 0.5 10.9 23	*R5P1 51 30 13 21 20.2 0.5 11.1 15	7R5P2 51 29 20 22 21.3 0.5 11.0	YR621 51 29 12 22.8 0.5 11.2 0	YR6P2 51 29 12 21.5 0.5 11.2 0.5	*87F1 51 29 12 29.3 0.5 11.2 0.5
		230 3 231 3 232 3 233 8 234 8 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235 9 235	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALES% PROFIT AFT TAX/SALEA PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED CURRENT RATIO DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED% DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED%	×RCP1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (31.9) 0.0 0 0 0 0	YRCP2 50 53 (33) (3.0) () 0.1 (0 5. (0.1)	<pre>*R1P1 51 55 4 14 4.8 0.4 1.8 01 2.5</pre>	CASSAVA YR192 51 34 6 15 10.2 0.4 2.4 50 2.6	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 16 11.1 0.4 3.5 48 2.9	11.5EY F 7R2°2 51 32 10 19 12.8 0.4 5.4 40 3.3	INAACIA YR3F1 51 32 11 19 14.3 0.4 11.1 44 3.5	4 SATIC 78322 31 36 14 21 16.6 0.4 10.9 37 1.2	5 7R+P1 51 32 14 17.9 0.5 11.1 30 1.2	TR4F2 51 30 17 21 18.7 0.5 10.9 23 1.4	*R5P1 51 30 13 21 20.2 0.5 11.1 15	7R5P2 51 29 20 22 21.3 0.5 11.0 7 1.7	<pre>YR6P1 S1 29 12 22.8 0.5 11.2 0 1.2</pre>	YR6P2 51 29 12 21.5 0.5 11.2 0	187F1 51 29 12 29.3 0.5 11.2 0 0.0
		230 231 3 231 9 232 33 234 8 235 9 235 2 3 9 235 235 235 235 235 235 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 235 2 2 2 2	11 : SCENARIO 1 CONTRIBUTION MARGINA FIXED COST/SALESX PROFIT AFT TAX/SALEX PROFIT/CAP EMPLOYED SALES/CAP EMPLOYED CURRENT RATIO DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED DEBT/CAP EMPLOYED	×RCP1 0 0 0 0 0 0 (31.9) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	YRCP2 50 53 (33) (3-0) (-1 (-1) (-1) (-9)	<pre>(RIP1 51 55 4 14 4.8 0.4 1.9 01 2.5 4.9</pre>	SASSAVA YR1P2 51 34 6 15 10.2 0.4 2.4 50 2.6 10.5	FACTOR (R2P1 51 34 7 10 11.1 0.4 3.5 48 2.9 11.5	TR262 51 32 10 19 12.8 0.4 5.4 40 3.3 13.8	INANCIA YR3P1 51 32 11 19 14.3 0.4 11.1 44 3.5 15.8	x SATIC YR3P2 31 30 14 21 16.0 0.4 10.9 37 1.2 18.4	5 73421 31 32 14 17.9 0.5 11.1 30 1.2 19.8	YR4F2 51 30 17 21 18.7 0.5 10.9 23 1.4 21.3	*R5P1 51 30 13 20.2 0.5 11.1 15 23.5	7R5P2 51 29 20 21.3 0.5 11.0 7 1.7 26.2	YR621 51 29 12 22 22 12 12 12 12 12 12 11-2 0 1.2 28.5	YR6P2 51 29 12 21.5 0.5 11.2 0.5 11.2 0.5 27.5	- R7F1 51 29 12 29.3 0.5 11.2 0 0.0 30.7

124

+*

-

=
REPORT 11: CASSAVA FACTORY: KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Report 11A

We have extracted certain key financial ratios to give an overview measurement of the project. The majority of the ratios are self explanatory and need no further comment as to their derivation. In the two profit/capital employed ratios we wish to clarify the basis of calculation as follows:

These ratios have in the first instance been calculated as annual rates of return rather than six monthly rates. This has been done on the basis of adding the previous periods profit (loss) to that of the period being assessed, except in the first period where it has been necessary to multiply the current period profit or loss by two since no previous period exists.

The difference between the profit/capital employed ratio (234) and the profit/net capital employed ratio (239) is that, in the latter case, the surplus cash figure in the balance sheet has been deducted from the capital employed to give the net figure.

PE

S.	12 : SCENARIO 1		RATE	JF Sel	uht. 46.A	CY515					
		YRI	YR2	าหิ3	1ले∳	1Ki Ki	TK6	1R7	831	489	YEI
coche Si	NET CASH FLOW	(3800.)	187.6	426.9	677.13	955. ó	998.2	748.4	7.69.1	769+1	536
	LISCOUNT PERCENTAGE	49*21	13.64	13.04	13.64	13.64	13.64	13.04	13.64	13.64	13.0
n	1. L. F.	1 3800	1.561	330.6	4.104	513.0	520.7	347.5	3.415	276.5	365.
v ş	8, 9, 0, 2, 10, 0,	0.5									

....

Т 1 1

1 1

1

I.

12

1 - 1 - 1 - 1

. . . .

I.

Т

1

1

I.

Т. П.

1

П



Report 12

The model calculates the NPV against a given rate of return. It will be noted that the cash flow expressed in six monthly periods in the main model has been consolidated to annual figures for this calculation and that whilst the print out shows only the first 15 periods, after which the annual results are the same, the model does hold a full 20 periods enabling ten years project life to be discounted.

In compiling the report we have established the IRR that yields an NPV as near as possible to zero by using a separate Finesse routine available as part of the package.

The final years cash flow has been adjusted to include the recovery of working capital together with the disposal of fixed assets as follows:

Land	100%
Buildings	50%
Plant	5%
Vehicles	10%
Working Capital	100%.

	Report 13: Scenario 1
	-15.00 F280FHT CHARGE 14 PRICE F40706 0.85 0.85 0.40 0.80 0.85 0.80 0.80 0.80 RESULTS IN PROFIT AFTER THX (226.0.) (PT.36) (132.54) (121.0.) 35.27 85.27 85.27 85.27
	-10.00 Finites
1	-5.00 PtRCEDT CHANGE IN PRICE PACTOR 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 REBUITS IN PROFIT ATTER TAC 120.15 (07.10) 10.94 800 200.15 000.13 000.15 000.10
•	0 (0 2751201 056902 05 28102 260103 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
	-15.00 #Ex0201 0==0.2 00 PRIOS #A0104 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 250215 10 000001002 *5.52 1.0000001002
	1223.28((1310.94)(1098,71)(888,42) -10.00(FEROEN)(24062 (N.9310)(FEROEN) 0.90(0.9)(0.90(0.9)) 0.90(0.90(0.90)(19)) RESULTO(N.90(0.90)(140.74)) (315.18)(345.47)(15.75)(143.95)
	-5.00 PERSENT LAANGE IN PRICE FACTOR 0.95 - 2.95 - 0.95 0.95 - 2.95 - 0.95 -2.95 - 2.95 - 0.95 -250 -5 IV - 0.90 - 0.95 -550 -5 IV - 0.90 - 0.50 -50 -5 -50 05 -51 16 - 1274.31
	0.00 -0-0200 -044 6511, 0-0002 FHD000 0.00 -000 -000 -000 0.00 -000 -000 -

REBULTS OF SEMATTINITY RUNS

ರೆ.3ರ 0.8ರ ಸಾತಿರ ರಿ.3ರ ರಿ.85 ರಿ.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 (39,40) (57,6年) (55,98) (14,2) (23,31) 32,65 58,61 114,57 78,15)
 (57,29) (55,29) 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90),99),90 -0.90 (.9) (.9) (.9) (.9) 1.70 :3(.**33**) 0.86 20.84 242.71 .42.71 70.23 00.15 127.10 158.03 218.97 131.57 ः.२5 ..२5 0**.95** 0.95 0**.95** 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 3.95 0.95 19,75 290.13 91.41 (01.67 200.13 (00.13 124,70 152,04 172,555 120.40 310.32 .38.99 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 185.96 183.69 239.20 245.11 516.00 356.38 427.77 246.41 257.55 257.50 99.32 257.65 (407.53) (*?0.41) (6009.33) (838.93)(1123.18)(1303.35)(1508.19)(1606.95)(1735.57) (574.13) (451.53) (249.55) - 0.90 - 0.70 - 0.70 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 .119.03) (237.44) (276.74) (423.76) (512.45) (710.60) (317.41) (313.69) (384.88) 463.65 - 733.36 - 1003.07 ->-93 0.95 0.90 0.90 0.93 0.93 0.45 0.45 0.95 -0.95 0.95 0.95 . 46.714 - 15.33 1801.44 - 1923.37 51**.5**4 2253.69 (10.3% (121.72) (117.33% 120.53% (20.42) (34.20) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1. UKJ 1.00 131.02 402.58 379.01 475.94 564.15 772 34 816.49 268.51 3**82.4**2 3598.32

Report 13: Scenerio 1

ļ

-13.00 0.85 0.85	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 PECIA TO TA	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.85	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.85	0 .85 0 .85
(212.64) 169.65	(82.10) 169.65	(40.67) 167.65	(26.37) 167.65	(7 .33) 169-65
-10.00 0.90 0.90	PERCENT CH 0.90 0.90 PERINTE TAI	ANGE IN SA 0.90 0.95 REDETT AS	LES FACTOR 0.90 0.90 TED TAY	0.90 0.90
(217 . 33) 1 98.9 5	(77.07) 198.95	(8.49) 198.95	198-95	28.22 178.95
-5 .00 0 .95 0.95	PERCENT CH 0.95 0.95	ANGE IN SA 0.95 0.95	LES FACTOR 0.95 0.95	0.95 0.95
(222.02) 228.25	(72.03) 228.25	23.68 228.25	39.67 228.25	6 3. 77 228.25
0.00 1.00 1.00	PERCENT CH 1.00 1.00	ANGE IN SA 1.00 1.00	LES FACTOR 1.00	1.00 1.00
(226.71) 257.55	(67.) 257.55	55.86 257.55	72.69 257.55	99.32 257.55
-15.00 0.85	PERCENT CH 0.85	ANGE IN SA	LES FACTOR 0.85). 85
-15.00 0.85 0.85 78.48	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08	ANGE IN SAU 0.85 0.85 CUMULATI 56.16	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.95 VE 16.79	0.85 0.85 (30.96)
-15.00 0.85 0.85 (21.42) -10.00 0.90	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 215.22 PERCENT CH 0.90	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.85 CUMULATI 56.16 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.85 VE 16.79 868-51 LES FACTOR 0.90	0.85 (30.96) (165.16 0.90
-15.00 0.85 0.85 73.48 (21.42) -10.00 0.90 0.90 57.86	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 275.22 PERCENT CH 0.90 RESULTS IN 151.39	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.85 0000LATI 56.16 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.9	LES FACTOR 0.85 VE 16.79 868.51 LES FACTOR 0.90 VE 37.39	0.85 0.85 (30.96) 1165.15 0.90 0.90 23.25
-15.00 0.85 0.85 79.48 (21.42) -10.00 0.90 0.90 57.86 386.06 -5.60 0.95	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 275.22 PERCENT CH 0.90 RESULTS IN 151.39 712.01 PERCENT CH 0.95	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.85 CUMULATI 5616 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90 CUMULATI 58.69 1037.96 ANGE IN SA 0.95	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.85 16.79 868.51 LES FACTOR 0.90 VE 39.39 1363.90 LES FACTOR 0.95	0.85 0.85 (30.96) 1135.15 0.90 0.90 23.23 1689.35
-15.00 0.85 0.85 79.48 (21.42) -10.00 0.90 57.86 386.06 -5.00 0.95 0.95 0.95	PERCENT CH 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 275.22 PERCENT CH 0.90 RESULTS IN 151.39 712.01 PERCENT CH 0.95 RESULTS IN 145.70	ANGE IN SA 0.85 CUMULATI 56.16 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90 CUMULATI 58.69 1037.96 ANGE IN SA 0.95 CUMULATI 51.22	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.85 16.78 868.51 LES FACTOR 0.90 VE 39.39 1363.90 LES FACTOR 0.95 VE 0.95 VE 0.95	0.85 0.85 (30.96) 1165.15 0.90 23.25 1689.35 0.95 0.95 0.95
-15.00 0.85 0.85 78.48 21.42) -10.00 0.90 57.86 386.06 -5.00 0.95 0.95 57.34 793.55 0.00 1.00	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 273.22 PERCENT CH 0.90 RESULTS IN 151.39 712.01 PERCENT CH 0.95 RESULTS IN 145.70 1148.80 FERCENT CH 1.00	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.985 0.985 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95	LES FACTOR 0.85 0.85 868-51 LES FACTOR 0.90 VE 39.39 1363-90 LES FACTOR 0.95 VE 62.00 1859.29 LES FACTOR 1.00	0.85 0.85 (30.96) 1165.15 0.90 23.23 1689.35 0.95 0.95 77.43 2214.54
-15.00 0.85 0.85 78.48 (21.42) -10.00 0.90 57.86 386.06 -5.00 0.95 0.95 57.34 793.55 0.00 1.00 1.00	PERCENT CH 0.85 0.85 RESULTS IN 157.08 275.22 PERCENT CH 0.90 RESULTS IN 151.39 712.01 PERCENT CH 0.95 RESULTS IN 1.00 RESULTS IN 1.00 RESU	ANGE IN SA 0.85 0.85 CUMULATI 36.16 571.87 ANGE IN SA 0.90 CUMULATI 58.69 1037.96 ANGE IN SA 0.95 CUMULATI 51.42 1504.04 ANGE IN SA 1.00 -1.00 CUMULATI 43.75	LES FACTOR 0.85 VE 16.79 868.51 LES FACTOR 0.90 VE 39.39 1363.90 LES FACTOR 0.95 VE 62.00 1859.29 LES FACTOR 1.00 1.00 VE 94.61	0.65 0.85 (30.95) 1165.16 0.96 0.90 23.25 1689.35 0.95 0.95 77.43 2214.54 1.00 1.00

RESULTS OF SENSITIVITY RUNS 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 50.75 169-65 41.71 109.79 108.08 171.37 204.66 267.95 15. - .1 0.90 0.99 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90 3.90 0.90 79.79 152.93 153.76 219.58 255.40 321.22 187.81 101.36 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 199.43 267.79 374.49 196.08 306.14 217.11 141.98 22.37 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 245.11 356.88 427.77 239.23 316.00 246.41 155.96 182.59 6**.8**5 0**.**85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 5.01 1758.45 (77.36) (243.61) (284.40) (334.07) (278.28) (318.07) (1.41) 1461.80 0.90 0.90 0,90 0.90 0.90 0.90 ം.90 0.90 130.82 2341.74 88.56 2015.79 (36.07) (30.95) (34,66) 72.09 60.12 67.29 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 178.53 2569.78 250.62 235.93 171.47 222.47 264.74 422.47 438.30 1.00 1.00 1.00 $1.00 \\ 1.00$ 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 379.01 475.94 564.15 772.84 816.49 382.42 3508.32 402.58 268.01 3123.//

三十日

APPENDIX 10



FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR CASSAVA STARCH FACTORY ONLY

T

11 11

1 II I I I II

1.1

1.1

T.

1

1

1 11

I I II



LTUR 1 .	1 I Factory for Cas	SAVA STA	rch onl	Y	ÛA	ssava f	ACTORYI	THROUGH	Put							
		YRCF1	YRCP2	YRIP1	YR192	tr2P1	YR292	YR 3 P1	YR3P2	¥84#1	YR4P2	YRSF1	18 5 72	trop1	YR582	tr7P1
1 00 2 30 30 80 30 80 3 80 3 80 7 80 7 80	UANTITY:TOWNES DATEXECTIONNES DOT STARCH SOLD TELD RUT TO ROT DOT SLURRY TELD R TO RSL DOTS INPUT	T 0 T 10 T 0.0 Z 260 T 0.0	15 10 156-2 260 84-1	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 3/2.0	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 280 372.6	93 10 968.7 250 372.6	93 10 968.7 250 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6	93 10 968.7 260 372.6
90 CI 100 Y) 11 CI 120 Y) 13 Ci	HIP STARCH SOLD IELD CSL TO CST HIP SLURRY IELD C TO CSL HIPS INPUT CST	T 191 2 10 T 1885 Z 700 T 269-3	191 10 1885 700 269-3	1087 10 1323 700 1618	1132 10 11792 700 1685	1232 10 12633 700 1833	1332 10 13875 700 1982	1432 10 14917 700 2131	1532 10 • 15958 790 2280	1632 10 17000 700 2429	1732 10 18042 700 2577	1832 10 19083 700 2725	1932 10 20125 700 2875	1932 10 20125 700 2875	1932 10 20125 700 2875	1932 10 20125 700 2875
1410 GL 1510 Y 1550 Y 1500 Y 1700 Y 1210 Y 1500 C	LUCDSE SOLI: NELB CST TO G NEP STARCH & IELB USL TO CST ATP SLURRY S TELB C TG CSL HIPS INPUT 3	T 00 T 0.0 Z 10 T 0.0 Z 10 T 0.0 T 0.0	0 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	9 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 2.0 700 0.0	9 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0
3 190 00 21 00 100 11 22 01 120 11 23 0	Extrin Soli Iele CST TO D HLF STARCH D Ield CSL TO CST HLF SLURRY D Iele C TO CSL HLFS INFUT D	T 0 1 100 T 0.0 T 0.0 T 0.0 2 700 T 0.0	0 100 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 9.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 940 700 040	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 10 10 0.0 700 0.0	0 100 0.0 10 0.0 700 0.0
24 T(8 T)	DTAL CHIPS INFUT	1 269.3	269.3	1618	1585	1833	1982	2131	2280	24 29	2577	2726	2875 2625	2875 2015	2875	2875
20 10 8 20 10	otal starch frud Otal starch sold	1 181.0	19910	1130	1225	1520 1325	1425 1425	1525	1625 1625	1725 1725	1825	1925 1925	2025	2025	2025 2025	2025
29 1	DIAL CHIP SLURRY	T 1885	1885	11323	11792	12833	13875	14917	15958	17000	18042	19083	20125	20125	20125	20125

-

이 이 영화 문문

1

-

•

REPORT 2 : FACTORY FOR CASSAVA STARCH DALY

į.

CASSAVA FACTORYIVALUE OF INPUTS/OUTPUTS

	VRCP1	YRCP2	18161	VR1P2	YR2P1	18292	YR3P1	YR3P2	TRAPI	YK4F2	YRGP1	TROP2	THOP1	TROPE	TR/P1
30 VALUE: INPUTS 2 HEREBORESTICKER STATE 31D KOOT PRICE K/T 32 KOOTS CONSUMED	100 0	100	100 37	100 3/	100 37	100 37	100 37	:00 37	100 37	199	100 37	100 37	100 37	100 37	100 37
6 33U CHIF PRICE N/T 34 CHIPS CONSUMED	200 54	200 54	200 324	200 337	200 367	200 376	200 426	200 456	200 +86	200 515	200 545	200 575	200 575	200 575	200 575
35 TOTAL DIR MATERIALS	54	60	361	374	404	434	463	493	523	553	582	612	612	512	612
36 VALUE: DUTPUTS 2 XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	0 C 0	400 15 6	800 93 74	800 93 74	900 93 74	000 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74	800 73 74	900 93 74	800 93 74	800 93 74
390 CST PRICE K/T 90 CHIP STARCH SOLD T 40 CHIP STARCH	0 181 0	800 181 145	900 1087 870	800 1132 906	800 1232 986	800 1332 1066	800 1432 1146	800 1532 1226	300 :.532 :306	300 1732 1386	900 1832 1466	300 19 32 1 546	800 1932 1546	800 1932 1545	800 1932 1546
+11: GLUCUSE FRICE K/T 14:0 GLUCUSE SOLD 1 42 CHIP GLUCUSE	0 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 Ç	11 00 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0	1100 0 0
+30 DEXTRIN PRICE K/T 190 DEXTRIN SOLD T 44 CHIP DEXTRIN	0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	17 0 0 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 G 9	1790 0 0	1700 0 0	1706 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0	1700 0 0
45 TOTAL SALES 27	0 ======	151 ======	944 =======	980 ======	1060	1140	1220	1300	1390	1460	1540	1620	1620	1020	1620

•

131

=







tet, te to edat McClassic Char 1.1

L L – II Ш 1.1

I I 1 i. 1

1

1

AGEORI G : ALTORY NOR CARGACA GLACY ONLY

L

I

1

1

. . T

L

T.

L

т т

ı.

1

I

I

I.

L

1.1 - 1

ТТ Т

1 1

T

T

CASSAUR FACTORY : OPERALING TIMES

THERE THERE THERE YERE THERE THERE THERE THERE THEFE THERE THERE THERE THERE THERE THERE THERE

------.....

2000 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010		900009004 100000004		ംംതെനം - 	
87 87 7,050 97.4		91111 1111 1100 1100 1111 1111 1111 111	5	0000004 000004	ດຊວາງທວ∳ ເຊິ່ງ ເຊິ່ງ
についるので、 (1) 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	်း မိုင်းဖွားထိုနဲ့	လိုက္ရမ္ရာ ကို ကိုလ္စီအဖိုးရန္က	Stage P	္က စိုး	ం సంబల్లోని
	1000000 100000 1000000	2000000-0 2000000-0 2000000-0	14 (Sh400 (Dh44) 20 - 10 - 4 - 64 76 - 10 - 14 76 - 16 76 - 16	ာ္က ကရာဇ္ကန မ ခ	ာရလာမှာလူန္န ်
た <u>のいめのた</u> **** のや のや の	<u>р чр ч</u> р чр ч ч р орелио 4	8084 8084 8084 8084 8084 8084 8084 8084	ALORUDUDUD4 IG +10 -4 -14 M-40 - 0 	<i>୦୦୦୦୦୦୦</i> କାର୍ଯ୍ୟ କାର୍ଯ୍ୟ	0.000000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000
9 ゆい ついののとす	5000000 8000000	9000 00 9000 00 9000000			0.90000 4
	်င်္နီးလက္က မိုင်မီးစက်ဒိုနီ	000000000000 0000000000000000000000000		ာင္းစမ္းဥန္နဲ့ မ်ိဳး စ	္ အေလ့က္က်ာ္ရန္ ကိုင္ရက္လာက္ရင္ရန္ ကိုင္ရက္လာက္ရင္ရန္ ကိုင္ရက္လာက္ရင္ရန္ ကိုင္ရက္လာက္ရင္ရန္
	8.50 - 114 8.500 - 114	5.5.5 9.5.5 9.05 9.05 9.054		000 *	⊘⊉⊘r- <u>⊃</u> ⊘≉ 4 4•ri
	**************************************	14917 1340 14 16 16 16 16 16 10 7 16 10 7 10 7	4-14 S No Nr Osta	<i>ାର୍ବ</i> ଜନ୍ମ ଜନ୍ମ	2007.000
Σ<000Σ → Σ< H→ A 000 -00	BOBE CHA	12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1		0000,004 	000 004 7 7 7 7
T⊂(5)901 - (5+4) + +T⊂ - + (+ + 919 + 0+ €	2011 - 21 4			ಾರ್ ತಿಂತಿ	
8813 9813 2015 - 3144	8-38: -9-34 8-38: -9-34		명우명 · 요구제 문구대 · 요	ందాందంత చే	4907-99 4 1 04
		11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11			19 Ban (1969 4 1
	धुकुक्षः <u>व</u> ुदान्, न	80090 044 8047 044 8092 044 8092 04		* 00-10-00 	् ः २३१ २३
୦୦୦୮୦୦୬ ୦୦୦୮୦୦୦୬	90022004 000			က္ရွိတဲ့ စုဂ္ရန္	<u>a ser ga</u> t
• •			÷	1-*	• •
. ŭ	8_4 _	<u>> 4</u>	્રેમ્સ્		. <u>v</u> .
			Sector de la	ະ ມີ ເວັດ ເອີ້ມ ເອີ້	1 6
្នុ រួនភ្លូងស្លា	- ល ុសមើលដែរកាំ ក្រុមអ្នក និទេស	ၣၯၛႄၛၟၯ	- Source and the		ាស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ី ស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ីស៊ី
<u>ૡૺ૾ૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૼૢૼૼૼૼૼૼૼઌ૽ૼ૱</u>		÷FZAADZ-	ዸ፝ዹቘፘዀፙቜ፞፞ፙ	3943.603.6	
a light a light a		ក់ដំណូនទីភ្លំនំ ដំ		GUUSENCE GUE GUUSENCE GUE GUELENCE SOLET	n - Standard (Sandard) 1. Zacini (Sandard) 1. Sandard (Sandard) 1. Sandard (Sandard)
23233488					(1) Constraints of the constr
കര്ദർ?ത് ട്യെ പെടും പോട്	సంజెట్జీరిత్ హో - ముండు సంఘం చూలు	ు ముజరు ఎ ముజ చు	ടിട്ട്രില്ക്ക്ക്ക് മം മംമം മം	化过去式 医无语等学的	(1997年)(1997年)) - 1997年 - 1997年(1997年)
S		ាល សាភាភាភាភិ ភាគាំពី ១៣ ភាពសាភាភាភាភា ១៣ ភាពសាភាភាភាភាភា	848373888	។ មាល់ សំពីភូមិភ្នំសំរៀង សុខមាន ខេត្តណាប់ ធ្វើស	সদলি কেন্দ্ৰী কিন্তু সন্দ নাম্বলৈ নাই সন্দ নাম্বলৈ নাই

I.

L

I I I I I

Т

T

| |----| T

132

I I

I

L

PEPURT	+ : FACTORY FOR DASS	AVA STA	ach gal	.1	Cassava	FACTOR	7:0thêr	: VARIAB	le cost	3						
		YRCF1	78092	981P1	18182	18291	YR2F2	:K3F1	18322	18491	184P2	(8521	18582	186P1	180F2	18781
3000 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200	ELECTRICIY ANANXXXXXXXXXXXXXX IGIAL STARCH PROD T UNITS PER TUNNE RATE PER UNIT ELECTRICITY - VARIABLE	191.0 250 0.04 2	195.0 250 0.04 2	1180 250 0.04 12	1225 230 0.04 12	1020 100 0.04 13	1425 250 0.04 14	1525 250 0.04 15	1625 250 0.04 10	17 25 250 0.04 17	1825 250 0.04 18	1925 230 0.04 19	2025 250 0.04 20	2025 250 0.04 20	2025 250 0.04 20	2025 250 0.04 20
8405000 10000 15000 10000 10000 10000 100000000	WATER WEATSWEENE EXAMPLE TOTAL STATCH FROD T JIOOD FER TOME RATE FER OOLLINE WATER-VARIABLE STATUTES	18) 4.3 2.30	193.0 4-3 2-30 2	1160 +.3 2.30 12	1225 4.3 2.30 12	1525 4,3 2,30 13	1425 4.5 2.50 14	1525 4.3 2.30 15	1620 4.0 1.30 15	1725 4.3 2.30 17	1825 4.3 2.30 18	1925 4.3 2.30 19	2025 4.3 2.50 20	2025 4.3 2.30 20	2025 4.3 2.30 20	2025 4.5 2.30 20
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	PUEL STARCH PROD I LINES PER TOME RAIZ PER LITRE FUEL	181.0 132 0.52 12	19 6.0 0.52 13	1190 132 0.52 81	1225 132 0.52 34	1325 132 0.52	1420 132 0.02 38	1621 132 0.52 175	1825 132 0.52	1725 132 9.52 113	1325 132 1-52 1-52	: 025 - 32 - 32 - 32 - 32 - 32	2025 132 9.5	2025 132 1.52 1.52	2025 132 0.52 139	2025
	CHEMICALE NATABASIANANANANA SLOCOSE SOLL ESTLAGS HEN TOMME COST HEA NG. CHEMICALE	ပ် 30 0.5	0 90 0.50 0	0 30 7.50 0	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.30 0	0 50 0.50 0	0.50 0.50	یں 30 ن.20 ز	U 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.20 0	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50 0	0 30 0.50 0	9.50 0
	PALNING MATERIALE RAN URBERTERIALE TOTAL STARTER SOLD T EAG ENTIT WOIDHT TO BAG ENTIT LOST TOTAL BAG EGET S	161. 25 1.00		1180 15 100 4	1225 125 1.05 49		1425 1425 1400 1400	1725 25 1.00 61	1011 1011 1000 1000			······································	200882 25 1.90 81	2925 25 1.00 31	2025 20 1.00 81	2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
3 140 1940 1950 195	GUUGUSE SOLLE I (Sun UNIT WEIGHT ING GRUM UNIT DOST TOTAL LAUMS DOST	100 15-00 15-00	0 105 10-00 0	6 106 12.00 2	0 00. 00.21	0 100 15-00 0	0 109 15.00 3	0 100 10-21 0	0 100 15-00 0	0 100 15.00 ¢	0 100 15-00 2	100 15.00	0 100 100 0	0 :00 15:00)	0 160 15.00 0	0 (00 (5.00) 5
5 :::: 1088 109 8	LEXIALA SULLATA BAG UNIT WEIGATAG BAG UNIT GUST TUTAL EAGS GUST	0 20 1.00 0		0 25 95. :	9 20 1.09 0	0 25 1.00 0	0 1.00 0	0 25 1.00 0	0 25 1.00 0	نې ۱.00	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	23 1.00 1	0 0 0 0 0 0	20 20 1.00 V	25 25 1.00 0	0 15 1.00 Q
-10 27	FADLING MATERIALS		5 523. 11	4.7 71.2.22	49 alaisa	53 #2222.02	ری توسیع	6: 	وي ۲۵۳۳۳۳	9ن 1221 -	73 ===		3i 	81 ======	21 202222	81 -

•

.

-

133

= = .--

-

_

_

-- -

_

= = -= = - _

_1

İ																	
	REPOR	t 5 : Factory fur cass	AVA STA	irch on.	Y.	assava	FACTORY	FIXED	ASSET M	aint/le	PR						
			YRCP1	YRCF1	181F1	tR1P2	182P1	182F2	YK3P1	YR3P2	YR4P1	YR4PC	YRSP1	18582	trof1	YR6P2	1R7P:
	115	FIXED ASSET COST XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX															
	1160 1171 1181 1191 201) LAND) FACTORY BUILDINGS) PLANT & EQUIPMENT) VEHICLES) HOUSING	25 375 500 70 1 88	25 500 1 500 70 250	25 500 - 300 70 250	25 500 1500 70 250	2: 50(150(7(25(
	121 122 3	TOTAL COST	1258	2345	2345	_345	2346	2345	23&S	2345	2345	2345	2345	2345	2340	2345	234
	8 1231 1241 1251 1261 1261 1271) LAND MNT/RT SECTORY BUILD MNT/RT) PLENT MNT/RT) VEHICLES MNT/RT) HDUSING MNT/RT	0 0.0 20	0 0.0 20	0 5 10,0 29 5	0 5 10-0 2/ 5	0 12.5 20 5	0 12.5 20 5	0 5 15.0 20 5	0 5 15.0 20 5	0 5 17,5 20 5	0 5 17.5 20 5	0 5 20.0 20 5	0 20.0 20 5	0 5 20.0 20 5	0 5 20.0 20 5	20 . 2
	128 27	MAINTENANCE	7 ======	7 =======	101	101	120	120	138	138	157	157	176	17d	176	176	17
	9 1291 1301 1311 1321 1321 1331	I LAND DEP/RT FACTORY BUILD DEP/RT PLANT DEP/RT I VENTOLES DEP/RT I HOUSING DEP/RT	0 0 0 0	00000	0 10 20	0 0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 10 20 0	0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 0 10 20 0	0 10 20 0	1
	134 27	DEPRECIATION) ========) 222222	92 	82	82	82 =====	82 	82 =======	62	82	82	82	82 	82	8
	135 121	TOTAL CUM DEP	0	0	82	164	246	328	410	492	574	55 6	738	820	902	984	106
	8 141 27	NET FIXED ASSETS	1258	2345	2263	2181	20 99	2017	1935	1853	1771	1689	1607	1525	1443	1361	127'

•

٠

134

_ -

- -

- -

-

-

_

- -

-

_

_

_

-

		140An	18092	હાયુ	YR1P2	14291	24230	143P1	YR:35'2	िन्ध्र	18462	1.631	Y85P2	třop1	í Roř.	YR.'F1
SU RUUT WEICHT ILI RUUT PRICE > RUUT PRICE	1/2	1985 1985	ឹទ្ធិ។	2001 1	1000 1000	- 186.	50g1	100 ⁻¹	301	1985 1987	38.1	201	9 <u>0</u> 1	1005	1 53 1	30+
	1/27	20 4	မိုင္လိုင္ရ	े 1006 1006		267 267 267	88 88 8	1007	000 000 000 000	202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202 202	000 2007 2007	900 2004 2004 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 20	474 200	2019 2019 2019	555 885 886	535 5
B - HOLLING MATE	RIALS VALUE	50•03	ற ு+ ் ப	្ទុះភ្នំ	8 708	Rov Bov	50.05 50.05	50.61 310	20.32 20.32	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 5	50.05 37	50°0 39	50.61 41	12 12 14	81 50.05	80.4 9
C TIAL SALES IN STOCH WEAS	H.P. A.	000		**6) *** */	20 * 151	1000 1000 103	040 4 5 11 14	9 1*8	13.10 200		2013) 41	3 4 13	0707 0707 1	1620 1620 149	(52) • •	
1014_ 575CM		ន	꾀		22	195	0	 ••	905	13	345		336	365	000	3
OU DEPTOR WEAR	PAYTENIS	00	•13	≪യ ∛1	-2-9 	က် ကို	9 m	2013 2019	300	90 10	-9[3	355e-	-0+ (?)	04/3	44	ĨÀ
TD CASH PERIOD	44 A 14	ာ္သ	93	(*+>	14 15 15	កខ្ល		6	ः <u>३</u>	-4.0	း ခု မို	~1-0 6	44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44	~4 0 %	5	
101AL LLY ME 10 CRENITORS WE CREDITORS WE	VTERIALS VTERIALS VCRUPLS	400	300		* * 3	1 + 4 M 1 - 7 1 - 7 1 - 7		294	904 194	12° 12°	295 295 86	285 785	612	0 ·	(4.0). 	

ſ

1 I 1 I

L

L

-

135

I I

I I

I I I I

ţ

T T

FACTORY FOR CASE	NAME OF A	NU UN	•	5											
		rRCP2	14194	18182	स्थित स		YK3C1	18 3 PC	19481	Y-42	146+ -	YK5P2	tâcêl	rke∘⊇	13751
IAD CONSURATE TAX RATE	•••	0	¢	. •		9	\odot	Э	0	Э	3	ج.	5	÷	4
111 5-1 101 111 801							1.56			13.50	12.50		149		
130 L-1 (FBT INT XAT), 1 D. sectorstandson Alto SatRt-TERM L25		0	13.50 •06	3 8	3.5		13.50	3.0	3.5	:3.50	13.19	13.50	310	13.55 5=====	0
0. andreatheathan an r 600 CAPITA.		100	8 8 8 8 8 8 8		103 33 87 8		0			0	- 0 	- 0 	C · E		
autoriantereneration abb medication real abb metication real abb metication real	· · · · · · ·	80°5	0000				0000 1	10. <u>2</u> 3	1033 1033	5.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.55	2 <u>38</u>	°33	ిస్తా	10 NO	
27 - Landardon and an and a second and a second and a second a sec	· · · ·		ခဲ့ခ်	1 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	100g	1000 1000 1000		0000	⇒35 25	0000 0000 0000	10000 2000	° <u>33</u>	0 <u>8</u> 0	000	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
				11 11 11 11 11 11											

136

ł

١,

I I

L II — II

ЕП П

	YRCS1	YREF?	YRIHI	16162	18291	Y8292	YR391	YR3E2	YRAPI	YRAP2	YRSP1	(1592	YRAPI	18492	Y873
ب به بار به به یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک یک															
KWACHA THOUSAND SALES REVENUE: ROUT STARCH CHIF STARCH CHIF GLUEOSE CHIF GLUEOSE CHIP DEXTRIN	0000	5 145 0 0	74 870 0	74 906 0 0	74 986 0 0	74 1066 0 0	74 1146 0 0	74 1226 0	/4 1306 0 0	74 1386 0 0	74 1466 0 0	74 1546 0 0	74 1546 0 0	74 1546 0 0	; 154
TOTAL SALES	0	151	944	980	1060	1140	1220	1300	1390	1460	1540	1620	1620	1620	162
RAU MATERIALS: ROOTS CONSUMED CHIPS CONSUMED	0 54	54 54	37 324	37 337	37 367	37 396	37 426	37 456	37 486	37 515	37 545	37 575	37 575	37 575	3 57
TUTAL DIR MATERIALS	54	00	361	374	404	43 4	463	493	523	553	582	612	612	6 12	61
GROSS ANDED VALUE ELECTRICITY-VARIABLE WATER-VARIABLE FUEL CHEMICALS PACKING MATERIALS	(54) 2 12 0 7	91 22 13 0 8	383 12 12 91 0 47	606 12 12 84 0 49	555 13 13 91 0 53	706 14 14 98 0 57	757 15 15 105 0 61	807 10 10 112 0 65	857 17 17 118 0 69	907 18 18 125 0 73	958 19 19 132 0 77	1008 20 20 139 0 81	1008 20 20 139 0 31	1008 20 20 139 0 8:	100 2 13 3
OTHER VANIABLE COSTS	23	25	152	157	170	183	196	209	222	235	247	260	260	260	26
DONTRIBUTION LABOUR & STAFF ELEDTRICITY-FIXED WATEN-FIXED MAINTENANCE MISCE LLANEDUS DEPRECIATION	(77) 73 2 1 7 50 0	60 72 17 25 0	432 117 2 101 50 92	448 117 2 101 50 82	480 117 2 1 120 50 82	523 117 1 120 50 82	561 117 2 138 50 82	578 117 2 1 138 50 82	635 152 2 1 157 50 82	573 152 2 1 157 50 82	710 152 2 1 176 50 82	747 152 2 1 176 50 82	747 152 2 1 176 50 82	747 152 2 1 176 50 82	74 15 17 5 8
TOTAL FIXED COSTS	:33	107	352	352	371	371	390	390	++3	443	462	462	462	462	4 .j.
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX INTEREST:	(210)	(4.)	ŗų	96	115	152	171	208	:92	229	248	.185	235	285	23
SHURI-TERM DEBT MEDIUM-TERM DEBT LONG-TERM DEBT	000	0 20 20	_4 41 41	24 41 41	18 41 41	12 41 41	6 41 41	0 41 41	0 34 34	27 27 27	20 20	0 14 14	77	0	
TOTAL INTEREST	0	+1	105	105	99	93	67	81	66	54	41	27	14	0	
PROFIT BEFORE TAX TAXATION	(210)	32) 0	. 26)	(9) 0	16 U	59 0	8+ 0	127 0	124 0	175 0	207 0	258 0	272 122	195 128	28 12
PROFIT AFTER TAK	(210)	(82)	(25)	(9)	1.4	50	94	197	1.74	• 75	207	γg	149	157	15

.

137

- -

-

- -

- -

-

_

7

i.

	CAP2 MARE MARES VASAN MARAS MARAS	11 11 22 101 AL		00 1342 1008 1108 11		4 HI HI			12 132 137 032	19 19 19 19	10 EAR 532 AI		
	842 MART 11647 VASH 11642 1864			2011 Soth 2021 0.4					200 202 201		142 SP2 A	38 38	8 9 5
	CARS TRAFT VILLE VILLE	71. 140 two 153		100 12K2 1100	1°	3	1128		3		192 AN	33 33	\$ 5 -
	LASEN CAMEL LANE. CAM	1001 - 689. TUL	384 324	Ster od	1 °	3	1128	9	3	89	3	22	51
	SM 500 56	*	32:13	8				지갑 않는 것 같아.	ja ve 🖬	는 것이 같은 것이다. 같은 것이 같은 것이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 않는 것이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이 같이			8
l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l		R	 All Control and All Andrews 	【平	2		3	S		20	8	3 3	\$Į
	8		19 18 :	9	₫•	4	1002	ŝ		28	179	¥ Ş	8
		8	\$8 8	8	***	4	126	(912)	3	, șî	3	88	3
	2	ß	3 31 3	8	8 °	8	8	3	ß	B	19	88	8
	8	R	839	8	88	8	8	S	3	S	5113	Ş Ş	3
	ŝ	\$	8 8 8	8	rş	23	26	8	8		1390	3 8	
	ŝ	đ	ada	8	388	Ř	R	ŝ	6	88)	•/4	88	á
	S I	12	\$ 6 °	8	8 Ş	¥	236	8		2	198	3 8	8
I I	8	3	883	102	0	 3	102	5	3	ŧ	\$	999	3
	F - 12	ß	8° 3	12	••	•	19	2		5. 19	390	00	8
		LINDAR THOUGHO	UNENT ASSETS: UTING STOCKS UDITORS PREDAVAGNIS CAGE	DIA. CURRENT ASSETS	DEDITORS LINE ITTES	UTAL CLARENT TABLE THES	EI CINICAL ASSETS		DTAL NET ASSETS			EDIUN-TERN DEDT DIG-TERN DEDT	WITH EPUDIED
Ĩ		r He Coleo	°⊆ ∄₫ ₿{	IE.	°233	148) 148)	12°	6 6 6	1-1 120	**** ****	18°		ign~

14.

JI

ĥ

138

Į.

a Aak 1Ê Û

H.

۶Ü.

CASSAUN FACTORYTFUNGS FLOW STATEMENTS

REPORT 10 : FACTORY FOR CASSAVA STARCH UNLY

1.1

1.1

11

11

| | | | | | |

П

IJ

I.

ī.

		19791
		YS622
		15671
		18582
	*****	14582
	1	19492
		19451
		YEJE2
		14232
		14242
		14291
-		1318x
		19091
		14041

CHA THOUSANG KNIXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX	(0)2 (52)	(82) +1	ಸ್ಥೆಜನ	ିଖ୍ଞ	3(J.15	ిందిన	9000 8000	989	្មីខ្លួន	6000 1000 1000	60 60 60	អូខ្លួ	148 149 14	280	9 <u>8</u> 0
H SEASATEL TROP 201105	2:07	(1+)	5	1	179		147	062	12	311	330	138	245	139	239
174. 104 TEAN DEN 6-TEAN LEBT	1600 1600	ୢଌୢୄୡ	000	000	000	୦୦୦	000	000	000	<u>ంంం</u>	000	000	000	000	000
AL SURCES OF 06	1390	6021	13	5	£.	3	<u>.</u> 47	062	24	311	330	' 9	245	239	239
LICATIONS UN 16: 16: NOESTMENT 16: CAVETAL	아이 아이 아이	100	ා අ ව ද	<u>्</u> रु:	969 1	0 13 0	0 92	ిసి	ာမ္မွ	⊃.8	ాబి	->- 9	300	¢0	00
at Reparation: Uluo-Tean UCST NG-Tean UCBT	00	00	00	00	00	90	00	<u>80</u>	88	999 911	88 	001 100	88 88	90	00
A. LERI REPAIRENT	ċ	0	0	0	>	10	0	80	200	905		82	202	0	0
TALET: III.um-Tern Iebt Ing-Tern Debt	00	22	-4 m 7 4		14 FA	+ +			さき	55	38		rsts.	. >©	00
& L-T DEBT INT	0	17	16	18	18	18	16	13	38	\$	4	12		0	0
AL REP' SERVICE	\diamond	4	16	18	15	10	18	28:	3	Ś		8	51	0	2
AL APPLICATIONS Julis	6921	8		3	35	212	37	317	R	ŝ	5	12	240 1	6	
Pauls Cash Ances Rades Rade Mulative	នាន	40 41	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		43 ig	ଞି		(6/)	1	+0	6	646	6 <u>6</u>	62

1

L

I.

I.

T T T

T

1

I.

- I - I - I - I - I

1.1

ГТТ

I

I.

I.

11 11

I.

I.

			3.2	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·) 		
CONTRIBUTION MAR	20102	0	*	ę	\$	\$	\$	94	¢ ¢	-9 -9	¢4	-9 4	0 7	2	¥	¥
FIXED COST/SALES	15	0	12	in .	R	2	13	32	30	ส	30	30	61 61	81	<i>к</i> і 6	دخ م
PAUPLE RET LANS	SALE:	0	(*5)	(n)	(1)	4	40	7	10	•	2	19 11	- 1	ů.	¥	×
Strain the the st	位式	0	3	0	r.,	0	Я		0	<u>.</u>	ió	10	9 33 - 4	Ĺâ	a a	3
PROFIT/CAP ExPL) YEIX (30	ŝ	9.0)	5. C	5.0	5° 0	6 .0	:1.2	14.0	9 12 12	is.5	18.6	20.3	22-2	2 20.5	9 19.6
SALES/CAP Evelo	/ED 0	0.0	0.1	0.4	••0	¢.4	4.0	••0	0.5	0.5	0.0	0.6	0.6	0.6	ې د ج	0.6
LUKKENT KATID	0	•0	0.0	5.1 2.1	0.0	2.9	4	5.6	9+1	5	4.5	4 05	64 05	9.4	4.0.4	
JEBT/CAP ENFLOYE	N.	0	46	÷ţ	1. •\$	9 4	5 1	\$	ጽ	5	53	16	cr.	0	0	0
LEBT SERVICE CON	E F 0	0.0	(0.1	1.7	5.1	es es	5.7	3.0	0*1	0.1	1.2	4	0 .†	1.1	0.0	
FROFIT/ NET CAP 6	CHPLE (30		0.3)	0.6	0 0	5.3	۲. ه	10.8	13.4	4.4	4.51		3.9	21.6	87	1.12

т. Т. Г

··· ··································	-			Hal						11 4			ID 1		
141 0	REPORT 12 : FA	CTORY FOR CAS	Sava Star	RATE (Ch Only	OF RETU	jên mi a:	ursis								
	REPORT 12 : FA	CTORY FOR CAS	SAVA STAR YR1	RATE (CH DNLY YR2	OF RETU YR3	JRN AHA: YR4	LYSIS 	186	YR7		189	1810			
	REPORT 12 : FA	CTORY FOR CAS	SAVA STAR YR1	RATE (CH DNLY YR2	DF RETU	JRN AHA YR4	LYSIS YKS	1£6	YK7	tik 8	YR9	1810			
	REPORT 12 : FA 	CTORY FOR CAS	5ava star YR1 (2900)	RATE (CH DNLY YR2 (1.6)	DF RETU YR3 96.2	JRN AHA YR4 315.8 9 74	LYSIS 	186 275.9	¥R7 45ۥ.1	тікв 477.5 9.7.	۲R9 477 .8 9 74	1R10 2153 3 74			
	KEPORT 12 : FA 242 NET CA 2430 DISCOU 245 D. C.	CTORY FOR CAS	SAVA STAR YR1 (2900) 8-36 (2900)	RATE (CH OHLY YR2 (1.6) 8.36 (1.5)	OF RETU YR3 96.2 8.36 81.9	JRN AHA YR4 315.8 9.36 248.2	463.9 8.36 336.4	186 275.9 8.36 385.5	YR7 454.1 8.36 290.5	ткв 477.8 8.3с 272.4	¥₹9 477.8 8.36 251.4	1R10 2153 8.36 10 4 5			

.

-

I

- ----

